
Page 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Minutes Book 
 

Tuesday 20 February 2018 
  

 
  



Page 2 

 

  
Minutes of Cabinet and Committees 

 

October 2017-February 2018 
 

Meeting Date Page Nos. Chairman (Cllr) 

Cabinet 

Cabinet 7 November 2017 5 - 14 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Cabinet 12 December 2017 15 - 26 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Cabinet 30 January 2018 27 - 42 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Cabinet 6 February 2018 43 - 50 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Overview and Scrutiny Select Committees 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28 November 2017 51 - 58 Graham Wright 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 5 February 2018 59 - 70 Graham Wright 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 9 February 2018 71 - 76 Graham Wright 

Children's Select Committee 31 October 2017 77 - 84 Jon Hubbard 

Children's Select Committee 19 December 2017 85 - 90 Jon Hubbard 

Environment Select Committee 21 November 2017 91 - 106 Matthew Dean 

Environment Select Committee 16 January 2018 107 - 112 Matthew Dean 

Health Select Committee 5 September 2017 113 - 120 Christine Crisp 

Health Select Committee 7 November 2017 121 - 128 Christine Crisp 

Regulatory Committees 

Strategic Planning Committee 11 October 2017 129 - 136 Fleur de Rhé-
Philipe 

Strategic Planning Committee 6 December 2017 137 - 142 Fleur de Rhé-
Philipe 

Northern Area Planning Committee 4 October 2017 143 - 172 Tony Trotman 

Northern Area Planning Committee 1 November 2017 173 - 184 Tony Trotman 

Northern Area Planning Committee 29 November 2017 185 - 198 Tony Trotman 

Northern Area Planning Committee 20 December 2017 199 - 204 Tony Trotman 

Northern Area Planning Committee 24 January 2018 205 - 210 Tony Trotman 

Eastern Area Planning Committee 2 November 2017 211 - 220 Mark Connolly 

Eastern Area Planning Committee 30 November 2017 221 - 224 Mark Connolly 

Southern Area Planning Committee 19 October 2017 225 - 254 Fred 
Westmoreland 



Page 3 

 

Southern Area Planning Committee 16 November 2017 255 - 268 Fred 
Westmoreland 

Southern Area Planning Committee 14 December 2017 269 - 294 Fred 
Westmoreland 

Southern Area Planning Committee 10 January 2018 295 - 306 Fred 
Westmoreland 

Western Area Planning Committee 18 October 2017 307 - 322 Christopher 
Newbury 

Western Area Planning Committee 15 November 2017 323 - 328 Christopher 
Newbury 

Western Area Planning Committee 13 December 2017 329 - 342 Christopher 
Newbury 

Western Area Planning Committee 11 January 2018 343 - 352 Christopher 
Newbury 

Joint Committees 

Health and Wellbeing Board 19 September 2017 353 - 360 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Health and Wellbeing Board 9 November 2017 361 - 366 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Local Pension Board 18 October 2017 367 - 376 Mr Howard 
Pearce 

Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee 27 September 2017 377 - 384 Tony Deane 

Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee 23 November 2017 385 - 392 Tony Dene 

Wiltshire Police and Crime Panel 14 September 2017 393 - 398 Richard Britton 

Wiltshire Police and Crime Panel 7 December 2017 399 - 402 Richard Britton 

Wiltshire Police and Crime Panel 18 January 2018 403 - 406 Richard Britton 

Governance Committees 

Audit Committee 12 December 2017 407 - 420 Richard Britton 

Standards Committee 17 January 2018 421 - 424 Paul Oatway 
QPM 

Other Committees 

Electoral Review Committee 12 December 2017 425 - 428 Richard Clewer 

Electoral Review Committee 11 January 2018 429 - 432 Richard Clewer 

Electoral Review Committee 25 January 2018 433 - 436 Richard Clewer 

Electoral Review Committee 7 February 2018 437 - 438 Richard Clewer 

Officer Appointment Committee 13 November 2017 439 - 440 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Officer Appointment Committee 2 November 2017 441 - 442 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Officer Appointment Committee 13 November 2017 443 - 444 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 



Page 4 

 

Officer Appointment Committee 8 December 2017 445 - 446 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Officer Appointment Committee 10 January 2018 447 - 448 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Officer Appointment Committee 12 January 2018 449 - 450 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Officer Appointment Committee 16 January 2018 451 - 452 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Officer Appointment Committee 26 January 2018 453 - 454 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Staffing Policy Committee 1 November 2017 455 - 460 Allison Bucknell 

Staffing Policy Committee 10 January 2018 461 - 464 Allison Bucknell 

Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority 

Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority 8 September 2017 465 - 470 Spencer Flower 
(Dorset) 

Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority 5 December 2017 471 - 478 Spencer Flower 
(Dorset) 



 
 
 

 
 
 

CABINET 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 7 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 
THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice-
Chairman), Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Laura Mayes, 
Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Philip Whitehead and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Tony Deane, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr 
Gavin Grant, Cllr Deborah Halik, Cllr Darren Henry, Cllr Ruth Hopkinson, Cllr Atiqul 
Hoque, Cllr Tony Jackson, Cllr Bob Jones MBE, Cllr Brian Mathew, Cllr Steve 
Oldrieve, Cllr Stewart Palmen, Cllr Horace Prickett, Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe, Cllr 
Tom Rounds, Cllr Ian Thorn, Cllr Philip Whalley, Cllr Roy While, Cllr Christopher 
Williams, Cllr Graham Wright, Cllr James Sheppard, Cllr Allison Bucknell and Cllr 
Andy Phillips 
  

 
133 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Jon Hubbard. 
 

134 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 10 October 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 10 October 2017. 
 

135 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

136 Leader's announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 

137 Public participation and Questions from Councillors 
 
The Chairman referred to a question from Les Durrant of the Swindon DDP and 
the response that had been published in the supplement. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Councillor John Thomson stated, in response to a question from Councillor 
Brian Mathew, that all libraries had information about the new Universal Credit 
process and that some of the major libraries could provide more assistance 
than other small libraries. All staff, including volunteers, are trained to show 
people how access the forms and to signpost people to further assistance as 
appropriate. It was noted, however, that the Department for Work & Pensions 
will not allow library staff to help claimants fill in the forms. This was to ensure 
that the applicant is solely responsible for the accuracy of the information 
submitted. 
 
The Leader suggested that Councillor Mathew should contact Councillor 
Thomson if he had any further concerns. 
 

138 Update: Special School Provision in Wiltshire 
 
Councillor Laura Mayes presented the report which provided an update to 
Cabinet on the work being undertaken to review Wiltshire’s Special School 
provision. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that report is an update in advance of a more detailed report in March; that the 
project had started two years ago, with Cabinet Members having been briefed in 
the interim on issues including the Wood report; the reasons for the need to 
make changes including the need to make improvements to the environment 
and the need to provide 226 additional places by 2026; that some children have 
to be placed outside of Wiltshire; the need to make provision more 
geographically equitable; the formula used to calculate future need; the financial 
context, and the increasing demand for services; the need to find a sustainable 
solution for transport issues; the impact of the army basing programme; the 
statutory duties placed on authorities regarding the provision of special school 
places; how schools had been engaged with to develop alternative proposals; 
and the consultation period prior to any decision and implementation. 
 
Jan Winfield, Governor Larkrise School, addressed the meeting raising 
concerns about the level of detail in the current report and whether the 
alternative proposals submitted by schools would be given due consideration. 
 
In response to these concerns, Councillor Laura Mayes emphasises that the 
report was an update, summarising issues so far, and that all proposals would 
be considered in detail at a later date. 
 
Stuart Hall, Wiltshire Parent & Carers Council, emphasised the need to 
complete the review as soon as reasonable possible to meet the needs of 
children by providing flexible provision in the right environment. 
 
Councillor Graham Wright, on behalf of Councillor Jon Hubbard – Chairman of 
the Children’s Select Committee, outlined the process by which the proposals 
and process would be scrutinised and a report submitted to Cabinet. 
 

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

In response to an issue raised Paul Cooke - Chair of Downlands School, 
Councillor Laura Mayes stated she would seek advice from officers regarding 
the issues raised in the letter from the commissioner for academy schools. 
 
The Leader thanked those who had attended and contributed to the debate, and 
encouraged them to continue to engage positively with the review process. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
i) To note the work to be undertaken to develop a clear and strategic 

direction for the provision of specialist SEN provision. 
 
ii) To agree to receive a full report on the outcomes of this work, and any 

resulting recommendations, at the meeting of cabinet on 27 March 
2018.  
 

iii) That depending on the outcome of this work, this report will detail any 
further consultations that are necessary and outline how the local 
authority will discharge its duties in this regard. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To update Cabinet on the work being undertaken to review special school 
provision in Wiltshire, in advance of a more detailed Cabinet paper in March 
2018. 
 

139 Service User Engagement in Adult Care 
 
Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which informed the Cabinet of 
current contract and funding arrangements that the Council had with User Led 
Organisations and Healthwatch Wiltshire to engage with customers on adult 
care services, and made proposals for their future commissioning. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
how the current providers had been engaged with and given more time to 
develop proposals; the intention to reduced duplication and reduce 
management costs; the challenges of bringing organisations with different 
cultures together; and how performance management going forward would be 
addressed. 
 
In presenting his proposals, Councillor Wickham stated that the contract should 
be awarded on the proviso that: if one or two organisations were awarded the 
contract, they would be required to commission user led services from a 
number of providers and for that they would need to ensure that the widest 
range of users were included. 
 
Following a short debate, the meeting;  
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 
 
 

Resolved 
 
1. To agree to adopt Option 2, on the condition that the delivery of this 

provision should be achieved by either two or one organisations, and 
that, if in the latter case, there will be a requirement for the contacted 
organisation to commission user led services from a number of 
providers and for them to ensure that the widest range of users are 
included. 

 
2. To secure delegated authority for the Corporate Director for Adult 

Care and Health, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Adult 
Social Care, Public Health and Public Protection and the Associate 
Director for Finance to award a contract to the preferred provider/s 
when identified, as a result of the tender process. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
Commissioners recognise that there is scope to remove duplication and that 
there are several activities currently funded in contracts that could be removed 
from future service specifications to achieve savings and provide a more 
focused service. 
 
To ensure timely procurement of the service. 
 

140 Adult Social Care Transformation Programme 
 
Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which provided an update on the 
progress of the Adult Social Care Transformation programme to date, 
specifically the projects within the Front Door programme of works i.e. Multi-
Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH), Safeguarding and the Front Door Operating 
model. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the links to the priorities in the business plan; the issues face in the recruitment 
of carers; that the budget had increased but there continued to be a need to 
address increasing demand in a sustainable way; that the Council in June had 
set up a transformation board chaired by the Cabinet Member; that there are 
efficiencies to be achieved that could result in a 10% saving of the budget; the 
need to address how communication is undertaken to improve how people are 
dealt with encouraging them use online information; the work to develop a 
MASH; that the Chair of the Health Select Committee, Councillor Crisp, had 
been invited to sit on the programme board; how the third sector and other 
councillors would be engaged in the process; and the links to the community 
focused work undertaken by the Area Boards. 
 
Following a short debate, the meeting;  
 
Resolved 
 

Page 8



 
 
 

 
 
 

1. To note the progress of the Adult Social Care Transformation 
Programme in respect of Front Door and MASH projects. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To note the progress and receive further updates as the programme 
Progresses 
 

141 Service Devolution and Asset Transfer 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which sought Cabinet’s 
endorsement of the draft policy and principals, appended to the report, for the 
transfer of appropriate packages of services and related assets to Town and 
Parish Councils. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that by taking a more balanced approach to risk, the council hoped to 
streamline the process; how the uplift value of assets would be addressed if 
transferred assets were subsequently sold; the resources made to support the 
implementation of the policy; how the views of the rapid scrutiny exercise were 
taken into account; and how best to inform parish and town councils of the 
changes to the policy. 
 
Resolved 
 
To endorse the Service Devolution and Asset Transfer Policy and 
principals as set out in this report for the transfer of appropriate packages 
of services and related assets to Town and Parish Councils. 
 
Reasons for Decision: 
 
Following the completion of a substantial package of services and assets to 
Salisbury City Council, a revised approach is being proposed to streamline the 
process, reduce the cost, time and resources required to facilitate future 
package transfers of services and related assets 
 

142 Post 16 Area Wide Review  of Education in Wiltshire 
 
Councillor Laura Mayes presented the report which informed Cabinet of the 
findings and recommendations from the government review of local further 
education provision which was completed earlier in 2017. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
how education provision can best meet the needs of the economy; the 
involvement of the Local Enterprise Partnership; the capital investment being 
made into colleges; and the responses to the review’s recommendations. 
 
In presenting the report Councillor Laura Mayes and the Leader expressed their 
thanks to Wiltshire College in recognition of their hard work and the 
improvements made in recent years. 

Page 9



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the contents of the report as they relate to Wiltshire. 
 
2. To endorse the report’s recommendation to be part of a strategic 

planning group to monitor implementation of the review 
recommendations and drive the collaborative agenda relating to 
post-16 learning and skills. 

 
Reasons for Decision: 
 
The post-16 area review report and recommendations were published in August 
2017. Given that this is a national report in the public domain, it is important for 
Cabinet to be aware of the findings and recommendations regarding further 
education provision in Wiltshire. 
 

143 Freehold of Asset to be Sold 
 
Councillor Toby Sturgis presented the report which asked Cabinet to declare 
that freehold interest of the 5 assets identified in the report could be sold by the 
Council. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the process following any declaration of an asset as surplus; and how local 
views are taken into account. 
 
Councillor Tony Deane, Division Member for Tisbury, raised concerns that the 
views of the community and the issues highlighted in the Neighbourhood Plan 
should be given greater primacy in considering the future of the Former Sports 
Centre. Councillor Toby Sturgis stated, in response, that he did not believe the 
item should not be removed from the list of assets for possible disposal, as he 
could not justify the continued spend on a redundant building and that the 
needs of the community, and specifically the education, would be taken into 
account. He emphasised that he would continue to work with the local member 
as plans progress. 
 
The Leader proposed that education needs be included in the matters to be 
considered as one of the conditions of sale on the Former Sports Centre. 
 
Councillor Sturgis, in response to a query from Councillor Ian Thorn, stated that 
in his opinion Core Policy 49 referred to rural communities, that building in 
question was considered a ‘service centre’, and therefore the policy did not 
apply. 
 
Resolved  
 
1. To confirm that freehold interest of the following assets can be sold 

by the Council as follows: 
 

Page 10



 
 
 

 
 
 

a) Site 1 – Nomansland (near Salisbury) – Land at School Road - That 
the freehold interest be sold on the open market. 

b) Site 2 - Trowbridge – Land at Frampton Court - That the freehold 
interest be sold to the owner of the new dwellings to the south. 

c) Site 3 - Warminster – Chapmanslade – Land to the rear of 102 High 
Street – To obtain an outline planning permission for residential 
development and dispose of the site on the open market. 

d) Site 4 - Corsham – Martingate Centre - To proceed with sale to 
Martingate Centre Limited, subject to the conditions outlined in the 
report. 

e) Site 5 - Tisbury – Former Sports Centre - That the freehold interest 
be sold, subject to the ecology planning obligations and education 
matters being resolved / satisfied. 

 
2. To note the continuing approach set out in paragraph 8;  

 
3. To authorise the Associate Director for People and Business to 

dispose of freehold interest of the assets. 
 

Reasons for Decision: 
 
To confirm the freehold interests of the assets can be sold in order to generate 
capital receipts in support of the Council’s capital programme. 
 

144 People Strategy (2017 - 2027) - Update 
 
Councillor Richard Clewer presented the report which outlined progress against 
one of the three strategic priorities in the People Strategy 2017 – 2027; Staff 
engagement, recognition & communication, and specifically the steps being 
taken to improve staff engagement. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the use of online tools for training and development; how staff had been 
involved in the creation of new systems; the opportunities for engagement with 
staff; and the positive ratings for the Council on recruitment websites. 
 
The Leader thanked the officers for their work on the programme, and 
recommended that further training be made available to Councillors on how 
they can use the staff recognition system called ‘Epic’. 
 
Following a short debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To endorse the actions and initiatives being taken to deliver the 

priorities in the new People Strategy to enable the council to attract, 
retain and develop staff. 
 

2. To recommend that Officers proceed with the new initiatives planned 
for 2018, including a focus on communication, additional staff 

Page 11



 
 
 

 
 
 

recognition and continuing to develop alternative approaches for 
improving the visibility of senior leadership. 

 
Reasons for Decision: 
 
Staff engagement is a key priority in the People Strategy 2017 – 2027. The 
strategy defines how we will manage our most important asset, and aims to 
ensure that we are able to attract, retain and motivate our staff to continue to 
develop great outcomes for communities and achieve the council’s vision and 
our business plan 
 

145 Award of contract for a Highway Infrastructure Asset Management System 
 
Councillor Bridget Wayman presented the report which sought approval from 
Cabinet to award a contract for a Highway Infrastructure Asset Management 
System.  
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the purpose of the system; the opportunities for partnership working; and the 
efficiencies planned. 
 
Following a short debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the content of the report. 
 

146 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

147 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
Resolved 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Item Number 16 because it is likely that if members of the public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 
Reason for taking item in private: 
Paragraph 3 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information). 
 

148 Award of contract for a Highway Infrastructure Asset Management System 
(Part ii) 
 

Page 12



 
 
 

 
 
 

Councillor Bridget Wayman presented the report which provided further 
information to support the Award of contract for a Highway Infrastructure Asset 
Management System paper considered in part one. 
 
Following a short debate, and an opportunity for questions, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
(i) That the HIAMS contract should be awarded to Contractor A  

 
(ii) To authorise the Corporate Director, to proceed with the award of 

this contract. 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 
Wiltshire Council is responsible for 4,500 kilometres of roads, 1,500 bridges and 
over 40,000 street lights with an estimated replacement value of £5 billion. The 
local highway network is vital for providing connectivity for businesses and 
communities. Effective maintenance to ensure its availability is essential to the 
economic development of the county. 
 
Procurement of a modern Highways Infrastructure Asset Management System 
will provide Wiltshire Council with the digital tools to improve the efficiency of 
key and statutory services such as major maintenance, highway safety 
inspections, street lighting repairs, traffic management and road space co-
ordination.  It will enable the Council to achieve long-term improvements in 
asset condition through improved investment decisions and to deliver an 
efficient and modern highways service. 
 
Following a full open procurement exercise with Oxfordshire County Council the 
submitted tenders have been assessed in terms of quality and price. 
 
The most advantageous tender for the Council, taking into account quality and 
price, should be accepted in accordance with the procurement procedures.   
 
There are processes in place to monitor and manage the performance of the 
successful tenderer. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.30  - 11.52 am) 

 
These decisions were published on the 9 November 2017 and came into force on 17 

November 2017  

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton of Democratic Services, 

direct line 01225 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct lines (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



 
Note: this is a draft record of decisions; a full minute will be published once drafted. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
CABINET 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 12 DECEMBER 2017 
AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice-
Chairman), Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Laura Mayes, 
Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Philip Whitehead and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Pat Aves, Cllr Richard Britton, Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Darren 
Henry, Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Ruth Hopkinson, Cllr Atiqul Hoque, Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr 
David Jenkins, Cllr Bob Jones MBE, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Jerry Kunkler, Cllr Steve 
Oldrieve, Cllr Horace Prickett, Cllr Tom Rounds, Cllr Jonathon Seed, Cllr Ian Thorn, 
Cllr Philip Whalley, Cllr Stuart Wheeler, Cllr Roy While, Cllr Christopher Williams and 
Cllr Graham Wright 
  

 
149 Apologies 

 
There no apologies received as all Cabinet members were present.  
 

150 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2017 were presented. 
 
In response to a question regarding the applicability of core policy 49, Councillor 
Toby Sturgis stated that he was satisfied with the accuracy of the minute. 
 
Councillor Jerry Wickham stated in relation to the minute 139 regarding the 
Procurement of User Led Organisations, that he had been informed by the 
executive of WSUN that some of the information that he highlighted at the 
meeting was incorrect. At the meeting on the 7 November, he stated that 
WSUN had returned some grant money to Wiltshire Council, but he now 
acknowledged that this was incorrect and had written to apologise to Diane 
Gooch the chair of WSUN. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 7 November 2017. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 

 
 

151 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

152 Leader's announcements 
 
There were no leader’s announcements. 
 

153 Public participation and Questions from Councillors 
 
Cllr John Gundry, Malmesbury TC, made a statement regarding the decision 
not to extend provision at Malmesbury Primary School. This was considered 
before the item on the School Places Strategy. 
 
In response to a query from Cllr John Hubbard, Councillor Toby Sturgis stated 
that the evidence and rationale behind placement of Melksham was included 
Swindon and Wiltshire Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMAA). He 
encouraged Cllr Hubbard to submit his views as part of the consultation. 
 

154 Performance Management and Risk Outturn Report: Q2 2017/18 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which provided an update on 
performance against the stated aims in the council’s new Business Plan 2017-
27. The information provided included key measures as well as the council’s 
strategic risk register. 
 
Matters raised in the course of the presentation and discussion included: that 
that key performance indicators had been reviewed to ensure they were more 
meaningful; that areas where performance needed improvement was included; 
how some performance had levelled off, including number of apprenticeships, 
but how this had reflected national performance; that police performance could 
be scrutinised through the Police & Crime Panel; that work was continuing to 
address issues such as getting care leavers into appropriate accommodation; 
and how area boards can help to improve performance in areas protecting the 
vulnerable. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the updates and outturns: 
 

1. Against the measures and activities ascribed against the council’s 
priorities; and 
 

2. To the strategic risk register. 
 

Reasons for Decision: 
 
The current interim performance framework compiles measures used to monitor 
progress against the council’s previous business plan in relation to the goals 
laid out in Wiltshire Council’s current Business Plan 2017-27. A new framework 

Page 16



 
 
 

 
 

is being compiled to capture all the activity designed to deliver the new business 
plan. 
 
The strategic risk register captures and monitors significant risks facing the 
council: in relation to significant in-service risks facing individual areas, in 
managing its business across the authority generally and in assuring our 
preparedness should a national risk event occur. 
 

155 Revenue & Capital Budget Monitoring Report 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which: advised members of 
the revenue and capital budget monitoring position as at the end of period 7 
(end of October 2017) for the financial year 2017/2018 with suggested actions 
as appropriate; and informed Cabinet on the position of the 2017/2018 capital 
programme, as at Period 7 (31 October 2017), including highlighting budget 
changes. 
 
Matters raised in the course of the presentation and discussion included: that if 
no management action was taken that there would be a £6.557m deficit, but 
that action would be taken in many areas to ensure that a balanced budget 
would be delivered; that whilst it was a significant amount of money, the 
projected overspend represented less than 7 days spend. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Ian Thorn, Councillor Philip 
Whitehead stated that whilst any overspend was a concern, the Council was in 
a better position than at the same time last year and he had every confidence 
that the overspend would be addressed. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To note the outcome of the period 7 (end of October) budget 
monitoring and to approve all budget amendments outlined in the 
report. 

 
2. To note the budget movements undertaken to the capital 

programme shown in appendices E and F and to also note the 
reprogramming of the capital £14.741 million between 2017/2018 
and 2018/2019. 

 
Reasons for Decision: 
 
To inform effective decision making and ensure a sound financial control 
environment. 
 
To inform Cabinet of the position of the 2017/2018 capital programme as at 
Period 7 (31 October 2017), including highlighting any budget changes 
 

156 Treasury Management Report Quarter 2 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which updated the Cabinet on 
treasury management activities. 

Page 17



 
 
 

 
 

 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the performance of investments over the period; the limited impact of the rate 
rise; how the level of risk is assessed. 
 
In response to a question from Cllr Ian Thorn, Michael Hudson stated that some 
performance had been slightly behind projections due to the rate increase 
happening later than anticipated. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note that the contents of this report are in line with the Treasury 
Management Strategy. 
 
Reasons for Decision: 
 
To give members an opportunity to consider the performance of the Council in 
the period to the end of the quarter against the parameters set out in the 
approved Treasury Management Strategy for 2017/2018. 
 

157 Council Tax Base 2018/2019 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which recommended that 
Cabinet approve the Council Tax Base for 2018/2019. 
 
In response to a query from Cricklade Town Council, Michael Hudson stated 
that he would follow up to see if the information had been sent to town and 
parish councils giving more detailed analysis. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To approve the Council Tax Base 2018/2019. 
 

2. To note that the recommended collection rate adjustments are set 
at 99.75% and 82.50% which reflects current expectations for 
collection (further details are outlined in the main body of the 
report). 
 

Reasons for Decision: 
 
Before the Council Tax can be set by the Council in February 2018 a calculation 
has to be made and approved of the Council Tax Base, which is an annual 
requirement as laid out in the Local Government Finance Act 1992. 
 

158 Schools Funding 2018-19 - Approval of Local Funding Formula for 
Schools 
 
Councillor Laura Mayes and Philip Whitehead presented the report which 
proposed a revised funding formula for Wiltshire schools in order move towards 
the government’s proposed National Funding Formula (NFF) for schools. It is 
proposed that the revised formula is implemented from the 2018-19 financial 

Page 18



 
 
 

 
 

year. Councillor Mayes thanked Councillor Philip Whalley and the Schools 
Forum for their work on the matter, and stated that she would continue to lobby 
government on the issues of fairer funding. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To set the Wiltshire formula for funding schools as close to the 
proposed National Funding Formula (NFF) for schools as possible. 
The proposed formula for Wiltshire therefore incorporates all of the 
factors proposed for the NFF.  

 
2. To note that final values for the individual factors in 2018-19 will be 

determined after the funding settlement is announced in December 
2017.  
 

Reasons for Decision: 
 
The Schools Forum considered the approach to be taken in Wiltshire and 
proposed that school budgets should be moved towards the NFF during the 
transitional period. Whilst this does represent a change to the way in which 
schools in Wiltshire will be funded, it is the view of Schools Forum that it is 
appropriate to move school budgets in this direction whilst the LA can 
implement transitional protection. There is no indication of any transitional 
arrangement after April 2020 at this stage. 
 

159 School Places Strategy 2017-2022 
 
Councillor Laura Mayes presented the report which asked Cabinet to consider 
and approve the Wiltshire School Places Strategy 2017-2022 and associated 
Implementation Plan. 
 
In a response to a question from Cllr John Gundry, that she was content with 
how the process to decide the upon the extension to the Lea & Garsden 
Primary School, and that sufficient opportunities had been given to other 
schools to offer sustainable proposals. 
 
Councillor John Hubbard, Chair of the Children’s Select Committee, stated the 
Select Committee had reviewed the strategy and had asked, in future iterations, 
to have an earlier opportunity to have input into its development. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve the Wiltshire School Places Strategy 2017- 2022 and 
associated Implementation Plan 
  
Reasons for Decision: 
 
The Wiltshire School Places Strategy 2017- 2022 is a key framework document 
for the Council in considering any statutory proposals for changes to school 
organisation including the commissioning of new schools and will inform future 
capital investment priorities. 

Page 19



 
 
 

 
 

160 Carers Strategy 
 
Councillors Jerry Wickham and Laura Mayes presented the report which 
requested that, subject to the addressing of any concerns raised by the 
Children’s Trust Commissioning Executive and during scrutiny by the  
Children’s Select Committees, Cabinet be requested to recommend the draft 
Carers in Wiltshire Strategy 2017 – 22 to full Council in February 2018 and, 
subject to approval by full Council, this strategy be published in March 2018. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that the strategy was a combination of two previous strategies that sought to 
cover all ages; that the provisions had been reviewed following different 
statutory changes; that officers had been waiting for publication of national 
strategy to complete review; and that carers groups and health watch had 
helped in consultation and co-production of the strategy. 
 
In response to issues raised by Councillor Jon Hubbard regarding statutory 
requirements including addressing specialist needs, Terence Herbert stated that 
he would follow up to provide an answer.  
 
Resolved 
 
That, subject to the addressing of any concerns raised by the Children’s 
Trust Commissioning Executive and during scrutiny by the Children’s 
Select committee, cabinet be requested to recommend the draft Carers in 
Wiltshire Strategy 2017 – 22 to full Council in February 2018 and, subject 
to approval by full Council, this strategy be published in March 2018.  
 
Reasons for Decision: 
 
The draft Carers in Wiltshire Joint Strategy 2017 – 22 (Appendix 1) is intended 
to build on the progress since the publication of the Joint Wiltshire Carers’ 
Strategy in 2012. 
 

161 Update on Integration of Health and Social Care 
 
The Leader presented the report which provided an update on progress towards 
the appointment of a joint Corporate Director (Director of Adult Social Care) and 
Chief Accountable Officer for Wiltshire Council and Wiltshire CCG; and 
associated developments. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the progress made, and the issues that remained to address; that both the 
council and health partners were enthused to make the changes; that the Joint 
Commissioning Board is working well and making decisions; that the Council 
should have space to accommodate more co-location of staff; and that the 
Liberal Democrat group had a seat on the transformation board. 
 
Resolved 
 

Page 20



 
 
 

 
 

To note the progress towards a joint appointment and a range of 
associated work underway on the integration of health and social care.  
 
Reasons for Decision: 
 
Health and social care integration is an important goal of the Council’s new 
business plan. 
 

162 Leisure Provision 
 
Councillor John Thomson presented the report sets out consideration to the 
interim management arrangements for the eleven council leisure centres 
currently managed by Places for People Leisure Ltd. 
 

163 Campus Programme 
 
Councillor John Thomson presented the report which provided an update on the 
delivery of the approved campus programme, and sought approval for revised 
proposals for Melksham, Cricklade and Calne. 
 
The report also provided an update on the proposal to asset transfer the council 
owned leisure centre in Cricklade, following investment in the centre, as part of 
a package of assets, as set out in this report. 
 

164 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
Resolved 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Items Number 18-22, because it is likely that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraphs 3 and 5 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the 
public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information to the public. 
 
Reason for taking item in private: 
 
Paragraph 3 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information). 
 
Paragraph 5 - Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 

165 Leisure Provision  (Part ii) 
 
Councillor John Thomson presented the report which outlined the legal advice 
provided. 
 
Resolved 
 

Page 21



 
 
 

 
 

1. To agree to pause the insourcing of the eleven leisure centres 
managed by Places for People Leisure Ltd for a period up to 3 
years, commencing 1 April 2018, on the understanding that the 
review referred to in paragraph 4.1 above and any procurement 
resulting from it will be undertaken in the shortest period 
achievable with strict project governance, including oversight by a 
member and officer task group and regular reporting of progress to 
cabinet, the first progress report to be made in 6 months from the 
date of this decision. 

 
2. To agree to extend the Places for People Leisure Ltd contract by a 

period of –up to three years commencing 1 April 2018 subject to 
negotiation of revised terms taking into account the council’s 
financial position for this period; 

 
3. To authorise the Director of Communities and Communications, 

after consultation with the Cabinet Member for Communities, 
Communication Leisure and Libraries, the Director of Finance and 
Procurement and the Director Legal and Democratic Services, to 
enter into an extension of the contract on the basis outlined above. 

 
4. To note that in making this decision cabinet considered the 

corporate procurement, legal and financial implications of this 
decision covered in this report, and that by agreeing to pause the 
previous cabinet decision is not considered to be a reversal of that 
decision. 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 
A cabinet decision on 10 November 2015, determined that the management of 
the eleven contracted centres be in-sourced to commence from 1 April 2018. 
Cabinet is requested to consider pausing this decision for a period of 2-3 years 
whilst an overall appraisal of community facilities across the county is 
undertaken to determine what facilities are required in the future and where 
these facilities should be located. This review will consider the maximum benefit 
to the community and the services that will be provided. 
 
All options will be based on a robust business case that predicates future 
sustainability and no requirement for subsidy or grant funding. This is an 
opportunity to deliver strategic hubs in the areas that do not have a community 
campus or hub. 
 
This review will be carried out in the context of all the available facts and 
information in order to provide the maximum benefit to local communities and 
the council as a whole. 
 

166 Campus Programme (Part ii) 
 
Councillor John Thomson presented the report which asked Cabinet to approve 
the investment for the refurbishment of Calne Leisure Centre. 
 

Page 22



 
 
 

 
 

Resolved 
 

1. Note the progress and investment to date  
 

2. Note that the final phase will be delivered with the financial 
resources allocated in the capital budget programme and Medium 
Term Financial Plan. If this is not possible following procurement 
exercises then any amendments to the financial envelope of the 
programme will be brought back to cabinet for decision before 
award is made. As such delegated authority within the current 
financial envelope is granted to the Director of Communities and 
Communications, to authorise the procurement of those services 
and resources required to deliver the programme, following 
consultation with the Cabinet Member of Communities and 
Communications, and the Directors for Legal and Democratic 
Services and Finance 

 
3. Approve the proposals for Melksham and Calne (attached at 

Appendix 3 and 1 respectively) 
 

4. Approve the proposal for Cricklade (attached at Appendix 2) and 
the proposal to transfer a package of assets to Cricklade Town 
Council including the leisure centre at Stones Lane 

 
5. Approve that the investments proposed in Calne, Cricklade and 

Melksham completes the delivery of the campus programme in 
Wiltshire. 
 

6. To record the Cabinet’s thanks to all the officers, councillors and 
volunteers who worked hard to develop and deliver the campus 
programme. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
In 2012,Wiltshire Council committed to a programme of rationalisation of 
buildings to invest in community campuses across the county. Investment was 
approved for seven campuses and an additional community hub was added in 
2014. Since the initial approval, the council has seen change in its financial 
position and as a consequence its future capital investment programme. This 
combined with the economic downturn has meant a need to review the campus 
programme ambitions across the county.  
 
To date £41.576 million has been invested to deliver the campus programme 
and work is currently underway to invest a further £10.334 million.  
 
The final phase of the programme will see completion of the outstanding 
campuses. This report recommends that this final phase of investment will 
complete the campus programme. Any future investment will be based on the 
provision of community hubs and will be predicated on community need and a 
robust business case that demonstrates the Return on Investment (ROI).  
 

Page 23



 
 
 

 
 

The success of the provision of community hubs in Calne, Devizes and 
Malmesbury has proven to be highly successful providing a wide range of 
services, flexible space for use by the community and commercial organisations 
and an increase in the numbers of volunteers helping to make the service 
sustainable in the future. 
 

167 Adult Social Care Transformation Programme 
 
Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report, for Cabinet’s consideration and 
determination, which was exempt from publication. 
 
Resolved 
 
That Cabinet approves the recommendations contained in the report 
presented, and as amended at the meeting. 
 

168 Older Peoples Housing Provision 
 
Councillor Chuck Berry presented the report which sought approval for a 
programme to deliver 158 new affordable council homes and delegated 
approval to enter contracts and legal agreements as required. 
 
Resolved 
 
To delegate authority to the Corporate Director responsible for housing in 
consultation with the Directors for finance, procurement, legal services 
and assets and in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development and Housing, the Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, 
Development Management and Property, the Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Procurement, ICT and Operational Assets and the Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services, Heritage, Arts and Tourism to approve; 
 
a) The use of sites in Appendix 2 for affordable housing 
 
b) Any appropriations necessary pursuant to s122 LGA 1972 to ensure 
that the sites in a) are held by the Council for housing purposes 
 
c) A total budget of £30.553m with delegated authority to substitute 
and change funding streams within the programme for individual 
sites to optimise financing. HRA funding will not exceed £25.8m but 
other funding streams may be increased or decreased as required 
providing that they stay within available allocation and do not affect 
the total budget position. 
 
d) Entering contracts for consultants, construction and other elements 
of the project to enable the delivery of 158 new homes within the 
total scheme costs identified in Appendix 2 in accordance with the 
Corporate Procurement & Commissioning Board approach. 
 
e) Entering funding agreements with Homes England, Communities and 
Local Government, Department of Health as required 

Page 24



 
 
 

 
 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
Since the council house building programme was approved in September 2015, 
new legislation has been passed which has had a significant impact on the 
investment capacity of the Housing Revenue Account. The Business Plan has 
been reviewed and, as a result, it is proposed that the programme is revised to 
ensure the Business Plan remains sustainable. 
 
This report seeks approval for a revised programme to deliver 158 new homes 
as detailed in Appendix 2. 
 

169 Boscombe Down 
 
The Leader presented the report, for Cabinet’s consideration and determination, 
which was exempt from publication. 
 
Resolved 
 
That Cabinet approves the recommendations contained in the report 
presented. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
In order to secure the opportunity for major inward investment at Boscombe 
Down, an initial investment to deliver the required public infrastructure needs to 
be made. It is intended to recover the council’s development costs through its 
application to government to fund the implementation of the scheme. 
 
If successful, the Programme will enable an initial private sector investment in  
excess of £150 million, the creation of upwards of 5,000 jobs to 2025, major 
supply chain opportunities in the local and regional economy, implementation of 
new skills provision, and significant housing growth. It will also improve local 
transport infrastructure by resolving a longstanding hazardous junction onto the 
A303. 
 

170 Urgent Items 
 
The Leader, having announced that an urgent item was to be taken in part ii, 
asked officers to present the report which outlined the details of an officer 
decision taken under special emergency provision. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To note the report; and 
 

2. To note that the officer decision was made in accordance with the 
Constitution, under Emergency Powers 

Page 25



 
 
 

 
 

 
(Duration of meeting: 13:20) 

 
These decisions were published, on the 13 December 2017 and will come into force 

21 December 2017 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct lines (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 26



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

CABINET 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 30 JANUARY 2018 AT 
COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice-
Chairman), Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Laura Mayes, Cllr Toby Sturgis, 
Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Philip Whitehead and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Pauline Church, Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr 
Peter Evans, Cllr Sue Evans, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr David Halik, Cllr Deborah 
Halik, Cllr Darren Henry, Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Atiqul Hoque, Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr David 
Jenkins, Cllr Bob Jones MBE, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Jerry Kunkler, Cllr Stewart 
Palmen, Cllr Horace Prickett, Cllr Tom Rounds, Cllr Jonathon Seed, Cllr Ian Thorn 
and Cllr John Walsh 
  

 
171 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies as all members of the Cabinet were present. 
 

172 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 December 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 12 December 2017 
 

173 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest from any members of the Cabinet. 
 

174 Leader's announcements 
 
The Leader welcomed all to the meeting, and explained that due the number of 
members of public in attendance for particular items, she would bring forward 
the item on the Appropriation of Land at Rabley Wood, Malborough. 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 3



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Leader announced that Councillor Chuck Berry had resigned from the 
Cabinet. Councillor Richard Clewer would take over responsibility for Housing, 
and the Leader would take over responsibility for Economic Development. 
 

175 Public participation and Questions from Councillors 
 
The Leader noted that members of the public had registered to speak on items 
on the agenda, and that these representations would be taken under those 
items.  
  
The Leader noted the question from Mrs Charmian Spickernell on behalf of the 
CPRE which had been published in supplement to the agenda. 
 
Councillor Bridget Wayman stated that written response would be sent, but that 
in the interim she stated that the site area and number of containers at the 
Pewsey recycling centre had reduced, but local residents were still able to 
recycle a fuller range of materials at other Household Recycling Centres. 
 
Mrs Spickernell stated that should remained concerned over the continuing 
problems at the site and for its long-term viability. 
 

176 Amendments to the Wiltshire Local Transport Plan (LTP) 2011-2026 - Car 
Parking Strategy 
 
Councillor Bridget Wayman presented the report which provided details of the 
consultation responses in relation to Options 2 to 7; asked Cabinet to consider 
any suggestions from respondents for alternative ways in which the estimated 
income increase from the options could be met by other means (termed Option 
8); and sought approval for the implementation of recommended option 
proposals through an amendment notice to the relevant Traffic Regulation 
Orders (TROs). 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the financial implications for proposals; that the income generated would help 
support subsidies for bus services; the changes already made by officers; and 
the amendments made in the light of the consultation responses. 
 
Councillor Matthew Dean, Chair of the Environment Select Committee, 
presented a summary of the views submitted as part of the consultation. 
 
Representations were made from David Feather and from Suzanne Humphries, 
the Secretary of the Friends of Southwick Country Park, who presented a 
petition from 435 users of the park in objection to the introduction of parking 
charges. 
 
Councillor Horace Prickett, local division member for Southwick, similarly raised 
concerns as to the impact of the new charges, including: the relative high level 
of the proposed charges, that car parks serving similar rural facilities are free, 
the possibility of displacing parked cars onto the highway, and the options for 
asset transfer. 

Page 28



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
In response, Councillor Bridget Wayman agreed to meet with representatives to 
discuss their concerns and the options for a community asset ahead of the 
implementation of any decision. 
 
Resolved 
 
(i) To agree to the implementation of Options 2 to 6 through an 

amendment to the relevant Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs), subject 
to the necessary formal consultation process. 

 
(ii) To agree that any responses to the formal TRO consultation process 

be considered by the Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and 
Waste prior to the making of the Order(s). 

 
(iii) To approve the proposed Sunday and Bank / Public Holiday parking 

charges as set out in Appendix 5. 
 
(iv) To note that if the above proposal is agreed, then a recommendation 

to remove the following text from Policy PS3 of the LTP Car Parking 
Strategy would be made to full Council:  

 
Sunday parking charges will be considered where there is an identified 
traffic congestion or air quality issue, or where there is a strong and 
established parking demand from shoppers or visitors. 
 
(v) To agree the proposed action related to each of the currently free car 

parks (or part of) identified in Appendix 6. 
 
(vi) To agree to the withdrawal of free event parking from town / city 

councils in the months of November and December. 
 
(vii) To approve the proposed season ticket charges as set out in 

Appendix 7. 
 
(viii) To agree that a two tiered charging regime is introduced where 

residents’ permits would be:  
 

 £50 for the first permit and £70 for the second permit (at the same 
address) in limited waiting zones; and 
 

 £80 for the first permit and £100 for the second permit (at the same 
address) in residents’ only zones. 
 

(ix) To agree that the hours of operation of residents’ permit schemes are 
extended from 8am – 6pm to 8am – 8pm. 

 
(x) To agree that the parking grace period is retained at 15 minutes. 
 

Page 29



 
 
 

 
 
 

(xi) To agree that none of the alternative funding proposals suggested 
through the consultation could realistically replace the income uplift 
forecast under Options 2 to 7. 

 
(xii) To approve the technology and operational improvements set out in 

paragraphs 58 to 62 and paragraph 63 respectively for 
implementation by parking services in 2018/19. 

 
Reason for decisions: 
 
To seek approval for the implementation of Options 2 to 6 through an 
amendment to the relevant Traffic Regulation Orders (subject to the 
necessary formal consultation process). 
 
To seek approval for the implementation of a number of technology and 
operational improvements. 
 

177 School Capital Programme 2018-2021 Report 
 
Councillor Laura Mayes present the report which asked Cabinet to agree the 
Schools Capital Programme for 2018 – 2021. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the duties of the council and the impact of the army rebasing programme; the 
short and longer term needs addressed in the programme; the progress made 
in previously approved schemes; and how the schemes are prioritised and 
funding. 
 
In response to a question raised by Councillor John Hubbard, Councillor Laura 
Mayes confirmed that whilst there were no current plans for items such as 
additional SEND resources spaces this did not exclude the possibility of there 
being future plans to include them. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the progress on previously approved schemes at Appendix A 
 
2. To consider and approve the new Basic Need schemes subject to 

planning approval and completed S106 agreements requiring a total 
Basic Need contribution of £1.530m as outlined at Appendix B. 

 
3. To approve the Schools Planned Maintenance Programme totalling 

£2.5m for 2018/19 as outlined at Appendix C. 
 
4. To authorise the Corporate Director for Children Services to invite 

and evaluate tenders for the projects described in this report, and, 
following consultation with the Cabinet member, to award the 
contract for the project (subject to approval of any necessary 
statutory proposals) and to authorise, in consultation with the Head 
of Strategic Asset & FM (or the Asset Portfolio Manager (Estates), in 

Page 30



 
 
 

 
 
 

accordance with the relevant scheme of sub-delegation (under 
paragraph 7 of Part 3B of Wiltshire Council’s constitution)), the 
acquisition of all land (and the completion of any legal 
documentation) reasonably required in order to facilitate the Schools 
Capital Investment Programme. 

 
Reason for decision: 
 
The Council has a statutory duty to provide sufficient school places to meet the 
demand arising across Wiltshire, whether from demographic or population 
change, strategic housing development growth or the Army Re-Basing 
programme. The approved Wiltshire School Places Strategy 2017- 2022 and its 
Implementation Plan identifies the priority basic need schemes requiring capital 
investment in the short, medium and longer term and these latest proposals for 
inclusions in the Schools Capital Programme will enable the priority works to be 
progressed. The Council also has Landlord responsibilities for the effective 
management and maintenance of the schools (for which the Council is 
responsible) estate and the approved programme will enable urgent and priority 
repairs and maintenance projects to proceed. 
 

178 School Admissions Policies 2019/20 
 
Councillor Laura Mayes presented the report which presented the school 
admissions policy for approval. 
 
In presenting the report, Council Laura Mayes recorded her thanks to Clare 
Medland, the outgoing Head of School Place Commissioning, for her hard work 
and professionalism. The Leader also added her thanks to the officer with 
particular reference to work in support of the army rebasing programme 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve the following: - 
 
a) the proposed scheme for the co-ordination of admission to 

secondary schools for 2019/20. 
 
b) the proposed scheme for the co-ordination of admissions to primary 

schools for 2019/20. 
 
c) the proposed admission arrangements for Voluntary Controlled & 

Community Secondary Schools for 2019/20. 
 
d) the proposed admission arrangements for Voluntary Controlled & 

Community Primary Schools for 2019/20. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
The Local Authority has a statutory duty to have a determined admission policy 
for 2019/20 in place on or before 28 February 2018. 

Page 31



 
 
 

 
 
 

179 Freehold of assets to be sold 
 
Councillor Toby Sturgis presented the report which recommended that Cabinet 
declare that freehold interest of the four assets can be sold by the Council. 

 
Resolved 
 

1. To confirm that freehold interest of the 4 assets can be sold by the 
Council. 

 
2. To note the continuing approach set out in paragraph 8 
 
3. To authorise the Director for Housing and Commercial Development 

to dispose of freehold interest of the assets. 
 

Reason for decision: 
 
To confirm the freehold interests of the assets can be sold in order to generate 
capital receipts in support of the Council’s capital programme. 
 

180 Warminster King George V Field 
 
Councillor Toby Sturgis presented the report which sought approval to taking all 
steps necessary to ensure the transfer of the Legal Title to King George V Field 
within Warminster Park to Warminster Town Council following the transfer to it 
of the majority of Warminster Park on the 21st November 2016. 
 
Resolved 
 
a) That Wiltshire Council, in its capacity as sole trustee of the King 

George V Field - Warminster (the Trust), make any changes to the 
Trust documents that may be necessary to appoint Warminster Town 
Council as a trustee of the Trust and to resign as a trustee following 
that appointment; 

 
b) That officers should, if appropriate, liaise with the Charity 

Commission and Fields in Trust to seek, if required, the approval of 
either of those bodies for the appointment of Warminster Town 
Council as trustee of the Trust; 

 
c) That following the securing of any such approval and the 

appointment of Warminster Town Council as trustee of the Trust to 
transfer the Legal Title to the King George V Field, Warminster to 
Warminster Town Council and then resign as trustee of the Trust; 
and 

 
d) To authorise the Corporate Director for Growth Investment & Place to 

enter into any legal documentation which is required to enable the 
above to be implemented. 

 

Page 32



 
 
 

 
 
 

Reason for decision: 
 
To enable the Legal Title of the area of Warminster Park that is the subject of 
the Trust to pass to Warminster Town Council in the most cost effective and 
efficient way. 
 

181 Proposed development of Council owned land at Sadlers Mead, 
Chippenham 
 
Councillor Toby Sturgis presented the report which sought approval for the 
proposed redevelopment of Sadlers Mead car park in Chippenham as Phase 2 
of the Chippenham Station Hub scheme, including the options of disposing of 
the site to attract private investment. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
where the proposals fit with the wider development scheme; that the scheme, 
overall, would result in more car parking spaces; and that the implications of 
additional traffic should be considered as part of the wider scheme. 
 
Resolved 
 
i) To approve the proposal for developing the Sadlers Mead car park at 

Chippenham. 
 
ii) To delegate authority to the Director Economic Development and 

Planning, in agreement with the Chief Finance Officer and the Head 
of Strategic Assets and Facilities Management with the Cabinet 
Member for Economic Development and Housing and the Cabinet 
Member for Finance, Performance and Risk to oversee project 
development and delivery (including any disposals). 

 
iii) To delegate authority to the Corporate Director for Growth 

Investment and Place, in agreement with the Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services, Arts, Heritage and Tourism, and the Cabinet 
Member for Finance, Procurement, ICT and Operational Assets, to 
dispose of the asset. 

 
Reasons for Decision: 
 
To enable the development and delivery of Phase 2 of the LGF funded 
Chippenham Station Hub scheme, which in line with the masterplan, will provide 
high quality commercial office space and increased car parking at the site. To 
enable the Council to have detailed discussion with potential end users of the 
office development. To secure best value for the Council through the 
development opportunity created by the LGF funding. 
 

182 Appropriation of Land at Rabley Wood Marlborough 
 
Councillor Toby Sturgis presented the report which sought agreement to 
appropriate land, as identified in this report, for disposal of the Site. 

Page 33



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Representations in objection to the proposal were received from Mrs Jayne 
Baker, Councillor Guy Loosmore of Malborough Town Council, and from Mr 
Stewart Dobson. The meeting noted the questions and answers circulated in 
the agenda supplement. 
 
It was noted that Stewart Dobson, having declared a pecuniary interest, spoke 
in a personal capacity.    
 
In response to the objections raised, Councillor Toby Sturgis reiterated the 
planning history of the site including the decision made by the Planning 
Inspector in relation to the suitability of the land identified for alternative 
recreational use. He also stated that he was satisfied that issues such as 
flooding could be dealt with through the planning conditions attached to the 
planning permissions.  
 
In making his proposal, Councillor Sturgis suggested an amendment to make 
reference to the objections made, and to confirm the original decision made in 
2012 to dispose of the land. 
 
Resolved 

 
1. That having considered the objections set out in the consultation and 

included in the supplement to the report, to appropriate for planning 
purposes the land at Rabley Wood Marlborough (as shown on the plan 
in Appendix 1 of the report) under section 122 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 which is currently held as open space; and 

 

2. To confirm the decision, made at the meeting of the Cabinet Capital 
Assets Committee held on the 24 July 2012, that authority be given to 
proceed with the disposal of the land at Rabley Wood, Malborough 
including the delegation for the completion of necessary legal 
transactions to the Corporate Director, or as permitted by the scheme 
of delegation. 

 

Reason for decision: 
 
To ensure the land can be disposed of free of any rights and obligations arising 
from its use as public open space. 
 

183 Wiltshire Council Adoption Service: 2017 Q1-2 6 Month Report 
 
Councillor Laura Mayes presented the report which provided an interim six-
month update regarding the performance of the Adoption Service within 
Wiltshire Council to enable Cabinet, as required by statute, to satisfy itself that: 
the Adoption Agency complies with the conditions of registration, is effective 
and is achieving good outcomes for children. 
 
In response to a question from the Leader, Councillor Laura Mayes that the 
Council remained committed to finding families for all children even those with 

Page 34



 
 
 

 
 
 

more complex needs that were harder to place, and that this was done, in part, 
by targeting recruitment at potential adopters with the right capacity to take in 
these cases. 
 
In response to ongoing concerns expressed by Councillor John Hubbard in his 
capacity as Chair of the Children’s Select Committee, Councillor Laura Mayes 
stated that she believed that maintaining scrutiny of the service was essential 
as it transferred to a regional partnership. 
 
Councillor Alan Hill, Vice-Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny Management 
Committee, encouraged Councillor Hubbard to raise the issue of continuing 
scrutiny at the next meeting of the Committee.  
 
In response to a question from Councillor Ian Thorn, Councillor Laura Mayes 
stated that some children are fostered by families ahead of a final decision to 
adopt in a process termed ‘twin tracking’. 
 
The Leader joined Councillor Mayes and Hubbard in seeking to record the 
meeting’s thanks for the extraordinary job undertaken by officers on behalf of 
children and families who are supported by the adoption service. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. That the contents of the report are noted and accepted. 
 
2. To record the thanks for the meeting to all the officers who work 

extraordinarily hard to provide an excellent service 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
Wiltshire Council is an Adoption Agency registered with Ofsted. The 2014 
Adoption Minimum Standards (25.6) and 2013 Statutory Guidance (3.93 and 
5.39) describe the information that is required to be regularly reported to the 
executive side of the local authority to provide assurance that the adoption 
agency is complying with the conditions of registration whilst being effective and 
achieving good outcomes for children and service users. 
 

184 Extension of Intermediate Care Bed Service contract for 2018-2019 
 
Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which requested that, an 
extension to the Intermediate Care bed service contract is agreed for a further 
year. In presenting the report, Councillor Wickham highlighted how the beds 
were utilised as part of the approach to maximising the number of people able 
to remain living at home and reducing the total number of people who are 
permanently admitted to a care home. 
 
Councillor Gordon King and Councillor John Walsh, from the Health Select 
Committee, stated that intermediate care beds, as part of work looking into the 
operation of the Better Care Plan, would be subject to further review. 
 

Page 35



 
 
 

 
 
 

Resolved 
 
To approve an extension of the Intermediate Care bed service contract, 
due to expire on 31 March 2018, for an additional year to expire on 31 
March 2019. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
For the request of the extension of the current contracts we would be advising 
that 70 beds are continued with, but that within the next year there will be a 
review to determine the total beds required for the following year. 
The plan would be to reduce the number of beds over time, to consider the 
impact of Adult Care Transformation in reducing the bed base demand.  
 

185 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

186 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
Resolved 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Items Number 18 and 19 because it is likely that if members of the 
public were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act 
and the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information to the public. 
 
Reason for taking item in private: 
Paragraph 3 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information). 
 

187 Extension of Intermediate Care Bed Service contract for 2018-2019 (Part ii) 
 
Resolved 
 
That the additional information in the appendix be noted.  
 

188 Acquiring Property through the use of Compulsory Purchase Order 
 
The Leader presented the report which sought the support of Cabinet for 
actions to be taken to protect a property in the County, up to and including 
making a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO). 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve the recommendations contained in the report 
presented 

Page 36



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.30  - 11.50 am) 

 
These decisions were published, earlier, on the 1 February 2018 and will come into 

force on 9 February 2018 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct lines (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



 

Questions from Anne Henshaw, Chair of the CPRE. 

Councillor Bridget Wayman – Cabinet member for Highways, Transport and Waste 
 

RE: Everleigh Household Recycling Centre 

At a meeting of the Pewsey Area Board held on 8th January 2018, Wiltshire Council 
provided an update in respect of the Everleigh HRC, which is known to be under 
scrutiny currently by the Environment Agency because of drainage problems. The 
update highlighted various issues as follows: 
 
a). Concerns expressed by the Council’s new contractors, FCC Environment, who 
became responsible for the site on 2nd October 2017, that previous operation of the 
site did not conform with Environmental Regulations. 
 
b). As of 6th October 2017, local residents have been banned from recycling an 
extensive range of otherwise normally recyclable materials to the site.  They have 
been directed to place these materials in the container for household waste. 
 
Please see below for details of the materials which cannot currently be 
deposited separately at Everleigh HRC. 
 
Non Landfilled Material Alternative recycling options Can material be placed in 

non-recyclable waste bin at 
Everleigh if brought onto 
site? 

Cardboard Kerbside collection service, 
other local household recycling 
centres 

Yes  

Food and Drinks 
Cartons 

Local household recycling 
centres 

Yes 

Rigid Plastics 
(including bottles, 
pots, tubs and trays 
and hard household 
plastics) 

Local household recycling 
centres, plastic bottles in 
kerbside collection service 

Yes 

Car Batteries  Local household recycling 
centres, scrap merchants 

No – Hazardous waste 
cannot be sent to landfill 

Domestic Batteries Local household recycling 
centres, supermarkets and 
shops 

No – Hazardous waste 
cannot be sent to landfill 

Engine Oil Local household recycling 
centres, car garages 

No – Hazardous waste 
cannot be sent to landfill 

Tyres Local household recycling 
centres, car garages 

No – Tyres cannot be sent to 
landfill 

Low Energy Light 
Bulbs  

Local household recycling 
centres, some supermarkets 

No – Electrical items cannot 
be sent to landfill 

Household chemicals 
(oil based paints, 
cleaning chemicals, 
household pesticides) 

Local household recycling 
centres 

No – Hazardous waste 
cannot be sent to landfill 

Page 13

Minute Item 175

Page 39



 
c). FCC Environment’s further concerns relating to the condition of the sealed 
drainage tank, and potential leakage therefrom, could appear to be justified in the 
light of the Council’s admission that the “concrete retaining walls are heavily cracked 
and a significant amount of corroded reinforcement bar is visible.”  Prima facie, this 
admission might be regarded as displaying negligence on the part of the Council, 
and/ or the previous Operator, due to failure to properly inspect and maintain the 
site.   Such defects normally occur only over a considerable period of time, and 
concrete degradation in such circumstances is a common and widely known 
problem.   
 
d)  The Council’s update refers to estimated costs to rectify matters being 
established, prior to a submission to Cabinet to decide on priorities for capital 
investment.  Information obtained informally by CPRE indicates that the sum 
involved to rectify the situation at Everleigh would be in the region of £80,000. 
 
Question  
 
1. Why was the fitness for purpose of the Everleigh site evidently not monitored 

properly over what is likely to have been a considerable period of time and timely 
work, maintenance and repairs not carried out?   
 

Answer 
 
The fitness for purpose of Everleigh and other sites has been monitored and work, 
maintenance and repairs carried out where needed. Historically, the maintenance 
focus has been on the operational function of the site. To that end inspections have 
taken place of fencing, gates, condition of the access road, containers, compaction 
plant and signs. There has been no inspection of the drainage system or the 
retaining wall, both of which now require significant repair. The retaining wall is not 
normally visible as containers are placed immediately in front of it. The contract was 
signed in 2003 and was more generic in nature than new contracts would be. The 
regime for monitoring and the obligation for carrying out maintenance and repairs 
would be more explicitly defined in the new contracts.  
 
The Environment Agency have made visits to the site checking for compliance with 
the waste management licence for the facility throughout the contract period. 
 
Question  
 
2. In order to establish who was ultimately responsible for this failure to act, what 

statutory, or other legal obligations applied to  
a) Wiltshire Council, as the Owner of the site  

And  
b) Hills Waste Management as the previous Operator thereof, and what, if any, 

were the provisions written into the contract between the Owner and the 
previous Operator with regard to responsibility for inspection, maintenance 
and repairs? 

 
 

Page 14Page 40



Answer 
 
a) As the owner of the site Wiltshire Council has responsibility, with its contractor, 

to ensure that the site was safe for use by the staff employed by the contractor at 
the site and for residents to access and use the site. The council has carried out 
visits to ensure that the council’s contractor was complying with statutory 
consents, the waste management licence and planning permission for the site. 
The contract between the council and its contractor places obligations on the 
contractor to ensure that its operations comply with these requirements. 
 

b) The council’s contractor has obligations as the operator of the site to comply with 
the planning permission and, as holder of the waste management licence, the 
waste management licence for the site. The contract required the council’s 
contractor to maintain and make available for use by the public and operate the 
household recycling centres throughout the contract period. The contractor was 
obliged to ensure that during the contract period it was licensed by the 
Environment Agency to manage the household recycling centres. In more 
general terms there was an obligation under the contract for the contractor, at all 
times in providing the service, to comply with all legal duties imposed upon it 
whether arising by way of statute, environmental law or common law including 
any provision in any site licence or planning permission or conveyance lease or 
licence relating to a site or any requirement of a statutory government body. 
Given the generic nature of the obligation for the council’s contractor to maintain 
and make available the household recycling centre it would be difficult to argue 
that they should have been responsible for inspecting and maintaining the 
drainage system and the retaining wall. These problems have arisen with the 
passage of time and are not due to the nature of the operation of the site. The 
drainage which had not been installed was not identified by the council, the 
council’s previous contractor or the Environment Agency. Now that it has been 
identified by the council’s new contractor it is for the council to decide whether or 
not to install the drainage required to return the site to previous operating levels. 

 
Question 
 
3. Will Cabinet confirm that any necessary expenditure to rectify the situation will be 

funded by the Council and made available forthwith to restore this site to full 
function pending resolution of who may be legally liable and to what extent for the 
cost of rectification?  Similarly, will Cabinet also confirm that it will fund any 
associated clean- up costs at the site should these be required?  
 

Answer 
 
Cabinet will consider the level of investment required before making a decision on 
whether to fund the expenditure required to rectify the problems which have been 
identified at Everleigh. 
 
Question 
 
4. Can Cabinet confirm that a full and proper inspection has been made of all the 

other Council owned waste recycling sites,  and that  the Council, and  FCC 

Page 15Page 41



Environment, as the new incoming Operator, are fully satisfied that no similar (or 
different) problems exist at any of these sites, that would impede full operation in 
accordance with all existing regulations?   
 

Answer 
 
Inspections have been carried out and reports prepared on the condition of each of 
the sites. The only outstanding issue identified as a result of these inspections and 
reports is a smaller scale drainage issue at Churchfields household recycling centre, 
Salisbury and a plan is being drawn up to rectify this. 
 
Question 
5. Local residents are well aware that it has long been the Council’s wish to close the 

Everleigh site down on the grounds of expense and usage, without, however, 
seemingly ever appreciating its value and importance  to a very rural community. 
Will Cabinet provide an undertaking that Everleigh will NOT be closed down either 
because of its present problems, of for any associated drop in usage, given that 
these difficulties, prima facie, would seem to have been due to a serious lack of 
competence on the part of the Council, as the Owner of the site, and/or Hills 
Waste Management as the previous Operator? 

 
Answer 
 
Cabinet will not provide an undertaking that Everleigh will not be closed down. 
Cabinet will consider the level of investment required before making a decision on 
whether to fund the expenditure required to rectify the problems which have been 
identified at Everleigh. 
 
 

Page 16Page 42



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
CABINET 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 6 FEBRUARY 2018 AT THE 
KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice-
Chairman), Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Laura Mayes, Cllr Toby Sturgis, 
Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Philip Whitehead and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Thorn, Cllr Graham Wright, Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Pauline 
Church, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Ruth Hopkinson, Cllr Jon Hubbard, 
Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Johnny Kidney, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Jerry Kunkler, Cllr 
Ashley O'Neill, Cllr Steve Oldrieve, Cllr Horace Prickett, Cllr Tom Rounds, Cllr John 
Smale and Cllr Hayley Spencer 
  

 
189 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies as all members of the Cabinet were present. 
 

190 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2018 were presented. 
Councillor Bridget Wayman confirmed that the questions asked by the CPRE at 
the meeting, had been responded to in writing and that these responses were 
appended to the minutes. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 30 January 2018 
 

191 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

192 Leader's announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 4



 
 
 

 
 
 

193 Public participation and Questions from Councillors 
 
Colin Gale, from Pewsey Community Area Partnership, presented the following 
questions in response to answers given to the questions presented at the 
meeting on the 30 January 2018: 
 

a) With regard to the response to question 4, why is Churchfields HRC, 

with an apparently similar drainage issue to Everleigh, seemingly not 

subject to the same levels of procedure and scrutiny as Everleigh, 

what is the cost of the remedial work at Churchfields, and  why is that 

cost apparently not being considered by Cabinet? 

 

b) With regard to Wiltshire Council’s previous responses to question 5, 

both at the Cabinet Meeting on 30 January and in the Responses 

sent last Friday, CPRE wishes to point out that their question has not 

been fully answered.  We requested that Cabinet give an undertaking 

that the Everleigh HRC will not be closed down because of its present 

problems or because of any associated drop in usage.  Specifically 

we request that any assessment will not be based on usage figures 

since and including October 2017 when there was a change in 

operator.    

 
In response, Councillor Bridget Wayman stated: 
 
That the cost of the work at Churchfields would be considered by Cabinet and is 
also under development. While the issue was similar in that it relates to 
drainage, it had not resulted in the need to remove part of the site from 
operational use; and 
 
That the council held records of number of visitors and tonnes of waste and 
recycling delivered to each household recycling centre prior to October 2017 so 
was able to report these figures for a period of time in advance of the problems 
at Everleigh being identified. 
 
Additionally, Councillor Wayman stated that the Council is constantly assessing 
the cost and benefits of HRC sites to see if they are viable. It was also noted 
that some HRCs had had their extended opening hours reinstated to meet 
need, but that this was not the case for all sites. 
 

194 Revenue and Capital Monitoring Period 9 2017- 2018 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which advised members of the 
revenue and capital budget monitoring position as at the end of period 9 (end of 
December 2017) for the financial year 2017/2018 with suggested actions as 
appropriate; and informed Cabinet on the position of the 2017/2018 capital 
programme, as at Period 9 (31 December 2017), including highlighting budget 
changes.  
 

Page 44



 
 
 

 
 
 

Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
That the projected overspend had reduced from £4m and would be £2m, if no 
action were to be taken; but that with the actions to be undertaken, the 
projection was for a balanced budget by the end of the year; and how areas are 
identified that require action to be taken to address overspends. 
 
In response to a question raised by Councillor Gordon King, Michael Hudson, 
the Director of Finance, stated that system would be improved by the 1st of April 
to improve the process reconciling information between the SAP and manual 
adjustments for invoices.  
 
At the conclusion of the debate, the Cabinet; 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the outcome of the period 9 (end of December) budget 

monitoring and to approve all budget amendments outlined in the 
report. 
 

2. To note the budget movements undertaken to the capital programme 
shown in appendices E and F and to also note the reprogramming of 
the capital £13.909 million between 2017/2018 and 2018/2019. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To inform effective decision making and ensure a sound financial control 
environment. 
 
To inform Cabinet of the position of the 2017/2018 capital programme as at 
Period 9 (31 December 2017), including highlighting any budget changes. 
 

195 Commercial policy and approach 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which presented the 
Commercial Policy and Approach 2018-27 that enables the Council to support 
its Medium Term Financial Strategy and Plan (MTFS and MTFP) that drives 
long term financial sustainability and delivery of its Business Plan. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that the policy had been through the Financial Planning Task Group and  the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee; that the Cabinet Member had 
welcomed the collaborative approach, and had accepted the seven proposals 
made through the scrutiny process, incorporating their suggestions into the 
plan; the ability of the policy to support the business and financial plan; and 
subsequent how decisions on individual projects will be made. 
 
Councillor Graham Wright, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee, confirmed that there had been a full discussion of the document 
and commended the open approach taken to its development. 
 

Page 45



 
 
 

 
 
 

Councillor Ian Thorn, Chair of the Financial Planning Task Group, stated that 
the report of the task group outlining their recommendations had been 
circulated. In addition, Councillor Thorn stated that he believed for the policy to 
be effective it would require a cultural shift for members and officers, and that 
he would welcome an opportunity to discuss what steps would be required to 
make this happen. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Steve Oldrieve, Councillor Philip 
Whitehead stated that as the wider objectives of the council were already 
detailed in the business plan, he did not want to amend the Commercial Policy 
further. He also confirmed that the projects delivered under this policy would 
have an aim to be delivered for at least nil cost to the council. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Jon Hubbard, Councillor Philip 
Whitehead stated that, whilst there was a commercial value in the anonymised 
meta-data held by the council, the personal data of individuals would not sold. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Richard Clewer, Councillor Philip 
Whitehead stated that, whilst he was happy to pilot a short version of the 
business case for the initial assessment of project, he would ensure that all 
projects were assessed using a full business case to ensure that there was a 
consistency of the quality and the amount of information presented. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate, the Cabinet; 
 
Resolved 
 
To endorses the Commercial Policy and Approach 2018-2027 attached at 
Appendix A. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
To enable Council to support its Medium Term Financial Strategy and Plan that 
drives long term financial sustainability and delivery of its Business Plan. 
 

196 Treasury Management Strategy 2018/2019 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which asked the Cabinet to 
consider and recommend that the Council approve the Prudential and Treasury 
Indicators, together with the Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/2019. In 
presenting the report, Councillor Whitehead highlighted: the statutory indicators 
and decisions that need to be identified in the strategy; the amendments 
proposed in the strategy this year; the activities that are covered by the 
strategy; and outlined the council’s developing approach to risk. 
 
There being no further comments, the Cabinet; 
 
Resolved 
 
To recommend to Council to: 
 

Page 46



 
 
 

 
 
 

a) Adopt the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy as set out at 
paragraph 46; 
 

b) Adopt the Prudential and Treasury Indicators (Appendix A); 
 

c) Adopt the Annual Investment Strategy (Appendix B), including the 
ratification of the removal of the minimum requirement for high 
credit quality relating to viability ratings; 
 

d) Delegate to the Director of Finance the authority to vary the amount 
of borrowing and other long-term liabilities within the Treasury 
Indicators for the Authorised Limit and the Operational Boundary; 
 

e) Authorise the Director of Finance to agree the restructuring of 
existing long-term loans where savings are achievable or to 
enhance the long-term portfolio; 
 

f) Agree that short term cash surpluses and deficits continue to be 
managed through temporary loans and deposits; and 
 

g) Agree that any surplus cash balances not required to cover 
borrowing are placed in authorised money-market funds, 
particularly where this is more cost effective than short term 
deposits and delegate to the Director of Finance the authority to 
select such funds. 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 
To enable the Council to agree a Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/2019 
and set Prudential Indicators that comply with statutory guidance and reflect 
best practice. 
 

197 Wiltshire Council's Financial Plan 
 
The Leader introduced the Financial Plan, stating that she was pleased to see 
that the Councillors Briefing and Scrutiny meetings had been well attended, and 
that she did not want to add further the information presented at those 
meetings. 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which provided an 
assessment to full Council to set a budget for 2018/19, that takes into account 
the impact on Council Tax, Social Care Levy, rents, fees and charges, the 
capital investment programme, schools overall budgets, as well as council 
reserves. The report also sets out an indicative Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) to highlight expenditure and income from 2018-19 to 2021/22. 
 
In presenting the report, Councillor Whitehead: thanked officers for their 
assistance in putting the proposals together; outlined the process already 
undertaken; and highlighted how the information was presented. 
 

Page 47



 
 
 

 
 
 

Councillor Graham Wright, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee, thanked officers for producing the report of the previous days 
scrutiny meeting so promptly, and stated there had been good opportunities to 
ask questions. 
 
The Leader noted that the Council had yet to receive confirmation of the final 
financial settlement from central government, but that it was hoped that this 
information would be available on the 7 February 2018. 
 
There being no further comments, the Cabinet; 
 
Resolved 
 
To recommend to Council to: 
 

a. Endorses the update of the Financial Plan for 2018/19. 
 

b. Approve the investment and savings proposals summarised at 
Sections 7 and 9 respectively of this report and at Appendix 1C, to 
provide a net revenue budget for 2018/19 of £327.746 million. 
 

c. To vote separately: 
 
i. Set the Council’s total net expenditure budget for 2018/19 at 

£327.746 million. 
 
ii. Set the Social Care Levy increases in line with Council’s 

February 2017 decision, at 3%; and a Council Tax at 2.99%. 
 
iii. Approve the capital programme proposed at Appendix 1E of this 

report. 
 
iv. Set the changes in fees and charges set out in detail at Section 

8 of and at Appendix 1G of this report. 
 
v. Set a 1% reduction for social dwelling rents. 
 
vi. Set the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget for 2018/19 as 

set out at Appendix 1F of this report. 
 
vii. That all other service charges related to the HRA be increased 

by 4% (CPI September 2017 plus 1%), including garage rents. 
Except for sheltered housing schemes, as these have been 
reviewed individually this year and will be increased by a 
reasonable amount each year to move to a full cost recovery 
position. 
 

d. Endorse the Medium Term Financial Strategy and receive annual 
updates on delivery against the strategy in setting future annual 
budgets. 

Page 48



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To enable Council to: 

 Set its revenue, capital, housing revenue accounts, fees and charges, 
levels of reserves and resultant Council Tax and Social Care Levy for 
2018/19, as well as to issue Council Tax and rent bills. 

 Provide the Council with a strong business and financial plan for 
sustainable delivery for 2018/19. 

 Provide the Council with a Medium Term Financial Strategy and Plan 
that drives long term financial sustainability and delivery of its Business 
Plan. 

 
199 Urgent Items 

 
There were no urgent items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.30  - 10.09 am) 

 
These decisions were published, earlier, on the 7 February 2018 and will come into 

force on 15 February 2018 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct lines (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING HELD ON 28 NOVEMBER 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY 
HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Stewart Dobson, 
Cllr David Halik, Cllr Alan Hill (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Ruth Hopkinson, 
Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Simon Jacobs, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Jacqui Lay, 
Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr John Walsh and Cllr Graham Wright (Chairman) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr George Jeans, Cllr John Thomson and Cllr Philip Whitehead 
  

 
72 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from: 
 
Cllr Howard Greenman 
 

73 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the Management Committee meeting 
held on 26 September 2017. 
 

74 Declarations of Interest 
 
None. 
 

75 Chairman's Announcements 
 
Change of agenda order 
 
It was proposed and agreed to changed the order of the agenda to allow Cllr 
John Thomson’s attendance at a meeting with the Boundary Commission. Item 
8, the Wiltshire Online Project Update, was therefore brought forward to item 6. 
 
 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 5



 
 

 
 

Budget scrutiny timetable 
 
A budget timetable was now in place to agree the council’s financial plan 
2018/19. The process was as follows: 
 

 Members briefing on the budget – 23 January 

 Financial Planning Task Group – 24 January 

 Management Committee (to consider the Administration’s draft budget) – 
30 February 

 Cabinet – 6 February 

 Management Committee (to consider Opposition Group amendments – 9th 
February  

 Full Council – 20 February  
 

76 Public Participation 
 
None. 
 

77 Forward Work Programme 
 
Updates were received from the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of the Select 
Committees in respect of the topics under scrutiny in their areas, including 
recommendations for endorsement by the Management Committee. 
 
Children’s Select Committee 
There were currently three task groups operating under the committee: Child 
and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS); Traded Services for Schools; 
and SEND School Provision. A rapid scrutiny had been arranged for mid 
January to focus on child care leavers. 
 
Adoptions West was now taking an officer lead from Martin Davis since Terence 
Herbert (Head of Service Care and Placement) of had taken the role of 
Corporate Director (Children and Education). A meeting had been arranged to 
update the Chair and Vice Chair of Children’s Select on the progress of what 
form scrutiny would take in Adoptions West. 
 
Environment Select Committee 
The committee had received public attendance at their last meeting from the 
South West Wiltshire Green Party regarding the recent waste consultation. 
Representatives were invited to the January meeting as a result, and the 
committee will look into Wiltshire’s Waste Strategy. 
 
The forward plan for the committee was noted as being large. However, the limit 
of the committee’s capacity had not yet been reached. Members would be 
notified once the limit had almost been reached. 
 
Key issues for the committee include road accident data and affordable 
housing. Additional topics include tourism and major Wiltshire Council schemes. 
 
 
 

Page 52



 
 

 
 

Health Select Committee 
Recent key topics for the committee included: Adult Care Charging Policy; Adult 
Social Care Transformation Programme; the Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG); and the Maternity Strategy.  
 
The CCG was noted as a significant topic with a large amount of public interest 
in how community hospital provision would be provided across the 
Salisbury/Trowbridge/Chippenham area. The committee was receiving regular 
updates on this. 
 
It was noted that instances of Cabinet meeting in the morning of a day where 
the committee met in the afternoon was problematic for the process of scrutiny 
work. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
The Chair and Vice Chair had received a briefing from John Rogers, Head of 
Systems Thinking, on the council’s key corporate programmes. Part of this 
included the Systems Thinking training course. The committee agreed that the 
systems thinking course was worth recommending to members to encourage 
their sign up. 
 
It was proposed that the committee introduce pre-meeting information briefings 
immediately prior to this Committee’s meetings, the kind of which are already 
held by the Children’s and Health Select Committees. The briefings would cover 
topics of relevance to this Committee’s remit of corporate matters and oversight 
of the work programme overall when there is something relevant to cover. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To note the OS Forward Work Programme and the updates provided 
on current activity.  

 
2. To introduce pre-meeting information briefings immediately prior to 

the Management Committee meetings, when appropriate, on 
subjects relevant to the Committee’s remit. 

 
78 Management Committee Task Groups 

 
Digital Strategy and Implementation Task Group 
A forward plan was being constructed to create a way forward for the task 
group. The outcome of Peer Review was also being awaited, with the next task 
group meeting scheduled for February. The Chairman of the task group, Cllr 
Jon Hubbard, had also been invited to join the Digital Implementation Board as 
an observer. 
 
Financial Planning Task Group 
The next task group meeting was set for the 18th December, prior to the budget 
scrutiny process in 2018. 
 
Planning Committee System Task Group 
A series of meetings were planned for early 2018, including the area planning 
committee Chairmen to be invited to meet with the task group. 

Page 53



 
 

 
 

 
Military and Civilian Integration Project Task Group 
Cllr Alan Hill suggested, as previous chairman of the task group, that the task 
group should look at military civil integration and army rebasing. Both were 
individual topics, but overlapped. A point had been reached where the work of 
the task group could shortly be resumed. 
 
Cllr Simon Jacobs and Cllr Ian Blair Pilling volunteered as potential members. 
 
Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership (SWLEP) Task Group 
Cllr Alan Hill had been re-elected as Chairman. Enthusiasm had been received 
from Swindon members towards the work in the new forward plan for the task 
group. It was noted that this was the only LEP in the country with a scrutiny task 
group. 
 
Third Party Advertising Policy Task Group   
Work was explained as progressing at a slow pace, but the topic area needed 
to be considered with care. 
 
Waste Contracts Task Group (proposed) 
An additional task group update report was included in Agenda Supplement 1 
which proposed the establishment of a Waste Contracts task group. This 
followed a resolution by the Environment Select Committee, with terms of 
reference to be determined.  
 
Resolved 

1. To note the updates on task group activity provided; 
 

2. To approve the Digital Strategy and Implementation Task Group’s 
terms of reference, as set out in the report; 

 
3. To approve the inclusion of the council’s Commercial Strategy 

within the Financial Planning Task Group’s work programme, with 
findings and recommendations brought to Management Committee 
for endorsement prior to referral to Cabinet; 

 
4. To approve the establishment of the Third Party Advertising Task 

Group with the membership and terms of reference set out in the 
report, with findings and recommendations brought to Management 
Committee prior to referral to Cabinet. 

 
5. To add Cllrs Jacobs and Blair-Pilling to the membership of the MCIP 

Task Group. 
 

6. To approve the establishment of a Waste Contracts Task Group 
with the membership and terms of reference to be agreed, with 
findings and recommendations brought to the Environment Select 
Committee prior to referral to Overview & Scrutiny Management 
Committee.  

 
 
 

Page 54



 
 

 
 

79 Wiltshire Online Project Update 
 
A report from Cllr George Jeans, Overview and Scrutiny representative on the 
Wiltshire Online Project Board, was presented to the committee. Cllr John 
Thomson, Cabinet Member for Communications, communities, leisure and 
libraries, was also in attendance. 
 
Wiltshire Council had made excellent progress within their small team and the 
recent work and contract had broken the previous BT monopoly. Broadband 
had been delivered to more premises and expanded to rural communities and 
those living on the fringes. 
 
There had been some underspends on the projects, which would be rolled back 
into future work. 
 
Some issues with 4g coverage had been solved through installed extra masts. 
However, planning permission was needed to install masts which meant a 
costly and lengthy process. It was noted by the committee that 4g coverage was 
important for emergency services. 
  
A concern was expressed regarding the remaining 4% without broadband. It 
was asked if they will receive broadband eventually or if there will always 
remain a number who don’t. Better Broadband vouchers and the future 
universal service obligation were referenced in response. 
 
Residents can check the status of their broadband connection through the 
Openreach or Gigaclear website postcode checkers. They can also contact 
Wiltshire Council via email for updates. 
 
The mobilisation of Gigaclear’s contract and the contract management was 
queried. It was explained that nothing would be paid until they had delivered on 
the contract. Outside auditors as well as council officers would be working to 
monitor the contract delivery. The work would be going through both the 
SWLEP and OS. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To thank Cllr Jeans and the team for the update and note the 
progress reported on the Wiltshire Online project. 

 
2. To note that at the close of the project 4% of Wiltshire does will still 

not have access to broadband, and to receive an update on delivery 
in 6 month’s time; 

 
3. To note the significant challenges and expense of delivering 

universal access to broadband services and the local and national 
initiatives in place to drive this forward. 

 
4. To include a summary of the update as this week’s Scrutiny Story 

of the Week to help raise awareness of progress and challenges 
with the programme amongst councillors. 

 

Page 55



 
 

 
 

80 Report of the Rapid Scrutiny Exercise: Asset and Service Devolution and 
Community Asset Transfer Policy 
 
The report of the rapid scrutiny exercise established in September and held on 
1st November 2017 to contribute to  the revised Asset and Service Devolution 
and Community Asset Transfer Policy was presented to the committee. 
 
This rapid scrutiny report had been received by Cabinet on 7 November, 
alongside the final version of the Policy itself. Cllr Philip Whitehead, Cabinet 
Member for Finance and IT, had responded verbally to the Group’s 
recommendations at the Cabinet meeting and his written responses were 
provided in the report. 
 
Cllr Ruth Hopkinson, Lead Member for the Rapid Scrutiny, provided comments 
on the report and the responses received. 
 
The rapid scrutiny exercise had questioned Cllr Whitehead on how assets can, 
in some cases, be considered liabilities on management/service levels. It was 
explained that they were considered on a case by case basis and be financial 
assets with liabilities. 
 
A question was asked if local members will be advised when assets are 
disposed of or up for consideration. It was explained that disposal of assets in 
general is a separate topic and that the report was in regards to the transfer of 
services and assets to them. Assurance was given that disposal wouldn’t 
happen without local members being made aware. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To note the report of the Rapid Scrutiny Exercise and to thank its 
members for their work; 

 
2. To note the Executive responses to the report and to thank the 

Cabinet Member for his engagement in the Scrutiny process; 
 

3. To approve the rapid scrutiny group’s recommendations of further 
scrutiny engagement on the Policy and its implementation as set 
out under Recommendations 18 a, b and c.  

 
4. To note the Cabinet Member’s assurance that local councillors will 

always be notified when a local asset is disposed of. 
 

81 Overview and Scrutiny Learning and Development Programme 
 
A report was presented which asked the committee to consider what they would 
like to see in an effective four-year learning and development programme for 
Overview and Scrutiny councillors during this council. 
 
A list of activities was included based on what the previous council had 
undertaken. Members were asked to consider this and what may be missing. 
 

Page 56



 
 

 
 

The committee recommended considering including LGA courses, which could 
be run at no extra cost. Cllr Wright asked members to bring forward any 
suggestions they had to his or Henry Powell’s attention any point. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To note that Committee has considered the potential OS L&D 
activities set out in the report and the others put forward by 
councillors. 

 
2. That the findings of the recent Peer Challenge and the CLG’s 

Review of OS in Local Government are reflected if and when 
appropriate in the final four year OS L&D programme. 

 
3. That following this initial discussion, a draft four-year OS L&D 

programme is developed by officers and the Chairman and Vice-
chairman and brought back to Committee for approval.  

 
82 Communities and Local Government (CLG) Committee Review of 

Overview and Scrutiny in Local Government 
 
An update on the CLG review of Overview and Scrutiny in local government 
was provided for the committee.  
 
The parliamentary select committee had now concluded its evidence gathering, 
which this council had contributed to, and the report of its findings would soon 
be published. The Committee would receive those findings as soon as they are 
available to consider if and how to respond. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note that the CLG review of Overview and Scrutiny will soon conclude 
and to consider its findings once available. 
 

83 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Confirmed as 10.30am, Tuesday 30 January 2018, County Hall. 
 

84 Urgent Items 
 
None. 

 
 
 
 

(Duration of meeting:  9.30am – 11.50am) 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Adam Brown, Overview and Scrutiny, 
direct line (01225) 718038, e-mail adam.brown@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING HELD ON 5 FEBRUARY 2018 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY 
HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr Alan Hill (Vice-
Chairman), Cllr Ruth Hopkinson, Cllr Simon Jacobs, Cllr Gordon King, 
Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr John Walsh, Cllr Graham Wright (Chairman), Cllr Clare Cape 
(Substitute) and Cllr Pip Ridout (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Laura Mayes, Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, Cllr Toby 
Sturgis, Cllr John Thomson, Cllr Ian Thorn, Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Philip 
Whitehead, Cllr Jerry Wickham, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Darren Henry, Cllr Brian 
Mathew and Cllr Christopher Williams 
  

 
1 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Howard Greenman, Jon 
Hubbard and Jacqui Lay. 
 
Councillor Greenman was substituted by Councillor Pip Ridout, and Councillor 
Hubbard was substituted by Councillor Clare Cape. 
 
Councillor Alan Hill also gave apologies he would arrive late to the meeting. 
 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 28 November 2017 were presented for 
consideration and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

4 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman advised the Committee of the new camera set up in the meeting 
room. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

5 Public Participation 
 
There were no questions submitted or statements received. 
 

6 Procedure of Meeting 
 
The procedure for the meeting was noted. 
 

7 Wiltshire Council's Financial Plan Update 2018/19 
 
The draft Wiltshire Council Financial Plan Update for 2018/19 was presented by 
Councillor Philip Whitehead, Cabinet Member for Finance, Procurement, ICT 
and Operational Assets, and by Michael Hudson, Director of Finance and 
Section 151 Officer, ahead of its submission to Cabinet on 6 February 2018 and 
Full Council on 20 February 2018. 
 
The proposals for 2018/19 were considered within the framework of the Medium 
Term Financial Plan and Efficiency Statement 2017-2020, which had been 
agreed by Council on 18 October 2016. The budget proposed 2.99% rise in 
Council Tax and a 3% Social Care Levy. The report from the Financial Planning 
Task Group in consideration of the budget was also received and considered. 
 
The Committee, along with other members in attendance including all members 
of the Executive, discussed the proposed budget, and clarification was sought 
on many issues from the attending Cabinet Members and Corporate Leadership 
Team, with full details contained in the report as appended to these minutes. 
 
Particular attention was given to savings proposals arising from the 
transformation of adult social care, reserve levels, commercialism to increase 
income, reablement to reduce longer term care costs, savings from staff 
vacancy management and the housing service, how proposed savings would be 
achieved, impacts upon staffing levels, community grants and adult social care 
along with other topics as detailed in the appended report. 
 
On the motion of Councillor Graham Wright, seconded by Councillor Alan Hill, it 
was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Financial Plan Update 2018/19 and to refer the comments of 
the Committee to Cabinet and Full Council for consideration on 6 and 20 
February respectively.  
 

8 Commercial Policy 
 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan identified £57.5million as a target for 
savings or more income, With the removal of central government grants it is 
expected that council’s will become more self-financing. A Commercial Policy 
and Approach has been drafted to assist the council in developing a new way of 
working. 

Page 60



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Councillor Philip Whitehead, Cabinet Member for Finance, Procurement, ICT 
and Operational Assets, presented the draft policy and approach. The Financial 
Planning Task Group’s report on the initial draft was also presented, along with 
details of changes made to the policy arising from the recommendations of the 
Task Group.  
 
The Committee received the reports and noted their contents. It was 
emphasised that the new policy would require a cultural change within the 
organisation, and the Leader of the Council, during the budget discussion, had 
stated this was being taken into account with the selection and appointment of 
new Directors. It was also raised the communicating the intent and extent of the 
new policy to the public would be essential. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, and on the motion of Councillor Graham Wright, 
seconded by Councillor Pip Ridout, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 

1) To endorse the recommendations of the Financial Planning Task Group 
and note that those pertaining to the Commercial Policy and Approach 
document have already been reflected in the revised version. 
 

2) To endorse the Task Group recommendations 5 and 7, which are as 
follows: 

 

5. That the Overview and Scrutiny Learning and Development 

programme gives OS councillors the specific skills and knowledge 

required to scrutinise the council’s commercial ventures effectively. 

 
7. That the Management Committee ask the Financial Planning Task 

Group to undertake more detailed scrutiny work on the actions plans 

relating to the document once available. 

 
9 Date of Next Meeting 

 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 9 February 2018 to consider 
opposition group or other amendments to the proposed budget. 
 

10 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.35 - 11.15 am) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 

direct line (01225) 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



Wiltshire Council       APPENDIX to the Minutes of 5 February 2018
  
Cabinet 5 February 2018 
 
Council 20 February 2018 
 

Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee on the Draft 
Financial Plan Update 2018/19  

 

Purpose of report 
 

1. To report to Cabinet and Full Council a summary of the main issues discussed at the 
meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee held on 5 February 
2018. 
 
Background 
 

2. The meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee provides an 
opportunity for non-executive councillors to question the Cabinet Member with 
responsibility for Finance and the Director for Finance on the draft 2018/19 Financial 
Plan before it is considered at Cabinet on 6 February 2018 and Full Council on 20 
February 2018. 
 

3. The Cabinet Member for Finance, Procurement, ICT and Operational Assets, Councillor 
Philip Whitehead, supported by the Director of Finance, Michael Hudson, was in 
attendance along with the Leader of the Council, Councillor Baroness Scott of Bybrook 
OBE and all members of the Executive and the Corporate Leadership Team to provide 
clarification and answers to issues and queries raised by the Committee. 
 

4. In addition to the draft Financial Plan update available on the website a briefing from the 
Cabinet Member open to all members was held on 30 January 2018. 
 

5. Details had included: 
 

• Council Tax to be increased by 2.99%, plus a 3% Social Care Levy. 
• That 2018/19 would be the final year the council would receive a Revenue 

Support Grant from central government. 
• Details of the £25.956m savings proposed. 
• Increases in investment to protect vulnerable children and adults, with an 

overall increase in the budget of 1.9%. 
 
Main issues raised during questioning and debate 
 

6. This report is divided into sections relating to each of the Select Committee areas as 
budget proposals and impacts on services were discussed, before opening up to 
general queries. 
 
Financial Planning Task Group 
 

7. The report of the Task Group on the proposals was received and noted. The report 
would be forwarded for attention at Cabinet and Full Council along with the report of 
the Management Committee itself. 

Page 5

Minute Item 7

Page 63



Health Select Committee 
 

8. Details were sought of the £6.900m of savings that would be required within Adult 
Social Care in order to maintain a sustainable service with the increasing demand as 
detailed in the papers. It was also noted in the budget papers that with a 3% Social 
Care Levy taken for 2017/18 and 2018/19, there could be no levy in 2019/20.   
 

9. It was stated in response that the transformation of Adult Social Care had now been 
underway for approximately 12 months, and that this would now being to deliver 
significant savings, though at 5% of the overall Adult Social Care budget, this was not 
enough to cover the entirety of savings required to allow for increased investment for 
other aspects of the service. 
 

10. Particular mention was made of a new reablement service that was in the process of 
being set up, which would seek to provide support for adults at an early stage following 
hospital visits avoiding further care for several years. There was also a new charging 
policy that would increase income, and a new ‘front door’ policy was being 
implemented to reduce the level of unnecessary council involvement for people self-
funding their care, though the council would still know who was receiving care. 

 
11. In summary, it was confirmed that the savings proposed were deliverable, though 

exact numbers might depend on negotiations with external providers. It was 
highlighted that the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Health Select Committee were both 
representatives on the Adult Social Care Transformation Programme Board. This 
presented a valuable opportunity for timely monitoring, by overview and scrutiny, of the 
delivery of the transformation programme and of the expected savings. 
 
Children’s Select Committee 

 
12. A series of questions from the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Children’s Select 

Committee, who were not able to be present, was presented to the Cabinet Member 
for response. 
 

13. It was confirmed there would be a £0.600m increase in costs of children with Learning 
Disabilities transitioning into adult care, which reflected the budgetary impact this 
transition had. 

 
14. It was confirmed that the £0.516m apprenticeship levy cost had now been built into the 

base budget, and that the same amount would be paid in 2018/19, and that £0.165m 
savings in Education and Skills related specifically to deletion of 2 currently vacant 
posts.  

 
15. In response to other queries there was a saving of £0.035m relating to utilising an EU 

grant for management charges, and that a review of Youth Area Grants to achieve a 
saving of £0.200m would be funded from the Public Health budget. 

 
16. It was also detailed in response to the questions that around 1% of the £1.155m that 

was to be saved through raising of the vacancy factor would come from Children’s 
services. The vacancy factor, at 6%, was explained as being below the council’s actual 
vacancy level, and would allow services to review their four-year operational workforce 
plans and ensure effective management. 

Page 6Page 64



 
17. Other issues raised included mention of funding for young people from central 

government for the National Citizens Service, and how this could be encouraged 
further. 
 

18. In summary, it was confirmed the budget and proposed savings within children’s 
services? were deliverable and would enable the council to deliver its services. 
 
Environment Select Committee 
 

19. Confirmation was sought around the Council’s Housing budget, specifically in relation 
to the increase in pressure on the service as a result of the rise in individuals 
registered on Homes4Wiltshire, impacts arising from implementation of Universal 
Credit, and new regulations. 
 

20. In response it was stated that the council was only responsible for approximately 20% 
of the social housing in Wiltshire, and that no budgetary concerns had been raised 
from the Housing Associations. It was also stated that the council house building 
programme was progressing, however, at present, demand was still outstripping 
supply.  
 

21. In relation to Universal Credit it was stated a briefing note had been circulated on how 
any financial impacts might be mitigated. The Cabinet Member for Finance confirmed 
that Housing would be receiving additional funding of £368,000; which would help with 
any added pressures.  

 
22. Details were sought on the Council’s duty to combat homelessness and whether the 

budget was sufficient to meet this priority. The Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Services, Housing, Heritage, Arts and Tourism detailed that Wiltshire had relatively low 
levels of homelessness; for example there were 32 individuals who were classed as 
homeless in Wiltshire, with 10% of this figure relating to those moving through the 
county.  
 

23. Clarification was also sought on the Campus Programme, and it was confirmed the 
£23.8m listed was the end of the monies to be available for the programme, and that 
the £30m leisure funding was separate to the Campus funding. 
 
General Enquiries and Observations 

 
24. It was noted that in order for the council to adopt a more commercial approach 

effectively and appropriately both officers and councillors needed the appropriate skills 
and knowledge, and it was stated that a commercial skillset had been a factor in the 
recent recruitment programme for new council Directors. 

 
25. It was also raised that there was significant public concern regarding social care, 

housing, and other issues discussed, and that it was important that communicating the 
changing way the council was working was essential both internally to staff and to 
members of the public, and it was confirmed appropriate communications formed part 
of planning for council policy implantation.  
 

Page 7Page 65



26. Details were also sought regarding the level of council reserves and whether these 
were too low. It was stated in response that risks were carefully calculated and that 
Section 151 officers have a legal duty to set appropriate levels of reserves, which 
would differ from council to council, and that it was felt Wiltshire’s were set 
appropriately. 
 
Conclusion 
 

27. To note the Financial Plan Update 2018/19 and to refer the comments of the 
Committee to Cabinet and Full Council for consideration on 6 and 20 February 2018 
respectively. 

 
Councillor Graham Wright 
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 

Report Author: Kieran Elliott, Senior Democratic Services Officer, 01225 718504 or 
kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
5 February 2018  

Page 8Page 66

mailto:kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk


Wiltshire Council                                  APPENDIX to the Minutes of 5 February 2018 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 
5 February 2018 
 

 
Report of the Financial Planning Task Group – 1 February 2018:  

Financial Plan Update 2018/19 
 

Issue  
 
(page and paragraphs numbers 
refer to the Budget Papers) 
 

Further information / Comments 
 

Revenue Budget Monitoring 
2017/18 
 

 

Overall the period 9 report 
identifies potential cost pressures 
of £2.276 million. However, action 
has been identified to address the 
Period 9 forecast and it is 
expected that the budget will be 
delivered balanced by 31 March 
2018. 
 

The Task Group will scrutinise the final 
outturn figures once available. 

Specific budget areas 2018/19 
 

 

(page 21, para 6.3) 
 
Central Government Grant 
reductions 
 

2019/20 will be the final year the council will 
receive any Revenue Support Grant (RSG)*. 
Although this reduction has presented 
significant challenges, it also now provides 
the opportunity of becoming financially 
independent from central government, 
giving the council the ability to manage 
growth within Wiltshire locally. 
 
*The Business Rates Retention Grant 
remains, pending the conclusion of National 
Non Domestic Rates Reform (NNDR). 
 

(page 18) 
 
Commercial 
 

(saving 34, page 63) 
 
 

 

The projected savings/income of £7.580M 
from ‘Commercial’ includes a variety of 
savings areas and income streams. Some 
are simple to implement and low risk, such 
as increasing fees for garden waste 
collections (£0.410M) (though a reduction of 
take-up has been accounted for).  
 

Page 9Page 67

http://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1160&MId=12011&Ver=4


(saving 48, page 66) 
 
 
 
 
 

(savings 14, 28 and 32) 
 
 
 

(saving 69, page 69  
and page 117) 

 
 

A smaller proportion require new 
approaches, such as generating greater 
income from advertising and sponsorship 
(£0.150M). Therefore the income is profiled 
to increase in later years. 
 
Just over £1M come from procurement 
savings, such as on SEND Transport and 
major waste and environment contracts. 
 
£3M comes from a commercial review of 
debt management, reducing the council’s 
Minimum Revenue Contribution from 4% to 
2% (see below). 
 

(page 69, Appendix 1C, saving 69) 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision 
 

 

In previous years the Council has selected 
an MRP rate of 4%. However, in line with 
CIPFA rules, the Council is seeking in 
2018/19 to reduce its MRP rate from 4% to 
2%. This will reduce the annual financial 
calculation of debt repayment levels, 
releasing £3M of revenue funds in 2018/19.  
 
It is expected that the council will return the 
MRP rate to 4% in future years as it 
becomes able to re-profile debt. Although 
prudent in the short term, the decrease to 
the MRP needs to be temporary in order to 
avoid shifting excessive debt to future years. 
 

(from page 60, Appendix 1C) 
 
Reviews of structures and job 
design  
 

Some services will be able to achieve their 
savings through deleting vacant posts. 
Others will restructure teams, having 
identified potential inefficiencies and 
duplication. The savings projected take 
account of the timescales within which 
savings can be identified and delivered. 
 

(page 60, Appendix 1C, saving 1) 
 
Transformation of Adult Social 
Care 
 

The savings target of £6.600M is significant, 
but only represents approximately 5% of the 
overall adult social care budget. 

(page 67, Appendix 1C, saving 52) 
 
Review Youth Area grants to 
ensure a focus on health and 
prevention of poor health, and 
fund from Public Health   

This £0.200M saving does not represent a 
decrease in spend, but a new way of 
funding youth area grants though the 
ringfenced Public Health grant. Area Boards 
can therefore award these funds, taking 
account of JSA data, to address local young 

Page 10Page 68



people’s health needs, reducing future costs 
to the health and care system. 
 

(page 69, Appendix 1C, saving 70) 
 
Additional 1% staff vacancy 
factor 

The council’s current overall vacancy factor 
is above 6%. Services will be asked to 
review their structures (as a result of budget 
savings proposals or transformation), then 
produce a 4 year operational workforce plan 
within that envelope. Services 
demonstrating effective management and 
transformation will be rewarded with 
reduced vacancy factors.  
 

Future scrutiny of the Financial 
Plan 2018/19 
 

 

Tracking delivery of savings and 
income generation  
 
 
 
Monitoring impacts on services 
and outcomes for residents 
 

Undertaken by the task group, focusing on 
the key savings/income areas and 
monitoring how any slippage is balanced 
elsewhere. 
 
Undertaken by the select committees, with 
the focus recommended as being on areas 
of significant transformation and savings. 
 

 
Cllr Ian Thorn, Chairman of the Financial Planning Task Group 

Report author: Henry Powell, Senior Scrutiny Officer, 01225 718052, 
henry.powell@wiltshire.gov.uk  
 
Report date 2 February 2018 

Page 11Page 69

mailto:henry.powell@wiltshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING HELD ON 9 FEBRUARY 2018 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY 
HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr Howard Greenman, 
Cllr David Halik, Cllr Alan Hill (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Simon Jacobs, 
Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr John Walsh, 
Cllr Graham Wright (Chairman) and Cllr Clare Cape (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Roy While, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Laura Mayes, Cllr Ashley 
O'Neill, Cllr Steve Oldrieve, Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, Cllr Jonathon Seed, 
Cllr John Thomson, Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Philip Whitehead and Cllr Jerry 
Wickham 
  

 
11 Apologies 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Matthew Dean. 
 
An apology was also received from Councillor Ruth Hopkinson, who would be 
presenting the proposals from the Liberal Democrat Group, and as such absent 
for the entirety of the meeting in her capacity as a committee member. 
Councillor Hopkinson was substituted by Councillor Clare Cape. 
 

12 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

13 Chairman's Announcements 
 
Through the Chair there were the following amendments: 
 

1) That it be noted that following further meetings with officers the proposals from 
the Liberal Democrat Group in Agenda Supplement 1 had been updated, along 
with the report from senior officers, to include use of the recently announced 
rural grant. 

 
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 7



 
 
 

 
 
 

2) Scrutiny normally focuses on matters of policy determined by the Executive, 
rather than on staffing structures, which are determined by management. 
However, in this case operational savings are listed in the Administration’s 
budget, under Appendix 1C 

 
Savings pertaining to staffing structures refer to “a review of structures and job 
design to identify inefficiencies and potential duplication with other services” as, 
at this stage, the detail of exactly where these savings will come from is still to 
be finalised.  
 
In all cases the first step will be identify the potential for deleting vacant posts, 
or identifying where vacant posts may provide suitable alternative employment 
for any staff who may be at risk of redundancy as a result of savings proposals.  
 
Any discussion at this stage about which roles may be affected by these 
proposals would be inappropriate as this would not only jeopardise the 
consultation that will be required with staff whose roles are affected, but it may 
also unsettle staff in these roles unnecessarily.  
 
Managers in these services are responsible for determining how these savings 
will be delivered so it is important that any discussion about alternative 
proposals does not include reference to specific roles, or staff.  
 

14 Public Participation 
 
There were no statements or questions submitted. 
 

15 Procedure of Meeting 
 
The procedure for the meeting was noted. 
 

16 Wiltshire Council Financial Plan 2018/19: Amendments 
 
Amendments to the administration budget proposals as published on 26 
January 2018 had been received from the Liberal Democrat Group. 
  
Councillor Ruth Hopkinson, in her capacity as Liberal Democrat Group Deputy 
Leader, presented the Group’s proposed amendments as detailed in Agenda 
Supplement 1. The amendments sought to use the Rural Grant for two years at 
£0.262m per year to fund the Communities investment whilst further recurring 
savings are identified and to fund additional borrowing to allow for more LED 
replacement for street lighting. The total cost of the two investment 
amendments was £0.345m, and in addition to the rural grant was to be funded 
with a reduction in the number of Portfolio Holders to achieve £0.058m and to 
reduce councillors’ travel mileage allowance to 25p a mile for a saving of 
£0.025m 
 
The proposals had been confirmed as legal and financially viable by the 
Corporate Leadership Team in consultation with the Monitoring Officer and 

Page 72



 
 
 

 
 
 

Section 151 Officer, with additional comments as detailed in the agenda 
supplement report. 
 
The Committee, along with other members in attendance including members of 
the Executive, discussed the proposed as detailed fully in the appended report, 
including examining how savings had been calculated, how the rural grant could 
be used and the process of achieving the proposed savings.  
 
At the conclusion of discussion and on the motion of Councillor Graham Wright, 
seconded by Councillor Alan Hill, it was, 
  
Resolved: 
 

1) To note that the amendments to the Financial Plan Update 2018/19 proposed 
by the Liberal Democrat group have been scrutinised; and 
 

2) To ask Full Council to take note of the comments of the Committee, which will 
be presented in a report. 
 

17 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 20 March 2018. 
 

18 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.00 - 10.55 am) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 

direct line (01225) 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Wiltshire Council       APPENDIX to the Minutes of 9 February 2018
  
Full Council  
 
20 February 2018 

 
Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee on the Draft 

Financial Plan Update 2018/19  
 
Purpose of report 
 

1. To report to Cabinet and Full Council a summary of the main issues discussed at the 
meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee held on 9 February 
2018. 
 
Background 
 

2. The meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee provided an 
opportunity to scrutinise amendments to the budget that were proposed after the 
committee meeting on 5 February 2018, which considered the initial proposals from the 
Administration which were published on 26 January 2018. The only proposed 
amendments received were from the Liberal Democrat Group. 
 

3. Councillor Ruth Hopkinson, Deputy Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group 
acknowledged the difficult financial environment the council faced and limited flexibility 
in meeting is budgetary requirements, and then presented the proposals to the 
Committee as follows: 

 
Savings (£0.345m) 

 To use the Rural Grant (£0.655m) for two years to fund the Communities investment 
whilst further recurring savings are identified. The balance being used to fund further the 
interest payments for the LED investment proposal (£0.262m) 

 To recommend the number of Cabinet Portfolio Holders is reduced by 50% (£0.058m) 

 To reduce councillor’s travel mileage allowance to 25p a mile (£0.025m) 
 
 
Investments £0.345m 

 To replace in part the Administration’s proposal 49 in relation to ‘Communities - A review 
of structures and job design to identify inefficiencies and potential duplication with other 
service areas’ £0.245m 

 To set aside further revenue ability to fund borrowing in order to allow for more LED 
replacement in support of the Administration’s budget proposal 27 - ‘To…undertake a 
commercial business case review of some areas moving to usage of LED fittings to 
reduce costs’ £0.100m 
 

4. The proposals had been commented upon by the Corporate Leadership Team, 
including the Director of Finance and the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Main issues raised during questioning and debate 
 

5. The Chairman gave the opportunity for the Leader of the Council and the Cabinet 
Member for Finance respond to the amendments, before seeking any queries or 

Page 5

Minute Item 16

Page 75



comments from the Committee and other Members in attendance including those 
detailed below.  
 

6. In relation to use of the Rural Grant it was confirmed that £0.262m would be required in 
the next financial year to meet the commitment. There were also questions on whether 
the grant could be used to supplement a programme such as streetlighting replacement, 
which would predominantly affect urban areas more than rural ones. In response, it was 
confirmed the proposals had been assessed by officers as acceptable to use the grant 
to partly fund the LED street lighting replacement programme. 

 
7. In relation to expanding the LED street lighting programme it was stated that in addition 

to the greater efficiency of the lights meaning the programme would pay for itself over a 
20 year period, it would also significantly reduce the council’s carbon footprint and 
contribute to national targets for reducing carbon emissions. The Cabinet Member also 
clarified that with the Rural Grant announced after the Administration had published its 
own proposals, the Administration would detail its alternatives to such a use of the grant 
at Council on 20 February. 
 

8. In relation to reducing the councillors’ mileage allowance from 45p per to 25p per mile it 
was confirmed that the amount to be saved was not calculated as a full year saving, 
acknowledging that any change to the Members’ Allowances Scheme would require 
consultation with an Independent Remuneration Panel before it was implemented. In 
response to queries it was stated the administration cost of a different rate for 
councillors and officers would be minimal. 

 
9. It was further stated that councillors would be able to claim back the difference from the 

rate set by HM Revenue and Customs if the mileage rate were set at 25p, and that the 
efficiency of modern vehicles meant this rate met or exceeded average running costs. 
Details were sought on how the 25p rate had been calculated and whether it was up to 
date. In response it was stated that previous council calculations had indicated such a 
cost, or lower, and that the AA’s figures stated this remained an accurate estimate.  

 
10. Regarding the proposal to reduce the number of Portfolio Holders, the Leader of the 

Council stated she did not believe it was a proper budget proposal to condition how the 
executive governance arrangements of the council needed to be organised.  
 
Conclusion 
 

11. To note that the amendments to the Financial Plan Update 2018/19 proposed by the 
Liberal Democrat group have been scrutinised; and 
 

12. To ask Full Council to take note of the comments of the Committee as detailed above. 
 

Councillor Graham Wright 
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 

Report Author: Kieran Elliott, Senior Democratic Services Officer, 01225 718504 or 
kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk   
 
Report Date: 12 February 2018 
 

Page 6Page 76

mailto:kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk


 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CHILDREN'S SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 31 OCTOBER 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Mary Champion, Cllr Anna Cuthbert, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Christopher Devine, 
Cllr David Halik, Cllr Deborah Halik, Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Hayley Spencer, 
Cllr Roy While, Mr J Hawkins, Cllr Stewart Dobson (Substitute) and Cllr James Sheppard 
(Substitute) 
 
 
  

 
57 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from: 
 
Cllr Evans who was substituted by Cllr Sheppard 
Cllr Chris Hurst 
James Wilkins 
Dr Michael Thompson 
Miss Tracy Cornelius 
Mr Paul Daniels 
 

58 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 05 
September 2017 as a correct record. 
 

59 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

60 Chairman's Announcements 
 

a) Cabinet Items At the 7th November Cabinet meeting it was heard that 
the following item would be considered: 
 
- Post-16 Area Wide Review of Education in Wiltshire 

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
b) Julia Cramp It was announced that Julia Cramp would be leaving her 

position at Wiltshire Council. The Chairman expressed thanks on behalf 
of the committee for her work and co-operation as Associate Director for 
Commissioning, Performance and School Effectiveness. 
  

c) Jill Hughes It was announced that unfortunately due to Ms Hughes 
withdrawing from her position as a parent governor she would also have 
to step down from her position on the committee as the Primary Parent 
Governor Representative. Work for re-electing to the position on the 
committee would begin shortly. 
 

d) NCASS The Chairman explained that he had recently been to the 2017 
National Children and Adult Services Conference in Bournemouth. The 
event focuses on adult and child social care, and how councils can work 
together. 

 
61 Public Participation 

 
No questions had been received from councillors or members of the public. 
 

62 Activities of the Wiltshire Assembly of Youth (WAY) 
 
The committee received a report by Judy Edwards, Senior Commissioning 
Officer, which provided an update on the activities of the Wiltshire Assembly of 
Youth (WAY).  
 
WAY has met twice since the last report. One meeting was joint with the Youth 
Safeguarding Board (YSB) on 20 September, the other was an online meeting 
on 17 October. 
 
At the joint meeting with the YSB, members discussed the function of both 
groups and engaged in discussions on child sexual exploitation and child sexual 
abuse; it was felt that both issues are best supported through Personal, Social, 
Health and Economic education. Members also discussed concerns relating to 
safeguarding and public transport, including travel by taxi. 
 
It was heard that WAY members had worked hard to engage secondary schools 
in Make Your Mark, the UK’s largest youth consultation. Over 7,000 of 
Wiltshire’s 11-18 year olds took part in 2017.  
 
The top five issues as identified in Wiltshire were: 

1. Mental health 
2. Protect LGBT+ people 
3. Transport 
4. A curriculum to prepare us for life 
5. First Aid education for all young people 

 

Page 78



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The national results yielded the following: 
1. A curriculum to prepare us for life 
2. Transport 
3. Work experience hubs 
4. Votes at 16 
5. Protect LGBT+ people 

 
The top five national issues will be debated by young people in the House of 
Commons on 10th November, which will include the three Members Youth 
Parliament for Wiltshire. 
 
Members asked why LGBT was so high on Wiltshire’s list, and asked whether it 
was a more prevalent issue in some schools that others. It was noted that this 
result could be broken down into the schools it featured highest in, and could be 
investigated. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update from the Wiltshire Assembly of Youth (WAY). 
 

63 Anti-Bullying Update 
 
The committee received a report by Judy Edwards and Dexter Chipeni, Level 2 
Apprentice – Joint Commissioning, informing councillors about the ongoing 
support that the council provides for schools and young people during the year, 
with reference to the national anti-bullying campaign delivered by the Anti-
Bullying Alliance (ABA) annually. 
 
The role of the council with regards to bullying is to signpost and highlight 
resources for schools and partners that supports their anti-bullying practices. In 
particular, this takes place through the Healthy Schools framework and through 
training for schools on personal, social, health and economic education. 
 
The National Anti-Bullying week 2017, from 13th to 17th November, has the 
theme ‘All Different, All Equal’. Mental health and LGBT will be big topics during 
this. Wiltshire Council will also hold its third ‘Big Conversation’ with young 
people from representative groups within Wiltshire: the Wiltshire Assembly of 
Youth; Children in Care Council; Youth Safeguarding Board; and Healthwatch 
Wiltshire Young Listeners. 
 
Data on bullying in Wiltshire was still raw and being analysed by Public Health. 
It was noted that schools receive their own data back so they can track their 
own trends and act accordingly. 
 
Members asked if questions regarding proportions of schools with growing 
trends, and raised the growing concern of social media as a platform for bullying 
across all ages. 
 

Page 79



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

It was requested that a briefing on what is available to schools regarding 
tackling bullying be created and sent to members for them to share with their 
local schools and encourage their participation. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update on Anti-Bullying. 
 
To request that a briefing highlighting the opportunity to become an “All 
Together School” be created for all members to share with their local 
schools. 
 

64 School Places Strategy 2017-2022 
 
The Select Committee received a report which asked them to consider the 
latest Wiltshire School Places Strategy 2017- 2022 and its associated proposals 
set out in the Implementation Plan. 
 
The Wiltshire School Places Strategy 2017- 2022 will replace the 2015-2020 
Strategy and will become a key framework document for the Council in 
considering any statutory proposals for changes to school organisation. This 
includes the commissioning of new schools, it will also inform future capital 
investment priorities. Under the Education and Inspections Act 2006, School 
Organisation Committees were abolished, and the main decisions on the 
provision and organisation of places, depending on the nature of the proposal 
and who is the proposer, are now made by the Regional School’s 
Commissioner or the Secretary of State. 
 
Clare Medland, Head of School Place Commissioning, explained that the report 
incorporates all available data including: child birth-rates, pressures from 
housing, and army rebasing. The structure of the strategy remained the same 
as two years ago. The document had been revised to include updated area data 
and projections. The strategy would be used to plan for expansions of schools 
and new schools across the county. 
 
In response to a question over whether the strategy should go to Area Board in 
draft form for comment it was explained that the strategy had already gone out 
for extensive consultation. This included all schools, diocese, and councillors.  
 
Members were informed that officers were happy to receive comments and 
views on the strategy, and that an update on the position of the strategy could 
be received in 12 – 18months time. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note and endorse the School Places Strategy 2017-2022. 
 

Page 80



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

To review the position of the Schools Places Strategy in 12-18months time 
to consider scrutiny involvement. 
 

65 Post 16 Area Wide Review (Joint lead by Economy & Planning and  
Education) 
 
A report was received informing the committee of the findings and recommendations 
from the government review of local further education provision which was completed 
earlier in 2017. 
 
The government has recently carried out a review of further education provision in 
Wiltshire as part of a national post-16 area review process. Wiltshire College was the 
only provider in Wiltshire to be included in the 2016-17 Gloucestershire, Swindon and 
Wiltshire review. Findings were positive in that the College's curriculum delivers to the 
priority sectors identified by the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP) whilst maintaining provision in all areas where there is employment demand in 
the region and beyond, such as construction, health and tourism. 

 
Ariane Crampton, Head of Employment and Skills, explained in response to 
questions from the committee that the scope of the government report did not 
cover keeping children in county. Outcomes included in the final report of 
Children’s Select Committee’s Post-16 Task Group was noted as covering this 
topic in detail.  
 
Members of the committee noted that the issue of Post 16 education was wider 
than just Wiltshire College, and that it would be good to learn why they move 
out of county. It was noted that it was quality of education in county which drove 
children out of county. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the recommendations included in the Post-16 Area Wide Review 
 
To highlight the concerns raised by the committee in relation to item H in 
the report - public transport 
 

66 Wiltshire Council Apprenticeship Growth Plan 
 
The committee received a report on Wiltshire Council’s apprenticeship growth 
plan.  
 
Apprenticeship growth was noted to be a key priority both nationally and locally. 
The Government had committed to deliver three million apprenticeships by 
2020. A specific goal of the business plan is to provide ‘more apprentices and 
improve access to further and higher education’. Wiltshire has a target of 
supporting the delivery of 31,500 apprenticeship starts for the academic years 
2014 to 2020. 
 

Page 81



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Promotion of apprenticeships is performed through the website “Work 
Wiltshire”. With all apprenticeships pulled together under the one website. It 
was noted by the committee that this website needs better promotion. 
 
The committee queried the range of apprenticeships currently on offer. It was 
explained this was relatively small, but there was a drive to offer a wider range.  
 
Potential to receive future information on the council’s work to meet their 
government apprenticeship growth requirement was discussed. It was 
requested that this includes information on care leavers and focused on 
meeting the requirements as a whole.  
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update on the Wiltshire Apprenticeship Action Plan 
 
To receive the Wiltshire Council Apprenticeship Strategy at a meeting of 
Children’s Select in early 2018. 
 
 

67 Children’s Service Integration Project 
 
The committee received a report which gave an overview of the progress of the 
Children’s Services Integration Project since their last update in March 2017. 
The report detailed how the CSI project will support the delivery of the Council’s 
Business Plan and the financial implications. 
 
The following services/functions no longer existed as separate entities: 

- Early Help Service 
- Safeguarding and Assessment Service 
- Single Point of contact to Early help 
- Single Point of Contact for Special Educational Needs and Disability 

 
Phase 2 of CSI would consider the Children in Care, Placement and EDS, 
Youth Offending, Child Sexual Exploitation and SEND services, and improved 
integrated working with partners alongside the new model of service (Support 
and Safeguarding Service). 
 
It was explained following questions from the committee that no services had 
stopped, however some have changed roles. All services delivered through the 
old service would continue to be delivered under the new service. 
 
A single data set would be produced which could be made available to the 
committee. This would be up and running once it had been given a few months 
to collect enough data to produce indicators. 
 
 
 

Page 82

https://workwiltshire.co.uk/
https://workwiltshire.co.uk/


 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved 
 
To note the Phase 1 changes and the timescales and endorse the 
direction of travel being scoped by the Children’s services Integration 
Project Phase 2.  
 
To receive the data set for the new model at a Children’s Select meeting in 
Spring 2018. 
 

68 Final Report of the Traded Services for Schools Rapid Scrutiny Exercise 
 
Cllr Hubbard, Cllr Cuthbert and Mr John Hawkins introduced the report of the 
rapid scrutiny project.  
 
They explained that the project was unable to produce any solid 
recommendations from the two meetings due to a lack of information available 
to the members. Once the data was made available the members could 
continue and conclude their work. 
 
Officers explained that there was a period following the absence of the previous 
Associate Director for Commissioning, Performance and School Effectiveness 
where full guidance was not available. As a result adequate information was not 
provided to the members. 
 
Resolved  
 
To note the report of the Traded Services for Schools Rapid Scrutiny 
Project. 
 
To ask the rapid scrutiny membership to form a Traded Services for 
Schools Task Group. 
 
To request that the membership of the Traded Services for Schools Task 
Group perform a separate piece of scrutiny on Outdoor Education. 
 

69 DfE Changes - Update from Department for Education - 
 
The Committee received an update from Terence Herbert, Corporate Director, 
on developments relating to children’s services arising from the Department for 
Education from August to October 2017 as follows:- 
 

- National funding formula for schools and high needs block 
- Primary assessment in England - Consultation outcome 
- Maths and English functional skills: revised subject content 
- Academies Update 
- £20 million improvement programme for children’s social care 
- Corporate parenting, the local offer and personal adviser support – open 

consultation 

Page 83



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

- Revised guidance for virtual school heads and designated teachers – 
open consultation 

- Junior individual saving accounts for looked-after children 
- The Multi-Agency Response to Children Living with Domestic Abuse 
- Inspection of local authority children's services (ILACS) Pilot inspection 

update 
- Self-evaluation of social work practice 

 
Elizabeth Williams, Head of Finance Care, was in attendance and answered 
questions on the schools funding formula. A timetable had been set for the new 
formula, which included a short consultation period. This included going to 
Schools Forum. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update provided 
 

70 Task Group Updates 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update report 
 

71 Forward Work Programme 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the forward work programme 
 

72 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Noted as Tuesday 19th December at County Hall, Trowbridge, starting at 
10.30am. With a pre-meeting briefing at 9.30am in the meeting room. 
 

73 Urgent Items 
 
None. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 1.00 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic 

Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

 

Page 84



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CHILDREN'S SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 19 DECEMBER 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Mary Champion, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Christopher Devine, Cllr Sue Evans, 
Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Hayley Spencer, Cllr Roy While, Dr M Thompson, 
Miss Sarah Busby, Mr J Hawkins, Mr P Daniel, Cllr Stewart Dobson (Substitute) and 
Cllr James Sheppard (Substitute) 
 
  

 
74 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from: 
 
Cllr Mary Douglas  
Cllr Anna Cuthbert 
Cllr Chris Hurst 
Cllr Deborah Halik  
Cllr David Halik 
Ms Tracy Cornelius 
 
Cllr Cuthbert was substituted by Cllr James Sheppard 
Cllr David Halik was substituted by Cllr Stewart Dobson 
 

75 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved  
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the Children’s Select Committee 
meeting held on 31st October 2017. 
 

76 Declarations of Interest 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 

Page 85

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

77 Chairman's Announcements 
 
 

a) Cabinet items 
 
It was noted that on 30th January Cabinet would consider the following item: 
 

- School Admissions Policy 2019/2020 
  
b) Welcome to Alan Stubbersfield 
 
The Chairman welcomed Alan Stubbersfield as the interim Director for Education 
and Skills. 
 

78 Public Participation 
 
None. 
 

79 Corporate Parenting Panel Six-Month Update 
 
Cllr Mayes introduced the six-monthly update to the committee on progress 
made against each of the panel’s strategic priorities. 
 
The panel had noted that there was more work required on the monitoring of 
KPI’s. At present a dataset was provided for the panel, with an accompanying 
commentary from Martin Davis. It was hoped that the specific priorities agreed 
by the panel and assigned to each meeting would provide a clearer focus and 
allow for a “deeper dive” into the data. 
 
The panel have nominated a councillor to act as lead member for each of the 
seven priorities. This lead councillor will meet regularly with relevant officers, 
scrutinise data and plans, and where appropriate meet with young people.  
 
It was explained that at meetings of the Corporate Parenting Panel, members 
will focus on one individual strategic priority per meeting. At the meetings, the 
panel’s lead member for the priority will be introduced and asked to provide an 
update and information. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the sixth-month update from the Corporate Parenting Panel. 
 
To note the progress made by the Corporate Parenting Panel. 
 
To add Cllr Chris Devine to the Children in Care Leavers Rapid Scrutiny 
Exercise membership. 
 

Page 86



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

80 Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) Task Group 
Interim Report 
 
Chairman of the task group, Cllr Phil Alford, introduced the Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) task group’s interim report.  
 
The task group had received a presentation on the ‘Progress in raising 
standards of mental health for children and young people in Wiltshire’. This 
presentation detailed the current landscape of CAMHS and what the re-
commissioned CAMHS model hopes to achieve. 
 
The task group felt that they needed to consider the entire CAMHS model and 
how it was delivered. In order to do this, they felt that the remit of their work 
should have a focus on governance. 
 
It was noted that prevention was key in the consideration of CAMHS, and that 
accessing CAMHS services should be considered as a last resort. The task 
group would be looking holistically at early intervention to understand its context 
and where it will sit within the strategy. 
 
Clarification was given that the reference to “part two” in the report was in 
regard to the second load of work for the task group, rather than information to 
be considered in private. 
 
Task Group task group: 
 

a) Consider the governance arrangements for the recommissioned 
CAHMS service; 
 

b) Explore and understand the new CAHMS model in comparison to 
the existing model and consider the evidence base for any changes. 
Then where appropriate, make recommendations to support its 
implementation and effectiveness; 
 

c) Look at existing data and ensure that the new model’s performance 
will be robustly monitored and benchmarked against this by the 
council, partners and by the proposed future scrutiny exercise; 
 

d) Consider access and referral points within the new CAHMS model 
and, as appropriate, make recommendations to maximise take-up 
by children and young people in need of support; 
 

e) Investigate how the new CAMHS contract sits within the wider 
context of mental healthcare services. 
 
 
 

Page 87



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

f) To perform a review of the performance of the recommissioned 
model with a focus on: 
- a reduction in hospital admissions for children and young 

people with mental health needs; 
- a reduction in self-harm; 
- a reduction in the prevalence of eating disorders among 

children and young people; 
- an improved uptake in young people accessing the service; 
- Any other indicators agreed by the task group through their 

work. 
 

81 Children’s Services Case Management System 
 
Cllr Laura Mayes introduced the report providing information on progress with 
the procurement and implementation of the new Children’s Services Case 
Management System (CMS). 
 
The CMS Programme of work commenced implementation in July 2017 
following a 15month procurement exercise for an integrated solution that would 
replace up to five legacy databases. Following procurement the contact was 
awarded to Liquidlogic to deliver a hosted solution in line with Children Services 
integrated working and provide a holistic view of the child and family. 
 
A phased approach across four phases was agreed. Phase 1 implementation 
has commenced with delivery planned for November 2018.  Phase 1(a) of the 
implementation was currently scheduled to go live in spring 2019. The 
committee questioned whether the software to be used for CMS would be 
sufficiently futureproof. It was explained that as the CMS would be hosted by 
Liquidlogic it would also be maintained by them. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update provided on the Children’s Services Case Management 
System. 
 
To receive an update on progress of the Children’s Services Case 
Management System in 12 months. 
 

82 DfE Changes - Update from Department for Education 
 
Alan Stubbersfield presented a report which provided an update on 
developments relating to children’s services arising from the Department for 
Education from October 2017 to December 2017 as follows: 
 

 Free early years entitlement for 2 year olds under Universal Credit 

 Eligibility for free school meals and the early years pupil premium under 
Universal Credit – consultation 

 Guidance on criminal record checks 

Page 88



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 Consultation on the regulatory framework for National Assessments 

 Elective Home Education 

 Academies Update 

 Relationships and Sex Education for the 21st Century 

 Technical education and apprenticeships: raising awareness 

 New NCS guidance for local authorities 

 Revised statutory guidance for transport to education and training for 
people aged 16 to 18 

 Guidance on statutory visits to children with special educational needs 
and disabilities or health conditions in long-term residential settings 

 Restraint and restrictive intervention: draft guidance 

 SEND – single route of redress national trial 

 Launch of the consultation on revisions to the 'Working Together to 
Safeguard Children' guidance and draft regulations 

 Child and family social work assessment and accreditation system 

 Safeguarding Strategy for Unaccompanied asylum seeking and refugee 
children 

 Care of unaccompanied migrant children and child victims of modern 
slavery 

 Reforms to National Referral Mechanism announced 

 Internet safety strategy - a consultation 

 Fostering judgement 

 Review of children and young people's mental health services: Phase 
one report 

 Post-custody young offender restrictions: guidance 

 ILACS frameworks published 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update provided. 
 

83 Task Group Updates 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update report. 
 

84 Forward Work Programme 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the forward work programme. 
 

85 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Noted as Tuesday 6th February 2018 at County Hall, Trowbridge, starting at 
10.30am. 

Page 89



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

86 Urgent Items 
 
None. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10:30am – 12:20pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Adam Brown, Senior Scrutiny Officer, 

direct line 01225 718038, e-mail adam.brown@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

 

Page 90



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 21 NOVEMBER 2017 AT KENNET COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY 
HALL, BYTHESEA ROAD, TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Peter Evans, Cllr Peter Fuller, Cllr Sarah Gibson, 
Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Tony Jackson, Cllr Bob Jones MBE, Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Ian McLennan, 
Cllr Steve Oldrieve and Cllr George Jeans (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Ross Henning, Cllr Philip Whitehead and Cllr Bridget Wayman 
 
  

 
45 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Nick Murry, substituted by Cllr 
George Jeans, and Cllr Derek Brown. 
 

46 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve, for signing by the Chair, the minutes of the meeting held on 
the 19 September 2017 as a correct record. 
 

47 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

48 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman explained that announcements on the progress of activities for 
the committee would be considered under the “Forward Work Programme” item. 
 

49 Public Participation 
 
The Chairman explained that rules of public participation and invited the 
members of the South West Wiltshire Green Party to make representations and 
ask supplementary questions should they wish to. 

Page 91

Agenda Item 10



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
The original questions and answers are attached for ease of reference. 
 
In response to the supplementary questions at the meeting the following 
information was provided by the Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and 

Waste and the Director for Waste ＆Environment: 

1. The outcome of the consultation would be publicly available and an 
electronic version would be provided to Mr Jarvis; 

2. The figures for the feasibility study for food waste management had been 
updated; this would be reviewed should this be recognised as a priority 
area for the council; 

3. The Cabinet Member would review whether the council tax bill itemised 
waste collection and processing costs; 

4. Waste collection and management contracts have flexibility clauses to 
allow for changes; 

5. With regards to reprocessing capacity locally Wiltshire Council was 
engaging with central government, DEFRA and the Environment Agency 
as this was a national issue affecting the industry overall; 

6. With regards to the Advanced Thermal Treatment plant it would be the 
responsibility of the Environment Agency to apply conditions and monitor 
emissions to ensure the adequacy of measures put in place to protect 
human health and the environment.  

 
50 Highways and Street Scene Task Group - Final Report 

 
The Chair of the Task Group introduced the final report of the task group and 
recognised that there had been progress and that some recommendations 
within the report had already been implemented or superseded by changes 
throughout the lifetime of the task group. 
 
The committee’s attention was drawn to the fact that the council was, mostly, 
listed as average in the National Highways and Transport (NHT) Annual Report 
(2017). It was pointed out that there was often little correlation between the 
actual state of highways and the outcomes of satisfaction surveys; this had 
been recognised by NHT and further work was being undertaken to gain more 
from satisfaction surveys. 
 
During the ensuing debate the committee was informed, by the Ringway 
representative, of a survey on the Parish Stewards scheme which had been 
circulated to all town and parish councils. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To invite a NHT representative to attend a future meeting of the 
committee to provide further information on the significance of the 
results for Wiltshire. 

 

Page 92



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

2. To circulate the outcome of the Parish Steward satisfaction survey 
to all councillors, so that they could monitor the situation in their 
area. 
 

3. To endorse the report of the Task Group and refer it to the Cabinet 
Member for Highways, Transport and Waste for response at the 
Committee’s next meeting. 

 
51 Highways Infrastructure Asset Management System 

 
The committee received a presentation from Paul Bromley, Highways Asset 
Manager, on the proposed updated Highways Infrastructure Asset Management 
System. 
The committee was informed of the procurement process undertaken and given 
a brief overview of the technology that would be available. 
There were many benefits highlighted including the system enabling the council 
to set its own threshold for intervention, the ability to precisely identify the areas 
with poor skid resistance, efficiency through mobile working and avoidance of 
duplication. 
During the ensuing debate it was clarified that the data gathered through the 
system would inform maintenance programmes as well as future inspection 
programmes and that there were on-going discussion with the IT service to 
ensure that there would be adequate internal support for mobile working. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To thank the officer for the comprehensive presentation.  
 

2. To support the work that the Highways Service is undertaking to 
procure an updated Highways Infrastructure Asset Management 
System. 

 
52 Local Highways Investment Fund 

 
The Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Waste introduced the report 
and highlighted some key areas, including that 17% of roads had been 
resurfaced, the reduced backlog of maintenance, and the additional funding to 
area boards for footways to be repaired. 
 
Topics highlighted during the ensuing debate included: 

 Recognising that the highways investment fund had been a success and 
that the challenge would now be to prioritise resources to ensure that the 
rest of the programme could be delivered; 

 That unclassified roads represented around 50% of the network in 
Wiltshire and maintenance of these had started being addressed in 
recent years; 

Page 93



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 That overrunning verges had been identified as an area for work and that 
lists of schemes had been established to be undertaken, subject to 
funding.  

 
Resolved 
 

1. To endorse that good progress had been made regarding 
implementing the ‘Local Highways Investment Fund 2014 – 2020’. 
 

2. To support the statement that there had been a substantial 
improvement in the condition of Wiltshire’s roads in recent years, 
but further investment was still required. 

 
3. To note the provisional highway maintenance scheme lists for 

2018/19, which had been prepared for each of the Area Boards, and 
accept that these would have to be finalised when budgets are 
agreed. 

 
4. To recognise that a further £4,861,000 would be required to bring 

the funding up to the £21,000,000 annual investment (as envisaged 
in the original Local Highways Investment Fund 2014 – 2020 report), 
assuming the Department for Transport funding was at the 
anticipated levels. 

 
53 Public Transport Review Update 

 
The Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Waste introduced the report. 
 
Topics highlighted during the ensuing debate included: 

 That there was no statutory requirement to provide post-16 education 
transport; 

 That the additional cost incurred by passenger transport on detours due 
to closed roads was comparatively minimal; 

 There were still recognised areas for improvement for efficiency for the 
non-urgent patient transport (NEPTS) and SEND and social care 
transport. 

 
Resolved 
 

1. To endorse how the £500,000 worth of savings to the Passenger 
Transport Budget, as asked by Cabinet in October 2016, had been 
achieved 
 

2. To support further work being undertaken on the integration of 
NEPTS and SEND and social care transport 
 

Page 94



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

3. To receive an update on progress in the autumn 2018 on the work 
being undertaken on the integration of NEPTS and SEND and social 
care transport. 

 
54 Executive Response to the Public Transport Review Task Group 

 

The Director Highways ＆ Transport introduced the Executive Response to the 

final report of the Public Transport Review task group and pointed out that the 
three recommendations of the task group had been accepted by the Executive 
and that two of the three recommendations had been implemented 
(recommendations 1 and 3). 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the executive response to the Final Report of the Public Transport 
Review Task Group and that the three recommendations of the task group 
have been accepted by the Executive. 
 

55 Highways Annual Review of Service 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Waste introduced the report 
and highlighted concern regarding an increase in the number of killed and 
seriously injured. 
 
Topics highlighted during the ensuing debate included: 

 Current work from Ringway to identify further savings for disposal of 
waste; 

 That there were constant adjustment of in and out sourcing of resources 
on a service by service basis. Enough resources had been retained in-
house to develop strategies, inform councillors and provide interface with 
customers; 

 Services would be taken back in-house if identified as a benefit to do so; 

 The Highways Consultancy contracts would be due for renewal in 
December 2019; 

 Area boards would be provided with lists of footways and would make 
decision for prioritisation. 

 
Resolved 
 

1. To endorse the Highways Annual Review of Service (which 
described the service delivery during 2016/17), and the 
improvements that had been made following the award of the new 
highways contract and supplier arrangements. 

 
2. To note that the new highways contract with Ringway Infrastructure 

Services started in April 2016 and to support the view that the 
transition to the new highways contract had gone well; performance 
during the first year of the contract had been good, and an 

Page 95



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

extension of three months was being awarded in accordance with 
the condition of contract. 
 

3. To note that the Highways Consultancy contract with Atkins started 
in December 2012, and an eighteen month extension to the contract 
had previously been awarded.  
To support the view that performance had continued to be good in 
the fourth year of the contract, and to support the proposal to 
award a final six month extension, in accordance with the 
provisions of the contract. 

 
4. To receive a further update on the Highways Consultancy contract 

and the procurement process towards the end of 2018 (the new 
contract would start in December 2019). 

 
5. To endorse the Highways Performance Management Framework; 

which indicated that overall there had been good progress and 
performance during 2016/17.   
To accept that the increase in the number Killed and Seriously 
Injured on our roads is a cause for concern, which will require 
further consideration. 

 
6. To agree that performance of the service area of ‘Highways’ 

continues to be reviewed by the Committee on an annual basis, 
through a Review of Service report. 

 
56 Amendments to the Wiltshire Local Transport Plan (LTP) 2011-2026 - Car 

Parking Strategy 
 
The committee considered the Amendments to the Wiltshire Local Transport 
Plan (LTP) 2011-2026 - Car Parking Strategy. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Waste informed the 
committee that the decision regarding Option 1 ‘Applying an inflation increase to 
all parking charges’ would be made prior to Christmas 2017. 
 
Following questions on the harmonisation of parking across the county it was 
clarified that there had been a two-stages harmonisation process. The first 
harmonisation followed the classification of urban areas as defined in the Core 
Strategy developed in 2011. The second harmonisation in 2014-15 was a more 
detailed analysis of parking demand in local areas and taking into account local 
crcumstances.  
 
Resolved 
 

1. To endorse the process of the Public Consultation currently 
underway for the Car Parking Charges  

 

Page 96



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

2. To await the outcome of the Consultation before considering the 
Strategy again, at the 16 January 2018 meeting, prior to the Strategy 
returning to Cabinet on 30 January 2018. 
This would exclude Option 1 as a  decision would have already 
been made and councillors would have to make individual 
representations on the consultation with regards to Option 1. 

 
57 Task Group Update 

 
The Chair introduced the task group update. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To endorse the establishment of the proposed waste contracts task 
group. 

 
2. To note the briefing meeting on the ‘Clean Up Wilts’ litter campaign 

to be held 
 

3. To support that the item titled ‘Emissions’ remains as a ‘to be 
confirmed’ item on the Committee’s forward work programme. 
 

Councillors Lay, Jones and Oldrieve (if evening meetings) volunteered for 
the waste task group. 
 

58 Forward Work Programme 
 
The Senior Scrutiny Officer updated the committee on the current forward work 
programme as circulated for Management Select Committee, including the 
outcomes of the meetings between the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and 
Executive Members. 
 
During the ensuing debate members of the committee mentioned the following 
areas as potential future work for overview and scrutiny: 

 Development of the Local Plan as part of its review; and as part of this 
investigating opportunities for energy generation 

 The impact of the government Green Energy Strategy on Wiltshire; 

 Investigating food waste collection options; 

 Devolution and transfer of recreation areas. 
 
It was agreed that the waste items would be considered again following the 
outcome of the consultation, that the green energy item would be discussed 
with officers once this area had been allocated to a director and that devolution 
and asset transfer would be considered should issues become apparent with 
the upcoming programme of devolution and asset transfer. 
 
The Chair invited the committee to vote on establishing priority for four areas of 
work: 

Page 97



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 Waste task group; 

 Development of local plan; 

 Development where needed; 

 Release of public land. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. To circulate the updated forward work programme to the 
committee; 

 
2. To add the following future work for the committee in priority order 

as follows: 
 

a. Release of public land; 
b. Development where needed; 
c. Development of local plan; 
d. Waste task group. 

 
59 Urgent Items 

 
None. 
 

60 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next scheduled meeting was confirmed as 16 January 2018. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 1.15 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Marie Gondlach, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713597, e-mail marie.gondlach@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 98



 
The Wiltshire Waste and Recycling Consultation 2017  
South West Wiltshire Green Party Questions to Environment 
Select Committee 

 

 

1 
 

Introduction 
It is clear that we are entering a new era concerning resource management, carbon management 
and waste recycling.  Our waste, waste awareness and re-use and recycling innovation will change at 
a faster pace than ever before 
. 
South West Wiltshire Green Party recently submitted a response to Wiltshire Council’s Waste and 
Recycling Survey 2017.  During the consideration of our response a number of questions arose which 
South West Wiltshire Green Party are submitting now. 
 

 

Questions 1 & 2  to be asked by Bill Jarvis  
Questions 3  to be asked by Marie Hillcoat  
Question 4 to be asked by Harriet James 
Question 5 & 6 to be asked by Christopher Walford 
 
Question 1   Waste Management Contracts 
As of now, the plans for waste management over at least the next 8 years are cast in contracts 
already let.  
 
For collections, the new 8 year contract is with Hills. As of July 2018, they will be collecting more 
plastics, but not all, in our blue bins. They will also be collecting glass separately. This contract is until 
2025. 
 
For disposal, even more onerous contract periods have been set until 2036 (Lakeside, 50,000 tonnes 
per year) and 2038 (Hills, 60,000 tonnes per year). Each of these is a minimum tonnage.  
However good we become as recyclers , 110,000 tonnes will HAVE to be provided to these contracts 
every year or the Council will suffer penalties.  
 
According to the Council’s End Use Register 2016/7 waste figures, Wiltshire are already suffering 
penalties.  In 2016/17 Lakeside only received c45kte; Hills only received 59kte, of which (after 
moisture losses) a mere 1.3% was recycled.  
 
Hill’s MBT plant sent 18.7kt  to landfill which must have cost Council tax payers over £1.5m in landfill 
tax (£84.40 per tonne)  paid to central government.    
 
Council Tax payers are unable to see if they are getting good value for money from these contracts 
because the gate fees and income from recyclates are hidden by a veil of ‘commercial 
confidentiality’. Neither is it known if the Lakeside contract requires a minimum calorific value per 
ton or if there are minimum contractual tonnages for landfill. 
 
When the new collection contract starts in 2018, the amount of recycling should improve, with all 
plastics (except 2D) being recycled and glass collected separately. Good quality recovery could make 
modest improvements to recycling rates.  
 
Question 1: In light of the above can the Committee explain what was the purpose the Waste 
Survey and Consultation and what improvement  can the people of Wiltshire expect to see in 
Waste Management because of it? 
 

Question 2  Food Waste Management 

• 110 Local Authorities in England are now operating successful food waste collections. 

• With “smart” collections, food waste can be collected efficiently. 

Page 9

Minute Item 49

Page 99



 
The Wiltshire Waste and Recycling Consultation 2017  
South West Wiltshire Green Party Questions to Environment 
Select Committee 

 

 

2 
 

• Gate fees for food waste into Anaerobic Digesters are at an all-time low and plants are already 
operating in Wiltshire. 

• Output from Anaerobic Digestion plant can benefit the local community through heat and 
power, including the gas availability for transport use. 

• Keeping food waste out of residual waste collected delivers a significant improvement in 
potential recyclate quality and subsequent resale value 
 

Question 2: There is strong evidence that food waste collections and processing through AD plant 
can deliver significant economies and improvements in the waste management process. Why are 
Wiltshire Council not introducing this process? 
 

Question 3   Open and Transparent approach to waste management 
More ambitious waste management with targets plus a transparent and flexible forward approach 
to all waste management needs is essential if the County is to engage with the community to 
minimise costs and environmental impacts.  
 
Question 3: How do the Council see the consultation process that has recently taken place building 
into an awareness campaign to improve recycling rates? 
 

Question 4  Waste Management Contracts (2) 
With the pace of change in waste type passing through the waste management system, all contracts   
to manage that need to be both flexible and easily terminated if they are no longer delivering best 
value or environmental benefit to the County. 
 
Question 4: Can the Council confirm that all waste collection and management contracts let have 
such flexibility clauses and that future contracts will also have these? 
 

Question 5 -Local Economy 
With the changes in global positioning on waste, including Brexit and China’s decision to stop import 
of recyclates from January 2018 there is a real opportunity for the County to push reprocessing 
locally.  
At present the UK exports around 60% of all materials that could be reprocessed into new materials 
and goods. There is a dearth of such facilities in UK which has been created by the “easy” option of 
cheap export. 
 
Question 5: Will Wiltshire Council set up a county-wide forum which will support and promote  
the development of such industry? 
 

Question 6  Best Available Technology (BAT) 
There is planning permission for an Advanced Thermal Treatment plant to process waste in 
Westbury that would otherwise go to landfill or Energy from Waste plant.  
The proposed ATT plant does not use Best Available Technology in its design.  The proposal is 
outdated and was designed for managing materials other than municipal waste.  The emissions 
management system for this plant does not use the Best Available Technology to control the small 
particulate emissions in order to avoid harm to human health. It is generally agreed that the impact 
of these emissions has been underestimated in the past.   The plant’s proposed location is 
inappropriate as it has not taken into account the potential impact of the inevitable emissions on the 
local community. 
 
Question 6: Will Wiltshire Council revisit the approval given to the ATT plant to ensure the 
company applies Best Available Technology to the facility and will the Council also confirm that 
they are not preparing to enter into long term minimum tonnage contracts with the company for 
supply to this plant? Page 10Page 100



South West Wiltshire Green Party Questions to Environment Select Committee 
Council Responses 
 
Introduction 
It is clear that we are entering a new era concerning resource management, carbon 
management and waste recycling. Our waste, waste awareness and re-use and recycling 
innovation will change at a faster pace than ever before. 
 
South West Wiltshire Green Party recently submitted a response to Wiltshire Council’s 
Waste and Recycling Survey 2017. During the consideration of our response a number of 
questions arose which South West Wiltshire Green Party are submitting now. 
 
Question 1 Waste Management Contracts 
As of now, the plans for waste management over at least the next 8 years are cast in 
contracts already let. 
 
For collections, the new 8 year contract is with Hills. As of July 2018, they will be collecting 
more plastics, but not all, in our blue bins. They will also be collecting glass separately. This 
contract is until 2025. 
 
For disposal, even more onerous contract periods have been set until 2036 (Lakeside, 
50,000 tonnes per year) and 2038 (Hills, 60,000 tonnes per year). Each of these is a 
minimum tonnage. However good we become as recyclers, 110,000 tonnes will HAVE to be 
provided to these contracts every year or the Council will suffer penalties. 
 
According to the Council’s End Use Register 2016/17 waste figures, Wiltshire are already 
suffering penalties. In 2016/17 Lakeside only received c45kte; Hills only received 59kte, of 
which (after moisture losses) a mere 1.3% was recycled. 
 
Hill’s MBT plant sent 18.7kte to landfill which must have cost Council tax payers over £1.5m 
in landfill tax (£84.40 per tonne) paid to central government. 
 
Council Tax payers are unable to see if they are getting good value for money from these 
contracts because the gate fees and income from recyclates are hidden by a veil of 
‘commercial confidentiality’. Neither is it known if the Lakeside contract requires a minimum 
calorific value per tonne or if there are minimum contractual tonnages for landfill. 
 
When the new collection contract starts in 2018, the amount of recycling should improve, 
with all plastics (except 2D) being recycled and glass collected separately. Good quality 
recovery could make modest improvements to recycling rates. 
 
Question 1: In light of the above can the Committee explain what was the purpose of 
the Waste Survey and Consultation and what improvement can the people of Wiltshire 
expect to see in waste management because of it? 
 
Before responding to the question immediately above please see the comments below on 
some of the points made. 
 
The new waste and recycling collection contract is for a period of eight years as this is the 
expected life of a waste or recycling collection vehicle. This enables the council to pay for 
the vehicles over a period of time which ensures that the service is affordable. The contracts 
contain options to extend the contract period by up to a further eight years. 
 
The contract periods of 25 years for the energy from waste and mechanical biological 
treatment plant contracts again reflect the expected life of the facilities and the high level of 

Page 11Page 101



capital investment required. Entering into a 25 year contract ensures that the gate fee the 
council pays is again affordable. 
 
The council is required to meet minimum tonnage targets under the contracts. Should we fail 
to do so there is a requirement for the council to pay compensation to Hills in respect of any 
losses Hills have incurred. In respect of the Lakeside contract, Hills have supplemented the 
deliveries of the council’s household waste with commercial waste in order to avoid any 
losses being incurred. In respect of the mechanical biological treatment plant the council and 
hills have agreed to combine two contract years to avoid the council incurring compensation 
payments during the current year. This provides a longer period of time over which the 
council and Hills will work together to ensure the required tonnage is delivered. 
 
The MBT plant is designed to treat non-recyclable waste and it was never anticipated that a 
significant amount of recyclable material would be separated. The plant is equipped to 
extract aluminium and metal cans. These represent a small proportion of the waste delivered 
as much of the recyclable material will have been separated by each household into the 
black box and collected for delivery to the materials recovery facility at Lower Compton. 
 
Once moisture has been lost from the waste and the solid recovered fuel produced from the 
treated material, there remains a significant proportion of waste remaining which, at present, 
is delivered to landfill. Landfill Tax is currently £86.10 per tonne and this will rise to £88.95 
per tonne from 1 April 2018. There is a financial imperative to find an alternative, more 
sustainable, way for this material to be treated. In the meantime the landfill tax bill is 
considerably smaller than it would have been if 60,000 tonnes per annum continued to be 
delivered to landfill.  
 
Under the Lakeside contract the council has to deliver waste which has a calorific value that 
falls within a range of values which would easily encompass that of the household waste 
collected at the kerbside from the grey lidded bins. There are no minimum contractual 
tonnages for waste to be landfilled.  
 
The new waste and recycling collection contract commences on 30 July 2018. Glass will be 
collected separately from the black box. Paper, cardboard, food and drink cans, plastic 
bottles, pots, tubs, and trays (but not black plastic and plastic film), textiles and food and 
drink cartons will all be collected form the blue lidded bin. 
 
It should be noted that the council expects a further 20,000 homes to be built in the county 
over the next period to 2026.  Each household typically generates a tonne of waste per year. 
Even at 50% recycling this growth will be likely to require the current levels of landfill 
diversion contract capacity (110,000 t). This takes into consideration the expectation that the 
new kerbside recycling services commencing on 30 July 2018 will achieve an increase in 
materials recovered for recycling. 
 
Last year nationally we exported almost four million tonnes of refuse derived fuel and solid 
recovered fuel so there is a significant infrastructure gap for the country should overseas 
markets reduce in capacity or increase in cost. The council is endeavouring to protect its 
position to ensure there is sufficient capacity for the foreseeable future. We will work with our 
contractor to ensure that we continue to manage waste in accordance with the hierarchy 
while meeting our contractual commitments. When the existing landfill diversion contracts 
were procured waste was continuing to grow year on year and we anticipated a third landfill 
diversion contract would be required to enable us to meet the 2020 target. We managed this 
risk by deferring the procurement of a third contract to avoid contractual commitments that 
we could not meet. 
 

Page 12Page 102



The consultation has been designed to capture the views of Wiltshire residents and 
organisations on a range of waste-related topics, including household recycling centre 
provision, adequacy of current container sizes and frequency of collection, and to attempt to 
assess gaps in service-users knowledge of the current system as well as establishing 
preferences for how the council communicates service information to users. 
 
The time required to procure new services, mobilise them and communicate to the public is 
significant. The new strategy will inform the way decisions are made on the delivery of 
savings over the next period and the specifying of services for future contracts which could 
commence as early as 2025. 
 
Question 2 Food Waste Management 

 110 local authorities in England are now operating successful food waste collections. 

 With ‘smart’ collections, food waste can be collected efficiently. 

 Gate fees for food waste into Anaerobic Digesters are at an all-time low and plants 
are already operating in Wiltshire. 

 Output from Anaerobic digestion plant can benefit the local community through heat 
and power, including the gas availability for transport use. 

 Keeping food waste out of residual waste collected delivers a significant 
improvement in potential recyclate quality and subsequent resale value. 

 
Question 2: There is strong evidence that food waste collections and processing 
through AD plant can deliver significant economies and improvements in the waste 
management process. Why are Wiltshire Council not introducing this process? 
 
Where food waste collections have been introduced successfully this has normally coincided 
with the move from weekly to fortnightly collections of residual waste. The savings made 
from reducing residual waste collections are diverted to the introduction of food waste 
collections. The gate fees for anaerobic digestion plants may be reducing but there is still a 
gate fee to pay in addition to the collection costs. 
 
Offering a food waste collection service does not guarantee that all food waste would be 
captured. As a consequence it would not be feasible to sort dry recyclables from residual 
waste. The best way to improve the quality of recyclable materials collected is to encourage 
residents to separate them at source. 
 
A reassessment of the cost benefits of a food waste collection in 2009 continued to show 
that collection costs would remain unaffordably high given the requirement for a weekly 
collection across a large rural area such as Wiltshire.  Significant amounts of food waste, 
including almost all food waste arising from households, are currently diverted from landfill 
via the two landfill diversion contracts. The impact of residents reducing the amount of food 
waste they produce once they store it separately presents a risk that redundant capacity 
would be built into the collection system. This could have a significant environmental and 
cost impact in a large county with disparate population centres.  
 
Whilst we are aware that commercial Anaerobic Digestion plants operate in the county, food 
waste collections do not currently feature as part of our current waste strategy.  However, we 
recognise there may be moves to ban certain wastes from landfill in the future, so wish to 
assess whether residents feel that they would wish to receive a food waste collection, 
despite the additional service costs this may entail. 
 
  

Page 13Page 103



Q3 Open and transparent approach to waste management 
More ambitious waste management with targets plus a transparent and flexible forward 
approach to all waste management needs is essential if the County is to engage with the 
community to minimise costs and environmental impacts.  
 
Question 3: How do the council see the consultation process that has recently taken 
place building into an awareness campaign to improve recycling rates? 
 
The council will consider evidence that should enable it to set challenging but achievable 
targets for the period to be covered by the new strategy. 
 
The survey contains questions directly aimed at assessing residents’ awareness of the 
benefits of recycling, as well as their current behaviours in respect of recycling.  It also aims 
to collate information on preferences expressed in respect of receiving information about the 
services.  We anticipate that this will allow the council to better target future communications 
campaigns, with a view to increasing recycling rates and also help reduce the risk of 
contamination of loads collected for recycling.  
 
Q4 Waste Management Contracts (2) 
With the pace of change in waste type passing through the waste management system, all 
contracts to manage that need to be both flexible and easily terminated if they are no longer 
delivering best value or environmental benefit to the County. 
 
Question 4: can the Council confirm that all waste collection and management 
contracts let have such flexibility clauses and that future contracts will also have 
these? 
 
All of the current and new contracts contain provisions for the contracts and specifications to 
be varied over the life of the contracts, in order to allow for the benefits of technological 
advances to be realised when available and appropriate.  The providers will also be required 
to propose innovations as opportunities become available, for the council to consider in the 
context of improving recycling performance against affordability.  The council has previously 
taken the opportunity to work with its providers to extend the range of kerbside recycling, as 
well as the materials collected for recycling at its household recycling centres, and will 
continue to consider these opportunities into the future, and alongside further opportunities 
to divert waste from landfill.   
 
The council recognises the benefit of flexibility in all of its contractual arrangements. 
However, in order to manage the risk for contractors entering into contracts with the council, 
the contracts contain provisions to reimburse the contractors’ reasonable losses where these 
arise in the event of significant changes or early termination. 
 
Q5 Local economy 
With the changes in global positioning on waste, including Brexit and china’s decision to stop 
import of recyclates from January 2018 there is a real opportunity for the County to push 
reprocessing locally. 
 
At present the UK exports around 60% of all materials that could be reprocessed into new 
materials and goods. There is a dearth of such facilities in UK which has been created by the 
‘easy’ option of cheap export. 
 
  

Page 14Page 104



Question 5: Will Wiltshire Council set up a countywide forum which will support and 
promote the development of such industry? 
 
At present these materials are exported as this provides the most cost effective way of 
managing these materials. The lack of processing capacity in the UK reflects the fact that 
these services could not be provided competitively in this country. Any issues arising from a 
reduction in overseas markets, either as a consequence of leaving the EU or decisions 
made by China on environmental grounds, need to be considered at a national level. The 
key to development of such capacity is to ensure it is financially viable. 
 
Question 6 Best Available Technology (BAT) 
There is planning permission for an Advanced Thermal treatment plant to process waste in 
Westbury that would otherwise go to landfill or energy from waste plant. 
The proposed ATT plant does not use Best Available technology in its design. The proposal 
is outdated and was designed for managing materials other than municipal waste. The 
emissions management system for this plant does not use the Best Available Technology to 
control the small particulate emissions in order to avoid harm to human health. It is generally 
agreed that the impact of these emissions has been underestimated in the past. The plant’s 
proposed location is inappropriate as it has not taken into account the potential impact of the 
inevitable emissions on the local community. 
 
Question 6: Will Wiltshire Council revisit the approval given to the ATT plant to ensure 
the company applies Best Available Technology to the facility and will the Council 
also confirm that they are not preparing to enter into long term minimum tonnage 
contracts with the company for supply to this plant? 
 
It is Hills’ responsibility to demonstrate that Best Available Techniques have been employed 
in the design of its facility. Planning permission has been granted and the next step would be 
for the operators to apply for an Environmental Permit from the Environment Agency, the 
regulator and enforcement authority in respect of waste facilities and emission control.  The 
issuing of the permit would be subject to a public consultation, and if granted, would obligate 
the operator to meet appropriate emissions standards taking into account the design and 
location of the facility.  These would be regularly monitored and assessed by both the 
operator and the EA.  The EA would take enforcement action where the permit was subject 
to a breach of condition, provided this was reasonable and proportionate in the 
circumstances.  
 
The council would not object to HWS proposing the ATT plant for processing SRF provided 
HWS demonstrate that delivering SRF to the ATT plant would enable them to comply with 
the requirements of the MBT contract. 

Page 15Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 16 
JANUARY 2018 AT KENNET COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, BYTHESEA 
ROAD, TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Derek Brown OBE, Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Peter Evans, 
Cllr Peter Fuller, Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Tony Jackson, Cllr Bob Jones MBE, 
Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Nick Murry and Cllr Steve Oldrieve 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Brian Mathew, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Atiqul Hoque, Cllr David 
Jenkins, Cllr Horace Prickett and Cllr Bridget Wayman and Dr Carlton Brand.  
  

 
1 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 21 November 2017. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

4 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s Announcement.  
 

5 Public Participation 
 
The Chairman drew attention to the public questions which were available in the 
agenda supplement and advised he would allow 15 minutes for questions.  
 
It was noted that some questions required a verbal response due to them not 
being submitted in time for a written response, the following answers were 
provided by the Director of Waste and Environment: 
 

Page 107

Agenda Item 11



 
 
 

 
 
 

 The council manages waste in accordance with the waste hierarchy 
where it is technically, economically and environmentally practicable to 
do so. The range of materials which the council collects at the kerbside 
for recycling will extend from 30 July 2018 to include plastic pots, tubs 
and trays and food and drink cartons. However, manufacturers and 
producers of goods and packaging continue to use materials which 
cannot be recycled. Residents continue to purchase such goods and 
packaging and put them out for collection as residual waste which the 
council has a duty to collect and dispose of. To avoid disposing of such 
waste to landfill the council will continue to deliver these materials to the 
Lakeside energy from waste plant or to the mechanical biological 
treatment plant at Westbury where it is used to produce solid recovered 
fuel. In accordance with the waste hierarchy it is better to recover value 
in the form of energy than to landfill this non-recycled waste. In response 
to a question on energy from waste, 75% of respondents strongly agreed 
or tended to agree with the council building an energy from waste plant in 
Wiltshire if it would be financially beneficial. 
 

 To obtain more information on how residents would like the council to 
communicate with them about recycling, the following question was 
included in the Waste and Recycling Survey. 
Q5. Which form of communication would most encourage you to recycle 
more at home? (Up to two options could be chosen). 
The most popular options were firstly 'stickers on the bin specifying what 
can and can't go into them' and secondly 'an information leaflet posted to 
all households'. These are the two most expensive options of those 
listed. The council will take these responses into consideration but has to 
do so in the context of the budget available for communication. 
 

 Another question which is of relevance to this subject is set out below. 
Q23. Would you be interested in becoming a local recycling or 
composting champion? 
Over 10% of respondents said yes, which means there may be 398 
residents who would be prepared to communicate with residents in their 
locality. The council should contact these potential volunteers to identify 
how they could best distribute information to the public. 
 

 The full response to Q5 is set out below. 
More information available on the council’s website- 555 
Regular emails from the council’s waste and recycling team with 
recycling information and updates- 693 
Social media updates from Wiltshire Council regarding recycling 
information and facts- 451 
Stickers on the bin specifying what can and can’t go into them- 1883 
An information leaflet posted to all households- 1265 
None of these I recycle all I can anyway- 1168 

 
Supplementary questions were invited in response to which the Director for 
Waste and Environment explained the impact of incineration of waste was 
compared against landfill in the waste hierarchy as landfill was a lower option 

Page 108



 
 
 

 
 
 

and created more greenhouse gases. It was confirmed CO2 emissions of 
transporting waste were factored into environmental assessments and 
incineration was primarily a method of waste treatment rather than energy 
generation. The Director also advised the Council promoted more expensive 
compost bins for treatment of food waste because they allowed all food waste 
to be treated. Anaerobic Digestion plants were considered by the Council to be 
more efficient when used for commercial waste as this generally had lower 
contamination than food waste collected from households.  
 
Mr Chris Walford made a statement urging engagement between local councils 
and central government on waste management issues.  
 
The Chairman thanked members of the public for attending to speak and ask 
questions.  
 

6 Wiltshire Council Waste Management Strategy 
 
A report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and 
Waste which provided an initial overview of the results of a public consultation 
on the Council’s proposed Waste Management Strategy. Response rates had 
been about 4,000 and had included detailed comments. The key themes in the 
public responses were as follows: 
 

 Households wanted the Council to help reduce unnecessary waste 

 Some households would travel further to Household Recycling Centres if 
they had a re-use option 

 Residents wanted to recycle more and would welcome further 
information 

 Residents supported generating energy from waste. 
 
Tracy Carter, Director for Waste and Environment advised she would bring the 
Draft Waste Management Strategy to the March meeting of Committee, this 
report would also consider the implications for waste management of the 
Government’s 25 Year Environment Plan. 
 
The Committee was pleased with the engagement of residents in the public 
consultation, however was divided on the benefit of incineration of household 
waste. Other comments included that HRC’s offering re-use facilities would be 
welcome however should be an option in every location. Members considered 
that the council could change the culture on recycling by improving 
communication and information on how to recycle. Councillors noted the issues 
around managing food waste however suggested more information about the 
benefits of different means of food waste management would be a useful 
addition to future reports.   
 
The Committee agreed the Council had a duty to consider the long-term 
implications of waste management and encouraged the service to consider how 
to engage with residents, particularly school age children about recycling and 
food waste.  Members also encouraged officers to consider the offer from 

Page 109



 
 
 

 
 
 

residents to become Waste Champions and suggested these champions could 
be used to communicate key messages to the wider community. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To accept the revised timetable for the consideration of a Draft Waste 
Management Strategy. 
 
To note the overview of the results of the Wiltshire Council Waste and 
Recycling survey 2017, the key themes emerging and initial proposals of 
how these will be used to inform and develop a draft strategy. 
 

7 Amendments to the Wiltshire Local Transport Plan (LTP) 2011-2026 - Car 
Parking Strategy 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Waste presented a report 
with the outcomes of the pubic consultation on the Council’s Car Parking 
Strategy. 
 
Members suggested some of the questions in the survey had been leading and 
questioned why options suggested by respondents hadn’t been taken forward. 
In response the Head of Local Highways advised all suggestions had been 
thoroughly considered, however upon investigation were not cost effective and 
did not work alongside traffic movements as part of the wider strategy. The 
Committee expressed support for cashless parking, the Cabinet Member was 
also supportive of this however explained it was a significant cost to install. 
Other comments from the Committee included that policies on Resident Parking 
Zones should be considered in the strategy, and that responses to the survey 
may have been higher if it had indicated price rises. The impact of the proposals 
on individual car parks was also discussed.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the contents of the report and agrees that members continue to 
make individual representations to the Cabinet Member, in order to 
continue to help influence the Cabinet report. 
 

8 Local Provision on Public Transport - Rail 
 
The Committee considered the local provision of public transport, with particular 
reference to rail travel. Officers advised rail provision was currently invested 
around the largest settlements and busiest commuter routes. The South West 
network was investing in routes near London and quicker routes through 
Salisbury and into Devon. In response to questions it was heard that potential 
station sites should be considered as part of the Core Strategy and that, whilst 
securing station locations was important, ensuring an operator would stop there 
was as a challenge as increased stops would increase commuting times. In 
response to a request, officers advised they would be responding to a survey on 
working with rail franchises. 
 

Page 110



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Cabinet member advised she would investigate the possibility of a 
pedestrian link from Salisbury Station to the Maltings development. Officers 
acknowledged issues at Tisbury station and advised there were meetings 
arranged to discuss this imminently, likewise they were in discussions for 
increased train capacity around Westbury and Bath. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That: 
(i)            The Committee supports the content of the report. 
(ii)           The Committee endorses the interim strategy, while awaiting the 
outcome of the SWLEP-sponsored work 
(iii)       The Committee requests that the final strategy return to ESC in 
due course 
 

9 Highways and Streetscene Task Group - Executive Response 
 
A report presented the response of the Cabinet Member for Highways, 
Transport and Waste to the Final Report of the Highways and Street Scene 
Task Group. It was noted all of the recommendations had been accepted by the 
Cabinet Member, who advised she would report back on the matter annually. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the executive response to the Final Report of the Highways and 
Street Scene Task Group.  
 
To note the development of the public satisfaction KPIs for street scene 
will be part of the Highways annual report.  
 

10 Updates from task groups and representatives on programme boards 
 
In November 2017 it had been agreed to establish a Waste Task Group, and 
proposed Terms of Reference were attached to the agenda. The Chairman 
thanked councillors for expressing their interest in joining this task group and 
advised any councillors that had not been selected were welcome to attend in 
an observer capacity.  
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Environment Select Committee endorse: 
i)             The membership of the task group, as listed in the report 
ii)            The Terms of Reference for the task group, as listed in the report 
iii)           That Cllr Oldrieve be listed as an ‘observer’ and not a reserve 
member, as listed in the report. 
 

11 Forward Work Programme 
 
The Senior Scrutiny Officer introduced the Committee’s Forward Plan, 
highlighting there were many items to be considered and therefore the work 

Page 111



 
 
 

 
 
 

would be prioritised. It was noted that a response from the Head of Spatial 
Planning on the local plan and carbon emissions was to be circulated to 
members, Cllr Oldrieve requested this matter be further considered at the next 
meeting.  
 
Members suggested it would also be appropriate for the Committee to consider 
the Government’s 25 Year Environment Plan and implications for the Council. 
The Committee also questioned the status of the Council’s Eco Strategy, it was 
noted there was now not a specific service dedicated to this and that each 
service was responsible for considering the environmental implications of their 
service decisions. Officers advised a position statement summarising activity 
could be brought to the next meeting.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To request a position statement on the Council’s Eco Strategy be 
provided to the next meeting of the Committee.  
 
To request an item on the Government’s 25 year Environment Plan be 
provided to a future meeting of the Committee; this would sit with the 
‘Emissions’ item 
 
That the Forward Work Plan be updated to reflect the changes detailed 
above.  
 
 

12 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items.  
 

13 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting was to be held on 13 March 2018 at 10:30am. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 1.00 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Johnstone of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718214, e-mail libby.johnstone@wiltshire.gov.uk  

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 112

mailto:libby.johnstone@wiltshire.gov.uk


 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 5 
SEPTEMBER 2017 AT KENNET COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, 
BYTHESEA ROAD, TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christine Crisp (Chair), Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Howard Greenman, 
Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr Pip Ridout, Cllr Fred Westmoreland, 
Cllr Graham Wright, Cllr Anna Cuthbert (Substitute), Cllr Peter Fuller (Substitute) and 
David Walker 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Jerry Wickham 
  

 
40 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Deborah Halik, substituted by 
Councillor Peter Fuller, Councillor Melody Thompson, substituted by Councillor 
Anna Cuthbert, and Councillor Mary Champion. 
 

41 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were presented. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve, for signing by the Chair, the minutes of the meeting held on 
the 27 July 2017 as a correct record. 
 

42 Declarations of Interest 
 
David Walker, from Health Watch, clarified that his group had been involved in 
work around the following items: 
 
Impact of Adult Care Charging Policy; and  
Customer Engagement with Adult Care. 
 

43 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman made the following announcements: 

Page 113

Agenda Item 12



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
1. CQC’s re-inspection of Great Western Hospital Trust 

 
Following a re-inspection, the CQC has found improvement in the 
services provided by Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust in 
Swindon.  
 
Inspectors visited the hospital in March to review the progress made by 
the trust following an inspection in October 2015.  At the time CQC 
issued a Warning Notice requiring improvements in the hospital’s 
emergency department.  
 
Following this latest  inspection the trust have been rated as Good for 
being effective, caring and well led, and Requires Improvement for being 
safe and responsive to people’s needs. CQC has not changed the overall 
rating of the trust following this focused inspection – which remains at 
Requires Improvement. 
 
A link to the full report had been included in the agenda pack. 

  
 The Chief Inspector of Hospitals has said, 
  

“I am pleased that we have found improvement in those areas that we 
had identified as a priority during our last comprehensive inspection. 
 However it is clear that this is work in progress – and further work is 
needed. 
  
“I am aware that there are wider challenges within the local healthcare 
system in Swindon – particularly in the provision of primary and 
community services – which are creating pressure on the hospital at a 
time when demand continues to rise.  
  
“We know that the trust has been working strategically with local partners 
to shape long term improvements on these issues, as well as acting 
internally to improve the safety and responsiveness of the service. Both 
approaches are vital.  
  
“I am confident that the trust is heading in the right direction. But this is of 
little comfort to someone who finds themselves today waiting for urgent 
attention in an overcrowded emergency department. We will continue to 
monitor the trust closely and return in due course to check their 
progress.”  
   
The Committee last received a report from GWH in November 2016 and 
overall the Committee was satisfied with the improvement plan put in 
place by the Trust. 
 

2. Work planning meetings with the Executive 

Page 114



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
In June the Committee supported meetings between the Chairman and 
the vice-chairman with both the Executive and the CCG in order to 
discuss key projects and work priorities for the coming 12 months.  
 
These meetings had now been arranged and would report back on the 
outcomes at our next meeting. 

 
The Chair also formally welcomed David Walker who had been appointed as 
Health Watch Wiltshire’s representative on the Committee. 
 

44 Public Participation 
 
Representations were received further down the agenda. 
 

45 South West Ambulance Service Trust - Update on Performance, Projects 
and Activity 
 
Paul Birkett-Wendes, from SWAST, attended the meeting to present the report 
which provided an update on performance. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that targets in rural areas are often challenging; how calls are prioritised to send 
the right resource to the right person; the support to the service provided to the 
service by community first responders; how demand patterns have changed; 
the issues facing the recruitment to some rolls such as call-handlers; the impact 
of the Sustainable Transformation Plans. 
 
The Chairman thanked the officer for the presentation, and for the offer for 
Councillors to contact the service to visit a call centre or to ride along with staff. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the information on the ambulance service’s performance in 
Wiltshire and to thank South West Ambulance Service Trust for providing 
the report. 
 

46 Wiltshire Health & Care (Adult Community Health Care Service) 
 
Douglas Blair, from Wiltshire Health & Care, gave an presentation to the 
meeting providing a further update on their work following on from the update 
provided to the Committee in March 2017. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included:  
The organisation’s vision is to enable people to live independent lives; the 
performance by the organisations including finance; the impact of the delays in 
transfer of care; the growing demand for health services; the composition of the 
board including non-executives and organisation representatives; the work, 

Page 115



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

using Healthwatch Wiltshire’s help, to develop organisational values and 
behaviour; how feedback from the committee was used to impact on plan; the 
work on discharge pathways and how this is resourced; the use made of 
additional therapy including animal and art therapy; that there had recently been 
a CQC inspection and that the report will be published; and some examples of 
patient feedback.  
 
In response to questions from Councillor Pip Ridout, it was confirmed that the 
organisation was funded under contract with the CCG; that some funding had 
been made available through the Better Care Fund; and that developing clear 
pathways, rather than organisational integration, was probably better at 
addressing delayed transfers of care. 
 
There being no further questions, the meeting;  
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the presentation on the work of Wiltshire Health & Care since 

the contract’s commencement in July 2016. 
 
2. To note that the report of the CQC inspection undertaken in June will 

be circulated to the Committee once published. 
 

47 Statement of Intent on Health and Social Care Integration 
 
The meeting considered the report outlined The Statement of Intent which set 
out the ambitions of partners for developing health and social care integration in 
the next few years. 
 
There being no further questions, the meeting;  
 
Resolved 
 
To note the Statement of Intent on Integration, which set out the ambitions 
of partners for developing health and social care integration in the next 
few years; 
 
That Councillor Christine Crisp be appointed as representative on the 
Adult Social Care Transformation Board. 
 

48 Impact of Adult Care Charging Policy 
 
The meeting considered the paper which provided an update on the 
implementation of the Policy including the Healthwatch Review and actions 
taken by the Council in respect of that review. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that in July 2016, after a period of public consultation facilitated by Healthwatch 

Page 116



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Wiltshire, the Cabinet agreed to implement a new Adult Care Charging Policy 
which came into effect in August 2016; that an update on the Policy was 
provided to Health Select Committee in March 2017 and the Committee noted 
that the Cabinet Member had requested Healthwatch to 
undertake a review of implementation;  
 
In presenting the report, Councillor Jerry Wickham recognised the good work 
undertaken by Healthwatch in their review, commended the hard work of staff in 
processing the changes and supporting people; and apologised to those 
negatively affected earlier in the process. 
 
In response to concerns raised by Councillor Gordon King, Councillor Wickham 
stated that he did believe that the Cabinet made the decision based on the 
correct information but that lessons had been learnt. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member for the update and asked for a 
further report in two meetings time. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the report detailing the impact of the new adult care charging 

policy on individuals and providing data as to the expected full year 
financial impact. 

 
2. To receive a further progress report on this matter, including how 

lessons have been learnt, in January. 
 

49 Customer Engagement Within Adult Care 
 
The meeting received the briefing note which informed the Committee of current 
contract and funding arrangements that the Council has with User Led 
Organisations and Healthwatch Wiltshire to engage with customers on adult 
care services and provided an outline options for future service commissioning. 
 
The meeting received representations from the Cabinet Member, Councillor 
Jerry Wickham; from User Organisations representatives including the Wiltshire 
Centre for Independent Living, Wiltshire & Swindon Users Network and People 
First. Contributions were also received from Brian Warwick, Wiltshire Older 
People’s Champion. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
support that is given to disabled people and their families in Wiltshire; the costs 
of organisations and the proportion spent managing the organisation; the 
opportunities for partnership working; the work down to engage with users who 
are traditionally disengaged with the health care system or have difficulty 
accessing services; the importance of good governance in the running of 
charities; that no preferred option had been identified in the report to Cabinet. 
 

Page 117



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Councillor Wickham, in response to the issues raised, stated that he would 
propose that the contract, originally due to finish in March 2018, should be 
extend by 2 months to enable further discussion with the ULOs to address the 
issues identified in the report.  
 
There being no further questions, the meeting;  
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the work underway to determine options for future 

commissioning of user engagement in adult social care and that the 
Cabinet Member has indicated the contract will now be extended for 
two months to allow further work to be done. 
 

2. To thank the user led organisations for attending and providing input 
on this matter. 

 
50 Integrated Urgent Care 

 
The meeting received the paper which provided an update on the joint 
procurement process between Wiltshire Council and Wiltshire CCG, in 
partnership with B&NES CCG and Swindon CCG for integrated urgent care 
services. It was noted that a report would be brought to Cabinet on the 12th 

September to request delegation of authority to progress and award the 
contract. 
 
There being no further questions, the meeting;  
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update on the joint procurement process between Wiltshire 
Council and Wiltshire CCG, in partnership with B&NES CCG and Swindon 
CCG for integrated urgent care services. 
 

51 Forward Work Programme 
 
The revised Forward Workplan, circulated as a supplement, was presented. 
 
Resolved  
 
To note the updated workplan. 
 

52 Urgent Items 
 
Strategic Outline Programme 
 

Page 118



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Sarah Clement, Wiltshire CCG, presented an update regarding the Strategic 
Outline Programme. A copy of the report considered by the CCG Board in July 
was circulated as a supplement, 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation included: that as the 
organisation responsible for planning and funding healthcare in Wiltshire, the 
Wiltshire CCG was currently reviewing local health services, including current 
primary care (GP practice) services, and the creation of a blueprint for the 
future; the need to rebuild a health and social care system that is sustainable for 
future use for our communities; that the review takes into consideration the 
challenges of changing population, clinical standards and financial pressures; 
that there are also clinical challenges to consider, such as availability of skills 
and staff while maintaining quality standards of care; that without additional 
funding, the CCG must work out how these challenges can be solved before 
they impact on the quality of care provided for local residents; that part of the 
solution lies in an Out of Hospital strategy, which considers which health 
services are provided in community settings, and where they are located; that, 
as some councillors are already aware, the development of these new clinical 
models impacts significantly on how and where we use both the existing estate 
as well as potential new buildings; that as options become more focused, 
further consultation would be required; that partners are being engaged with 
and a further report will be presented to the Committee in the new year. 
 
Resolve 
 
To note the update, and the request to report again in the new year. 
 

53 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting, Tuesday 7th November, was noted. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 5.18 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01225) 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 120



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 7 
NOVEMBER 2017 AT KENNET COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, BYTHESEA 
ROAD, TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Elliot, Cllr Christine Crisp (Chairman), Cllr Gordon King (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Clare Cape, 
Cllr Mary Champion, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Deborah Halik, 
Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr Pip Ridout, Cllr Tony Trotman, Cllr Fred Westmoreland, 
Cllr Graham Wright, Diane Gooch, Irene Kohler and David Walker 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Jerry Wickham and Ben Anderson 
 
  

 
54 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Howard Greenman.  
 

55 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Amendments to improve the accuracy of the minutes were agreed as detailed 
below.  
 
It was also noted at the previous meeting the Committee had requested further 
enquiries in respect of the South West Ambulance Service Trust performance, 
projects and activity, and the Chairman advised this would be pursued by 
officers.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 5 September subject to the 
following amendments: 

 That CCG representative Sarah Clement be corrected to Sarah 
MacLennan 

 That Diane Gooch and Irene Kohler be marked as in attendance 
 
 
 
 

Page 121

Agenda Item 13



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

56 Declarations of Interest 
 
David Walker, declared for transparency purposes in respect of items 6,7,8 and 
9 that he was a member of the Wiltshire Carers Involvement Group. 
 

57 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman made the following announcements: 
 
Anxiety and Depression in Young People 
Cllr Deborah Halik had attended a session on anxiety and depression in young 
people last month and had written an account of her experience which was 
available for councillors to read on GROW. 
 
Service User Engagement in Adult Care 
Cabinet had debated Service User Engagement in Adult Care that morning and 
chosen to commission two separate services: one to deliver the statutory 
HealthWatch function and the other to deliver the non-statutory functions which 
would ensure a co-ordinated user engagement service and provide 
opportunities for efficiencies. This was caveated that the delivery of this 
provision should be achieved by either two or one organisations. If in the latter 
case, there would be a requirement for them to commission user led services 
from a number of providers and to ensure that the widest range of users be 
included. The next steps of the tender process were outlined and the Health 
Select Committee would be updated in due course. 
 
AWP Performance Report 
The latest CQC report for AWP had been published in September 2017. The 
Trust was now coming to the end of a piece of work to prioritise and plan for 
over 72 actions. 
 
At the request of the Chairman, the Committee agreed a change to the order of 
the agenda, bringing forward the items on the Maternity Care Strategy. 
 

58 Public Participation 
 
There were no public questions or statements.  
 

59 Maternity Care Strategy 
 
The Committee heard an update on the Maternity Care Strategy which was in 
response to the Better Birth Recommendations and the NHS Five Year Forward 
View to ensure all women had a positive maternity experience. Officer’s outlined 
the key priorities of the new Strategy which were: 
 

 Women and their chosen support networks will be partners in care 

 Maternity services and organisational partners within the LMS will work 
collaboratively 

Page 122



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 Safety will be enhanced through assisting all women to experience the 
best birth possible for their personal circumstance 

 Women, partners and their families will be supported and enabled to 
optimise their health in preparation for pregnancy, birth and parenthood. 

 
Attention was drawn to a proposed action plan which would be able to 
implement the vision for maternity services and meet these core priorities. The 
team currently had funding to recruit a Project Midwife to drive the plan forward 
as it was acknowledged the current team would have difficultly to progress the 
changes on top of their day job. 
 
In response to questions, it was confirmed over 800 survey responses from 
women had been factored into this strategy which was very much tailored to the 
needs of the customer. It was acknowledged that whilst most survey responses 
(80-90%) indicated women had a positive maternity experience, there was still 
room for improvement. The Committee was reassured that vulnerable families 
would also be considered in the new plan, for instance joint-working to support 
military families.  
 
The Committee expressed support for the Maternity Care Strategy and was 
pleased to hear funding was available to support it, however cautioned the team 
to work to a realistic timeframe and that resources would need to be in place to 
support the new Strategy. The Chairman invited the midwives to report back on 
key milestones achieved at a future meeting. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Maternity Transformation Plan Briefing and to commend this 
approach to collaborative working. 
 
To invite officers and midwives to provide a further update at a future 
meeting upon the completion of public consultation and key milestones.  
 

60 Carers Strategy 
 
Committee was presented with the draft Carers in Wiltshire Joint Strategy 2017-
22 in advance of it being presented to Cabinet in December 2017. The Strategy 
had been delayed as the Council had been expecting a National Carers 
Strategy from Government, however had now developed its own Strategy in 
consultation with carers in the county. Key principles of the strategy were 
explained, in particular it was highlighted the strategy would cover both young 
and adult carers. The Council was also taking steps to ensure their was 
representation of carers for those with mental health problems in the strategy 
and in the consultation group.  
 
It was highlighted that more work needed to be done to promote awareness of 
what it is to be a carer and encourage those people to formally identify 
themselves as such so they would be able to receive support. It was considered 

Page 123



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Wiltshire Area Boards could possibly be a way to promote awareness in the 
future. Councillors explained there was sometimes confusion between 
terminology, as the tern ‘carer’ was often thought to mean a paid care worker. It 
was suggested a paid carer be called a ‘support worker’. The Committee 
commented that measurement figures for schools in the report would be more 
effective if this included a baseline figure to compare against.  
 
Cllr Halik highlighted a survey was currently taking place for carers in 
Trowbridge. The Chairman requested an update on the progress of the Carers 
Strategy in due course.  
 
Resolved 
 
That having considered the proposed strategy the Health Select 
Committee endorses the proposal in the report that Cabinet recommend 
the draft Carers in Wiltshire Strategy 2017 – 22 to Full Council in February 
2018 and, subject to approval by Full Council, this strategy be published 
in March 2018.  
 
To recommend a baseline figure for measuring schools be included in the 
draft strategy.  
 
To request an update on the progress of the Carers Strategy at a future 
meeting.  
 
To be informed of the outcome of the Trowbridge survey for carers. 
 

61 Adult Social Care Transformation Programme 
 
The Committee was updated on the progress of the Adult Social Care 
Transformation Programme, specifically the projects within the Front Door 
programme of works, MASH and Safeguarding. It was noted the paper had 
been considered by Cabinet earlier in the date which had opted for Option 3 
(detailed in the report) on the Front Door operating model and Mash and 
Safeguarding. The Committee was advised the purpose of the Transformation 
Programme was to solve issues for customers at the first point of contact rather 
than requiring them to contact different teams. It was noted Cllr Crisp was a 
member of the ASC Transformation Board meaning the Health Select 
Committee had representation on the Board. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the progress of the Adult Social Care Transformation Programme 
in respect of Front Door and MASH projects and to receive further 
updates as the programme progresses. 
 
To receive a presentation on the Adult Social Care transformation 
programme at a future meeting. 

Page 124



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

62 Update on Strategic Outline Case 
 
Members received an update on the development of a whole county Strategic 
Outline Programme for investing in out of hospital care. The Committee heard 
that following its last meeting, the CCG Governing Body had met and agreed a 
wider Strategic Outline Programme to determine the needs of the rest of the 
county. The next step would be for the CCG to procure a strategic partner to 
progress action.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the approach of the Wiltshire CCG in respect of the Strategic 
Outline Programme and to request the Committee be informed in January 
2018 of progress including NHS England’s agreement for the CCG to 
commence the procurement process for a strategic partner to undertake 
the exercise. 
 

63 Provision of NHS-funded Non-Emergency Patient Transport Service by 
Arriva Transport Services 
 
Members were presented with an update on the performance of the non-
emergency patient transport service following previous updates. The key 
headline was that the service was largely meeting its Key Performance 
Indicators and running approximately 6,000 journeys per month, however 
continued to perform poorly on time of arrival inbound, outbound and on 
telephone response times.  
 
Andy Jennings explained effort had been put in to rectify issues with the 
contract, particularly in respect of the RUH Service, and the focus was now on 
improving on-day activities compared to pre-booked activity. The representative 
advised a survey of customers had rated Arriva poorly on timelessness and 
communication, however highly in the excellence of their start.  The NHS was 
now working to plan for succession when the Arriva contract was to expire.  
 
Members questioned consultation techniques and it was noted the customer 
survey had been handed to customers with a freepost envelope to encourage 
them to return responses. Return rate was considered average for this type of 
survey. Councillors spoke to support the service as a valuable support to 
patients and it was understood that in certain cases carers were able to travel 
with patients.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on the performance of the non-emergency patient 
transport service. 
 
To request updates on the following early in the new year: 
 

Page 125



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

a) the outcome of the eligibility review consultation and an update on the 
development of common criteria across those CCGs participating in the 
eligibility review; 
 
b) an update / outcome of the review and analysis of all on-day transport 
activity; 
 
c) an update on commissioning arrangements; 
 
d) the progress of a new contract for NHS-funded Non-Emergency Patient 
Transport. 
 

64 Integrated Urgent Care model 
 
An update was presented on the Integrated Urgent Care model and it was 
explained there was confusion amongst the public as to where people should 
go for urgent and out of hours care and services must be standardised so 
people know want to expect. A long term aspiration was for 999, 111 calls, face 
to face treatments, clinical advice and dental services be linked up. The 
Committee heard that Medvivo had won the contract and the Chairman would 
invite Medvivo to Committee to present on their plants. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on Integrated Urgent Care and to invite Medvivo to 
present on their service and plans, with a focus on the 111 service. 
 

65 Forward Work Programme 
 
The Committee considered the Forward Work Plan and the Chairman advised 
she would review the items for the January meeting to prioritise those which 
were time critical.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To request the Chairman and officers prioritise the Work Plan in advance 
of the January meeting.  
 

66 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting was to be held on 16 January 2018.  
 

67 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items.  
 

Page 126



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 4.55 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Johnstone, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718214, e-mail libby.johnstone@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 128



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 11 
OCTOBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 
8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe (Chairman), Cllr Derek Brown OBE (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Tony Trotman, 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland, Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling (Substitute), Cllr David Halik (Substitute) 
and Cllr Graham Wright (Substitute) 
 
 
 
  

 
60 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from:- 
 
Cllr Ernie Clark, who was substituted by Cllr Graham Wright 
Cllr Stewart Dobson, who was substituted by Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling 
Cllr Christopher Newbury 
Cllr James Sheppard, who was substituted by Cllr David Halik   

61 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held 
on 13 September 2017.  

62 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 

63 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 

64 Public Participation 
 
The rules of public participation were noted. 

65 17/05062/DP3 - Avon Valley College, Recreation Road, Durrington, 
Wiltshire, SP4 8HH - Extension in two phases to provide classrooms and 
ancillary space 
 
Public Participation 

Page 129

Agenda Item 14



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Mr D Maytum, a local resident spoke against certain aspects of the application. 
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Case Officer which set out the 
issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that Planning 
permission be granted, subject to conditions.  
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard a statement from a member of the public as detailed above, expressing 
his views regarding the planning application. 
 
Members then hear the views of Cllr Graham Wright, the local Member, who 
stated that whilst he supported the development, there were certain aspects of 
the application in which he had reservations.  He appreciated that there was not 
an ideal route for construction traffic to access the site and considered that the 
consultation held with the Town Council and local residents was inadequate and 
confusing. However, he was impressed that the Council was quick to respond to 
requests for further information.  He reported that the Highway Authority had 
only recently stated that it raised no objections to construction traffic entering 
and exiting the site via The Ham from the north rather than via Recreation Road 
to the south of the site. It was noted that the College Principal had given an 
undertaking to ensure that students would not enter the college site via The 
Ham and Members requested that notices be erected in the vicinity prohibiting 
access to the College from The Ham.    
 
During discussion, Members expressed concern that the Construction Traffic 
Management Plan could not be finalised until a contractor had been appointed 
and also stressed the need for it to be monitored when agreed by the Planning 
Authority and implemented.  Members were informed that this would be easier 
to enforce as the applicant was the Local Authority. 
 
Reference was also made to the projected delay in implementing Phase 2 of the 
development but it was suggested that as this proposal was part of the Army 
Rebasing Programme, the additional accommodation would be needed quite 
shortly in order to accommodate children returning abroad and therefore would 
be constructed promptly. The officers were requested to try and achieve a 
shorter time scale for the construction of the development. 
 
Cllr Wright also requested that once the construction work had been completed, 
consideration be given by the Highway Authority to improving conditions in The 
Ham, including investigation of proposals for designation as a ‘Quiet Lane’ or 
similar. 
 
On the proposal of Cllr Andrew Davis, which was seconded by Cllr Derek Brown 
OBE, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:- 
 

Page 130



 
 
 

 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 

accordance with the following approved plans:  

 

Drawing no.90_01 (Existing Site Plan), received 01.06.17; 

Drawing no.90_10 (Proposed Site Plan - Phase 1), received 

01.06.17; 

Drawing no.90_11 (Location Plan - Phase 1), received 01.06.17; 

Drawing no.90_20 (Proposed Site Plan - Phase 2), received 

01.06.17; 

Drawing no.90_21 (Location Plan - Phase 2), received 01.06.17; 

Drawing no.90_30 (Site Sections), received 01.06.17; 

Drawing no.SK01 RevC (Phase 1 - Ground Floor Plan), received 

01.06.17; 

Drawing no.SK02 RevC (Phase 1 - First Floor Floor), received 

01.06.17; 

Drawing no.SK03 RevC (Phase 1 - Second Floor), received 

01.06.17; 

Drawing no.SK04 RevC (Phase 1 - Roof Plan), received 

01.06.17; 

Drawing no.SK10 RevB (Phase 2 Elevations), received 01.06.17; 

Drawing no.SK11 RevA (Phase 2 - Whole Elevations), received 

01.06.17;  

Drawing no.SK12 RevB (Exploded Axonometric), received 

01.06.17; 

Drawing no.SK13 RevB (Phase 1 Sections), received 01.06.17; 

Drawing no.SK14 RevA (Phase 2 Sections), received 01.06.17; 

Drawing no.20_05 (Elevations), received 14.08.17; 

Drawing no.20_06 (Elevations), received 14.08.17; 

Drawing no.BHA_064_02 (Tree Survey & Constraints), received 

01.06.17; 

Document: Travel Plan (December 2016) (ref DFE No: 8654071), 

received 14.08.17; 

Document: Drainage Strategy Statement Phase 1 & 2 (9th May 

2017) by Hydrock received 31.07.17; 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 

Page 131



 
 
 

 
 
 

proper planning. 

 

3 No development above slab level shall commence on site until 

the exact details and samples of the materials to be used for 

the external walls and roofs have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved details. 

 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local 

Planning Authority before development commences in order 

that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, 

in the interests of visual amenity and the character and 

appearance of the area 

 

4 The mitigation measures detailed in section 4 of the approved 

Ecological Assessment [Ecological Impact Assessment (June 

2017) by Atkins] shall be carried out in full prior to the first 

occupation of the development and/or in accordance with the 

approved timetable detailed in the Ecological Assessment. 

 

REASON: To mitigate against the loss of existing biodiversity 

and nature habitats. 

 

5 No development shall commence until:  

 

a. A written programme of archaeological 

investigation, which should include on-site work and off-

site work such as the analysis, publishing and archiving 

of the results, has been submitted to and approved by 

the Local Planning Authority; and 

 

b. The approved programme of archaeological work 

has been carried out in accordance with the approved 

details.  

 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local 

Planning Authority before development commences in order 

that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, 

to enable the recording of any matters of archaeological 

interest. 

 

NOTE: The work should be conducted by a professionally 

Page 132



 
 
 

 
 
 

recognised archaeological contractor in accordance with a 

written scheme of investigation. 

 

6 No development shall commence on site (including any works 

of demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which 

shall include the following:   

a. the movement of construction vehicles; 

b. mitigation measures to offset the impact of 

construction traffic on local residents; 

c. measures to be put in place to ensure the efficient 

and safe movement of construction traffic along the 

access route;  

d. a detailed photographic survey of access route 
and a timeframe for the repair of any damage to the 
access route; 
e. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and 

visitors;  

f. loading and unloading of plant and materials;  

g. storage of plant and materials used in 

constructing the development;  

h. details of potentially noisy site equipment such as 

generators and measures to limit noisy operations;    

i. wheel washing facilities, where required;  

j. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt 

during construction;  

k. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste 

resulting from demolition and construction works; and 

l. measures for the protection of the natural 

environment. 

m. hours of construction, including deliveries; 

 

has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 

Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied 

with in full throughout the construction period. The 

development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 

accordance with the approved construction method statement. 

 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local 

Planning Authority before development commences in order 

that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, 

to minimise detrimental effects to the neighbouring amenities, 

the amenities of the area in general, detriment to the natural 

environment through the risks of pollution and dangers to 

highway safety, during the construction phase. 

Page 133



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

7 No development above slab level shall commence on site until 

a scheme of hard and soft landscaping and a timetable for its 

implementation has been submitted to and approved in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall 

include  

 location and current canopy spread of all existing 

trees and hedgerows on the land; 

 full details of any to be retained, together with 

measures for their protection in the course of 

development; 

 a detailed planting specification showing all plant 

species, supply and planting sizes and planting 

densities;  

 all hard and soft surfacing materials;  

 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local 

Planning Authority before development commences in order 

that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, 

to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and the protection of existing important 

landscape features. 

 

8 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 

landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the 

timetable agreed in condition (7) above.  All shrubs, trees and 

hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall 

be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 

plants which, within a period of five years, from planting die, 

are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall 

be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar 

size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 

local planning authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be 

carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the 

occupation of any part of the development or in accordance 

with a programme to be agreed in writing with the Local 

Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and the protection of existing important 

landscape features. 

 

9 Phase 2 of the development hereby permitted shall not be 

Page 134



 
 
 

 
 
 

occupied until the proposed new tennis courts / Multi Use 

Games Area, as shown on drawing no.90_21, have been 

provided and made available for use.  The tennis courts / Multi 

Use Games Area shall not be constructed other than 

substantially in accordance with Sport England Technical 

Design Guidance Note: Artificial Surfaces for Outdoor Sport 

2013. 

 

REASON: In order to ensure new tennis courts are provided in 

place of the existing ones to be lost as a result of the 

development.  

 

10 Within 9 months of the date of this planning permission, a 

community use agreement shall be prepared in consultation 

with Sport England and be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority, and a copy of the 

completed approved agreement shall be provided to the Local 

Planning Authority.  The agreement shall apply all sports 

facilities within the site boundary and include details of pricing 

policy, hours of use, access by non-educational establish 

users, management responsibilities and a mechanism for 

review, and anything else which the Local Planning Authority 

in consultation with Sport England considers necessary in 

order to secure the effective community use of the facilities.  

The development shall not be used at any time other than in 

strict compliance with the approved agreement. 

 

Reason: To secure well managed safe community access to 

the sports facility/facilities, to ensure sufficient benefit to the 

development of sport and to mitigate against the loss of an 

area of the existing playing field.  

 

Informative: Guidance on preparing Community Use 

Agreements is available from Sport England 

www.sportengland.org. 

 

 
66 Date of Next Meeting 

 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next meeting of the Committee was scheduled to be held 
on Wednesday 8 November 2017, starting at 10.30am, in the Council 
Chamber at County Hall, Trowbridge.  

Page 135



 
 
 

 
 
 

67 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30am  - 11.25 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 136



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 6 
DECEMBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe (Chairman), Cllr Derek Brown OBE (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr David Jenkins, 
Cllr James Sheppard, Cllr Tony Trotman, Cllr Fred Westmoreland, Cllr Ian Blair-
Pilling (Substitute) and Cllr David Halik (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Jonathon Seed 
  

 
68 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from:- 
 
Cllr Stewart Dobson, who was substituted by Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling 
Cllr Christopher Newbury, who was substituted by Cllr David Halik 

69 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the previous 
meeting held on 11 October 2017. 

70 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.  

71 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 

72 Public Participation 
 
The rules of public participation were noted. 

73 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
An update on planning appeals and decisions was received. 
 
Resolved: 
 

Page 137

Agenda Item 15



 
 
 

 
 
 

To note the update. 
74 17/08217/FUL - Land at A361, Blossom Hill, Trowbridge Road, Seend - 

Change of use of land with associated ancillary development to single 
traveller pitch 
 
Public Participation 
 
Ms Liz Simes, a local resident, spoke against the application. 
Mr Mark Wood, a local resident, spoke against the application 
Mr David Pearce, a planning consultant, spoke against the application 
Mr Tony Phillips, the applicant’s planning agent, spoke in support of the 
application 
Cllr Tony Murch, Chairman of Seend Parish Council, spoken against the 
application 
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Case Officer which set out the 
issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation to grant planning 
permission subject to conditions. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the planning application. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Jonathon Seed, the local Member, who 
stated that he was concerned that the proposed development would have an 
adverse impact on the character and appearance of a very sensitive area of 
countryside which separated Seend and Seend Cleeve.   As such he 
considered that the proposed development would conflict with Paragraph 109 of 
Chapter 11 ‘conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment’ of the National 
Planning Policy Framework, Paragraph 24 of the Planning Policy for Traveller 
Sites and also Core Policy 47 ‘Meeting the Needs of Gypsies and Travellers’, 
Core Policy 51 ‘Landscape’ and Core Policy 57 ‘Ensuring High Quality Design’ 
of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy.  Furthermore, Cllr Seend also 
considered that the proposal would result in an increase in traffic turning 
movements on a fast section of Road A361. 
 
During discussion, Members expressed sympathy with the views of the local 
community but were informed by the planning officers that although it could be 
demonstrated that permission had been granted up to the recommended quota 
of pitches in Wiltshire, national policy stated that these quotas were to be 
regarded only as a minimum.   
 
Members also noted that the application site was a reasonable distance from 
other dwellings and would be well screened from view.  Regarding highway 
safety, it was noted that the Highway Authority had not raised any objections. 
The entrance to the site was situated on an open section of Road A361 and 
there were good visibility splays. There was also a metalled footpath along this 
road to the village of Seend. 
 

Page 138



 
 
 

 
 
 

Members stressed the need for the applicant to arrange for utilities to be 
connected to the site and noted that this was in hand and was also conditioned. 
 
On the proposal of Cllr Tony Trotman, which was seconded by Cllr David Halik, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:- 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans:  
 
-
 
Drawing no.TP1 RevA, Location Plan, received 27.10.17; 
-
 
Drawing no.TP2 RevA, Block Plan, received 27.10.17; 
-
 
Drawing no.TP3, Site linesDay room details, received 08.09.17; 
-
 
Drawing no.TP4, Block Plan, received 06.11.17. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3 The site shall not be permanently occupied by persons other than 
gypsies and travellers as defined in Annex 1 of Planning Policy for 
Traveller Sites (DCLG, 2015).  
 
REASON: The site is in an area where residential development other 
than accommodation for gypsies and travellers would not normally be 
permitted therefore the permission must be restricted to gypsies and 
travellers only.  
 

4 No more than 2 caravans, of which no more than 1 shall be a static 
caravan, as defined in the Caravan Sites and Control of Development 
Act 1960 and the Caravan Sites Act 1968, shall be stationed on the site 
at any time. 
 
REASON: In order to define the terms of this permission. 
 

5 No vehicle over 3.5 tonnes shall be stationed, parked or stored on this 
site. 
 

Page 139



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON:  
In order to define the terms of this permission and protect the rural 
scene and character of the countryside. 
 

6 No commercial activities shall take place on the land, including the 
storage of materials. 
 
REASON: 
In order to define the terms of this permission, protect the rural scene 
and character of the countryside, and protect the amenities of the 
area and neighbour uses. 
 

7 The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until an 
access measuring 4.5m in width for the first 5m with radii curves of 
3m, with gates set back at 4.5m (opening inwards), surfaced in a 
consolidated material (not loose stone or  gravel) for the first 5m has 
been laid out. The access shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

8 No part of the development shall be occupied until visibility splays 
have been provided between the edge of the carriageway and a line 
extending from a point 2.4 metres back from the edge of the 
carriageway, measured along the centre line of the access, to the 
points on the edge of the carriageway 215 metres to the south west 
and 215 metres to the north east from the centre of the access in 
accordance with the approved plans. Such splays shall thereafter be 
permanently maintained free from obstruction to vision above a 
height of 900mm above the level of the adjacent carriageway. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

9 No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until 
the turning area and parking spaces have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The areas 
shall be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

10 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of foul and surface water from the site (including surface 
water from the access), incorporating sustainable drainage details, 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall not be first occupied until the foul 
and surface water drainage schemes have been constructed in 
accordance with the approved scheme.  
 
REASON:  
The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission. The 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development 
can be adequately drained. 

Page 140



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
             

75 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next meeting of the Committee was scheduled to be held 
on Wednesday 3 January 2018, starting at 10.30am, in the Council 
Chamber at County Hall, Trowbridge. 

76 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items of business. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30  - 11.40 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 4 OCTOBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, MONKTON 
PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice Chairman), Cllr Chuck Berry, 
Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Chris Hurst, 
Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Brian Mathew, Cllr Ashley O'Neill and Cllr Jacqui Lay 
(Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Alan Hill 
  

 
87 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Christine Crisp who was substituted by Cllr 
Jacqui Lay.  
 

88 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 6 September 2017 were 
presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

89 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis declared an interest in agenda item no 8i- 17/02820/OUT - 
Land south of Brook Farm, Great Somerford, Chippenham. He stated that he 
did not have a direct pecuniary interest in the item, but due to being a 
neighbouring land owner, would speak only as the Local Member and leave the 
room prior to the debate and vote taking place.  
 

90 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 
 

Page 143

Agenda Item 16



 
 
 

 
 
 

91 Public Participation 
 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

92 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update. 
 

93 Planning Applications 
 
Attention was drawn to the late list of observations provided at the meeting and 
attached to these minutes, in respect of applications; agenda no 7- Application 
to Register Land as a Town or Village Green- Land Adjacent to 
Vowley View and Highfold, Royal Wootton Bassett, agenda no 8a- 
17/03112/FUL - Land adjacent to Barton Piece, Silver Street, Colerne, SN14 
8DY, agenda no 8b- 17/06735/FUL - Northwood Barn, Doncombe Lane, North 
Colerneand,  agenda no 8c- 17/07011/FUL - Land South of Shoe Cottage, The 
Shoe, North Wraxall, Wiltshire, agenda no 8d- 17/06617/FUL - Blarney Cottage, 
Biddestone Lane, Yatton Keynell, Nr Chippenham, SN14 7BD 
SN14 8SG, agenda no 8f- 17/05460/FUL - Land at Cedar Lodge, 3 Cove House 
Gardens, Ashton Keynes, Wiltshire, SN6 6NS, agenda no 8g- 17/05672/FUL - 
Land to West of Forest Lane, Forest Lane, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 3PX, 
agenda no 8h- 17.07192.FUL - Land off Abberd Lane, Abberd Lane, Abberd, Nr 
Calne, Wiltshire, SN11 8TE, and agenda no 8i- 17/02820/OUT - Land south of 
Brook Farm, Great Somerford, Chippenham, 
Wiltshire, SN15 5JA, as listed in the agenda pack. 
 

94 Application to Register Land as a Town or Village Green- Land Adjacent to 
Vowley View and Highfold, Royal Wootton Bassett 
 
There were no public speakers.  
 
The Rights of Way Officer introduced the Town Green application, to allow 
consideration of the evidence submitted with an application made under 
Sections 15(1) and (3) of the Commons Act 2006, to register land adjacent to 
Vowley View and Highfold, Royal Wootton Bassett, as a Town Green. The 
Officer gave an overview of the planning history of the site, explaining that since 
2002, there had been 4 planning applications, and that there was currently a 
further application on the land. It was explained that the land had been used by 
those in the community for various activities, over a number of years, until May 
2015, when a gate that had been installed, along with a fence in 2006, was 
locked. A brief overview of the Legislation was given, namely Sections 15(1) 
and (3) of the Commons Act, whereby Land may be registered as a Town or 
Village Green where a significant number of inhabitants of any locality, or of any 
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful sports and 
pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years and they have ceased to 
do so, the application being made within one year of the cessation of user. The 
two objections were explained to the Committee. Firstly, regarding the 
timescales/validity of the application. Secondly, whether a planning trigger event 
was in place over the land, by reference to the Wiltshire Core Strategy 

Page 144



 
 
 

 
 
 

document, which would extinguish the right to apply. Both objections had been 
raised by the landowner, as legal points against registration. However, 
Councillors were advised that the correct procedures had been followed in the 
application and the Council, as the Commons Registration Authority, were 
satisfied that the application was valid and there was no planning trigger event 
in place, on the date the application was submitted to the Council. It was noted 
that there was no challenge to the user evidence submitted with the application. 
 
There were no technical questions.  
 
Cllr Chris Hurst spoke as Local Member and gave his support to the application. 
He read out a statement from the applicant Mr Gosnell. Cllr Hurst spoke of the 
Council’s aims to build strong and resilient communities, and maintained that 
community green spaces were important in this respect. He also referred to his 
own experience of the area being used for community activities and said that it 
had been a community asset for many years. Cllr Hurst did, however, declare 
that he had already made statements in support of this application, and so 
declared that he would not vote in the application.  
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Tony Trotman proposed the Officer’s 
recommendation, which was for approval, this was seconded by Cllr Hutton, 
and approved by the Committee.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT the application to register land at Vowley View and Highfold, 
Royal Wootton Bassett, as a Town or Village Green, and to register the 
land in full under Sections 15(1) and (3) of the Commons Act 2006. 
 

95 17/03112/FUL  - Land adjacent to Barton Piece, Silver Street, Colerne, 
SN14 8DY 
 
The applicant’s agent Ivan Lazzaroni spoke in favour of the application. Cllr 
Tom Hall from Colerne Parish Council spoke against the application.  
 
The Team Leader introduced the application, which was for the conversion of 
an existing dilapidated garage into a 2 bedroom house, situated within the 
Colerne Conservation Area and Cotswolds AONB. A presentation was 
delivered, which displayed a site plan, photographs of the existing site, and 
proposed plans. It was also confirmed that the existence of covenant dispute 
was a civil matter and not a planning consideration for the Committee. It was 
also clarified that permitted development rights had been removed from the 
property. Attention was drawn to the Late Observations, which amended 
conditions 3 and 4 of the Officer’s recommendation for approval.  
 
There were no technical questions.  
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 

Page 145



 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr Brian Mathews spoke as Local Member. He said that the area was being 
overdeveloped and that the application would lead to additional parking issues.   
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Tony Trotman proposed the Officer’s 
recommendation for approval. This was seconded by Cllr Ashley O’Neil and 
approved by the majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT permission subject to the following conditions: 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
Existing Ground Floor Plan, Dwg No: A 0.10, Dated: 02/09/2015; 
Existing Roof Plan, Dwg No: A 0.11, Dated: 02/09/2015; 
Existing Elevations, Dwg No: A 0.20, Dated: 27/07/2015; 
Existing Sections: Dwg No: A 0.30, Dated: 02/09/2015; 
Proposed First Floor Plan, Dwg No: A 1.01, Dated: 02/09/2015; 
Proposed Roof Plan, Dwg No: A 1.02, Dated: 02/09/2015; 
plans as received by the LPA 27/03/2017; 
Proposed Elevations, Dwg No: A 2.00, Rev: 01, Dated: 27/07/2015; 
Proposed Sections, Dwg No: A 3.00, Rev: 01, Dated: 02/09/2015; 
plans as received by the LPA 14/06/17; and 
Location Plan and Site Plan, Dwg No: 0.01, Rev: 04, Dated: 02/09/2015; 
plan as received by the LPA 25/07/17; and 
Proposed Ground Floor Plan, Dwg No: A 1.00, Rev: 01, Dated: 02/09/2015; 
and  
Proposed SW Elevation, Dwg No: A 2.01, Dated: 26/07/2017; plans as 
received by the LPA 26/07/2017. 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3 No part of the development hereby approved shall be first brought into 
use until the garage on the approved plans (A 1.00 REV 01) has been 
consolidated, surfaced and laid out in accordance with the approved 
details. This area shall be maintained and remain available for this use at 
all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking within 
the site in the interests of highway safety. 
 
4 “Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re- enacting or amending that Order with or without 

Page 146



 
 
 

 
 
 

modification), the garage hereby permitted shall not be converted to 
habitable accommodation. 
 
REASON: To secure the retention of adequate parking provision, in the 
interests of highway safety 
 
5 Notwithstanding the approved drawings, no works shall commence until 
details of the following have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority: 
(i) Full details and samples of external materials, including rainwater 
goods. 
The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of preserving the 
character and appearance of the conservation area. 
 
6 The natural stonework to be used externally on the proposed 
development shall match that of the existing building in terms of type, 
colour, size, dressing and bedding of stone, coursing, type of pointing 
and mortar mix. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
7 No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall include 
the following: 
a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
b) loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
and 
d) hours of construction, including deliveries. 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with in full 
throughout the construction period. The development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the approved construction method 
statement. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 
8 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of foul water from the site, including any third party 
permissions, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

Page 147



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
9 The development shall not be first occupied until foul water drainage 
has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
10 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site, incorporating any required third 
party permissions, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
11 The development shall not be first occupied until surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
12 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), there shall be no additions to, or extensions, enlargements 
or external alterations of any building forming part of the development 
hereby permitted. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
13 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no garages, sheds, greenhouses and other ancillary 
domestic outbuildings shall be erected anywhere on the site on the 
approved plans. 
 
REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 
 
14 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 

Page 148



 
 
 

 
 
 

15 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
16 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
17 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
18 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
There is a low risk that bats may occur at the development site. Many 
species of bat depend on buildings for roosting, with each having its own 
preferred type of roost. Most species roost in crevices such as under 
ridge tiles, behind roofing felt or in cavity walls and are therefore not often 
seen in the roof space. Bat roosts are protected all times by the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended) 
even when bats are temporarily absent because, being creatures of habit, 
they usually return to the same roost site every year. Planning permission 
for development does not provide 
a defence against prosecution under this legislation or substitute for the 
need to obtain a bat licence if an offence is likely. If bats or evidence of 
bats is found during the works, the applicant is advised to stop work and 
follow advice from an independent ecologist or to contact the Bat Advice 
Service on 0845 1300 228, email enquiries@bats.org.uk or visit the Bat 
Conservation Trust website. 
 
19 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981, as amended (Section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage and 
destroy a nest of any wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. 
Planning permission for a development does not provide a defence 
against prosecution under this Act. Trees, scrub and other vegetation, 
such as dense ivy, are likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March 
and 31st August. It should be assumed that onsite vegetation contains 
nesting birds between the above dates, unless a recent survey has been 
undertaken by a competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity 
on site during this period and has shown it is absolutely certain that 
nesting birds are not present. 
 

Page 149

mailto:enquiries@bats.org.uk


 
 
 

 
 
 

20 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development. Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to 
the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructurelevy  
 

96 17/06735/FUL - Northwood Barn, Doncombe Lane, North Colerne 
 
The applicant Ben Harraway, and his agents Vic Moore and Chris Dance,  
spoke in favour of the application. Cllr Paul Joppins also spoke in favour of the 
application.  
 
The Team Leader introduced the application, which was for the erection of a 
replacement dwelling on the site, within the Cotswold AONB.  A presentation 
was delivered which displayed a site location plan, photographs of the existing 
site and the proposed plans. It was explained that the application was the 
demolition of the existing stone built house and for the erection of an eco-build, 
modular home, which would be timber clad, with a slate roof. Attention was 
drawn to the Late Observation. The Officer’s recommendation was for approval.  
 
Councillors were invited to ask technical questions and in response Officers 
confirmed that the house had a certificate of lawfulness to be used as a 
dwelling, having previously been a holiday let. Furthermore, it was confirmed 
that the property would be a dwelling in its own right, and would not be attached 
to another dwelling. 
 
Members of the pubic spoke as detailed above.  
 
Cllr Brian Mathews spoke as Local Member. He explained that the applicant 
was from a local farming family and that the Council should be supporting them 
to live in sustainable eco-homes, in area.  
 
In the debate that followed, Councillors discussed the principal of development 
and the fact that they could support the erection of a new dwelling in principle, 
but expressed concerns as to the proposed design of this application. Cllr Peter 
Hutton proposed the Officer’s recommendations. This was seconded by Cllr 

Page 150

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy


 
 
 

 
 
 

Ashley O’Neil. In the vote, with one Members abstention, it was a 5/5 split, with 
the Chairman Cllr Tony Trotman having the casting vote,  in favour of the 
Officer’s recommendation for refusal.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To REFUSE the application for the following reasons: 
 
That planning permission be refused for the following reasons: 
 
1. The proposed development, by reason of its location would be contrary 
to the settlement, delivery and community area strategies and residential 
development in the open countryside policy and is unacceptable in 
principle. The proposal fails to accord with Core Policy 1, 2 and 11 of the 
adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy (Jan 2015), as well Saved Policy H4 of the 
North Wiltshire Local Plan 2011 and Paragraphs 14 and 17 of the NPPF. 
 
2. The proposed development, by reason of loss of the existing building, 
which entirely appropriate to the distinctive character of the Cotswold 
AONB, and its replacement with a pre-fabricated bungalow would 
adversely impact the character and appearance of the Cotswold AONB. 
The proposal fails to accord with Core Policy 51 (ii and ix) and 57 (i, iii and 
vi) of the Wiltshire Core Strategy (Jan 2015), and Paragraphs 14, 17 and 
115 of the NPPF. 
 

97 17/07011/FUL - Land South of Shoe Cottage, The Shoe, North Wraxall, 
Wiltshire, SN14 8SG 
 
Member of the public Mr Decks spoke against the application. The applicant 
Neil Edwards, and his agent Richard Harlow, spoke in favour of the application.  
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application, which was for a change 
of use to a dog kennelling business, erection of dog kennels and conversion of 
existing building to a small retail unit. A presentation was delivered, which 
displayed a site location plan, photographs of the existing site and proposed 
plans. It was explained that part of the application was part retrospective, in that 
the applicant sought permission for an existing outbuilding to be used as a pet 
supplies business and reception area. Attention was drawn to the Late 
Observations, which amended conditions to the Officer’s recommendation of 
approval.  
 
There were no technical questions. 
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 
Local member Cllr Baroness Jane Scott of Bybrook OBE was not present but 
had requested Cllr Toby Sturgis represent her views in Committee. He stated 
that the principle concern was the retail unit, with a view that once a retail 
permission had been granted, this could be extended. He also expressed 
concerns as to the suitability of such an enterprise in the Cotswold AONB, along 

Page 151



 
 
 

 
 
 

with concerns as to the acoustic insulation and increased traffic congestion in 
the area.  
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Peter Hutton proposed the Officer’s 
recommendation of approval, with an additional condition against the external 
storage of paraphernalia and outside storage of any materials related to the dog 
kennelling and retail business, which was seconded by Cllr Greenman. 
However, this motion was withdrawn by Cllr Hutton when it was highlighted that 
a consultation from the Parish Council had not been received by Officers. Cllr 
Hutton then proposed a motion to delegate authority to Head of Development 
Management to approve the application, with an additional condition against the 
external storage of paraphernalia and outside storage of any materials related 
to the dog kennelling and retail business, subject to confirmation that the Parish 
Council’s consultation representations do not raise any material planning 
matters not addressed at the Committee meeting, but with delegated authority 
to determine the application if any and if new material planning considerations 
are raised. This was seconded by Cllr Greenman but voted against by the 
majority.  
 
Cllr Gavin Grant proposed a motion, which proposed to delegate Authority to 
Head of Development Management to approve, with an additional condition 
against the storage of paraphernalia, subject to confirmation that the Parish 
Council’s consultation representations do not raise any material planning 
matters not addressed at the Committee meeting, but in the event that new 
material planning considerations are raised by the Parish Council 
representation to bring the application back to Committee for determination. 
This was seconded by Cllr Sturgis and approved by the majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To DELEGATE Authority to Head of Development Management to Approve 
subject to confirmation that the Parish Council’s consultation 
representations do not raise any material planning matters not addressed 
at the Committee meeting. In the event that new material planning 
considerations are raised by the Parish Council representation to bring 
the application back to committee for determination. 
 
In the event of approval under delegated authority, to apply the additional 
conditions referenced in late terms and debate. In the latter respect and 
additional condition to restrict external paraphernalia and outside storage 
of any materials related to the dog kennelling and retail business. 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2 The proposal and site (including the house) shall be used for the 
kennelling of no more than a total of 12 dogs at any one time. 

Page 152



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity 
 
3 The retail facility at the site shall be limited to the building shown on 
approved plan Drwg AH2017/56 1of 2 and limited to a maximum of 30sqm 
of retail and storage space. The products sold shall be limited to dog food 
and associated dog care products. 
  
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and sustainability. 
 
4 No Construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or 
Public Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday 
and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity. 
 
5 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of acoustic 
insulation and noise control has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme should specify the 
acoustic insulation and other measures to be put in place to prevent and 
control the emission of noise from the development including noise from 
dogs. The approved scheme shall be implemented in full before the 
development is occupied/use commences and maintained at all times 
thereafter. In discharging this condition the applicant should engage an 
Acoustic Consultant. The consultant should carry out a thorough 
background noise survey and noise assessment in accordance with: 
 
BS8233: 2014 and demonstrate that the noise generated by the 
development will not cause an exceedance of the guideline noise levels 
contained in Section 7.7 
BS8233:2014 at any residential or other noise sensitive property near to 
the 
development. The report should also demonstrate that internal maximum 
noise levels in bedrooms will not normally exceed 45dB LAmax between 
the hours of 23:00 and 07:00. 
 
REASON: To protect residential amenity. 
 
6 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of works for the 
control and dispersal of atmospheric emissions, and in particular: dust 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented in full before the 
development is first brought into use and shall be maintained in effective 
working condition at all times thereafter. 
 
7 No external lighting shall be installed on site until a scheme of external 
lighting, including the measures to be taken to minimise sky glow, glare 
and light trespass, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The external lighting scheme shall be designed 
so as to meet the criteria for Environmental Zone E2 as defined by the 

Page 153



 
 
 

 
 
 

Institute of Lighting Professionals ‘Guidance Notes for the Reduction of 
Obtrusive Light’ 2012.The approved scheme shall be implemented in full 
before the development is first brought into use and shall be maintained 
in effective working order at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity. 
 
8 Former agricultural use of the site/buildings may have given rise to 
potential 
sources of land contamination e.g. oil storage, pesticides or herbicides, 
asbestos etc. As it is now intended to use the site for residential purposes 
a statement/letter report must be provided which confirms the historical 
uses of the site/buildings and how development works will address any 
potential for land contamination which may exist. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity. 
 
9 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: Drwg AH2017/56 sheet 1of 2 and sheet 
2 of 2 
received 1st August 2018. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
10 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access / driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details together 
with permeability test results to BRE365, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
drainage system shall be fully implemented prior to the first use of the 
development. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 
11 No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing the 
type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, illumination 
levels and light spillage spillage in accordance with the appropriate 
Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute of Lighting 
Engineers in their publication “Guidance Notes for the Reduction of 
Obtrusive Light” (ILE, 2005)”, have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved lighting shall be 
installed and shall be maintained in accordance with the approved details 
and no additional external lighting shall be installed. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 
 

Page 154



 
 
 

 
 
 

12 No portable buildings, van bodies, trailers, vehicles or other structures 
used for storage, shelter, rest or refreshment, shall be stationed on the 
site without the prior approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: In order to protect the living conditions of nearby residents 
and/or the rural character of the area. 
 
INFORMATIVES: 
 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with  
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work.  
 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. 
 
If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you 
are also advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with 
regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996. 
 

98 17/06617/FUL -  Blarney Cottage, Biddestone Lane, Yatton Keynell, Nr 
Chippenham, SN14 7BD 
 
Members of the public Claire Lawrence and Ralph Whittaker spoke against the 
application. The applicant Hugh Rogers and his agent Sharon White spoke in 
favour of the application. Cllr Alistair Parker from Yatton Keynell Parish Council 
spoke against the application.  
 
The Team Leader introduced the application which was to regularise 
amendments to an original permission, including amendments to the windows, 
fascia boards, use of materials and dimensions of the approved extension. A 
presentation was delivered which displayed a site location plan, photographs of 
the existing site and proposed plans. It was explained that revisions had been 
negotiated with the applicant as a consequence of enforcement action taken, 
against changes made outside of the original permissions. Attention was drawn 
towards the Late Observations, which added an additional condition to the 
recommended approval.  
 
Councillors were invited to ask technical questions and in response to 
questions, as to the necessity of the dormer window,  Officers confirmed that all 
options had been considered and that the amendments were not considered to 
be significantly harmful to the Cotswold AONB, conservation area, setting of 
nearby listed buildings or existing neighbouring amenities.   
 
Members of the public were invited to speak as detailed above.  
 

Page 155



 
 
 

 
 
 

Local Member Cllr Baroness Jane Scott OBE was not present in the meeting 
but had requested that Cllr Toby Sturgis represent her views in Committee. He 
explained that the cumulative total of the changes made were not acceptable 
and that the dormer window was particularly detrimental to the conservation 
area.  
 
In the debate that followed, there was strong criticism of the dormer window and 
the development of the cottage, outside of previous permissions. Cllr Tony 
Trotman proposed the Officer’s recommendation of approval, seconded by Cllr 
Hutton. This was voted against by the majority. Cllr Toby Sturgis moved a 
motion to delegate authority to the Head of Development Management to seek 
further scheme revisions to reverse the works to the first floor gable end window 
to the original size and position; and removal of the first floor rear dormer 
window and replacement with a conservation style rooflight. Subject to securing 
these amendments to delegate authority to approve as per the conditions in the 
report. Officers clarified with members that in the event the amendments were 
not agreed and secured, that permission ought to be refused due to harm to the 
character and appearance of the locality, including the conservation area and 
consequent policy conflict. This was seconded by Cllr Grant and approved by 
the majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
Delegate Authority to the Head of Development Management to seek 
further scheme revisions to reverse the works to the first floor gable end 
window to the original size and position; and removal of the first floor rear 
dormer window and replacement with a conservation style rooflight. 
Subject to securing these amendments to delegate authority to the Head 
of development Management to approve as per the conditions in the 
report revised as necessary by the revisions. In the event that these 
revisions are not agreed with the applicant to refuse permission for the 
following reason:- 
 
The first floor rear fenestration treatment is out of character with the 
existing development in the locality resulting in harm to the character and 
appearance of the area including the Conservation Area. The development 
is in conflict with and contrary to Wiltshire Cores Strategy policies CP57 
(i) and CP58; and paras 14, 17, 131, 134 of the NPPF. 
 
Subject to conditions: 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
 
Site Location Plan YK01 L 001, Proposed Block Plan YK01- L 002 B, YK-01 
EX01 A, Proposed Ground Floor and First Floor Plans YK-01 RS-010 A, 
Existing Elevations YK01 EX02 A (all received 10 July 2017), Proposed 
Elevation Revisions YK-01 RS-04 H and Proposed Flush Casement 
Windows YK-01 W-01 A (both received 30 August 2017) 
 

Page 156



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
2 No development shall commence on site until details of the windows 
and doors to be used on the development have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area. 
 
3 No paint or stain finish shall be applied to external timber (including 
fascias, soffits, box ends, bargeboards and window joinery, until details of 
the paint or stain to be applied have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details prior to the development being 
first occupied. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
4 The roof tiles to be used in the development hereby permitted shall 
match those of the existing building in terms of their material, colour, 
texture, profile and pattern of laying. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
5 No render shall be applied to any building or walls on site until a sample 
panel of the render to be used on the external walls not less than 1 metre 
square, has been made available on site, inspected and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The panel shall then be left in 
position for comparison whilst the development is carried out. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
sample. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
6 The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the 
first five metres of the access, measured from the edge of the 
carriageway, has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or 
gravel). The access shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
7 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 

Page 157



 
 
 

 
 
 

Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
8 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
9 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
10 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 

99 17/06718/FUL - The Old Dairy, 2 Court Farm, Oaksey, Malmesbury, 
Wiltshire, SN16 9TF 
 
The applicant Peter Hathaway spoke in favour of the application. Cllr Helen Hall 
from Oaksey Parish Council spoke against the application.  
 
The Team Leader introduced the application, which was for an oak framed 
mansard (garden room) at the rear of the property, and for removal of timber 
cladding and making good with matching stone. A presentation was delivered, 
which displayed site location plan, photographs of existing site and proposed 
plans. It was explained that concerns had been raised as to the impact to 
neighbouring residential amenities and character of the area, however, this was 
not considered to be a significant level of harm and so the recommendation was 
for approval.  
 
Councillors were invited to ask technical questions and it was stated that due to 
the layout of surrounding houses, the rear of the property was visible to other 
properties. . Officers clarified that as part of the original consents for the barn 
conversions, permitted development rights had been remove by condition, but 
that this was not a prohibition to all future development in perpetuity but a 

Page 158



 
 
 

 
 
 

means to exercise control over and consider the impacts of further householder 
development. 
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 
Cllr Chuck Berry spoke as Local Member. He spoke against the application, 
expressing concerns as to the future urbanisation of the area. He gave a 
balanced view of supporting sustainable development but maintained the 
importance of protecting the heritage of the Oaksey conservation area.  
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Hutton proposed the Officer’s recommendation,  
which was seconded by Cllr Greenman and approved by the majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT subject to the following conditions: 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2 The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of 
the 
development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
materials listed on the applications form. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: Site Location Plan (Drawing No 
10650/04), Block Plan (Drawing No 10650/03), Proposed Plans and 
Elevations (Drawing No 10650/02) received by the LPA 12/07/2017. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
4 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 

Page 159



 
 
 

 
 
 

5 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
6 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
7 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 

100 17/05460/FUL - Land at Cedar Lodge, 3 Cove House Gardens, Ashton 
Keynes, Wiltshire, SN6 6NS 
 
Member of the public Steve Shaw spoke against the application. Nicolas Hurst 
Spoke in favour of the application.  
 
The Team Leader introduced the application, which was for a proposed single 
storey dwelling. A presentation was delivered, which displayed a site location 
plan, photographs of the existing site and proposed plans. It was explained that 
the proposed build was a modern design but would be screened by significant 
boundary treatments and tree planting and therefore not visually prominent in 
the locality, or harmful to the character and appearance of the conservation 
area. Officers referred to the site history and how the revised proposals sought 
to address previous concerns with a modern design. Officers referred to an 
additional condition in the Late Observations. 
 
There were no technical questions.  
 
Cllr Chuck Berry spoke as Local Member. He confirmed that previous concerns 
raised by the parish council had been addressed and their objections were 
removed. He sought clarity that all trees would be protected, to ensure the 
screening and it was confirmed that they would be protected.  
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Chuck Berry proposed the Officer’s 
recommendation for approval. This was seconded by Cllr Gavin Grant and 
approved unanimously.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT subject to the following conditions: 

Page 160



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: Proposed Elevations, Site and Block 
Plans (Drawing No 1652_0411b) and Proposed Ground Floor Plan 
(Drawing No 1652_0421b) received by the LPA 06/06/2017. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3 No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area 
 
4 The development shall be carried out as specified in the approved 
Arboricultural Report prepared by Certhia Consulting Limited dated 
August 2017 and shall be supervised by an Arboricultural Consultant. 
 
Reason: To prevent trees on site from being damaged during construction 
works 
 
5 No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until the 
parking area shown on the approved plans has been consolidated, 
surfaced and laid out in accordance with the approved details. This area 
shall be maintained and remain available for this use at all times 
thereafter. 
 
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking within 
the site in the interests of highway safety 
  
6 No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall include 
the following: 
a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
b) loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
d) wheel washing facilities; 

Page 161



 
 
 

 
 
 

e) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; 
f) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition 
and construction works; and 
g) measures for the protection of the natural environment. 
h) hours of construction, including deliveries; 
Has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with in full 
throughout the construction period. The development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the approved construction method 
statement. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 
7 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England)Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending those Orders with or without 
modification), no development within Part 1, Classes A, B and E shall take 
place on the dwellinghouse hereby permitted or within its curtilage. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
8 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no buildings or structures, or gate, wall, fence or other 
means of enclosure, other than those shown on the approved plans, shall 
be erected or placed anywhere on the site on the approved plans. 
 
REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 
 
9 The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for 
Sustainable Homes. No dwelling shall be occupied until a final Code 
Certificate for it has been issued and submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the local planning authority certifying that Code Level 4 has 
been achieved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development set 
out Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy are achieved. 
  
10 Prior to the first occupation of the buildings a plan showing details of 
the green roof including species, planting density, substrate and a section 
at scale of 1:20 showing that adequate depth is available in terms of the 
construction and long term viability of the green roof, and a programme 

Page 162



 
 
 

 
 
 

for a scheme of maintenance shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. The green roof shall be fully 
provided in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation 
and thereafter retained and maintained in accordance with the approved 
scheme of maintenance. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the green roof is suitably designed and 
maintained. 
 
11 The drainage details shall be carried out in accordance with design and 
details outlined in the Supplementary Drainage System and Drawing No 
1652_0421c (Proposed Ground Floor Plan) received by the LPA 
21/08/2017. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development is adequately drained 
 
12 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
13 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
14 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
15 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 
16 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 

Page 163



 
 
 

 
 
 

Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development. Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to 
the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructuelevy  
 

101 17/05672/FUL - Land to West of Forest Lane, Forest Lane, Chippenham, 
Wiltshire, SN15 3PX 
 
Members of the public John Wallis and Sharon Parfitt spoke against the 
application. The applicant’s agent Jonathan Walton spoke in favour of the 
application. Cllr Richard Banbury from Chippenham Town Council spoke 
against the application.  
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application, which was for the 
erection of 6 residential units including landscaping, highways layout and 
related works. A presentation was delivered, which displayed a site location 
plan, photographs of the existing site and proposed plans. It was explained that 
there was particular concerns as to the highways impact, with risks to 
pedestrians, caused by increased vehicle traffic on the narrow lane.  Attention 
was drawn to the Late Observations, which amended conditions. The Officer’s 
recommendation was for approval.  
 
Councillors were invited to ask technical questions and in response Officers 
confirmed that there was no s.106 obligation for the developers and none of the 
units were affordable housing. It was also confirmed that allocated parking 
spaces would be provided with the properties.  
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 
Local Member Clare Cape was not present.  
 
In the debate that followed, Councillors spoke of the importance of maintaining 
the lane for residents. Members also discussed the appropriateness of the scale 
of development in that area, and its effect on the amenity of local residents and 
neighbouring properties. Cllr Peter Hutton proposed a motion for refusal based 
on harm to the character of the area, poor quality design of the development 
and harm to residential amenity of local residents and residential properties, 
contrary to CP57 (i), (iii) & (vii) of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and para 17 of the 

Page 164

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructuelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructuelevy


 
 
 

 
 
 

NPPF. This was seconded by Cllr Howard Greenman and approved by the 
majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
REFUSED for the following reason: 
 
The harm to the character of the area, poor quality design of the 
development and harm to residential amenity of local residents and 
residential properties is considered to be contrary to CP57 (i), (iii) & (vii) of 
the Wiltshire Core Strategy and para 17 of the NPPF. 
 

102 17.07192.FUL - Land off Abberd Lane, Abberd Lane, Abberd, Nr Calne, 
Wiltshire, SN11 8TE 
 
There were no public speakers.  
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application, which was for the 
erection of 2 No 10 metre high chimneys in association with onsite biomass 
boilers within approved building. A presentation was delivered showing a site 
location plan and proposed plans. It was explained that a previous application 
for the erection of 2 chimneys at this site had been refused, for lack of 
information being provided to enable Members to determine the application. It 
was confirmed that all information had now been provided and the Officer’s 
recommendation was for approval. Attention was also drawn to the Late 
Observations, which provided for an additional condition requiring the colour of 
the flue to be non-reflective and requiring written approval of Planning Officers.   
 
Councillors were invited to ask technical questions and in response Officers 
confirmed that the chimneys were going to be used to burn wood and that it 
could be conditioned that the chimneys would need to be removed if no longer 
required for the use specified in the documentation.  
 
Cllr Alan Hill spoke as Local Member, against the application. He maintained 
that the application should be refused on the same grounds as the previous 
application. He stated that there was not enough additional information 
provided. He explained that the area concerned was becoming increasingly 
residential and would soon have hundreds of homes, on 3 sides of the site. 
Comparison was made to the requirements placed on Hills Recycling Centre,  
which he stated faced stricter controls, and that the current application should 
not be approved, without the same impact assessments being made. 
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Peter Hutton proposed the Officer’s 
recommendation for approval, with additional conditions for removal of the 
chimneys, should they no longer be required for their specified use.  This was 
seconded by Cllr Toby Sturgis but voted against by the majority.  
 
Cllr Gavin Grant proposed a motion for refusal of the application, stating that not 
enough information had been provided and for the application to be refused as 
contrary to CP 51, 55, 57(7) and 59 of  Wiltshire Core Strategy. This was 

Page 165



 
 
 

 
 
 

seconded by Cllr Brian Mathew and Cllr Peter Hutton requested a recorded 
vote, which received the requisite number of supporters. Councillors Greenman, 
Groom, Lay, Mathew and Grant voted in support of this motion. Councillors 
Berry, Hutton, Sturgis, Hurst and Trotman voted against the motion. Cllr Ashley 
O’Neil abstained. As Chairman Cllr Tony Trotman had the casting vote, so the 
motion was defeated.  
 
Cllr Hutton, again, proposed the Officer’s recommendation for approval, with the 
additional condition for the removal of the chimneys, should they no longer be 
required for their specified use. This was seconded by Cllr Lay and approved by 
the majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT permission as per recommendations, with the following 
additional conditions: 
 
Approved at Committee: 
 
Should the chimneys hereby approved no longer be required for the 
purpose specified in the submitted documentation. The Chimneys shall be 
removed from the building and site within 3 months from their last use 
and the building made good. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the visual amenity of the area. 
 
Late Observations: 
 
Prior to the commencement of development details of the finished colour 
of the flue hereby approved, which shall be non reflective, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  
 
REASON: In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and to ensure a 
satisfactory appearance of the development. 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2 No development shall commence on site until details of the external 
finish and colour to be used on the development hereby approved has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 

Page 166



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area 
 
3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
Site Location Plan 
AB/017-02 
AB/017-03 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The development relates solely to the installation of two chimneys on site. 
The 
installation of biomas boilers on site and a change in the nature of the use 
of the site may require a further grant of planning permission.  
 

103 17/02820/OUT - Land south of Brook Farm, Great Somerford, Chippenham, 
Wiltshire, SN15 5JA 
 
Member of the public Andy Morris spoke against the application. The applicant’s 
agent Naomi Hubbard spoke in favour of the application. 
 
Prior to introducing the application the Senior Planning Officer clarified that on 
the first page of the report it states that the Case Officer and Author of the 
report was Mark Staincliffe. He confirmed that case officer and original drafting 
of the report was by Mark Staincliffe. However, the report has been amended by 
the Head of Development Management, Mike Wilmott in relation to the weight 
that can be afforded to the emerging Neighbourhood Plan. The 
recommendation within the report has remained the same. 
 

Page 167



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Senior Planning officer introduced the application, which was for outline 
planning permission for the erection of 8 dwellings with access to be 
determined. A presentation was delivered, which displayed the site location 
plan, photographs of the existing site and proposed plans. Attention was drawn 
to the Late Observations. The Officer’s recommendation was for approval.  
 
Councillors were invited to ask technical questions and it was confirmed that a 
40% affordable housing contribution formed part of the application, as a s.106 
agreement, which would equate to 3 houses.  
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis spoke as Local Member. He informed Members that he was 
the previous owner of the site, but had sold the land with permission in 2006. 
He explained the planning history behind the application and stated that the 
drainage issues and s.106 contribution issues, previously identified, had been 
resolved in the current application. As stated, earlier in the meeting, Cllr Toby 
Sturgis, exited the Committee room, prior to debate taking place and did not 
vote.   
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Tony Trotman proposed the Officer’s 
recommendations, this was seconded by Cllr Ashley O’Neil and approved by 
the majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT permission subject to all parties entering into an agreement 
under s106 of The Act in respect of bin/recycling facilities and affordable 
housing, then planning permission be 
 
In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the required section 106 
agreement within the originally defined timeframe to then delegate 
authority to the Area Development Manager to REFUSE planning 
permission for the following reason:-  
 
The application proposal fails to provide and secure the necessary and 
required Services and infrastructure supporting the proposed residential 
development including Affordable Housing; Ecology and is therefore 
contrary to Policies CP3 CP43 & CP50, CP57 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy Adopted January 2015 and Paras 7, 14 & 17 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework March 2012. 
 
Conditions: 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission, or before the 
expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the 
reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 
 

Page 168



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2 No development shall commence on site until details of the following 
matters (in respect of which approval is expressly reserved) have been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority: 
[DELETE as appropriate] 
(a) The scale of the development; 
(b) The layout of the development; 
(c) The external appearance of the development; 
(d) The landscaping of the site; 
(e) The means of access to the site. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
REASON: The application was made for outline planning permission and 
is granted to comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and Article 5 (1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 
  
3 An application for the approval of all of the reserved matters shall be 
made to the Local Planning Authority before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
4 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by 
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
5 The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes. No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been issued and 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority 
certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 

Page 169



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or 
equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 
are achieved. 
 
6 No development shall commence on site until details of the works for 
the disposal of sewerage including the point of connection to the existing 
public sewer have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be first occupied until the approved 
sewerage details have been fully implemented in accordance with the 
approved plans. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the proposal is provided with a 
satisfactory means of drainage and does not increase the risk of flooding 
or pose a risk to public health or the environment. 
 
7 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be first occupied until surface water drainage has 
been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 
8 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
UD01 
Transport Statement 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

104 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

Page 170



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 8.30 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is  of Democratic Services, direct line 
01225 718059, e-mail edmund.blick@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 172



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 1 NOVEMBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, 
MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Chuck Berry, 
Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Mollie Groom, 
Cllr Chris Hurst, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Brian Mathew and Cllr Ashley O'Neill 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Thorn 
  

 
105 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies.  
 

106 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 4 October 2017 were 
presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

107 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

108 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 

109 Public Participation 
 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

110 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update. 

Page 173

Agenda Item 17



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
111 Planning Applications 

 
Attention was drawn to the late list of observations provided at the meeting and 
attached to these minutes, in respect of applications 7a- 17/03035/REM - Land 
at Former Blounts Court Nursery, Studley Lane, Studley, Calne, SN11 9NQ and 
7b- 17/07485/FUL- Flats 49 to 60, Woodroffe Square, Calne, SN11 8PW, as 
listed in the agenda pack. 
 
111a 17/03035/REM - Land at Former Blounts Court Nursery, Studley 
Lane, Studley, Calne, SN11 9NQ 
 
Member of the public Richard Fitter spoke against the application. Cllr Keith 
Robbins from Calne Without Parish Council spoke in favour of the application.  
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application for the erection of 53 
dwellings with public open space and associated infrastructure, approval of 
reserved matters (scale, layout, external appearance and landscaping) to be in 
conjunction with outline application 15/10457/OUT. It was identified that the 
application had been reported to the NAPC Meeting of the 06/09/2017 and had 
been deferred to seek alterations to the scheme’s design and layout. Officers 
identified that these matters had, to a large extent, been addressed by the 
applicant and that further consultation had taken place in this respect. A 
presentation was delivered, which displayed a site location plan, photographs of 
the existing site and the proposed plans. The Officer also gave an overview of 
the planning history relating to the site. Attention was drawn to the Late 
Observations, in particular the Officer repeated the comments of the highway 
Officer that the proposal currently proposes no footway and no street lighting, if 
members were to approve the layout the Wiltshire Council would be unable to 
adopt any highways within the development.   
 
Councillors were invited to ask technical questions and in response Officers 
confirmed that issues relating to the proposed positioning of the toucan crossing 
had been reviewed by external highways experts, along with Wiltshire Council’s 
Highways Officers, and that this planning application could not dictate the 
specific location of a pedestrian crossing.  
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 
Cllr Christine Crisp spoke as Local Member in favour of the application. She 
highlighted that the applicant had listened to residents concerns, and that the 
design was now acceptable to the Parish Council, and that it would be perverse 
to refuse the application.   
 
In the debate that followed Cllr Crisp proposed the Officer’s recommendation of 
approval, with the additional conditions contained in the Late Observations. This 
was seconded by Cllr Grant and approved unanimously.  
 
Resolved: 
 

Page 174



 
 
 

 
 
 

To GRANT planning permission subject to planning conditions: 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission, or before the 
expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the 
reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
2550-5-2-DR-0001 P7 Received 19/07/2017 
2550-5-2-DR-0002 P7 Received 10/08/2017 
2550-5-2-DR-0003 P7 Received 10/08/2017 
2550-5-2-DR-0004 P7 Received 19/07/2017 
2550-5-2-DR-0005 P6 Received 19/06/2017 
2550-5-2-DR-0006 P2 Received 22/03/2017 
2550-5-2-DR-0007 P1 Received 01/02/2017 
2550-5-2-DR-0008 P1 Received 01/02/2017 
2550-5-2-DR-0009 P1 Received 01/02/2017 
2550-5-2-DR-0010 P2 Received 13/07/2017 
2550-5-4-LM-T4-S3 P1 Received 01/02/2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), the garage(s) hereby permitted shall not be converted to 
habitable accommodation. 
 
REASON: To secure the retention of adequate parking provision, in the 
interests of highway safety. 
 
4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no window, dormer window or rooflight, other than those 
shown on the approved plans, shall be inserted in the )INSERT) 
roofslope(s) of the development hereby permitted. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 
5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no gates, fences, walls or other means of enclosure, other 

Page 175



 
 
 

 
 
 

than those shown on the approved plans, shall be erected or placed 
anywhere on the site. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity. 
 
6 No more than 40 units shall be occupied until the unallocated parking 
shown on the approved plans has been consolidated, surfaced and laid 
out in accordance with the approved details. This area shall be maintained 
and remain available for the use of parking motor vehicles at all times 
thereafter. 
 
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking within 
the site in the interests of highway safety. 
 
7 No development shall commence on site until a Residential Travel Plan 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The Travel Plan shall include details of implementation and 
monitoring and shall be implemented in accordance with these agreed 
details. The results of the implementation and monitoring shall be made 
available to the Local Planning Authority on request, together with any 
changes to the plan arising from those results. 
 
REASON: In the interests of road safety and reducing vehicular traffic to 
the development. 
 
8 No dwelling on the development hereby approved shall be occupied 
until sufficient space for the parking of vehicles in accordance with the 
Parking Schedule and Planning Layout together with a vehicular access 
thereto has been provided in accordance with details submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The said space shall 
not be used other than for the parking of vehicles or for the purpose of 
access. 
 
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking within 
the site in the interests of highway safety. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 

Page 176



 
 
 

 
 
 

be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
  
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Your attention is also drawn to the conditions imposed on the outline 
planning Permission 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
111b 17/07485/FUL- Flats 49 to 60, Woodroffe Square, Calne, SN11 8PW 
 
Members of the public Luke Jackson and Alan Downes spoke against the 
application. The applicant Derek Clarke and his agent Meghan Rossiter spoke 
against the application. Cllr Glenis Ansell from Calne Town Council spoke 
against the application.  
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application for the demolition of 
Demolition of 12 Flats Over Garages and 36 garages at nos. 49 to 60 
Woodroffe Square and replacement with 24 dwellings, car parking and 
landscaping. A presentation was delivered, which displayed a site location plan, 
photographs of the existing site and the proposed plans. Attention was drawn 
towards the Late Observations. It was explained that the proposed parking 
provisions exceeded requirements under Wiltshire Council’s current car parking 
standards and met the existing parking allocations. It was also highlighted that 
despite a loss of open space on site, there was a large amount of good quality 
open public space in the nearby area and that the loss of open space must be 
considered in the planning balance. 
 
Councillors were invited to ask technical questions and in response it was 
clarified that it was difficult to assess actual difference between existing and 
proposed parking spaces, as although more parking spaces were being 
provided, some on- street parking would be lost.  
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 
Cllr Ian Thorn spoke as Local Member against the application. He highlighted 
that the application had been objected to twice by Calne Town Council. He 
maintained that there had not been significant public consultation and that the 

Page 177



 
 
 

 
 
 

proposed over-development would have a negative impact on current and 
future residents. He urged members to seek deferment of the application.  
 
Cllr Tony Trotman declared that as a member of Calne Town Council he would 
not participate in the voting on the application.  
 
In the debate that followed, Councillors acknowledged the need for regeneration 
and development in this area but some expressed a view that the proposal 
would lead to greater density, over-development and loss of amenity and 
parking in the area. However, it was also acknowledged that the development 
would provide a significant provision of affordable housing to the area. Cllr Peter 
Hutton proposed the Officer’s recommendation to delegate authority to the 
Head of Development Management to enter into a s.106 agreement and 
approve the application subject to conditions, as amended by the late 
observations. This was seconded by Cllr Toby Sturgis and approved by the 
majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To DELEGATE authority to the Head of Development Management to 
GRANT planning permission, subject to conditions and completion of a 
S106 legal agreement within three months of the date of the resolution of 
this Committee. 
 
In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the required section 106 
agreement within the originally defined timeframe to then delegate 
authority to the Area Development Manager to REFUSE planning 
permission for the following reason:- 
 
The application proposal fails to provide and secure the necessary and 
required Services and infrastructure supporting the proposed residential 
development including Affordable Housing is therefore contrary to 
Policies CP3 and CP43 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy Adopted January 
2015. 
 
Conditions: 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2 No part of the development shall be occupied until all the existing 
buildings on site have been permanently demolished and all of the 
demolition materials and debris resulting there from has been removed 
from the site. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area and 

Page 178



 
 
 

 
 
 

neighbouring amenities. 
 
3 The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of 
the 
development hereby permitted shall match in material, colour and texture 
those specified on the approved plans and application form. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
4 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by 
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
5 The tree protective fencing shall be erected in accordance with the 
details set out on Pg 16 and Appendix 5 (dwg BHA_052_04) of 
Arboricultural Survey, Impact Assessment, Protection Plan and Method 
Statement.. The protective fencing shall remain in place for the entire 
development phase and until all equipment, machinery and surplus 
materials have been removed from the site. Such fencing shall not be 
removed or breached during construction operations. 
No retained tree/s shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any 
retained tree/s be topped or lopped other than in accordance with the 
approved plans and particulars. Any topping or lopping approval shall be 
carried out in accordance British Standard 3998: 2010 "Tree Work - 
Recommendations" or arboricultural techniques where it can be 
demonstrated to be in the interest of good arboricultural practise. 
If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, another tree 
shall be planted at the same place, at a size and species and planted at 
such time, that must be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 
No fires shall be lit within 15 metres of the furthest extent of the canopy of 
any retained trees or hedgerows or adjoining land and no concrete, oil, 
cement, bitumen or other chemicals shall be mixed or stored within 10 
metres of the trunk of any tree or group of trees to be retained on the site 
or adjoining land. 
 

Page 179



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: To ensure the protection of trees and in the interests of the 
amenity of the area. 
 
6 No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until the access, turning 
area and 
parking spaces have been completed in accordance with the details 
shown on the approved plans. The areas shall be maintained for those 
purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
7 The roads, including footpaths and turning spaces, shall be constructed 
so as to ensure that, before it is occupied, each dwelling has been 
provided with a properly consolidated and surfaced footpath and 
carriageway to at least base course level between the dwelling and 
existing highway. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development is served by an adequate 
means of access. 
 
8 No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first brought into 
use until the access, turning area and parking spaces have been 
completed in accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. 
The areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
9 No dwelling shall be occupied until details of the Stopping up of the 
public highway/ re-allocation of car parking provision, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
That stopping up shall take place in accordance with the approved details 
prior to the first occupation of any dwelling within the development. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
10 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no window, dormer window or rooflight, other than those 
shown on the approved plans, shall be inserted in any roofslope of the 
development hereby permitted. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity/privacy and to ensure that 
there is sufficient off-street parking. 
 
11 No development, other than demolition and site clearance, shall 
commence on site until a scheme for the discharge of surface water from 
the site (including surface water from the access/driveway), incorporating 
sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be first 

Page 180



 
 
 

 
 
 

brought into use/first occupied until surface water drainage has been 
constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 
12 No development, other than demolition and site clearance, shall 
commence on site until details of the works for the disposal of sewerage 
including the point of connection to the existing public sewer have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No 
dwelling shall be first occupied until the approved sewerage details have 
been fully implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the proposal is provided with a 
satisfactory means of drainage and does not increase the risk of flooding 
or pose a risk to public health or the environment. 
 
13 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
 
P_WR SITLOC A Site Location Plan    
P_WR 001 A Existing Site Plan    
P_WR 100 C Site Layout Plan    
P_WR 101 B Site Layout Block Plan (COLOUR)    
P_WR 230  Proposed Street Elevations    
P_WR 231  Proposed Street Elevations  
P_CY 130 A Ground Floor Plan    
P_CY 200 A Elevations    
P_CY 201  Elevations    
P_EN(R) 125 A GF & FF Block Plan _ Plt 7-8    
P_EN(R) 126 A GF & FF Block Plan _ Plt 10-11    
P_EN(R) 200 A Elevations _ Plt 7-8    
P_EN(R) 201 A Elevations _ Plt 7-8    
P_EN(R) 202 A Elevations _ Plt 7-8    
P_EN(R) 203 A Elevations _ Plt 10-11    
P_EN(R) 204 A Elevations _ Plt 10-11    
P_EN(R) 205 A Elevations _ Plt 10-11    
P_CE(R) 125  GF & FF Block Plan _ Plt 1-6    
P_CE(R) 126  GF & FF Block Plan _ Plt 12-15    
P_CE(R) 200  Elevations _ Plt 1-6    
P_CE(R) 201  Elevations _ Plt 1-6    
P_CE(R) 202  Elevations _ Plt 1-6    

Page 181



 
 
 

 
 
 

P_CE(R) 203  Elevations _ Plt 12-15    
P_CE(R) 204  Elevations _ Plt 12-15    
P_CE(R) 205  Elevations _ Plt 12-15    
P_FL 125 B. GF & FF Block Plan _ Plt 16-24    
P_FL 200 A Elevations _ Plt 16-24    
P_FL 201 B. Elevations _ Plt 16-24    
P_BD 130  Boundary Treatments    
P_BN 130  Bin Store Plans and Elevations    
5622:P01 B Proposed Level and Drainage Strategy  
  
5622:P02 B Existing Services Layout with Adoptable Drainage 

Overlay  
5622:P10  Typical Sections Through Site    
5622:P90 B Large Refuse Vehicle Swept Path Analysis  
  
5622:P91 B Fire Tender Vehicle Swept Path Analysis  
  
5622:500 A Section 247 Highway Stopping Up Layout   
GRE21048-11 C Landscape Proposals    
   Topographic Survey    
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
14 No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall include 
the following: 
a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
b) loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
d) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate; 
e) wheel washing facilities; 
f) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; 
g) hours of construction, including deliveries; has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  
The approved Statement shall be complied with in full throughout the 
construction period. The development shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with the approved construction method statement. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to the 
neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, detriment to 
the natural environment through the risks of pollution and dangers to 
highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

Page 182



 
 
 

 
 
 

15 Prior to the first occupation of unit 9 an Electric Vehicle Charging point 
shall be installed in accordance with the details shown on plan numbers 
16-018_P_CY130A, 16-018_P_CY200A, 16-018_P_WR100C and thereafter 
retained. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt, in the interests of proper planning 
and to ensure compliance with the Council’s polices on local air quality 
and climate change. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 

112 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 4.30 pm) 

 
 
 

Page 183



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Edmund Blick of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718059, e-mail edmund.blick@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 184



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 29 NOVEMBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, 
MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Mollie Groom, 
Cllr Chris Hurst, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Brian Mathew and Cllr Jacqui Lay (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr John Thomson 
  

 
113 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Chuck Berry and Ashley O’Neill 
 
Cllr Chuck Berry was substituted by Cllr Jacqui Lay. 
 

114 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 1 November 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

115 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

116 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 

117 Public Participation 
 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 
 
 

Page 185

Agenda Item 18



 
 
 

 
 
 

118 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update. 
 

119 Planning Applications 
 
Attention was drawn to the late list of observations provided at the meeting, in 
respect of application 17/09431/FUL and as listed in the agenda supplement. 
 

120 17/09119/FUL- Land adjacent Ashley, Common Road, Malmesbury 
 
Public participation:  
Peter Sladden and Alan Hopkins spoke in objection to the application  
Chris Beardsmore, applicant, spoke in favour of the application 
Cllr Roger Budgens from St Pauls Malmesbury Without Parish Council spoke in 
objection to the application. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Mark Staincliffe, introduced the report which 
recommended permission be given subject to conditions. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that the planning application was for the erection of a single dwelling to the front 
of the site; that this application was a resubmission following a previous 
application for the demolition of Ashley and the construction of two detached 
dwellings; that the previous application was refused by the planning authority 
and subsequently dismissed at appeal by an inspector; that the application 
under consideration did not seek consent to demolish the existing dwelling; that 
finished floor levels and ridge lines would be required as part of any condition 
for permission prior to commencement; and the concerns raised by the public 
and the local parish. 
 
For ease of reference the relevant sections of the appeal decision were 
published within the report and included: the planning history of the site; that the 
principle of residential development had been accepted and endorsed in the 
planning inspector’s decision; the elevation of the site above the road and the 
topography in relation to nearby buildings; the inspectors views on the materials 
proposed in the previous application and their relevancy to the new proposal.  
 
The views of the highways officer were outlined and it was confirmed that 
revised plans were submitted to address issues regarding access, parking and 
the ability for vehicles to enter and leave the site in a forward gear.  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, seeking clarification regarding the application of the plans to what 
could be seen from the ground; that permitted development rights could not be 
withdrawn from the adjacent property as it was outside the remit of the 
application; the distance between the two properties; how materials would be 
considered by officers under the proposed conditions. 
 

Page 186



 
 
 

 
 
 

Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the committee, as 
detailed above. 
 
The local member, Councillor John Thomson then spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
In the debate that followed, Councillor Peter Hutton proposed, subsequently 
seconded by Councillor Christine Crisp, that the Officer’s recommendation of 
approval subject to conditions be approved. 
 
Councillor Toby Sturgis proposed, and following advice from officers on 
wording, that condition seven be amended to read as follows: 
 
No development shall commence on site until details of the proposed ground 
floor slab and roof ridge height levels have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submissions to include details as to 
site survey specifying site spot levels and finished floor levels. 
 
The amendment was subsequently accepted by Councillors Hutton and Crisp, 
and thereby incorporated into their original motion. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate, and having been put to the vote, the motion 
was not passed. 
 
Councillor Gavin Grant proposed, subsequently seconded by Councillor Brian 
Mathew, that consideration of the application be deferred to enable for 
information regarding the slab and pitch heights to be provided to the 
Committee. 
 
In response to the motion, the meeting debated whether the provisions of 
condition seven, as amended, by the previous proposal, would be sufficient to 
address these concerns. 
 
The Development Management Team Leader, Lee Burman stated that he had 
no reason to doubt the veracity of the plans, the issues raised should be able to 
be addressed by condition, and that he did not recommend deferring 
consideration. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate, and having been put to the vote, the motion 
was not passed. 
 
Councillor Tony Trotman proposed, subsequently seconded by Councillor Peter 
Hutton, that the Officer’s recommendation of approval subject to conditions be 
approved, including the amendment to condition seven as drafted in the earlier 
discussion. 
 
Having been put to the vote, the motion was passed, and the meeting;  
 
Resolved 
 

Page 187



 
 
 

 
 
 

To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area 
 

3 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include  

 a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 

supply and planting sizes and planting densities;  

 means of enclosure;  

 all hard and soft surfacing materials;  

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 

4 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following 
the first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the 
development whichever is the sooner;  All shrubs, trees and hedge 
planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be protected 
from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a 
period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
local planning authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried out 

Page 188



 
 
 

 
 
 

in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any 
part of the development or in accordance with a programme to be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape 
features. 
 

5 No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until 
the access, turning area and parking spaces have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The areas 
shall be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

6 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no window, dormer window or rooflight, other than those 
shown on the approved plans, shall be inserted in the development 
hereby permitted. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy and to 
ensure that should accommodation be provided within the roof space 
the property has sufficient off street parking to accord with the 
Council's parking standards. 
 

7 No development shall commence on site until details of the proposed 
ground floor slab and roof ridge height levels have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
submissions to include details as to site survey specifying site spot 
levels and finished floor levels. 
 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
levels details.  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and] 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity. 
 

8 The dwelling hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes.  No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been issued 
and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning 
authority certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development 
equal or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire 
Core Strategy are achieved.  

Page 189



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
9 No development shall commence on site (including any works of 

demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall 
include the following: 
   

a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;  

b) loading and unloading of plant and materials;  

c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development;  

d) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including 

decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where 

appropriate;  

e) wheel washing facilities;  

f) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 

construction;  

g) hours of construction, including deliveries; 

has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with in full 
throughout the construction period. The development shall not be 
carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved 
construction method statement. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 

  
10 Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied all windows 

at first floor in the Northern elevation shall be glazed with obscure 
glass only and the windows shall be maintained with obscure glazing 
in perpetuity. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 

11 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
Site Location Plan 
P010.H 
P011.A 

Page 190



 
 
 

 
 
 

P020.C 
P030.C 
P060.A 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

12 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from 
the access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall not be occupied until surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme.  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development 
can be adequately drained. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does 
not include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer.  Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining 
to the sewer in question. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect 
any private property rights and therefore does not authorise the 
carrying out of any work on land outside their control. If such works 
are required it will be necessary for the applicant to obtain the 
landowners consent before such works commence. 
 
If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, 
you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice 
with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive 
material samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform 
the Planning Officer where they are to be found. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance 

Page 191



 
 
 

 
 
 

with Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of 
work. 

 
121 17/09431/FUL - Land adjacent Benson House, Market Place, Box 

 
Public participation:  
Andrew Clegg, Patricia Simpson and Lorraine Simson spoke in objection to the 
application  
Tony Phillips, agent for the applicant, spoke in favour of the application 
Sheila Parker, resident of Box, spoke in favour of the application. 
Cllr Sheila Parker from Box Parish Council spoke in objection to the application. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Chris Marsh, introduced the report which 
recommended permission be give subject to conditions. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the location of the proposals within the site; the orientation and the topography 
of the site; the relationship with other buildings in the area; the summary 
statement proposed which states how building works would be designed and 
constructed potential for further intrusive groundworks controlled by condition to 
protect existing trees; the views of the senior conservation officer; the concerns 
of residents regarding privacy; the views of the drainage officer and the 
approach taken to reduce the risk of flooding; whether the designs made best 
use of the site and the impact of the proposals in a conservation area. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, seeking clarification regarding the impact of the proposals on 
private access arrangements, and that these were a civil matter and not a 
material planning consideration;  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the committee, as 
detailed above. 
 
The local member, Councillor Brian Mathew then spoke in relation to the 
application. 
 
In the debate that followed, Councillor Peter Hutton proposed, subsequently 
seconded by Councillor Jacqui Lay, that the Officer’s recommendation of 
approval subject to conditions be approved. 
 
Following advice from officers with regard to scope and wording, it was agreed 
to include an amendment to condition 9 relating to the design of windows to 
further protect the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 
The amendment was subsequently accepted by Councillors Hutton and Lay, 
and thereby incorporated into their original motion. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate, and having been put to the vote, the meeting; 
 

Page 192



 
 
 

 
 
 

Resolved 
 
To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 
 
VL.2017/28/01 - Site Plan + Block Plans 
VL.2017/28/03 - Site Layout Proposed 
VL.2017/28/04 - Proposed House (first floor plan and 
elevations) 
 
Received 27 September 2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 
proper planning. 
 

3 No development shall commence on site until the exact details 
and samples of the materials to be used for the external walls, 
including facia boards, etc, and roofs have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the 
Local Planning Authority before development commences in 
order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area. 
 

4 No external stonework shall be constructed on site, until 
details of the reconfigured stone boundary wall, including type, 
dressing, coursing and bedding of the natural stone, type of 
pointing and mortar mix, have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall not be first occupied until the wall has been constructed 
in full accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area. 
 

Page 193



 
 
 

 
 
 

5 No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence 
on site, and; no equipment, machinery or materials shall be 
brought on to site for the purpose of development, until a Tree 
Protection Plan showing the exact position of each tree/s and 
their protective fencing or ground protection in accordance 
with British Standard 5837: 2012: "Trees in Relation to Design, 
Demolition and Construction -Recommendations"; has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, and; 
 
The protective fencing and ground protection shall be erected 
in accordance with the approved details. The protective 
fencing and ground protection shall remain in place for the 
entire development phase and until all equipment, machinery 
and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Such 
fencing shall not be removed or breached during construction 
operations. 
 
No retained tree/s shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, 
nor shall any retained tree/s be topped or lopped other than in 
accordance with the approved plans and particulars. Any 
topping or lopping approval shall be carried out in accordance 
British Standard 3998: 2010 "Tree Work - Recommendations" 
or arboricultural techniques where it can be demonstrated to 
be in the interest of good arboricultural practise. 
 
If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, 
another tree shall be planted at the same place, at a size and 
species and planted at such time, that must be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
No fires shall be lit within 15 metres of the furthest extent of 
the canopy of any retained trees or hedgerows or adjoining 
land and no concrete, oil, cement, bitumen or other chemicals 
shall be mixed or stored within 10 metres of the trunk of any 
tree or group of trees to be retained on the site or adjoining 
land. 
 
[In this condition "retained tree" means an existing tree which 
is to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars; and paragraphs above shall have effect until the 
expiration of five years from the first occupation or the 
completion of the development, whichever is the later]. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order 
that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, 
to enable the Local Planning Authority to ensure the retention 
of trees on the site in the interests of visual amenity. 
 

6 No part of the development hereby approved shall be first 

Page 194



 
 
 

 
 
 

occupied until the parking area shown on the approved plans 
has been consolidated, surfaced and laid out in accordance 
with the approved details. This area shall be maintained and 
remain available for this use at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for 
parking within the site in the interests of highway safety. 
 

7 Notwithstanding the approved plans, no gates shall be 
installed as part of the development hereby approved. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety, in order to provide 
safe and convenient vehicular access at all times. 
 

8 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 
2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that 
Order with or without modification), there shall be no 
additions/extensions or external alterations to any building 
forming part of the development hereby permitted. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of the amenity of the area and to 
enable the Local Planning Authority to consider individually 
whether planning permission should be granted for 
additions/extensions or external alterations. 
 

9 Both the ground floor and first floor windows in the West elevation 
of the development hereby approved shall be glazed with obscure 
glass only [to an obscurity level of no less than level 3] and 
permanently fixed shut prior to the first occupation of the 
development hereby permitted and shall be permanently maintained 
in perpetuity. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 

 
10 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 

discharge of surface water from the site (including surface 
water from the access/driveway), incorporating sustainable 
drainage details, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
not be first occupied until surface water drainage has been 
constructed in accordance with the approved scheme.  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the 
Local Planning Authority before development commences in 
order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 

Page 195



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
11 Notwithstanding the approved details, no foundation works, 

underpinning or other groundworks shall be undertaken in 
associated with the development hereby permitted without the 
prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: In the interests of protected trees. 
 

12 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by 
compliance with Building Regulations or any other reason 
must first be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority before commencement of work. 
 

13 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
The applicant should note that the grant of planning 
permission does not include any separate permission which 
may be needed to erect a structure in the vicinity of a public 
sewer.  Such permission should be sought direct from Thames 
Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services Ltd. Buildings are 
not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer 
although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions 
appertaining to the sewer in question. 
 

14 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does 
not affect any private property rights and therefore does not 
authorise the carrying out of any work on land outside their 
control. If such works are required it will be necessary for the 
applicant to obtain the landowners consent before such works 
commence. 
 
If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site 
boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to 
seek your own advice with regard to the requirements of the 
Party Wall Act 1996. 
 

15 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to 
receive material samples. Please deliver material samples to 
site and inform the Planning Officer where they are to be 
found. 
 

16 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby 
approved may represent chargeable development under the 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) 
and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging Schedule. If the 
development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 

Page 196



 
 
 

 
 
 

Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL 
payment due. If an Additional Information Form has not already 
been submitted, please submit it now so that we can determine 
the CIL liability. In addition, you may be able to claim 
exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the relevant 
form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be 
submitted to Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of 
development.  Should development commence prior to the CIL 
Liability Notice being issued by the local planning authority, 
any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and full payment will 
be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms 
please refer to the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/
communityinfrastructurelevy.  
 

122 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 5.04 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is  of Democratic Services, direct line , 
e-mail committee@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 197



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 198



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 20 DECEMBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, 
MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Chuck Berry, 
Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Mollie Groom, 
Cllr Chris Hurst, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Brian Mathew and Cllr Ashley O'Neill 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr John Thomson 
  

 
123 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Cllr Clare Cape.  
 

124 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 29 November were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

125 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Groom declared herself a member of the Cotswold Conservation Board, in 
respect of item 7a) Arland House, however approached the application with an 
open mind and would debate and vote on the item.  
 

126 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 

127 Public Participation 
 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 
 
 

Page 199

Agenda Item 19



 
 
 

 
 
 

128 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
There was no planning appeal update, however the Chairman noted there 
would be one for consideration at the next meeting.  
 

129 Planning Applications 
 
Members considered the applications as detailed below.  
 

130 17/09481/FUL - Arland House, The Street, Alderton, SN14 6NL 
 
Ian Anderson, Angelica Anderson and Charlotte Watkins spoke in support of the 
application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application which was for the 
erection of a new dwelling, car port, solar array and associated works. The 
application was recommended for refusal for the reasons outlined in the report. 
Attention was drawn to the late items which included a correction to the officer 
report, clarifying that Alderton did benefit from a conservation area, the 
boundary to which lay adjacent to the site. A location plan was shown and the 
location of the main road was identified, photographs of the site were also 
shown. The planning officer highlighted the proposed development was in open 
countryside and would be an unsustainable development. 
 
There were no technical questions. 
 
Members of the public were invited to speak as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Cllr John Thomson, explained the application had generated 
some public interest, and he had called it in to Committee at the request of the 
parish council. 
 
In response to statements, the officer confirmed Alderton was in open 
countryside.  
 
In the debate that followed the Chairman commended the environmental 
elements of the proposal. Cllr Hutton moved the officer recommendation for 
refusal, seconded by Cllr Mollie Groom. Whilst members appreciated the 
environmental credentials of the scheme, it was considered the site for the 
proposed dwelling was inappropriate and the proposal therefore was contrary to 
Core Policies. It was noted that in planning terms Alderton was not a village and 
the paddock was agricultural. 
 
That planning permission be REFUSED for the following reasons:  
 
1. The site is located outside of the limits of development of any village 
defined in CP2 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. The proposed residential 
development does not fall to be determined under any of the 'exception 
policies' defined within Core Policies 46 and 47 (Specialist 
accommodation provision) or Core Policy 48 (Supporting rural life) or para 

Page 200



 
 
 

 
 
 

55 of the NPPF. The proposal conflicts with the Delivery Strategy set out 
in Policy CP2 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, which seeks to properly plan 
for sustainable development of housing sites in Wiltshire to deliver the 
identified needs in the Community Areas through a Site Allocations DPD 
and/or a Neighbourhood Plan, a strategy supported by the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy Inspector. The site has not been brought forward through this 
process. The proposal would therefore conflict with Core Policies 1 and 2 
of the Wiltshire Core Strategy; saved policy H4 of the North Wiltshire 
Local Plan (appendix D of the Wiltshire Core Strategy); Advice in the 
NPPF particularly paragraphs 7, 14 and 55. 
 
2. The proposal, by way of its scale, siting and form of development would 
be an incongruous and unacceptable form of development which would 
be harmful to the landscape quality of this part of the Cotswolds AONB 
contrary to policies CP42 and CP51 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and 
advice in the NPPF section 11, particularly para 115. 
 
3. The proposal, located remote from a range of services, employment 
opportunities which are not well served by public transport, is contrary to 
the key aims of local and national sustainable transport policy guidance 
which seeks to reduce growth in the length and number of motorised 
journeys. New development should be located and designed to reduce the 
need to travel by private car and should encourage the use of sustainable 
transport alternatives. The proposal is contrary to Core Policies 60 and 61 
of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy and Paragraph 34 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 

131 17/09830/FUL - 1 Drummer Way, Pewsham, Chippenham, SN15 3UX 
 
Robert Elkins spoke in support of the application 
 
The Development Control Team Leader introduced the application which was 
for a two storey side extension and mono-pitch garden storage with internal 
alterations to the main house. It was recommended the application be 
approved, subject to the conditions outlined in the report. A location plan, 
existing and proposed site plan, photographs and proposed elevations were 
shown. The officer highlighted there would be some overlooking of terraced 
properties nearby as a result of the development, however not at a sufficient 
level to warrant refusal. 
 
The Committee was invited to ask technical questions, in response to which it 
was confirmed that Permitted Development Rights could be removed from the 
development. The distance between the new development and neighbouring 
properties was confirmed, as was parking arrangements. It was acknowledged 
the proposal may slightly darken the gardens of neighbouring properties, 
however not to a significant degree.  
 
Members of the public were invited to speak as detailed above. 
 

Page 201



 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr Hutton spoke on behalf of the local member Cllr Cape who had requested 
that, should permission be granted, it be conditioned to tie the development to 
the main house to prevent it from being subdivided. Cllr Hutton noted this matter 
was already accounted for in the officer’s recommendations. 
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Hutton moved the officer’s recommendation, 
subject to a standard condition for the removal of Permitted Development 
Rights, seconded by Cllr Grant. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the conditions listed 
below (the standard wording for the removal of permitted development 
rights was to be determined by officers):  
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

 
Location Plan, Drawing number 560/PL/01 (7/8/17) received by the LPA on 
9th October 2017 
Existing and Proposed Site Plans, Drawing number 560/PL/02b (7/8/17) 
received by the LPA on 8th December 2017 
Existing Ground Floor Plan, Drawing number 560/PL/03 (7/8/17) received 
by the LPA on 9th October 2017 
Existing Elevation, Drawing number 560/PL/05 (7/8/17) received by the 
LPA on 9th October 2017 
Existing First Floor Plan, Drawing number 560/PL/04 (7/8/17) received by 
the LPA on 9th October 2017 
Proposed Ground Floor Plan, Drawing number 560/PL/06a (7/8/17) 
received by the LPA on 28th November 2017 
Proposed First Floor Plan, Drawing number 560/PL/07 (7/8/17) received by 
the LPA on 9th October 2017 
Proposed Elevation, Drawing number 560/PL/08 (8/7/17) received by the 
LPA on 9th October 2017 
Application Form, Section 11: Materials received by the LPA on 8th 
December 2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. No part of the development hereby approved shall be first brought 
into use until the parking area shown on the approved plans has 
been consolidated, surfaced and laid out in accordance with the 

Page 202



 
 
 

 
 
 

approved details. This area shall be maintained and remain 
available for this use at all times thereafter. 
 

REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking within 
the site in the interests of highway safety. 
 

4. The accommodation hereby permitted shall not be occupied at any 
time other than for purposes ancillary to the residential use of the 
main dwelling, known as '1 Dummer Way' and it shall remain within 
the same planning unit as the main dwelling. 
 

REASON: The additional accommodation is sited in a position where the 
Local Planning Authority, having regard to the reasonable standards of 
residential amenity, access, and planning policies pertaining to the area, 
would not permit a wholly separate dwelling. 
 
5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), there shall be no additions to, or extensions or 
enlargements of any building forming part of No.1 Dummer Way. 
 
REASON:  In light of the limited size of the domestic curtilage and size of 
the extension hereby granted planning permission, so as to allow the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
(The wording of this condition was inserted by officers under delegation). 
 

6. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 

7. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
 
 

Page 203



 
 
 

 
 
 

8. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
 

132 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 3.45 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Johnstone of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718214 , e-mail committee@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 204



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 24 JANUARY 2018 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, 
MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Chuck Berry, 
Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Chris Hurst, Cllr Toby Sturgis, 
Cllr Ashley O'Neill, Cllr Ben Anderson (Substitute), Cllr Bob Jones MBE (Substitute) 
and Cllr Jacqui Lay (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
Cllr Brian Mathew as Division Member.  
 
  

 
1 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Brian Mathew, Molly Groom and 
Christine Crisp. 
 
Cllr Mathew  was substituted by Cllr Bob Jones MBE. 
 
Cllr Groom was substituted by Cllr Jacqui Lay. 
 
Cllr Crisp was substituted by Cllr Ben Anderson. 
 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 20 December 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

4 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman announced that item 7b 17-10136-FUL 150 Sheldon Road, 
Chippenham in the agenda would be debated first. 

Page 205

Agenda Item 20



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
5 Public Participation 

 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

6 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update and information 
provided on the legal duty to state reasons for making decisions on planning 
applications. 
 

7 Planning Applications 
 
7a 17-10136-FUL - 150 Sheldon Road, Chippenham 
 
Public Participation 
Chris Kempton spoke in objection to the application. 
Ann Deeprose  spoke in objection to the application. 
Brenda Fernandez spoke in objection to the application 
Simon Chambers, agent, spoke in support of the application. 
 
The senior planning officer, Chris Marsh, introduced a report which 
recommended planning permission be granted, subject to conditions, for the 
Change of Use of Old Persons Home (Class C2) to Create 2No Residential 
Units Within Class C3(c). 
 
Key issues highlighted included the principle of development; the impact on 
highways/ parking and the impact on neighbour amenity. 
 
It was noted that on the re-consultation, there were 7 respondents and not 5 as 
stated in the officer report. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer which focused on: whether the development was a C4 or C3 
development; whether the developments would pay separate council tax;  
whether the properties could be sold as two separate properties in the future; 
changes to the development; parking issues and the changes of amenity space. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the Committee, as 
detailed above. 
 
Councillor Ashley O’Neil, Division Member, spoke in objection to the application 
with the main points focusing on: the wider impacts of the development; the 
unusual layout of the properties which was unlike a family style accommodation; 
poor design; core policy 57 (i), (iii) and (vii) were referred to; overdevelopment 
of the site which was detrimental to the area; the lack of amenity and the 
amount of protest against the development. 
 
At the start of the debate a proposal was moved by Councillor Ashley O’Neil 
and seconded by Councillor Peter Hutton to refuse planning permission based 

Page 206



 
 
 

 
 
 

on core policy 57 where the development would not integrate with the 
surrounding area. 
 
During the debate the main points raised were: concerns from the public; the 
development would have a negative impact on the area; the shortage of 
provision for the elderly in the area; the development was out of keeping did not 
match the characteristics of the area and that site had an opportunity to have a 
positive development built.  
 
At the end of the debate it was; 
 
Resolved 
 
To refuse planning permission for the following reasons: 
The proposed development does not respond positively or effectively 
integrate the car parking into the immediate setting or the wider character 
of the area, contrary to Core Policy 57 Paragraphs (iii & vi) of the adopted 
Wiltshire Core Strategy. The proposal also impacts on the level of 
amenities of the occupants, contrary to Core Policy 57 Paragraph (vii), by 
utilising all of the front and rear amenity space for car parking. 
 
7b 17-11409-FUL - Northwood Barn, Doncombe Lane, North Colerne, 
Chippenham 
 
Public Participation 
Chris Dance (Agent) spoke in support of the application 
Ben Harraway (Applicant) spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Paul Jobbins on behalf of Colerne Parish Council spoke in support of the 
application. 
 
The Team Leader, Simon Smith, introduced the report which recommended 
planning permission be refused for an erection of a replacement dwelling. It was 
noted that previously the application was discussed at committee in October 
2017 and that this application was the re-submission of that application.  
 
Key issues highlighted included the principle of development; the design/ 
character and appearance of the area (ANOB), residential amenity and the 
ecology. 
 
It was noted that there was a typo on page 22 within the following paragraph:  
 
“It is indisputable that the loss of the existing building characteristic of the 
locality and its replacement with a modular bungalow of suburban appearance 
would protect, conserve or enhance the AONB. The proposal would fail the 
provisions of Policy CP51 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy”. 
 
The paragraph should include ‘not’ followed by ‘protect, conserve or enhance…’ 
as follows: 
 

Page 207



 
 
 

 
 
 

“It is indisputable that the loss of the existing building characteristic of the 
locality and its replacement with a modular bungalow of suburban appearance 
would not protect, conserve or enhance the AONB. The proposal would fail the 
provisions of Policy CP51 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy”. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer which focused on: The materials used on the development; the 
difference in the ridge height; changes made since the previous application and 
the design of the development. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the Committee, as 
detailed above. 
 
Councillor Brian Mathews, Division Member, spoke in support of the application 
noting core policies 46, 48 and 41. It was explained that the applicant had the 
intentions to move onto the family farm to maintain the farm and care for elderly 
parents. The application had been redesigned according to previous concerns, 
which meant that it was less intrusive on the landscape.    
 
At the start of the debate a proposal was moved by Councillor Peter Hutton  and 
seconded by Councillor Ben Anderson to move the officers recommendation, 
noting that there had not been a significant enough change compared to the 
previous application. 
 
During the debate the main points raised were: concerns about the raised ridge 
height and the need to see a better plan. 
 
At the end of the debate it was; 
 
Resolved 
 
To Refuse planning permission for the following reasons: 
 
1. By reason of the proposal failing to comply with the requirements 

of H4 in respect of justifying a replacement dwelling, the proposed 
development, by reason of its location would be contrary to the 
settlement, delivery and community area strategies and residential 
development in the open countryside policy and is unacceptable in 
principle. The proposal fails to accord with Core Policy 1, 2 and 11 
of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy (Jan 2015), as well Saved 
Policy H4 of the North Wiltshire 
Local Plan 2011 and Paragraphs 14 and 17 of the NPPF. 
 

2. The proposed development, by reason of loss of the existing 
building, which entirely appropriate to the distinctive character of 
the Cotswold AONB, and its replacement with a pre-fabricated 
bungalow would adversely impact the character and appearance 
of the Cotswold AONB. The proposal fails to accord with Core 
Policy 51 (ii and ix) and 57 (i, iii and vi) of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy (Jan 2015), and Paragraphs 14, 17 and 115 of the NPPF. 

Page 208



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
7c 17-11346-FUL - Land at Newlands, Littleton Drew, Chippenham 
 
Public Participation 
Linda Peak spoke in objection to the application. 
Jeff Batty spoke in objection to the application. 
Tony Phillips spoke in support of the application. 
Kathleen Phillips spoke in support of the application. 
Cllr Johnny Walker on behalf of Grittleton Parish Council spoke in objection to 
the application. 
 
 
The senior planning officer, Chris Marsh, introduced a report which 
recommended planning permission be granted, subject to conditions, for the 
Change of use to Equestrian, Erection of Timber Stables, Concrete 
Base/Turnout Area and a Parking/Turning Area – Part Retrospective. It was 
noted that the application had previously been refused at committee and the 
following application was the revised version. 
 
Key issues highlighted included the principle of development; the impact on 
highways/ parking, impact on the character and appearance of the site and the 
impact on the Cotswolds (ANOB). 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer which focused on: whether the development  would be used for 
commercial purposes; whether the previous committee concerns had been met; 
transport issues and whether conditions could be posed for maintenance of the 
bridleway. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the Committee, as 
detailed above. 
 
Councillor Sturgis, on behalf of the Division Member Councillor Jane Scott OBE, 
spoke in objection to the application with the main points focusing on: 
Communication received from the agent; the extensive experience and 
knowledge of the Division Member in keeping and maintain horses; core policy 
51 was referred to noting that there was a lack of a management plan, with 
current actions not in accordance with the ANOB management plan; the 
intensive use of the fields and the need for controlled grazing. 
 
At the start of the debate a proposal was moved by Councillor Toby Sturgis  and 
seconded by Councillor Ashley O’Neil to refuse planning permission based on 
core policy 51 where no consideration had been given to the Cotswold ANOB 
management plan. 
 
During the debate the main points raised were: the need to safeguard the 
environment and have a management in place before the application was 
approved. 
 
At the end of the debate it was; 

Page 209



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Resolved 
 
To Refuse planning permission for the following reasons: 
 
The proposed development, by reason of its physical form and associated 
paraphernalia and their resultant impact on the character, appearance and 
openness of the landscape and intrinsic quality of the Cotswolds AONB, 
fails to demonstrate that proper account has been taken of the objectives, 
policies and actions set out in the Cotswolds AONB Management Plan 
2013-2018. The proposals therefore conflict with Core Policy 51(ix), and 
specifically Paragraph 6.83, of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 

8 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 5.30 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Jessica Croman of Democratic 
Services, direct line , e-mail committee@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 210



 
 
 

 
 
 

EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 2 NOVEMBER 2017 AT WESSEX ROOM - THE CORN EXCHANGE, MARKET 
PLACE, DEVIZES, SN10 1HS. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Mark Connolly (Chairman), Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Stewart Dobson, 
Cllr Peter Evans, Cllr Nick Fogg MBE, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr James Sheppard and 
Cllr Jerry Kunkler (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Anna Cuthbert and Cllr Sue Evans 
  

 
47. Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Paul Oatway QPM. Councillor Oatway 
was substituted by Councillor Jerry Kunkler. 
 

48. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 5 October 2017 were presented for 
consideration and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 5 October 2017. 
 

49. Declarations of Interest 
 
During debate on application 17/07414/FUL Councillor Richard Gamble 
declared that he was currently Portfolio Holder for Heritage, Arts and Tourism, 
and that he would continue to consider the application on its merits and with an 
open mind. 
 
During debate on application 17/05767/FUL Councillor Jerry Kunkler declared 
his profession as publican, and that he would continue to consider the 
application openly and on its merits. 
 

50. Chairman's Announcements 
 
With agreement of the Committee it was announced that in a change to the 
agenda order application 17/06842/FUL would be considered as the first item. 

Page 211

Agenda Item 21



 
 
 

 
 
 

51. Public Participation 
 
The rules on public participation were noted. 
 

52. Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
An update on planning appeals submitted or undertaken since the last meeting 
was received. The Committee noted the successful defence rate for decisions 
for the Eastern area. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 
 

53. Planning Applications 
 
The following planning applications were considered. 
 

54. 17/06147/FUL: Elm Cottage, 42 Yard Lane, Bromham, Wiltshire, SN15 
2DTB 
 
Public Participation 
Richard Cosker, agent, spoke in support of the application. 
Craig Dalby, applicant, spoke in support of the application. 
 
The Planning Officer, Nick Clark, introduced the report which recommended 
that planning permission be refused for demolition of the existing dwelling and 
outbuildings and construction of a replacement dwelling and outbuildings. Key 
issues were stated to include the impact of the proposed replacement dwelling 
on neighbour amenity and the character of the area, as well as planning policy 
in respect of replacement dwellings in the countryside. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above. 
 
The local unitary division member, Councillor Anna Cuthbert, then spoke in 
support of the application. 
 
A debate followed, where members considered the scale of the proposed 
replacement dwelling and whether this complied with planning policy. Members 
noted that although the proposal was larger than the existing dwelling, planning 
policy did not specify what constituted too significant an increase in scale, and 
they considered that the new dwelling was not excessively large for the site or 
the surrounding area and so would be in accordance with policy. They further 
noted that the modern construction and design would be an improvement for 
the site. 
 

Page 212



 
 
 

 
 
 

A motion to approve the application was moved by Councillor Stewart Dobson, 
seconded by Councillor James Sheppard, and at the conclusion of debate it 
was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 

1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 

 
REASON: 
To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004. 

 
2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the submitted drawings numbered 42_Yard Lane_House_Existing_001, 
42_Yard Lane_House_Layout_002, 42_Yard 
Lane_House_Proposed_PlansElevs_003, 42_Yard 
Lane_Outbuilding_Existing_004 and 42_Yard 
Lane_Outbuilding_Proposed_005. 

 
REASON: 
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 
3) i) No development of the new buildings above ground floor slab level shall 

commence until full details of the materials and finishes to be used for the 
exterior of the buildings (including product literature and photographic 
examples, and if requested, samples to be made available for inspection 
on-site) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. 

 
ii) The development shall not be carried out other than using the so-     
approved materials and finishes. 

 
REASON: 
The application contained insufficient information to enable these details 
to be considered prior to granting planning permission but the details 
need to be agreed in order that the development is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area 

 
4) i) The dwelling hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 

performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes.   
 
ii) The dwelling shall not be occupied until evidence has been issued and 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority 
certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 

Page 213



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: 
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal or 
equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 
are achieved.  

 
5) Prior to the occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted there shall have 

been submitted to and approved in writing a scheme of hard and soft 
landscaping that details: 
 
a) a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes and planting densities;  
 
b) areas of hard surfacing and the surfacing materials to be used;  

 
REASON: 
The application contained insufficient detail of landscaping proposals for 
the development. Details need to be approved in order to ensure a 
satisfactory landscaped setting for the development. 

 
6) i) All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 

shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the dwelling or the substantial completion of the 
development whichever is the sooner. 
 
ii) All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from 
weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock.  
 
iii) Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, die, are 
removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in 
the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.   
 
iv) All hard landscaping shall also be carried out within 6 months of the 
occupation of any part of the development. 

 
REASON: 
To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development. 

 
7) The outbuilding hereby permitted shall not be occupied at any time other 

than for purposes ancillary to the residential use of either the existing 
dwelling (known as Elm Cottage) or the replacement dwelling as hereby 
permitted. 
 
REASON: 
The building is sited in a position where the local planning authority, 
having regard to the reasonable standards of residential amenity, access, 
and planning policies pertaining to the area, would be unlikely to permit 
other uses. 

 

Page 214



 
 
 

 
 
 

INFORMATIVE 
The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981, as amended (Section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage and/or 
destroy a nest of any wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. 
Planning permission for development does not provide a defence against 
prosecution under this Act. Evidence of nesting birds has been found in 
the soffits of the building due to be demolished and as such it should be 
assumed nesting birds will be present between 1st March and 31st 
August, unless a recent survey by a competent person has demonstrated 
otherwise. 

 
Conditions to be included were delegated by the Committee to the case officer 
in consultation with the Chairman. 
 

55. 17/07414/FUL: Land to the rear of 11 White Street, White Street, Market 
Lavington, Wiltshire, SN10 4DP 
 
Public Participation 
Carolyn Flower spoke in objection to the application. 
Margaret Farnon spoke in objection to the application. 
Nicholas Tye spoke in objection to the application. 
Paul Oakley, agent, spoke in support of the application. 
Councillor Ian Myhill on behalf of Market Lavington Parish Council spoke in 
objection to the application. 
 
The Planning Officer, Ruaridh O’Donoghue, introduced the report 
recommended that planning permission be granted for the demolition of existing 
garages and the erection of two houses with garages. Key issues were stated to 
include the principle of residential development on the site, impact upon 
neighbouring residents and the conservation area, and impact upon highway 
safety/parking arrangements. Details were provided of letters received in 
objection since the report had been published. It was also noted that incorrect 
information on the level of parking provision available at the properties of the 
tenants of the garages had previously been provided, but that this did not affect 
the officer’s reasons for recommending approval. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officers. It was confirmed that it was unclear who owned the land upon 
which the present bridleway was situated and that as a result, anyone using it 
with a vehicle to access the site would technically be breaching the law as 
permission of the landowner would be required. This also applied to existing 
properties and garages along the bridleway that people currently accessed with 
vehicles. It was also confirmed that a highway safety objections could only be 
readily substantiated if there would be severe harm from additional vehicle 
movements, and that officers considered the area was suitable for housing. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 

Page 215



 
 
 

 
 
 

The local unitary division member, Councillor Richard Gamble, then spoke in 
objection to the application. 
 
A debate followed, where members discussed the principle of the number of 
dwellings on the site, the impact upon the local highways network resulting from 
displaced parking, and the suitability of access to the site via the bridleway. The 
ability for vehicles to turn around on the site was debated, along with the legal 
situation regarding access, the priority to be given to pedestrian and horse 
access and the impact for emergency services and delivery vehicles resulting 
from the layout and the physical characteristics of the bridleway, including its 
narrow width and the lack of turning areas. 
 
A motion to refuse the application was moved by Councillor Richard Gamble, 
seconded by Councillor Ian Blair-Pilling, and at the conclusion of debate it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That planning permission be refused for the following reasons: 
 
The Clays is a bridleway (MLAV24) with a definitive width of just 3 metres 
across its entire length.  It is unsuitable, by reason of its narrow width and 
poor quality surfacing, to provide safe and suitable access to the 
development or to accommodate the additional vehicular movements 
associated with it.  This would cause conflict with users of the bridleway, 
including cyclists and pedestrians.   
 
Furthermore, the proposed layout is such that the development cannot be 
readily serviced by vehicles, in particular Plot 1.  The proposal would 
therefore be contrary to Core Policy 61 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, 
which requires that proposals are capable of being served by safe access 
to the highway network, Core Policy 57 (vi) of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, 
which requires that development should take account of a site’s 
characteristics and relate effectively to the immediate setting and the 
wider character of the area , and paragraph 32 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework, which requires that safe and suitable access to the site 
can be achieved for all people. 
 
Following the Committee providing planning policy refusal reasons, precise 
wording of those reasons was delegated by the Committee to the case officer in 
consultation with the Chairman. 
 

56. 17/06842/FUL: Land to the rear of Trinity Cottage, Castle Grounds, Snails 
Lane, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 1DB 
 
Public Participation 
Howard Waters, agent, spoke in support of the application. 
 
The Planning Officer, Nick Clark, introduced the report which recommended 
that planning permission be refused for a proposed dwelling on the site of 
former horticultural buildings. Key issues were stated to include the impact upon 

Page 216



 
 
 

 
 
 

the setting of Devizes Castle as a scheduled monument and Grade I listed 
building, and the impact upon other listed buildings nearby and the 
archaeological potential of the site. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officers. Details were sought on the likelihood of archaeological remains 
being present on the slopes of the castle setting, previous development in the 
area and the status of the site in the context of the Devizes Area of Minimum 
Change. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The local unitary division member, Councillor Sue Evans, then spoke in support 
of the application. 
 
A debate followed, where it was discussed whether there were any public 
benefits to the scheme which would outweigh any harm caused by 
development. The design and scale of the proposals was also raised, along with 
the objections on archaeological and conservation grounds, as well as the 
significant impact upon the Castle’s setting. 
 
A motion to refuse the application was moved by Councillor Nick Fogg, 
seconded by Councillor Jerry Kunkler, and at the conclusion of debate it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That planning permission be refused for the following reasons: 
 

1) The application site occupies a sensitive heritage setting in the 
designated Area of Minimum Change on the slopes at the base of the 
Devizes Castle mound, where the largely undeveloped nature of the land 
and its residual character as former gardens to the castle contribute to the 
heritage significance of the Scheduled Monument and Grade I listed 
castle. Within this setting, the proposed dwelling would be visible from a 
number of directions. The significant size and elevated position of the 
dwelling and the associated access and garden accoutrements would be 
detrimental the character and appearance of the site and would intrude 
upon the heritage setting of the castle and particularly the relationship 
between the castle and the grade I listed St John’s Church, resulting in 
less than substantial harm to their heritage significance. As such, the 
development would be contrary to Kennet Local Plan policy HH10 and 
Wiltshire Core Strategy Core Policy 57 and Core Policy 58, and in the 
absence of public benefits sufficient to outweigh the harm, contrary to the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

2) The development would necessitate significant excavation and 
earthworks in an area where there is the potential for significant 
archaeological remains to exist such as the bailey and/or town defences 
and medieval settlement remains. In the absence of archaeological 

Page 217



 
 
 

 
 
 

investigation of the site, the nature and extent of archaeological remains 
unclear and thus the impact of the development on the archaeological 
value of the site cannot be determined. As such, the application would be 
contrary to Wiltshire Core Strategy Core Policy 57 and Core Policy 58 and 
the advice of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

3) In the absence of the results of further survey work to identify the extent 
and species of bats and reptiles on the site (as recommended in the 
submitted ecological assessment) the Council cannot be satisfied that the 
development would not have an adverse impact on protected species. As 
such, the development would be contrary to Wiltshire Core Strategy Core 
Policy 50. 
 

57. 17/05767/FUL: Red Lion, Axford, Wiltshire, SN8 2HA 
 
Public Participation 
Councillor Sheila Glass, Chairman of Ramsbury and Axford Parish Council, 
spoke in objection to the application. 
 
The Planning Officer, Nick Clark, presented the report which recommended that 
planning permission be granted for a new dwelling, of a revised height and 
design, on land forming part of the curtilage of the Red Lion Inn. Key issues 
were stated to include impact on neighbour amenity and on the character and 
appearance of the area.  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. Planning permission had previously been granted for a smaller 
dwelling in on the site, and details were sought on the differences between the 
two schemes, which included an increased ridge height and the introduction of 
rooflights. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above. 
 
The local unitary division member, Councillor James Sheppard, spoke in 
objection to the application. 
 
A debate followed, where members discussed whether the increase in height 
resulting from adding another storey to the dwelling and the addition of 
rooflights were in keeping with the area, and whether the impact of the changes 
was such that the impact upon the area and neighbours had significantly 
increased. 
 
A motion to refuse the application was moved by Councillor Stewart Dobson, 
seconded by Councillor James Sheppard, and at the conclusion of debate it 
was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That planning permission be refused for the following reasons: 

Page 218



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The dwelling as proposed, by reason of its scale/height (which is not 
subservient to adjacent buildings) and design, including a proliferation of 
rooflights which would be unduly prominent, especially at night time due 
to emanating light, would have a detrimental impact on the character and 
appearance of the area.  It also causes a loss of light to the adjoining 
property, Pear Tree Cottage, which in turn adversely affects the 
reasonable living conditions of its occupants.  This conflicts with Core 
Policy 57 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and Section 7 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework, which requires good design. 
  
Following the Committee providing planning policy refusal reasons, precise 
wording of those reasons was delegated by the Committee to the case officer in 
consultation with the Chairman. 
 

58. Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(Duration of meeting:  3.00 - 5.45 pm) 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 220



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 30 NOVEMBER 2017 AT WESSEX ROOM, CORN EXCHANGE, THE MARKET 
PLACE, DEVIZES SN10 1HS. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Mark Connolly (Chairman), Cllr Paul Oatway QPM (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Ian Blair-
Pilling, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr Peter Evans, Cllr Richard Gamble and 
Cllr Christopher Williams (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Jerry Kunkler 
  

 
59. Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Nick Fogg MBE and Cllr James 
Sheppard who was substituted by Cllr Christopher Williams. 
 

60. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 2 
November 2017 as a correct record. 
 

61. Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

62. Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements made at the meeting. 
 

63. Public Participation 
 
The rules on public participation were noted. 
 

64. Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
There were no planning appeals or updates reported at the meeting.  
 

Page 221

Agenda Item 22



 
 
 

 
 
 

65. Planning Applications 
 
The following planning applications were considered:- 
 

66. 17/09676/FUL: Kennet Valley C.E Aided Primary School, Lockeridge, 
Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 4EL 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr Malcolm Denyer, a local resident, spoke against the application 
Ms Emma Russell, Headteacher, spoke in support of the application 
Cllr David Woolley QC, representing Fyfield & West Overton Parish Council, 
spoke against the application 
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Case Officer which set out the 
issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that planning 
permission be granted. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as listed above, expressing their 
views regarding the planning application. 
 
During discussion, Members considered that the proposed facility was very 
worthwhile but some felt that the location was wrong, it being close to adjoining 
properties and therefore causing nuisance to neighbours.  However, it was 
pointed out that the school and its grounds were secured and locked during non 
school hours and therefore it was unlikely that nuisance would be caused. It 
was requested that the school limit the hours of use to 09.00 – 16.30 on school 
days only to minimise disturbance to neighbours. 
 
On the proposal of Cllr Christopher Williams which was seconded by Cllr Ian 
Blair-Pilling, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the application, subject to the following informative:- 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The development has been approved in accordance with the following 
plans:  
 
Drg Title: Location and Block Plan. Drg No: 3364-02. Rev: A.  
Drg Title: Plan, Elevation and Photograph. Drg No: 3364-01. Rev: A. 
Received: 15/11/2017.  
 
The school is requested to respect the privacy of the occupiers of 
neighbouring properties and to incorporate mitigation measures such as 
the use of rubber floor matting, additional planting and time limits on 
usage (between 9:00 and 16:30 on school days only). 

Page 222



 
 
 

 
 
 

67. 17/06803/FUL: Land to the Rear Of 5 London House, Market Place, 
Pewsey, Wiltshire, SN9 5AA 
 
Public Participation 
 
Cllr Peter Deck, representing Pewsey Parish Council, spoke against the 
proposal. 
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Case Officer which set out the 
main issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that planning 
permission be granted, subject to conditions. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard a statement from a member of the public as detailed above, expressing 
the views of Pewsey Parish Council regarding the planning application. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Jerry Kunkler, the local Member, who 
stated that he concurred with the concerns of the Parish Council regarding 
disabled access to the proposed building and lack of car parking provision. 
 
During discussion Members agreed with these concerns and furthermore 
expressed disquiet at the lack of suitable fire exits and stressed the need for 
suitably lit access to the building from the main road.  Some Members also 
considered that the north-east corner of the construction would be so close to 
the adjoining property that its light would be adversely affected. 
 
On the proposal of Cllr Stewart Dobson, which was seconded by Cllr 
Christopher Williams, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To refuse planning permission for the following reasons:- 
 
The proposed dwelling would have restricted access arrangements,  
namely a narrow pedestrian passageway with stairs to navigate.  It would 
therefore fail to provide safe and suitable access for pedestrians and 
vehicles, which would be detrimental to the reasonable living conditions 
of future occupiers of the dwelling. As such, the proposal would be 
contrary to Wiltshire Core Strategy Core Policy 57 point vii, which 
requires appropriate levels of amenity to be achievable within the 
development itself, to point ix which requires development to take 
account of the needs of potential occupants, through planning for 
diversity and adaptability and to point xi, which seeks to ensure the public 
realm, including new roads and other rights of way, are designed to create 
places of character which are legible, safe and accessible. Furthermore, 
the proposal is contrary to Paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework which requires that a safe and suitable access to the site is 
achievable for all people. 
 
    

Page 223



 
 
 

 
 
 

68. Urgent items 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00 pm - 4.30 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 224



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 19 OCTOBER 2017 AT ALAMEIN SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE LANE, 
SALISBURY, SP2 7TU. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Britton (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Brian Dalton, Cllr Christopher Devine, 
Cllr Jose Green, Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Sven Hocking, Cllr George Jeans, 
Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr John Smale, Cllr Tony Deane (Substitute) and 
Cllr Robert Yuill (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr John Walsh 
 
  

 
204 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from: 
 

 Cllr Fred Westmoreland – who was substituted by Cllr Robert Yuill 

 Cllr Matthew Dean – who was substituted by Cllr Tony Deane 
 

205 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 24th August 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

206 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were none. 
 

207 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman noted that the order of the applications would be changed, due to 
some speakers having to leave early on. He then explained the meeting 
procedure to the members of the public. 
 
 

Page 225

Agenda Item 23



 
 
 

 
 
 

208 Public Participation 
 
The committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

209 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee received details of the appeal decisions for the period 
11/08/2017 to 06/10/2017, as detailed in the agenda. 
 
Resolved 
To note the update. 
 
 

210 Planning Applications 
 

211 17/06469/FUL - Land adjacent to allotments, Down Barn Road, 
Winterbourne Gunner, SP4 6JN 
 
Public Speakers 
Vicky Hotton spoke in support of the application 
Katherine Allen spoke in support of the application 
Dan Steedman spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Charles Penn spoke on behalf of Winterbourne PC 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Richard Nash introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for the construction of one detached dwelling 
with disabled annexe, including work space for lifelong living and outside space 
for supported horticultural activities, be refused as the site was within open 
countryside, outside of any recognised limits of development, there were 
highway safety issues and the impact on the setting of a Grade II listed building. 
The needs of the Applicant’s child were also highlighted as a primary 
consideration.  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer. It was clarified that a new access to the site would be created, 
this would lead out onto a straight fast piece of road. 
 
The applicant had offered to improve and extend the pedestrian path near to the 
site, Highways had objected to that proposal. 
 
The local Neighbourhood Plan (NHP) was in the developmental stage only, and 
currently had not included the proposed land as a development site. 
 
If approved, the house would become quite an asset in this part of Wiltshire, as 
the property was a dwelling house it was not possible to condition it for type of 
use. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above.  
 

Page 226



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Unitary Division Member, Cllr Mike Hewitt then spoke in Support of the 
application, noting that this was not an easy decision, the applicant had gone a 
long way to look for a site in the area however none had become available.  
 
The nearest home to accommodate Carston was out of county. For the family to 
take control of the situation, this was the only way. He felt that the listed building 
mentioned in the report was a wreck. There was no protection on this building. 
 
Cllr Hewitt then moved for approval, against Officer’s recommendation. This 
was seconded by Cllr John Smale. 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included, That the site was not in the 
emerging NHP. The site was in an open area, where permitted development 
would not usually be approved.  
 
The parish council whilst was sympathetic, had not come up with an alternative 
site within the village. The medical condition and associated needs of the child 
were material considerations. The expected need would be for a further 50 to 
60 years. 
 
Aside from the genuine need, which was proven, the other exceptions detailed 
in CP46 were not met. 
 
The Committee voted on the motion of Approval, subject to conditions. 
 
Resolved 
That planning permission for application 17/06469/FUL be approved 
against Officer’s recommendation, with the following conditions: 
 
1: The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2: The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
 
Location Plan including land required for highway works 
Aerial photograph and description of highway works 
LDS/13673-TP1 (Entrance Detail) 
A.1 (Part Ground Floor Plan) 
A.2 (Part Ground Floor Plan) 
A.3 (Proposed North and South Elevations) 
A.3 (Proposed West and East Elevations) 
A.4 (First Floor Plan) 
A.05 (Block Plan) 
A.6 (Section) 
A.7 (Block Plan) 
 

Page 227



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3: No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area. 
 
4: No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include: 
 
location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and hedgerows on 
the land; 
full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the course of development; 
a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes and planting densities; 
finished levels and contours; 
means of enclosure; 
all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 
5: All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by 
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

Page 228



 
 
 

 
 
 

6: The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the 
first five metres of the access, measured from the edge of the 
carriageway, has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or 
gravel). The access shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
7: The gradient of the access way shall not at any point be steeper than 1 
in 15 for a distance of 4.5m from its junction with the public highway. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
8: Any gates to close the access shall be set back a minimum distance of 
4.5m from the edge of the carriageway and made to open inwards (away 
from the highway) only. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
9: The development shall not be first occupied until the visibility splays 
have been formed in accordance with the approved details shown on 
drawing numbered LDS/13673-TP1. Such visibility splays shall thereafter 
be permanently maintained free from obstruction to vision above a height 
of 1.0m above the level of the adjacent carriageway. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
10: The development shall not be first occupied until the proposed 
pedestrian facilities in the field on the opposite side of the C286 to the 
application site have been cleared of obstructions, fenced, gated and 
surfaced as proposed for pedestrian traffic. The footpath shall be 
maintained as such thereafter. 
REASON: To ensure that the development is served by an adequate 
means of pedestrian access and in the interests of highway safety. 
 
11: No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
development shall not be first occupied until surface water drainage has 
been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
12: No development shall commence on site until: 
 
a) A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should 
include on-site work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing 
and archiving of the results, has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority; and 
 
b) The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried out 
in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 

Page 229



 
 
 

 
 
 

matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to enable the recording of any matters of 
archaeological interest. 
 
13: No construction shall take place on Sundays or Public Holidays or 
outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 
on Saturdays. 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of nearby residential properties. 
 
14: No development shall commence until a mitigation and compensation 
strategy for any protected species on the site (during construction and 
post construction) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be completed in 
accordance with the approved strategy and any features provided as 
prescribed in the strategy shall be retained in perpetuity. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to mitigate against the loss of existing biodiversity 
and nature habitats. 
 
15: Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted  
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting 
or amending those Orders with or without modification), no development 
within Part 1, Classes A, B, C, E or F, or Part 2, Class, shall take place on 
the dwellinghouse hereby permitted or within its curtilage. 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
HIGHWAY INFORMATIVE: The development hereby granted shall not be 
construed as authority to carry out works on the highway. The applicant is 
advised that a licence will be required from the local highway authority 
before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, 
verge or other land forming part of the highway. Please contact the 
Council's Vehicle Crossing Team on vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk 
and/or 01225 713352. 
 
ARCHAEOLOGY INFORMATIVE: The work should be conducted by a 
professionally recognised archaeological contractor in accordance with a 
written scheme of investigation approved by this office and there will be a 
financial implication for the applicant. 
 
 
 
 

Page 230



 
 
 

 
 
 

212 17/06148/VAR & 17/06159/LBC - The Crown Inn, Church Street, Tisbury, 
SP3 6NH 
 
Public Speakers 
Philip Eastern (Agent) spoke in support of the application. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Warren Simmonds introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for a variation of condition 2 of 15/04530/FUL 
and 15/04698/LBC relating to approved plans, be approved subject to 
conditions as detailed in the report. 
 
The Conservation officer had been consulted as it was a listed building, and had 
raised no objection. CPRE south Wiltshire group had objected to the level of 
detail provided in these applications. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer. There were none. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their view to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Cllr Tony Dean then spoke in objection to the 
Application. He noted that Tisbury Parish Council was not able to attend to 
speak in objection of the application. He read a short email on behalf of them, 
stating that the PC believed the proposed development would be less in-
keeping than the previous. 
 
Cllr Dean then moved for Refusal, against Officer’s recommendation, on the 
grounds that the details available were insufficient. The changes were minor 
changes to the windows. The PC recognised that the pub was no longer viable, 
however they would like to see the front elevation maintained.  
 
This was seconded by Cllr Hewitt 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included, the proposed alterations 
were minor. 
 
The Committee voted on the motion of Refusal, against Officer’s 
recommendation. The motion was not carried. 
 
Cllr Devine moved for approval in line with Officer’s recommendation. 
 
This was seconded by Cllr Hocking 
 
The members voted on the motion of approval. 
 
Resolved 
That planning permission for application 17/06148/VAR be Approved, with 
the following conditions: 
 

Page 231



 
 
 

 
 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans: 
 
Drawing number 1314160-17-Revision B dated 08.08.17, as deposited with the 
local planning authority on 11.08.17, and 
Drawing number 1314160-08-Revision E dated 26.03.15, as deposited with the 
local planning authority on 13.11.15, and 
Drawing number 1314160-10-Revision C dated 26.03.15, as deposited with the 
local planning authority on 13.11.15, and 
Drawing number 1314160-16 dated 09.11.15, as deposited with the local planning 
authority on 13.11.15, and 
Drawing number 1314160-07-Revision E dated 26.03.15, as deposited with the 
local planning authority on 13.11.15, and 
Drawing number 1314160-11-Revision C dated 26.03.15, as deposited with the 
local planning authority on 03.08.15. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
3. No development shall commence on site until a construction methodology (i.e. 
details of coursing, capping etc) and exact details of the materials to be used for 
the external stone wall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is 
required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, in the interests of visual amenity, the character and setting of listed 
building(s) and the existing character of the surrounding conservation area 
 
4. No development shall commence on site until details consisting of large scale 
drawings to include horizontal and vertical sections of all new and any 
replacement windows (including head, sill and window reveal details), doors and 
rooflight windows, together with appropriate details of any new or replacement 
rainwater goods have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is 
required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, in the interests of visual amenity, the character and setting of listed 
building(s) and the existing character of the surrounding conservation area 
 

Page 232



 
 
 

 
 
 

5. No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or Public 
Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 on weekdays and 08:00 to 13:00 
on Saturdays. No burning of waste shall take place on the site during the 
construction phase of the development. 
 
REASON: In the interests of neighbouring amenities 
 
6. The development shall be constructed in strict accordance with the mitigation 
plan detailed in Appendices E and F of the submitted Phase II Bat Survey, The 
Crown Inn, Tisbury document produced by David Leach Ecology Ltd., dated 
September 2015. No external lighting will spill onto the roof of the building or 
onto adjacent flight corridors such as hedgerows or tree lines. 
 
Reason: In the interests of nature conservation and to prevent undue impacts on 
protected species. 
 
7. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the discharge of 
surface water from the site (including surface water from the access/parking 
area), incorporating sustainable drainage details together with permeability test 
results to BRE365, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The development shall not be first occupied until surface 
water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 
8. No development shall commence on site until a sample panel of render, not 
less than 1 metre square, has been constructed on site, inspected and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The panel shall then be left in 
position for comparison whilst the development is carried out. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved sample. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of 
the area. 
 
CIL INFORMATIVE: 
 
The proposed development could be subject to the Community Infrastructure 
Levy.  Wiltshire Council has now adopted a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
charging schedule.  CIL is a charge that local authorities can place on new 
development in their area.  The money generated through CIL will contribute to 
the funding of infrastructure to support growth.  Wiltshire Council is on course 
to adopt CIL in early summer of 2015.   
 
If the proposed development is liable for CIL, you (or whoever has assumed 
liability for the development) would be liable to make payment to Wiltshire 
Council for this type of development.  More information and the charging 
schedule for CIL can be found using the following link:  
 
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/dmcommunityinfrastructur
elevy.htm 
 

 
Resolved 

Page 233



 
 
 

 
 
 

That planning permission for application 17/06159/LBC be Approved with 
the following conditions: 
 
1. The works for which Listed Building Consent is hereby granted shall be begun 
before the expiration of three years from the date of this consent. 
 
REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 18 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans: 
 
Drawing number 1314160-17-Revision B dated 08.08.17, as deposited with the 
local planning authority on 11.08.17, and 
Drawing number 1314160-08-Revision E dated 26.03.15, as deposited with the 
local planning authority on 13.11.15, and 
Drawing number 1314160-10-Revision C dated 26.03.15, as deposited with the 
local planning authority on 13.11.15, and 
Drawing number 1314160-16 dated 09.11.15, as deposited with the local planning 
authority on 13.11.15, and 
Drawing number 1314160-07-Revision E dated 26.03.15, as deposited with the 
local planning authority on 13.11.15, and 
Drawing number 1314160-11-Revision C dated 26.03.15, as deposited with the 
local planning authority on 03.08.15. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 
3. No development shall commence on site until details consisting of large scale 
drawings to include horizontal and vertical sections of all new and any 
replacement windows (including head, sill and window reveal details), doors and 
rooflight windows, together with appropriate details of any new or replacement 
rainwater goods have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is 
required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, in the interests of visual amenity, the character and setting of listed 
building(s) and the existing character of the surrounding conservation area 
 
4. No development shall commence on site until a sample panel of render, not 
less than 1 metre square, has been constructed on site, inspected and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The panel shall then be left in 
position for comparison whilst the development is carried out. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved sample. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of 
the area. 
 
 

Page 234



 
 
 

 
 
 

213 17/07765/VAR - Shaftesbury Drove, Harnham, SP2 8QH 
 
Public Speakers 
Mr Stephen Berry spoke in objection to the application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Warren Simmonds  introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for a variation of Condition 2 of 
13/05402/FUL relating to approved plans, be approved with conditions as 
detailed in the report. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer. It was clarified that plots 1 & 2 had no garages, and plots 4 & 5 
could access their back gardens through their garages. 
 
The site was cut in to the hill side and was a lower level than the surrounding 
properties. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their view to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Cllr Brain Dalton then spoke in objection to the 
application, noting that the inspector had previously overturned the committees 
earlier decision, to give the original development permission, with associated 
conditions. Those conditions were more favourable than the alterations being 
proposed. The work to build the garages had already started without waiting for 
permission. The garages would not be used as garages and he felt that the 
hipped roofs were more attractive.  
 
Cllr Dalton then moved for Refusal, against Officer’s recommendation. 
 
This was seconded by Cllr Devine. 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included, that the alterations 
included the parts which had been removed for the appeal to go through. 
 
The proposal now was massively cramped, with every space taken up with a 
garage or sun room. It was felt that there would be a parking issue here, as the 
garages would not be used for the cars, and therefore the cars would park 
elsewhere. However, there were still 2 parking places per property as the 
garage did count as one, and so the proposals met the criteria for parking. 
 
The garages join up the properties and makes the development appear as one 
whole mass. This was considered as over development. 
 
The Committee voted on the motion of Refusal. 
 
Resolved 
That planning permission for application 17/07765/VAR be Refused 
against   Officer’s recommendation, for the following reasons: 
 

Page 235



 
 
 

 
 
 

The proposed variations to the previously approved scheme would result 
in an increased scale and mass that it is considered would reduce the 
overall quality of the design of the development and would constitute an 
overdevelopment of the site. Additionally, the proposed amendments to 
the previously approved roof forms would increase the mass and 
perceived visual impact of the development and would be thereby out of 
keeping with the existing character of the surrounding area. In these 
respects the proposal is considered contrary to Core Policy CP57 of the 
adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy and the aims and objectives of the NPPF 
& NPPG 
 
 

214 17/05583/DP3 - The Stonehenge School, Antrobus Road, Amesbury, SP4 
7ND 
 
Public Speakers 
Ian Simpson spoke in objection of the application 
Suzanne Gough spoke in support to the application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Georgina Wright, introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for a two-phase expansion of Stonehenge 
School:  
Phase 1 - new building, additional parking spaces, covered canopy link between 
existing Upper School and new building, fencing and resurfacing to provide all-
weather training facility, separate small fenced games court, and associated 
landscaping.  
Phase 2  - new building, demolition of Lower School building and creation of 
new playing field and car park, improvements to Lower School car park, and 
associated landscaping, be approved with conditions, as detailed in the report. 
 
There would also be separate in and out access arrangement and possibly a 
bus link through the site. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer. It was clarified that the flat roof design would meet the standards 
required to withstand rainfall.  
 
The main reason for the required digging down on the site was to try and 
reduce the bulk of the development in relation to the neighbouring properties. 
 
It was noted that it was for the education authority to decide if the development 
was value for money. 
 
The arboriculture report had been amended in response to the Tree Officers 
report, however there was not the capacity to provide a like for like replacement. 
 
The Holders Road recreation ground site had also been considered as a 
possible site, and had been declared as not viable.  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their view to the 

Page 236



 
 
 

 
 
 

Committee as detailed above. 
 
Concern was noted regarding the suggestion that insufficient work had been 
carried out on the ground works of the site, with the plans to remove and relay a 
new pipe under the field. It was noted that the route of the realigned pipe was 
not for planning to consider, it was for Wessex Water to plan that. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Cllr Westmoreland was not in attendance to 
speak.  
 
As neighbouring ward Member, Cllr Yuill spoke on the application, he noted that 
the local Member, Cllr Westmoreland had believed that whilst funding was 
available for phase 1 it was not yet available for phase 2. He asked whether any 
timescales could be made available for the phase 2 works. This was not 
possible at the moment as they were not in a positon to move forward with 
phase 2. 
 
He hoped the Holders Road facility would be safeguarded, as he felt that there 
were not enough areas for recreation in Amesbury. 
 
Cllr Yuill then moved for Approval, in line with Officer’s recommendation.  
 
This was seconded by Cllr Devine. 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included, that if after phase 1 was 
complete, the project was not ready to move on to phase 2, there would be an 
interim loss of the playing field until the phase 2, however they already had over 
what was required. 
 
A community use agreement would be produced within 12 months of approval, 
this would permit the wider public having access to the sports facilities.  
 
The Committee voted on the motion of approval, subject to conditions. 
 
Resolved 
That planning permission for application 17/05583/DP3 be approved in line 
with Officer’s recommendation, with the following conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
 REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town 

and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plans:  
 
 Application Form & Certificate 

Page 237



 
 
 

 
 
 

 Ref: E-100 P07 – Elevations – Planning Phase 1.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: E-200 P06 – Elevations – Planning Phase 2.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-0-20 P03 – Block 2 – Lower School – Ground Floor Plan.  
Received – 03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-0-21 P04 – Block 1 – Upper School – Ground Floor Plan.  
Received – 03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-0-30 P03 – Lower School – Ground Floor Plan Phase 1 Works.  
Received – 03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-0-33 P03 – Upper School – Ground Floor Plan Phase 1 Works.  
Received – 03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-0-100 P04 – Ground Floor Plan – Planning Phase 1.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-0-200 P06 – Ground Floor Plan – Planning Phase 2.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-1-20 P03 – Block 2 – Lower School – First Floor Plan.  Received 
– 03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-1-33 P05 – Upper School – First Floor Plan Alterations.  
Received – 03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-1-100 P04 – First Floor Plan – Planning Phase 1.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-1-200 P04 – First Floor Plan Planning – Phase 2.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-1-21 P04 – Block 1 – Upper School – First Floor Plan.  Received 
– 03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-R-100 P03 – Roof Plan – Planning Phase 1.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-R-200 P04 – Roof Plan – Planning Phase 2.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-Site-01 P04 – Location Plan.  Received – 03.07.2017 
 Ref: P-Site-110 T03 – Proposed Site Plan Phase 1.  Received – 

21.09.2017 
 Ref: P-Site-111 T02 – Proposed Site Plan A Phase 1.  Received – 

21.09.2017 
 Ref: P-Site-112 T02 – Proposed Site Plan_B Phase 1.  Received – 

21.09.2017 
 Ref: P-Site-113 T04 – Proposed Site Plan_C Phase 1.  Received – 

21.09.2017 
 Ref: P-Site-114 T02 – Proposed Site Plan_Fence Types_A Phase 1.  

Received – 21.09.2017 
 Ref: P-Site-115 T04 – Proposed Site Plan_Fence Types/Levels Phase 1 

drg B.  Received – 21.09.2017 
 Ref: P-Site-116 P05 – Proposed Site Plan_Fence Types/Levels Phase 

1_drg C.  Received – 03.07.2017 
 Ref: P-Site-123 P03 – Phase 1 Construction Access & Facilities Plan 

C.  Received – 03.07.2017 
 Ref: P-Site-210 P09 – Proposed Site Plan Phase 2.  Received – 

21.09.2017 

Page 238



 
 
 

 
 
 

 Ref: P-Site-211 P09 – Proposed Site Plan – A Phase 2.  Received – 
21.09.2017 

 Ref: P-Site-212 P09 – Proposed Site Plan – B Phase 2.  Received – 
21.09.2017 

 Ref: P-Site-213 P10 – Proposed Site Plan – C Phase 2.  Received – 
21.09.2017 

 Ref: P-Site-215 P03 – Proposed Site Plan A – Phase 2 Fencing.  
Received – 21.09.2017  

 Ref: P-Site-216 P03 – Proposed Site Plan B – Fencing & Levels Phase 
2 drg B.  Received – 21.09.2017 

 Ref: P-Site-221 P02 – Phase 2 Construction Access & Facilities Plan 
A.  Received – 03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-Site-223 P03 – Phase 2 Construction Access & Facilities Plan 
C.  Received – 03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-Site-222 P03 – Phase 2 Construction Access & Facilities Plan 
B.  Received – 03.07.2017 

 Ref: P-Site-223 P03 – Phase 2 Construction Access & Facilities Plan 
C.  Received – 03.07.2017 

 Ref: S-Site-100 P05 – Site Sectional Elevations.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: S-Site-101 P03 – Site Sectional Elevations.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: S-Site-105 P02 – Site Sections – Surrounding Properties.  
Received – 03.07.2017 

 Ref: SK-10 P03 – 3D View – Ground Floor – Phase 1.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: SK-11 P03 – 3D View – First Floor – Phase 1.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: SK-12 P02 – 3D View – Ground Floor – Phase 2.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: SK-13 P02 – 3D View – First Floor – Phase 2.  Received – 
03.07.2017 

 Ref: SK-100 P04 – Section Planning – Phase 1.  Received – 03.07.2017 
 Ref: SK-200 P03 – Sections Plans – Phase 2.  Received – 03.07.2017 
 Ref: 416.00210.00029 Rev A – Plant Schedule Phase 1 and 2.  

Received – 03.07.2017 
 Ref: 416.00210.00029.29.002.2 – Landscape Strategy: Phase 1.  

Received – 28.09.2017 
 Ref: 416.00210.00029.29.003.3 – Landscape Strategy: Phase 2.  

Received – 28.09.2017 
 
 REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 

planning. 
 
3. No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 

samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details. 

 

Page 239



 
 
 

 
 
 

 REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order that the 
development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests 
of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the area. 

 
4. No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or 

Public Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to 
Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays.  

 
 REASON: In the interests of neighbouring amenities 
 
5. No burning of waste or other materials shall take place on the development 

site during the demolition/construction phase of the development. 
 

 REASON: In the interests of neighbouring amenities 
 
6. The emergency vehicle access alongside the north-east side of the 

Phase 1 Building shall at all times be closed to motor vehicle use by 
fixed and removable bollards as indicated on drawing number P-
Site/113/T04, except at those times when the access is in use by 
emergency or maintenance vehicles. 

 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety.  

 
7. Prior to the occupation of the Phase 2 Building, the 23 space car 

parking area and the mini bus parking area, identified adjacent to the 
proposed sports pitches (near the Antrobus Road entrance), shall 
have been laid out in accordance with the approved plans and shall 
thereafter be maintained and kept available for the parking of 
vehicles.     

 
REASON: In the interests of providing safe and convenient car 
parking for the users of the development.    

 
8. Prior to the occupation of the Phase 1 Building, the Phase 1 cycle 

shelter shown on plan number P-Site-112/T02, and the 3 cycle hoops 
wall brackets near to the main reception, shall be provided in 
accordance with the approved plans and shall thereafter be 
maintained and kept available for the parking of cycles.    

 
REASON: In the interests of providing safe and convenient cycle 
parking for the users of the development.    

 
9. Prior to the occupation of the Phase 2 Building, the Phase 2 cycle 

shelter shown on plan P-Site-210/P09 shall be provided in 
accordance with the approved plans and shall thereafter be 
maintained and kept available for the parking of cycles.     

 

Page 240



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: In the interests of providing safe and convenient cycle 
parking for the users of the development.    

 
10. Prior to the occupation of the Phase 2 Building, details of the 

proposed one-way system through the site from Holders Road to 
Antrobus Road shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include improvements to 
the Antrobus Road spur leading into the school entrance from the 
main section of Antrobus Road; footway widening or the introduction 
of a “pedestrian friendly”; and a timetable for its implementation.  
The development shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details and retained/maintained as such in perpetuity. 

  
 REASON: In the interests of safe and convenient access to the site.     
 
11. Notwithstanding the submitted Travel Plan, no development shall 

commence on site until a revised travel plan taking on board the 
comments made by the Council’s Travel Plan Coordinator, has been 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The School Travel Plan shall include details of implementation and 
monitoring and shall be implemented in accordance with these 
agreed details. The results of the implementation and monitoring 
shall be made available to the Local Planning Authority on request, 
together with any changes to the plan arising from these results.  

 
 REASON: In the interests of road safety and reducing private car 

movements to and from the school. 
 

Page 241



 
 
 

 
 
 

12. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the discharge 
of foul water from the site, including diversion of existing sewers and 
improvement works to public system, has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the sewerage 
undertaker.  The foul water drainage scheme shall be constructed in 
accordance with the agreed details prior to the occupation of the building 
hereby approved. 

 
 REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 

matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained 

 
13. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the discharge 

of surface water from the site (including surface water from the access / 
driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details together with 
permeability test results to BRE365 and location of top ground water level, 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The surface water drainage scheme shall be constructed in 
accordance with the agreed details prior to the occupation of the building 
hereby approved. 

 
 REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 

matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained 

 

14. No development of the Artificial Grass Pitch hereby approved shall 
commence until details of the design and layout of the pitch have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority in consultation with Sport England. The Artificial Grass 
Pitch shall be constructed in strict accordance with the approved 
details and maintained as such in perpetuity. 

 
 REASON: To ensure the development is fit for purpose and 

sustainable 
 
15.  Before the Artificial Grass Pitch and Natural Turf Pitch hereby 

approved are first brought into use, a Management and Maintenance 
Scheme for the facility including management responsibilities, a 
maintenance schedule and a mechanism for review, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
in consultation with Sport England. The management and 
maintenance scheme for the Artificial Grass Pitches should also 
include measures to ensure the replacement of the Artificial Grass 
Pitch within the manufacturer’s specified period. The Artificial Grass 
Pitch and Natural Turf Pitch shall be used and maintained in full 
accordance with the agreed details at all times. 

Page 242



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 REASON: To ensure that a new facilities are capable of being 

managed and maintained to deliver facilities which is fit for purpose, 
sustainable and to ensure sufficient benefit of the development to 
sport  

  
16. Within 12 months of the date of this permission, a community use 

agreement prepared in consultation with Sport England shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The agreement shall apply to all of the sports facilities 
identified in both Phase 1 and Phase 2 hereby approved, and shall 
include details of pricing policy, hours of use, access by non-
educational establishment user’s, management responsibilities and a 
mechanism for review.  The development shall be used in strict 
compliance with the approved agreement.   

 
 REASON: To secure well managed safe community access to the 

sports facility/facilities, to ensure sufficient benefit to the 
development of sport 

  
 17. The playing field and pitch shall be constructed and laid out in 

accordance with the approved drawings and in accordance with the 
standards and methodologies set out in the guidance note "Natural 
Turf for Sport" (Sport England, 2011).   The playing field and pitch 
shall be made available for use at the recommendation of the 
agronomist hereby permitted. 

 
 REASON: To ensure the quality of pitches is satisfactory  

 
18. No demolition of any of the current buildings shall occur on the site, 

until the buildings have been re-assessed by a suitably qualified 
ecologist for the presence of bats.  the findings and if necessary any 
necessary mitigation measures shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority before any demolition takes 
place on the site.  The demolition works shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the agreed details. 

 
REASON: Whilst the buildings are currently found to be acceptable 
for demolition, once empty and disused the buildings may 
deteriorate and opportunities may develop for bats to roost within 
the structure.  It is therefore necessary to resurvey the buildings in 
the interests of ecology and protected species. 

19. No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on 
site until an updated/corrected Arboricultural Method Statement and 
revised Tree Protection Plan, prepared by an Arboricultural 
consultant, providing comprehensive details of construction works 
in relation to trees has been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by, the Local Planning Authority.  All works shall subsequently be 
carried out in strict accordance with the approved details. 

 

Page 243



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order that the 
development is undertaken in an  acceptable  manner,  in  order  that  
the  Local  Planning  Authority  may  be satisfied that the trees to be 
retained on and adjacent to the site will not be damaged during the 
construction works and to ensure that as far as possible the work is 
carried out in accordance with current best practice and section 197 
of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
20. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re- enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no windows, doors or other form of openings other 
than those shown on the approved plans, shall be inserted in the 
North Eastern or North Western elevations of the Phase 1 and Phase 
2 Buildings hereby permitted. 

 
 REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy 
 
INFORMATIVES: 
1) Please note that the spur road improvements that will be required in order 

to satisfy condition 10 will also require the completion of a Section 278 
Agreement.  
 

2) Please note that the granting of this permission does not override or give 
overriding permission for any works that are governed by other legislation 
or other legal requirements, for example in relation to the proposed 
diversion of the public sewer pipe. 

 
 
 

215 17/04897/FUL - 92a Queen Alexandra Road, Salisbury, SP2 9LB 
 
Public Speakers 
Dave Hacker spoke in objection of the application 
Jack Holloway spoke in objection to the application 
Philip Holdcroft spoke in support of the application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer Lucy Minting, introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for the demolition of existing buildings & 
erect two No.3 bed houses & two No.2 bed bungalows with parking, be 
approved with conditions, as detailed in the report. 
 
The development included 9 parking spaces which amounted to 2 for each 
dwelling and one for visitors, positioned in the driveway. 
 
The previously refused scheme had gone to appeal and was dismissed by the 
inspector. That report was a material consideration.  

Page 244



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer. It was clarified that it was not necessary to condition the 
ownership of the shared driveway. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their view to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
It was noted that the current tenant had witnessed hedgehogs and other wildlife 
in the grounds of the development site. However there was no specific 
requirement to have an ecology study, this could be included as an informative. 
 
The removal of one dwelling increased the separation distances and mass of 
the heights of the buildings. The dwellings would all benefit from good sized 
gardens. 
 
There had been no objections from key consultees and the scheme was 
compliant with development plan policies. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Cllr John Walsh then spoke in objection to the 
application, noting that the small route down from Queen Alexander Road was 
not relative, but it was the route to Wellington Way. The road in the evening was 
busy with parked cars. The developer was hungry to cram houses into this 
space. 
 
Despite this application being an improvement on what had been put forward 
before, he felt that only two houses would be better on this plot. 
 
He stated that Salisbury City Council was not happy with the double parking, 
and added that the problems would be worse in the evening when people 
returned home from work and parked their cars. 
 
He felt that the proposal was overdevelopment, and was detrimental to wildlife 
and residents. 
 
Cllr Devine then moved for Approval in line with Officer’s recommendation. 
Noting that there was a duty of responsibility for the endangered species, 
however this has been to appeal, the inspector had made some pertinent points 
and the  applicant had listened to that and brought back a revised application. 
 
This was seconded by Cllr McLennan. A debate followed. 
 
The Committee voted on the motion of approval subject to conditions. 
 
Resolved 
That planning permission for application 17/04897/FUL be approved in line 
with Officer’s recommendation, with the following conditions: 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 

Page 245



 
 
 

 
 
 

of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
Plan Reference: 8745/200 Site, Block and Location Plans and Indicative 
Street Scene Rev D, dated 06/09/2017, received by this office 06/09/2017 
Plan Reference: 8745/204 Unit 4 Plans and Elevations Rev A, dated 
11/05/2017, received by this office 06/06/2017 
Plan Reference: 8745/203 Unit 3 Plans and Elevations Rev A, dated 
11/05/2017, received by this office 06/06/2017 
Plan Reference: 8745/202 Unit 2 Plans and Elevations, dated October 
2016, received by this office 06/06/2017 
Plan Reference: 8745/201 Unit 1 Plans and Elevations, dated October 
2016, received by this office 06/06/2017 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

3 No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before  development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area. 
 

4 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft 
landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:- 
location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and hedgerows 
on the land; 
full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the course of development; 
a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes and planting densities; 
means of enclosure; and 
all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 

Page 246



 
 
 

 
 
 

5 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the dwelling or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by 
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five 
years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall 
be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape 
features. 
 

6 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the accesses/driveway, incorporating 
sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. The development shall not be 
first occupied until surface water drainage has been constructed in 
accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 

7 The development herby permitted shall not be first occupied until the 
whole of the parking area serving Plots 1-2, measured from the back of 
the footway, together with the first five metres of the access drive to 
Plots 3 & 4, has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or 
gravel). These areas shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

8 The gradient of the access/parking areas serving Plots 1-2 and the 
access driveway serving Plots 3 & 4 shall not at any point be steeper 
than 1 in 15 for a distance of five metres from their junctions with the 
public highway. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

9 No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or 
Public Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday 
and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays. 
REASON: To protect the amenity of nearby residents. 
 

10 The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes. The dwellings shall not be first occupied until evidence has been 
issued and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning 
authority certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development 
equal or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 

Page 247



 
 
 

 
 
 

Strategy are achieved. 
 

11 The first floor windows in the North East and South West Elevations of 
plots 1 and 2 shall be glazed with obscure glass only and fitted to be top 
hung only or fixed with a ventilation stay restricting the opening of the 
window prior to the first occupation of the development hereby 
permitted and shall be permanently maintained as such in perpetuity. 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 

12 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), there shall be no additions to, or extensions or 
enlargements of any building forming part of the development hereby 
permitted. 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 

13 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, or the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order 
with or without modification), there shall be no windows or other forms 
of openings inserted above ground floor level in the side elevations of 
units 1 or 2 of the development hereby permitted. 
REASON: To secure adequate standards of privacy for the occupants of 
neighbouring premises. 
 

14 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no garages, sheds, greenhouses and other ancillary 
domestic outbuildings shall be erected anywhere on the site on the 
approved plans. 
REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Community Infrastructure Levy 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL 
Charging Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, 
a Liability Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL 
payment due. If an Additional Information Form has not already been 
submitted, please submit it now so that we can determine the CIL 
liability. In addition, you may be able to claim exemption or relief, in 
which case, please submit the relevant form so that we can determine 
your eligibility. The CIL Commencement Notice and Assumption of 
Liability must be submitted to Wiltshire Council prior to commencement 
of development. Should development commence prior to the CIL 
Liability Notice being issued by the local planning authority, any CIL 

Page 248



 
 
 

 
 
 

exemption or relief will not apply and full payment will be required in full 
and with immediate effect. Should you require further information or to 
download the CIL forms please refer to the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communi
tyinfrastructurelevy. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Surface Water and Foul Drainage 
The application form states foul drainage disposal will be main sewer via 
an existing connection – the applicant will need to investigate the 
location of existing foul drainage system and pipework within the site as 
there may be S105A public sewers crossing the site which would 
prevent the layout shown thus requiring a layout change or permission 
from Wessex Water to divert. 
The application form states storm water drainage disposal to be via a 
soakaway – this could be an issue due to the high ground water level – 
any soakaway MUST have at least 1m of unsaturated soil between the 
base of any soakaway and the agreed top water level of the ground water 
taking into account seasonal variations. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Works on the highway 
The consent hereby permitted shall not be construed as authority to 
carry out works on the highway. The applicant is advised that a licence 
will be required from the local highway authority before any works are 
carried out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land 
forming part of the highway. Please contact the Council’s Vehicle 
Crossing Team on vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk and/or 01225 713352. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Environmental Protection Act 1990 
The applicant should be aware that Councils must investigate 
complaints about issues that could be a 'statutory nuisance' (a nuisance 
covered by the Environmental Protection Act 1990). If a complaint of 
statutory nuisance is justified an Abatement Notice can be served upon 
the person responsible, occupier or owner of the premises requiring that 
the nuisance be abated. 
In light of this legislation, the Public Protection team recommend the 
following: 
No burning of waste or other materials shall take place on the 
development site during the demolition/construction phase of the 
development. 
Measures should be taken to reduce and manage the emission of dust 
during the demolition and/or construction phase of the development. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Asbestos 
Any asbestos should only be removed by a licenced contractor 
Asbestos waste is classified as 'special waste' and as such, can only be 
disposed of at a site licensed by the Environment Agency. Any 
contractor used must also be licensed to carry 'special waste'. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Material Samples 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive 

Page 249



 
 
 

 
 
 

material samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the 
Planning Officer where they are to be found. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Protected Species 
The applicant should note that under the terms of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act (1981) and the Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an 
offence to disturb or harm any protected species, or to damage or 
disturb their habitat or resting place.  Please note that this consent does 
not override the statutory protection afforded to any such species.  In 
the event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected 
species you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified and 
experienced ecologist and consider the need for a licence from Natural 
England prior to commencing works.  Please see Natural England's 
website for further information on protected species. 

 
216 17/07475/FUL - Caddens, Lower Road, Homington, SP5 4NG 

 
Public Speakers 
Jane Gregory spoke in objection of the application 
David Sharpe spoke in support to the application 
James Butcher spoke in support of the application 
Jane Gregory read the statement of Hommington Parish Council.  
 
The Planning Officer, Joe Richardson introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for extensions, alterations and construction 
of replacement garage, be approved with conditions, as detailed in the report. 
 
Some works had already taken place, in the installation of the gates to the 
dwelling. The proposed garage had also been moved back in line with the 
dwelling. 
 
Attention was drawn to the late correspondence received from a member of the 
public, which had been circulated at the meeting. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer. It was clarified that there would be a linkway to the proposed 
double garage from the main dwelling. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their view to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Cllr Richard Clewer then spoke in objection to the 
application, noting that it had been called in at the request of the parish council 
and a number of residents who still had concern about the design and style of 
the proposal. 
 
The scale and size had been the main concerns, as this was a small village, 
with not many large buildings in the village. Its was not an urban area, and 
some comments had raised concern that the design was too urban.  
 

Page 250



 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr Devine then moved for Approval, in line with Officer’s recommendation. 
This was seconded by Cllr Hewitt 
  
A debate followed where key issues raised included,  
 
the conservation officer had given a thorough report which concluded that this 
was an awful development and should not be built. There had been little or no 
concerns from Highways. 
 
What was the purpose in protecting these special areas of AONB if we did not 
protect them from unsuitable developments. 
 
 
Resolved 
That planning permission for application 17/07475/FUL be approved in line 
with Officer’s recommendation, with the following conditions: 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans:  
 
DWG No: 216083/01 Rev B Site Location Plan and Proposed Block Plan 
Date Received 01.08.17 
DWG No: 216083/04 Rev B Proposed Floor Plans Date Received 01.08.17 
DWG No: 216083/05 Rev B Proposed Front and Rear Elevation and Side 
Garage Elevations Date Received 01.08.17 
DWG No: 216083/06 Rev B Proposed Side (East and West) Elevations 
and South Section Date Received 01.08.17 
DWG No: 216083/07 Rev B Proposed Street Scene Elevation Date 
Received 01.08.17 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3 Notwithstanding the approved drawings, no works shall commence in 
relation to those matters below  until details of the following have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
 
(i) Approval of the roofing materials to be used on the development 
hereby permitted; 
(ii) A sample panel of the proposed brick (in Flemish Bond) is 
constructed on site and left as a reference panel with the Local Planning 
Authority to approve the choice of brick, colour of mortar and finish of 

Page 251



 
 
 

 
 
 

pointing; 
(iii) A brick string course is added to the front elevation of the dwelling 
house with a sectional drawing submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority before the commencement of works. 
(iv) A section drawing at a scale of 1:5 shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority showing the profile 
and means of fitting of the rainwater goods to the development hereby 
permitted. 
(v) Window lintels will be pre-fabricated gauged bricks (4 course deep) 
and  detail will be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for 
approval; 
(vi)The cills to the front elevation windows to be constructed with Bath 
stone and stooled. 
(vii)The render to be used on the external elevations will be a soft render 
and shall not have a bell mouth detail; 
(viii) A detailed drawing of the chimney at a scale of 1:10 shall be 
submitted.  The chimney will be constructed of brick. 
 
The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of preserving the 
character and appearance of the area. 
 

4 The development hereby permitted (the enlargement of the 
dwellinghouse) shall not be first brought into use until the first five 
metres of the access, measured from the edge of the carriageway, has 
been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The access 
shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
 

5 No part of the development (the enlarged dwelling) hereby permitted 
shall be first brought into use until the access, turning area and parking 
spaces have been completed in accordance with the details shown on 
the approved plans. The areas shall be maintained for those purposes at 
all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

6 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), the garage hereby permitted shall not be converted to 
habitable accommodation. 
 
REASON:  To secure the retention of adequate parking provision and to 
limit the residential conversion of the garage space, in the interests of 

Page 252



 
 
 

 
 
 

highway safety and amenity. 
 

7 Works associated with the construction of the development hereby 
permitted  shall only take place between the hours of 08:00 to 17:00 from 
Mondays to Fridays and between the hours of 08:00 to 13:00 and on 
Saturdays.  No construction works associated with the development 
hereby permitted shall take place at any time on Sundays and on Bank 
or Public Holidays. 
 
REASON:  To ensure the creation/retention of an environment free from 
intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the 
area. 
 
 
 

 
217 Urgent Items 

 
There were no urgent items 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 6.40 pm – 6.40pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Lisa Moore of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01722) 434560, e-mail lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 253



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 254



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 16 NOVEMBER 2017 AT ALAMEIN SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE LANE, 
SALISBURY, SP2 7TU. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman), Cllr Richard Britton (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Christopher Devine, Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Sven Hocking, 
Cllr George Jeans, Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr John Smale, Cllr Trevor Carbin 
(Substitute) and Cllr Robert Yuill (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Jose Green 
  

 
218 Apologies 

 
Apologies had been received from: 
 

 Cllr Brian Dalton – substituted by Cllr Trevor Carbin 

 Cllr Jose Green – substituted by Cllr Robert Yuill 

 Cllr John Smale 
 

219 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 19 October 2017, were 
presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

220 Declarations of Interest 
 
The following declarations were made: 
 

 With regards to item 6 – Whiteparish Path No. 41, RoW Modification 
Order, Cllr Richard Britton noted that he was acquainted with the land 
owner of Mean Wood, but that his relationship was not prejudicial, so 
was able to take part in the discussion and vote on that application. 

 

Page 255

Agenda Item 24



 
 
 

 
 
 

 Cllr Chris Devine noted that he was not a land owner. 
 
 

221 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman explained the meeting procedure to the members of the public. 
 

222 Public Participation 
 
The committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

223 Whiteparish Path No. 41 Rights of Way Modification Order 2017 
 
Public Speakers 
Andrew Lax spoke in support of the Order 
Cllr Trevor King, Chairman of Whiteparish Parish Council spoke in objection to 
the order. 
 
The Rights of Way Officer, Sally Madgwick introduced the report which set out 
the Whiteparish Path No. 41 Rights of Way Modification Order 2017. It was 
recommended that the Order be forwarded to the Secretary of State for 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs and that Wiltshire Council supports the 
confirmation of the Order as made. 
 
It was noted that there was already a public footpath in this area, which was 
well maintained. The suggested path had been featured on the internet on a 
walking website. There had been evidence from users, who claimed to have 
used the route without permission, with no force or secrecy. The period of use 
for consideration was 1992 – 2012. There were no signs to inform people to 
keep out. The parish council had always regarded it as a permissive path, 
however no reference from the parish minutes had been forthcoming to support 
this claim.  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer, it was noted that the committee were able to vote to either 
support of not to support the Order, however there would need to be supporting 
evidence not to support it. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Parish raised the point that there would be no reason to expect to see any 
reference in the parish minutes to the path, when it had always been private 
land with a permissive path. Before this application came forward, there had 
been no reason to discuss Mean Wood. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Councillor Richard Britton then spoke, noting his 
frustration with the way the legislation disadvantages the land owner. Adding 
that after many years of free use by the public to enjoy particular locations, with 

Page 256



 
 
 

 
 
 

seeming ease, a group of members of the public can put together evidence of 
use over a period and the land owner has no way to stop this. T 
 
He felt that the fact that there was nothing in the minutes, echo’s that the land 
owner did nothing to stop the use. The members of the parish council did not 
need to record this in the minutes or discuss it.  
 
Suggesting that maybe parish councils ought to minute any routes that seem as 
permissive, and make the land owners aware of it. 
 
Cllr Britton chose to defer making a motion to the Chairman.  
 
The Chairman, noted that there may be little value in debating the issue, unless 
Members could produce some substantial evidence. He then moved the motion 
to support the order in going forward to the Secretary of State for approval. 
 
This motion was seconded by Cllr Mike Hewitt. 
 
A debate then followed, where it was raised that there was a Rights of Way Act 
that lets people use paths like these.  
 
The Committee then voted on the motion to support the Order as made. 
 
Resolved 
To support the Whiteparish Path No. 41 Rights of Way Modification Order 
2017 as made and forward it to the Secretary of State for Environment, 
Food and Rural Affairs. 
 
 

224 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The committee received details of the appeal decisions as detailed in the 
agenda for the period 06/10/2017 to 03/11/2017. 
 
It was noted that the table detailed application 17/03525/FUL, which was in 
Tidworth and was not part of the Southern Area. 
 
Resolved 
To note the update. 
 
 

225 Planning Applications 
226 17/08365/FUL - Longs Farm, Sutton Mandeville SP3 5LT 

 
Public Speakers 
Mr Willis spoke in objection to the application 
Suzanne Keen spoke in objection to the application 
Kathryn Billing spoke in objection to the application 
Rachel Yeomans spoke in support of the application 
Mrs Kate Whyte spoke in support of the application 

Page 257



 
 
 

 
 
 

Mr Howard Smith spoke in support to the application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Warren Simmonds introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for the proposed demolition of existing 
redundant buildings and its replacement with four tourist accommodation units 
together with associated works (Amended scheme following withdrawal of 
application 16/10495/FUL). 
 
It was noted that access to the site was from a public highway from the north.  
The existing buildings on the site were in a dilapidated condition, with some 
falling down.  
 
Each of the four dwellings would have allocated cycle storage and two parking 
spaces, with a further 3 additional car parking spaces to be shared by the site. 
 
There had been 59 representations made by third parties, 35 in objection and 
23 in support. 
 
There had been no objections from Highways or Spatial planning, however the  
AONB had raised a number of concerns. 
 
There had been a deal of debate over how CP39 should be interpreted.  
 
Attention was drawn to the late correspondence circulated at the meeting. A site 
visit was also held earlier in the day. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer. It 
was clarified that there was currently no policy, on the use of redundant farm 
buildings. This site was in the AONB so excluded by the permitted development 
rights. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Chairman read a statement from the parish council which indicated support 
for the application. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Councillor Jose Green (who was in attendance, 
but not sitting as a member of the Committee at this meeting). As a resident of 
Sutton Mandeville for 45 years, she was in attendance with an open mind. 
 
 
 
Cllr Green pointed out that the AONB was the sixth largest in the country out of 
46 across Britain, 380 square miles, with Tisbury as the largest settlement. 
 
The attraction to the area was diverse. The landscape and nature, were some 
of the reasons for visitors to come and stay, including film work, with 2 films 
being made in the village. 
 

Page 258



 
 
 

 
 
 

As a tourist guide for 20 years and having sat on many committees in her role 
as a councillor, including the Vision, and the AONB Management Board, all had 
mentioned a need for more bed space. 
 
The applicant had submitted 38 documents addressing the concerns raised. 
 
The Night Sky document refers not to switching lights off, but instead, about the 
right lights in the right place at the right time. 
 
There had been no objections from the statutory consultees or spatial planning. 
Cllr Green felt that the 25 conditions in the report covered all aspects of 
concern. With CP39, seen overall with CP34 and CP38, Cllr Green felt that this 
was a worthy proposal. 
 
Cllr Hewitt moved the motion of approval in line with Officers recommendation. 
This was seconded by Cllr Hocking 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included, the consideration of CP39 
and whether the five criteria were met.  
 
The Tisbury Area Strategy supported bringing tourism to the area. The 
proposed development would not be harmful to the AONB if the landscaping on 
the site was carried out properly. 
 
It was the Committees core function to assess whether applications were 
compliant with national and local policies. It was felt by some members that this 
application was compliant as evidenced in the report. There was no 
demonstrable harm to the surrounding buildings and local residents were 
unlikely to be affected, providing the application could be conditioned 
effectively.  
 
There was a need to develop tourism. There was ample evidence that a 
requirement existed in Salisbury and south Wiltshire for more beds. 
 
The policy required an association to a particular tourist attraction.  
 
People would walk around the countryside, and go to visit the Cranbourne 
chase. People would probably cycle and walk from the site as well as drive to 
other attractions around the county including Salisbury and Stonehenge. 
 
The local community and the parish council generally seemed to be in support. 
 
 
 
The Committee then voted on the motion of approval, subject to conditions. 
 
Cllr Ian McLennan requested that his objection be recorded. 
 
Resolved 

Page 259



 
 
 

 
 
 

That planning application 17/08365/FUL be approved in line with Officers 
recommendation, with the following conditions: 
 
01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
 
Drawing number PLO/25 Revision PL1 dated 09.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL003 Revision PL5 dated 23.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL002 Revision PL4 dated 23.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL004 Revision PL3 dated 23.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL001 Revision PL2 dated 09.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL009 Revision PL2 dated 23.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL005 Revision PL2 dated 09.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL006 Revision PL2 dated 09.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL016 Revision PL2 dated 09.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL007 Revision PL2 dated 09.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL015 Revision PL2 dated 09.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL018 Revision PL3 dated 15.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL017 Revision PL2 dated 09.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL008 Revision PL4 dated 15.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL011 Revision PL2 dated 09.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL013 Revision PL3 dated 15.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL010 Revision PL2 dated 09.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17, and 
Drawing number PL012 Revision PL3 dated 15.08.17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 11.09.17. 
 

Page 260



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning 
 
03. No development shall commence on site until precise details of the 
materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
04. No development shall commence on site until a sample panel of 
stonework, not less than 1 metre square, has been constructed on site, 
inspected and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
panel shall then be left in position for comparison whilst the development 
is carried out. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved sample. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
05. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include: 
  
(a) indications of all existing trees and hedgerows on the land; 
(b) details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the course of development; 
(c) all species, planting sizes and planting densities, spread of all trees 
and hedgerows within or overhanging the site, in relation to the proposed 
buildings, roads, and other works; 
(d) finished levels and contours;  
(e) means of enclosure;  
(f) car parking layouts;  
(g) other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas;  
(h) hard surfacing materials;  
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
06. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner;  All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by 
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 

Page 261



 
 
 

 
 
 

with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
07. The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into use 
until the first five metres of the each access, measured from the edge of 
the carriageway, has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or 
gravel). The accesses shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
08.  No development shall commence on site until visibility splays have 
been provided between the edge of the carriageway and a line extending 
from a point 2.4m back from the edge of the carriageway, measured along 
the centreline of each access, to the points on the edge of the carriageway 
43m to the east and 43m to the west from the centre of each access. Such 
splays shall thereafter be permanently maintained free of obstruction to 
vision above a height of 1.0m above the level of the adjacent carriageway. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
09. No development shall commence until details of a consolidated and 
surfaced vehicle turning space in respect of the eastern site access has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
No part of the development shall be first brought into use until that 
turning space has been completed in accordance with the approved 
details. Such turning space shall be thereafter maintained and kept clear 
of obstruction at all times. 
 
Reason: To enable vehicles to enter and leave the site in forward gear in 
the interests of highway safety. 
 
10. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
accesses/driveways), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
The development shall not be first brought into use until surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
11. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended by the Town 
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) 
(No.2) (England) Order 2008 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or 
amending those Orders with or without modification), no development 

Page 262



 
 
 

 
 
 

within Part 1, Classes A-E shall take place on the units of tourism 
accommodation hereby permitted or within their curtilage. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended by the Town 
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) 
(No.2) (England) Order 2008 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or 
amending that Order with or without modification), no rooflight window(s), 
other than those shown on the approved plans, shall be inserted in any 
roofslope(s) of the development hereby permitted. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 
13. No external lighting shall be installed on site other than that shown on 
the approved plans (Proposed External Lighting & Landscape Finishes 
Key, drawing number PL004 Rev.PL3 dated 23.08.17).  The lighting 
approved shall be installed and shall be maintained in accordance with 
the submitted details. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 
 
14. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
recommendations of the submitted Daytime Bat and Nesting Bird Survey 
Report (Sedgehill Ecology Services, July 2017). 
 
REASON: In the interests of protected species and nature conservation 
interests. 
 
15. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of foul water from the site has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
  
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 
16. The development shall not be first occupied until foul water drainage 
has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 
17. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access / driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details together 
with permeability test results to BRE365 at the location of any proposed 
soakaways, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.   

Page 263



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 
18. The development shall not be first occupied until surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 
19. No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or 
Public Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday 
and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays. 
 
REASON: In the interests of amenity 
 
20. No development shall commence on site until a construction 
management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority.  
  
The plan shall include details of the measures that will be taken to reduce 
and manage the emission of noise, vibration and dust during the 
demolition and/or construction phase of the development. It shall include 
details of the following:  
i.              The movement of construction vehicles; 
ii.             The cutting or other processing of building materials on site; 
iii.            Wheel washing and vehicle wash down facilities; 
iv.           The transportation and storage of waste and building materials; 
v.            The recycling of waste materials (if any) 
vi.           The loading and unloading of equipment and materials 
vii.          The location and use of generators and temporary site 
accommodation 
viii.         Pile driving (If it is to be within 200m of residential properties)  
The construction/demolition phase of the development will be carried out 
fully in accordance with the construction management plan at all times 
 
REASON: In the interests of amenity 
 
21. No development shall commence on site until an investigation of the 
history and current condition of the site to determine the likelihood of the 
existence of contamination arising from previous uses has been carried 
out and all of the following steps have been complied with to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority:  
  
Step (i)            A written report has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority which shall include details of the previous uses 
of the site for at least the last 100 years and a description of the current 
condition of the site with regard to any activities that may have caused 
contamination.  The report shall confirm whether or not it is likely that 
contamination may be present on the site. 
  

Page 264



 
 
 

 
 
 

Step (ii)            If the above report indicates that contamination may be 
present on or under the site, or if evidence of contamination is found, a 
more detailed site investigation and risk assessment should be carried 
out in accordance with DEFRA and Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination CLR11" and other 
authoritative guidance and a report detailing the site investigation and 
risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.   
  
Step (iii)           If the report submitted pursuant to step (i) or (ii) indicates 
that remedial works are required, full details shall be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority and approved in writing and thereafter 
implemented prior to the commencement of the development or in 
accordance with a timetable that has been agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority as part of the approved remediation scheme. On 
completion of any required remedial works the applicant shall provide 
written confirmation to the Local Planning Authority that the works have 
been completed in accordance with the agreed remediation strategy. 
  
REASON:  To ensure that land contamination can be dealt with adequately 
prior to the use of the site hereby approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
22. Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 
1987 and the Use Classes (Amendment) Order 2005 (or any Order 
revoking and re-enacting those Orders, with or without modification), the 
accommodation/buildings hereby permitted shall be used for holiday 
accommodation only and for no other purpose. 
 
REASON: This site is in a position where the Local Planning Authority, 
having regard to the reasonable standards of residential amenity, access, 
and planning policies pertaining to the area, would not permit permanent 
residential accommodation. 
 
23. No person shall occupy any of the holiday accommodation hereby 
permitted for a continuous period of more than 28 days in any calendar 
year and no accommodation on the site shall be reoccupied by the same 
person/s within 28 days following the end of that period. 
 
REASON: This site is in a position where the Local Planning Authority, 
having regard to the reasonable standards of residential amenity, access, 
and planning policies pertaining to the area, would not permit permanent 
residential accommodation. 
 
24. The owners/ operators of the site shall maintain an up -to -date 
register of the names of all occupiers of individual buildings on the site, 
and of their main home addresses, and shall make this information 
available at all reasonable times to the Local Planning Authority.  
 

Page 265



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: This site is in a position where the Local Planning Authority, 
having regard to the reasonable standards of residential amenity, access, 
and planning policies pertaining to the area, would not permit permanent 
residential accommodation. 
 
25. The building(s)/accommodation hereby permitted shall not be 
occupied as a persons’ sole or main place or residence. 
 
REASON: This site is in a position where the Local Planning Authority, 
having regard to the reasonable standards of residential amenity, access, 
and planning policies pertaining to the area, would not permit permanent 
residential accommodation. 
 
INFORMATIVES 
 
Highways Informative: 
The consent hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry 
out works on the highway. The applicant is advised that a licence is 
required from the local highway authority before any works are carried out 
on any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of 
the highway. Please contact the Council’s Vehicle Crossing Team on 
vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk and/or 01225 713352. 
 
Dark Skies Informative: 
The application site is located within the countryside of the AONB which 
is currently bidding for ‘Dark Sky Reserve Status’ (further information can 
be found via - http://www.ccwwdaonb.org.uk/our-work/dark-night-skies/ ). 
It is therefore recommended the applicant consider  a scheme of 
screening/louvres to be attached to and used on all approved rooflight 
windows in the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 

227 17/05344/ful and 17/05345/LBC - Garden Cottage, Penruddock Arms, 
Dinton - ITEM WITHDRAWN 
 
This application had been withdrawn from the agenda following the withdrawal 
of the Councillor Call in. 
 
The application would be dealt with under the remit of the delegated powers of 
the Planning Team. 

228 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00 pm – 5.00pm) 

 
 
 

Page 266

mailto:vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk
http://www.ccwwdaonb.org.uk/our-work/dark-night-skies/


 
 
 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Lisa Moore of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01722) 434560, e-mail lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 267



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 268



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 14 DECEMBER 2017 AT ALAMEIN SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE LANE, 
SALISBURY, SP2 7TU. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman), Cllr Richard Britton (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Brian Dalton, Cllr Christopher Devine, Cllr Jose Green, Cllr Mike Hewitt, 
Cllr Sven Hocking, Cllr George Jeans, Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr John Smale and 
Cllr Robert Yuill (Substitute) 
  

 
229 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from: 
 

 Cllr Matthew Dean who was substituted by Cllr Robert Yuill 
 

230 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 16 November 2017 were 
presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

231 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were none. 
 

232 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman explained the meeting procedure to the members of the public. 
 

233 Public Participation 
 
The committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

234 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The committee received details of the appeal decisions as detailed in the 
agenda, for the period 03/11/2017 to 01/12/2017. 

Page 269

Agenda Item 25



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Resolved 
To note the update. 
 
 

235 Planning Applications 
236 17/02198/OUT - Rose Farm, Hurdcott Lane, Winterbourne Earls, Salisbury, 

SP4 6HR 
 
Public Participation 
Gaenor Nokes spoke in objection to the application 
Robyn Harper spoke in support of the application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Georgina Wright, introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for Outline Planning Permission Including 
Access Details for 2 Four Bedroom Detached Dwellings be refused.  
 
It was noted that it had previously been refused due to access reasons and the 
site was also outside the village boundary of the adopted core strategy. The 
village has started the NHP process, however this was in the early stages and 
had not yet adopted. 
 
Member then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer. It 
was clarified that the site was one of the 11 sites which had been identified as 
possible locations for development, but the 11 sites which were to be 
considered had not yet gone out for public consultation. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member Cllr Mike Hewitt then spoke in support of the 
application, noting that the A338 ran through the village. It was always difficult 
to build in these villages without upsetting something. The proposal was for 2 
houses which were needed. These could be used as accommodation by 
workers at Porton Down. The development included the proposal to expand the 
footpath. The only reason for refusal was due to the site being out of the 
Housing Boundary. 
 
Cllr Hewitt then moved the motion of approval, this was seconded by Cllr 
Devine. 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included, that as the NHP had not 
been adopted it could not be used as a planning consideration, as it was too 
early in the development of the NHP to speculate what would or would not be 
included. The development was supported by the parish council. 
 
The Committee then voted on the motion of approval. 
 
 
 

Page 270



 
 
 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
That application 17/02198/OUT be approved, against Officer’s 
recommendation with the following conditions: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission, or before the 

expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved 

matters to be approved, whichever is the later.  

  

REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country  
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004.  
  

2 No development shall commence on site until details of the following 

matters (in respect of which approval is expressly reserved) have been 

submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority:   

  

(a) The scale of the development;   

(b) The layout of the development;  

(c) The external appearance of the development;   

(d) The landscaping of the site;  

  

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.   
  

REASON:   The application was made for outline planning permission and is 
granted to comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning  Act  1990  and  Article  5  (1)  of  the  Town  and  Country  
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.  
  

3 An application for the approval of all of the reserved matters shall be made 

to the Local Planning Authority before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission.  

  

REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990.   
  

4 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the following approved plans:   

  

Application Form & Certificate  
Ref: REH/4374/101155/008 Rev A - Visibility Splay & Retained Hedge. 
Received -  
12.10.2017  
  

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.  
  

Page 271



 
 
 

 
 
 

5 No development shall commence on site until the exact details and samples 

of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

  

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area.  
  

6 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft 

landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:-  

  

• location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and hedgerows on 

the land;  

• full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their protection 

in the course of development;  

• a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 

planting sizes and planting densities;  

• finished levels and contours;  

• means of enclosure;  

• car park layouts;  

• other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas;  

• all hard and soft surfacing materials;  

  

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features.  
   

7 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall 

be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the first 

occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development 

whichever is the sooner;  All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 

maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin 

and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, die, are 

removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in 

the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless 

otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  All hard 

landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with the approved 

details prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in 

accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with the Local 

Planning Authority.  

Page 272



 
 
 

 
 
 

  

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development 
and the protection of existing important landscape features.  
  

8 No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied until 

the access, turning area and parking spaces have been completed in 

accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The areas shall 

be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter.  

  

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.  
  

9 The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the first 

five metres of the access, measured from the edge of the carriageway, has 

been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The access 

shall be maintained as such thereafter.  

  

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.  
  

10 No part of the development shall be first occupied until the visibility splays 

shown on the approved plans (ref: REH/4374/101155/008 Rev A) have been 

provided with no  

obstruction to visibility at or above a height of 600mm above the nearside 
carriageway level. The visibility splays shall be maintained free of 
obstruction at all times thereafter.  
  

REASON: In the interests of highway safety  
  

11 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the discharge of 

surface water from the site (including surface water from the 

access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 

development shall not be first occupied until surface water drainage has 

been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme.  

  

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained.  
  

12 No development shall commence on site until details of the footway 

widening across the frontage of the site have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The footway widening 

works shall be completed prior to first occupation of the development.  

  

REASON:  The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 

Page 273



 
 
 

 
 
 

matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, in the interests of highway and pedestrian safety.  
  

13 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re- 

enacting or amending that Order with or without modification), no windows, 

doors or other form of openings other than those shown on the approved 

plans, shall be inserted in the northern elevation of plot No.1 of the 

development hereby permitted.  

  

REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy.  
  

INFORMATIVES  
1) Please note that the submitted illustrative elevation plans contain a number 

of errors.  The matter of appearance is however a detailed reserved matter 

and this concern will therefore need to be addressed by any subsequent 

reserved matter application.  The design of the dwellings hereby approved 

has not therefore been agreed at this stage and the Council will not be 

bound by the elevation plans that have been submitted to date.  

  

2) The application involves the requirement of dropped kerbs to create the 

vehicular access. The consent hereby granted shall not be construed as 

authority to carry out works on the highway. The applicant is advised that a 

licence will be required from Wiltshire's Highway Authority before any 

works are carried out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other 

land forming part of the highway. Please contact our Vehicle Crossing Team 

on vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk and/or 01225 713352.  

  

3) The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 

represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 

Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 

Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 

Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If an 

Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please submit 

it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you may be 

able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the relevant 

form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL Commencement 

Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to Wiltshire Council 

prior to commencement of development.  Should development commence 

prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by the local planning authority, 

any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and full payment will be required 

in full and with immediate effect. Should you require further information or 

to download the CIL forms please refer to the Council's Website  

www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityi
nfras tructurelevy   
 

Page 274

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy


 
 
 

 
 
 

237 17/00842/OUT - Land opposite Horefield, Idmiston Road, Porton, Wiltshire, 
SP4 0LD 
 
Public Participation 
David Neal spoke in objection to the application 
Adrian Dibden spoke in objection to the application 
Valerie Creswell spoke in support of the application 
Tony Allen spoke in support of the application 
Simon Zielonka spoke in support of the application 
Cllr James Humphries spoke on behalf of the Parish Council 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Lucy Minting introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for Outline Planning Application for 
residential development of 16 dwellings with all matters reserved. Provision of 
new footways and dropped kerb crossings to Nicholas CofE Primary School and 
15 public car parking spaces for Horefield residents/school use, be refused. 
 
It was noted that the proposed site was outside the limits for development  
The site was currently in agricultural use, and school parking had been 
identified as an issue.  
 
The Parish Council was in support of the application and the site had been 
included in the NHP. 
 
Attention was drawn to late correspondence circulated at the meeting, relating 
to a response to late submission of ecological data provided by the applicant. 
The reasons for refusal had been altered, as listed on late correspondence. 
 
The Ecological Officer had considered the new submission and concluded there 
would not be an adverse impact. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer. It 
was clarified that the applicant did not have control over some sections of the 
land, which was why the planned footpath would cross over twice. Specific 
details of the type of crossing would be conditioned as part of the decision 
should the application be approved; however it was understood that the 
crossing would be unmanned.  
 
The plan showed the proposal to retain the verge along the roadside, except 
where the accesses were to the front dwellings. 
 
There was no right to park on the verge at present, so there would be no loss to 
residents. The proposal included 15 public spaces for use.  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member Cllr Mike Hewitt then spoke on the application, 
noting that it was not an easy application and if he had not called it in it would 

Page 275



 
 
 

 
 
 

have been refused. He believed there was a place for houses along the site, 
being built properly with appropriate consideration of the road. 
 
The site was outside of the housing boundary, and there were flooding issues, 
but these could be overcome. The Water company had been working in the 
village, to make improvements over last few years. If the application was 
approved, there were still lots of questions to be asked. With additional parking 
and further consideration to the cars dropping children off for school along that 
road, as it was unsafe. 
 
Cllr Hewitt then moved the motion of refusal, in line with Officer’s 
recommendation, this was seconded by Cllr Britton. 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included the support of NHP Group 
and the Parish Council. The parking problem on this narrow road was a major 
issue. The extra spaces proposed would not go anywhere near solving the 
problem.  
 
The proximity of the houses to the road compared to the houses on the 
diagram, was a material consideration. A proposal where the houses were set a 
little further back or perhaps less of them may be more favourable. 
 
The right-hand side of road was open country, giving a country feel to the area, 
putting this number of houses there would change that feel. 
 
There was a flooding issue on that stretch of road, if you build there the water 
would have to go somewhere else.  
 
The Committee then voted on the motion of refusal in line with Officer’s 
recommendation. This motion was not carried. 
 
The Chairman then moved the motion of deferral until spring, in order to 
consider the application, once the additional ecology information was available, 
this was seconded by Cllr McLennan.  
 
 
Resolved: 
That application 17/00842/OUT be deferred until spring 2018 to allow for 
the ecology report to be submitted. 
 

238 17/05578/FUL & 17/06125/LBC - 3 Silver Street, Wilton, SP2 0HX 
 
Public Participation 
Lucy Patterson spoke in support of the application 
Melanie Latham spoke in support of the application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Lucy Minting introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for proposed alterations, replacement ground 
floor & new 1st floor rear extensions (Resubmission of 17/00328/FUL and 
17/00693/LBC) be refused. 

Page 276



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
It was noted that the site was in the Wilton conservation area and the special 
regard to preserving listed buildings. 
 
The application proposed to demolish all of the red brick range, and the 
demolition of the roof structure over the garden room. 
 
Member then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer. It 
was clarified that the veranda would be re-roofed. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member Cllr Pauline Church then spoke in support of the 
application, noting that this prop has laid derelict for 20 years, unloved and 
unlived in. The proposed quality of materials craftmanship and design was 
superb. 
 
The rear elevation did not have the same grandeur as the front. Historic 
England had made their recommendations but had not been on site. 
 
Cllr Westmoreland moved the motion of approval this was seconded by Cllr 
Hewitt. 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included that the proposed 
development was sympathetic to the building, which had been deteriorating 
quite rapidly, putting new life in to this building that could last another 100 years. 
 
The Conservation Officer was not in support of the proposals. This was a major 
re-invention, far more major than an alteration to just window frames. 
 
The Committee then voted on the motion of approval. 
 
Resolved: 
That application 17/05578/FUL be approved against Officers 
recommendation, with the following conditions: 
 
Subject to the following conditions:  

  

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 

of three years from the date of this permission.  

REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004.  

  

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plans:  

Plan Reference: Design and Access Statement, received by this office 

09/06/2017  

Page 277



 
 
 

 
 
 

Plan Reference: Heritage Statement, received by this office 09/06/2017  

Plan Reference: 16-05-02-01, received by this office 09/06/2017  

Plan Reference: 16-05-02-02, received by this office 09/06/2017  

Plan Reference: 16-05-02A-05, received by this office 09/06/2017  

Plan Reference: 16-05-02A-04 , received by this office 09/06/2017  

Plan Reference: 16-05-02A-06, received by this office 09/06/2017  

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 

planning.  

  

3 The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the Bat Survey 

report, dated 13 January 2017, prepared by Davidson-Watts Ecology Ltd 

which has already been submitted with the planning application and 

agreed in principle; and prior to the commencement of works on site, a 

detailed method statement and work schedule as per paragraph 5.3.4 of 

the aforementioned report shall be submitted to the local planning 

authority for review.  

REASON: To ensure appropriate and adequate protection and mitigation 

for bats.  

 
Resolved: 
That application 17/06125/LBC be approved against Officers 
recommendation, with the following conditions: 
 
Subject to the following conditions:  

  

1 The works for which Listed Building Consent is hereby granted shall be 
begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this 

consent.  

REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 18 of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as 

amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  

  
2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plans:   

Plan Reference: Design and Access Statement, received by this office 

09/06/2017  

Plan Reference: Heritage Statement, received by this office 09/06/2017  

Plan Reference: 16-05-02-01, received by this office 09/06/2017  

Plan Reference: 16-05-02-02, received by this office 09/06/2017  

Plan Reference: 16-05-02A-05, received by this office 09/06/2017  

Plan Reference: 16-05-02A-04 , received by this office 09/06/2017  

Plan Reference: 16-05-02A-06, received by this office 09/06/2017  

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 

planning.  

  
3 Notwithstanding the approved drawings, no works shall commence until 

details of the following have been submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority:   

Page 278



 
 
 

 
 
 

(i) Large scale details of all external joinery (including the 
lantern rooflight) and metal railings to comprise 1:5 elevation 

and 1:2 section plans;   

(ii) Large scale details of proposed eaves and verges (1:5 

section);  (iii) Full details and samples of external materials.   

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 

details.   

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the 
development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests 
of preserving the character and appearance of the listed building and 

its setting.  

  
4 The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the Bat Survey 

report, dated 13 January 2017, prepared by Davidson-Watts Ecology 
Ltd which has already been submitted with the planning application 
and agreed in principle; and prior to the commencement of works on 
site, a detailed method statement and work schedule as per paragraph 
5.3.4 of the aforementioned report shall be submitted to the local 

planning authority for review.   

REASON: To ensure appropriate and adequate protection and 

mitigation for bats.  

 
239 17/05736/FUL - Longacre Farm, Figsbury, Salisbury, SP4 6DT 

 
Public Participation 
Naomi King spoke in support of the application 
Susan Smith spoke in support of the application 
Colin Burrows spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Brian Edgeley spoke on behalf of Firsdown Parish Council 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Richard Nash introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for Proposed portal frame building for hen 
house, service link, rearing shed and feedstore. Landscaping work. Work in 
connection with access. Stationing of mobile home all in connection with free 
range egg production flock, be refused. 
 
Attention was drawn to late correspondence circulated at the meeting.  
 
The site was accessed by a bridal way. The front of the site was in the same 
ownership of development site. The height of the newly proposed building was 
greatly reduced. The development would be screened by bund and planting on 
top of building. 
 
A previous application including proposals for 2 mobile homes had been 
refused, this new proposal was for a smaller footprint single dwelling cabin style 
accommodation. The applicant had overcome the previous reasons for refusal. 
 
The Parish Council had confirmed they support the proposal. 

Page 279



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Member then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer. It 
was clarified that the planting on top of the bund was conditional, native species 
of trees and shrubs were suggested.  
 
The dwelling was a full time dwelling, but this would be conditioned for staff use 
only.  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member Cllr Chris Devine then spoke in support of the 
application, drawing attention to the access in and out of the site. The applicant 
had gone out of their way to ensure the access was as safe as could be.  
 
Highways were concerned that in the future the adjoining land owner may take 
back that section of the splay to the site. However that was highly unlikely. 
The applicant has a good proven track record and had a good business plan. 
The site was ideally suited to this type of business. 
 
Cllr Devine then moved the motion of approval, this was seconded by Cllr 
Hewitt. 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included the concerns of Highways, 
were not just over ownership, but included highways safety. This would need to 
be considered. 
The Committee then voted on the motion of approval. 
 
Resolved: 
That application 17/05736/FUL be approved against Officers 
recommendations subject to the following conditions: 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission.  
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 

accordance with the following approved plans:  
02917 1 (LDS/14107-TP3) (Topographic Survey showing Location 
Plan)  
02917 3 A (Alterations to Access)  
02917 4 (Proposed Buildings)  
02917 4 (Plans showing ownership of land required for visibility 
splay)  
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.  

 

Page 280



 
 
 

 
 
 

3 No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs 
of the development hereby approved have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order that 
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the 
interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the 
area.  

 
4 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 

soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:  
location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land;  
full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the course of development;  
a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply 
and planting sizes and planting densities;  
boundary treatments;  
finished levels and contours;  
means of enclosure;  
car park layouts;  
all hard and soft surfacing materials;  
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order that 
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure 
a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the 
protection of existing important landscape features.  

 
5 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 

landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building(s) or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, 
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority.  

Page 281



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape 
features.  

 
6 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 

discharge of foul water from the site, including 
details/testing/calculations of effluent disposal system, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall not be first occupied until foul 
water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the 
approved scheme.  
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained.  

7 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water 
from the access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage 
details together with permeability test results to BRE365, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall not be first occupied until surface 
water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the 
approved scheme.  
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained.  

 
8 The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into 

use or occupied until splays have been provided on both its sides 
of the access in accordance with the details shown on approved 
drawing 02917 3 A (Alterations to Access). The splays shall be kept 
free of obstruction above a height of 600mm at all times.  
REASON: In the interests of highway safety.  

 
9 The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into 

use or occupied until the first five metres of the access, measured 
from the edge of the carriageway, has been consolidated and 
surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The access shall be 
maintained as such thereafter.  
REASON: In the interests of highway safety.  

 
10 Any gates shall be set back 4.5 metres from the edge of the 

carriageway, such gates to open inwards only, in perpetuity.  
REASON: In the interests of highway safety.  

 
11 No construction or demolition vehicles may access the site by way 

of FIRS3 without prior consultation with the Wiltshire Council 
Rights of Way Warden. Where appropriate any 
safety/mitigation/reinstatement measures must be approved by the 
Wiltshire Council Rights of Way Warden.  
REASON: To ensure the Public Right of Way remains available and 
convenient for public use.  

 

Page 282



 
 
 

 
 
 

12 No materials, plant, temporary structures or excavations of any kind 
shall be deposited/undertaken on or adjacent to the Public Right of 
Way that obstructs the Public Right of Way whilst development 
takes place.  
REASON: To ensure the Public Right of Way remains available and 
convenient for public use.  

 
13 Before the first use of the agricultural building hereby approved, a 

manure disposal and fly management plan shall be submitted for 
the approval of the Local Planning Authority. The use of the 
building and site for keeping chicken shall not be subsequently 
carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved plan.  
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the locality.  

 
14 Within twelve months of the first occupation or use of the 

development hereby approved, the site shall be cleared of all 
building materials and related items in accordance with the 
Schedule of Works prepared on 17 July 2017.  
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area.  

 
15 The mobile home hereby permitted, and any ancillary works or 

structures associated with it shall be removed and the land restored 
to its former condition on or before 31 December 2020 in 
accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority.  
REASON: Permission has been granted on a temporary basis to 
establish whether there is a functional need for permanent on site 
residential accommodation on this agricultural holding.  

 
240 17/06734/FUL - Former Piggery Buildings at Cotswold Farm, West Dean 

Road, West Tytherley,  SP5 1QA 
 
Public Participation 
Ian Donoghue spoke in support of the application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Matthew Legge introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for Conversion of former agricultural 
buildings to 9 residential dwellings be approved. 
 
It was noted that the site had been used as a piggery and had been left derelict 
for a number of years. 
 
The applicant already had permissions for development of other dwellings on 
the site. The site entrance was approved in 2013. 
 
Attentions was drawn to the late correspondence circulated at the meeting. 
 

Page 283



 
 
 

 
 
 

Member then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer. It 
was clarified that the reason for the application coming to committee had been 
omitted from the report, it was detailed in the late correspondence as: 
 
Councillor Chris Devine has called this application into the planning committee 
with the following concerns that the development is contrary to:  
 

 The Wiltshire Core Strategy – as published  

 This is not in the `emerging` Neighbourhood Plan  

 This is an Agricultural site  

 The current planning policy does not state that agricultural brown field 
sites may become housing  

 This is an SLA and such a development would detract from that  

 The local highways infrastructure would not support another 35 cars  

 Outside the current HPB  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member Cllr Chris Devine then spoke in objection to the 
application, noting that this was never in the plans for Wintersow. There was an 
emerging NHP, which was due to go out on a final run around the village before 
going to Wiltshire Council for adoption. 
 
The proposed site was way outside of the village, on a narrow road. There were 
issue with infrastructure in Winterslow. The parish council did not support this 
application. There would be 36 vehicles on this site, making up to 150 
movements on and off the site each day, which would impact on the road which 
was used by horses. 
 
These homes would bring lots of additional people into the area, which was next 
to Benley Wood. It was never meant for development. It could be turned back in 
to agricultural land. This was a corruption of CP48. There was not the highways 
infrastructure to take another 35 cars. 
The NHP was nearly completed and identified other sites for development. 
 
Cllr Devine then moved the motion of refusal this was seconded by Cllr 
McLennan.  
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included that the site was not 
included in the emerging NHP and was not supported by the parish council. 
 
The development was of an attractive design, an imaginative and was a good 
reuse of this land. 
 
The NHP was never intended to stop things from being developed, Wiltshire 
Council had core policies designed to do that. The NHP was the communities 
option to add to that, not to detract.  
 

Page 284



 
 
 

 
 
 

This does not need the support of a NHP, the application stands or falls on 
CP48. We should have life in the countryside. The use of buildings was better 
than demolishing them. 
 
 
The Committee then voted on the motion of refusal. The motion was not carried. 
 
The Chairman then moved the motion of approval with conditions, this was 
seconded by Cllr Green. 
 
Resolved: 
That application 17/06734/FUL be approved with the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:  
 
 
DRG No. Site Location Plan                   29/08/2017 
DRG No. SL01C (Site Layout Plan)       24/10/2017 
DRG No. SL02A (Drainage Layout)       24/10/2017 
 
DRG No. P.1-5.pe (Proposed units 1-5)   03/08/2017 
DRG No. P.6-7.pe (Proposed units 6-7)   03/08/2017 
DRG No. P.8-9.pe (Proposed plots 8-9)   03/08/2017 
DRG No. GAR.pe (Garage – plots 5&6)   24/10/2017 
 
Demolition Plan in Page 9, Section 3.0 of the Planning Statement 
(Southern Planning Practice Ltd) received on 17 November 2017 
 
Ecology Report by Kingfisher Ecology. Ref CFS-021117 and dated 
29/11/2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. No development shall commence on site until an investigation of the 
history and current condition of the site to determine the likelihood of the 
existence of contamination arising from previous uses has been carried 
out and all of the following steps have been complied with to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority:  
 
Step (i)            A written report has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority which shall include details of the previous uses 
of the site for at least the last 100 years and a description of the current 
condition of the site with regard to any activities that may have caused 
contamination.  The report shall confirm whether or not it is likely that 
contamination may be present on the site. 

Page 285



 
 
 

 
 
 

Step (ii)            If the above report indicates that contamination may be 
present on or under the site, or if evidence of contamination is found, a 
more detailed site investigation and risk assessment shall be carried out 
in accordance with DEFRA and Environment Agency’s “Model Procedures 
for the Management of Land Contamination CLR11” and other 
authoritative guidance and a report detailing the site investigation and 
risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  
  
Step (iii)           If the report submitted pursuant to step (i) or (ii) indicates 
that remedial works are required, full details have been submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority and approved in writing and thereafter 
implemented prior to the commencement of the development or in 
accordance with a timetable that has been agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority as part of the approved remediation scheme. On 
completion of any required remedial works the applicant shall provide 
written confirmation to the Local Planning Authority that the works have 
been completed in accordance with the agreed remediation strategy. 
REASON:  To ensure that land contamination can be dealt with adequately 
prior to the use of the site hereby approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
4. No part of the development shall be occupied/first brought into use 
until all the existing buildings on site (as identified for demolition within 
page.9/section 3.0 of the updated Planning Statement (Southern 
Planning Practice Ltd) received on 17 November 2017) have been 
permanently demolished and all of the demolition materials and debris 
resulting there from has been removed from the site. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area 
and neighbouring amenities. 
 
5. No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission. 
 
6. No railings, fences, gates, walls, bollards and other means of 
enclosure development shall be erected in connection with the 
development hereby permitted until details of their design, external 
appearance and decorative finish have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details prior to the development 
being occupied. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 

Page 286



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
7. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft 
landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:- 
 
• location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and hedgerows 
on the land; 

• full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the course of development; 

• a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes and planting densities; 

•  finished levels and 
contours; 

•  other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation 
areas; 

•  all hard and soft surfacing 
materials; 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission 
 

8. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following 
the first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the 
development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge 
planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be protected 
from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a 
period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of 
a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
local planning authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any 
part of the development or in accordance with a programme to be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape 
features. 
 
9. No development shall take place on site, including site clearance, 
storage of materials or other preparatory work, until an Arboricultural 
Method Statement, has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
and approved in writing, Thereafter the development shall be undertaken 
only in accordance with the approved details, unless the Local Planning 
Authority has given its prior written consent to any variation. 
 
The Arboricultural Method Statement shall show the areas which are 
designated for the protection of trees, shrubs and hedges, hereafter 
referred to as the Root Protection Area. Unless otherwise agreed, the RPA 
will be fenced, in accordance with the British Standard Guide for Trees in 

Page 287



 
 
 

 
 
 

Relation to Construction (BS.5837: 2005) and no access will be permitted 
for any development operation. 
 
The Arboricultural Method Statement should specifically include details of 
how demolition (of buildings and hard surfacing) will be carried out 
without causing root damage to adjacent trees. 
 
The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include provision for the 
supervision and inspection of the tree protection measures. The fencing, 
or other protection which is part of the approved Statement shall not be 
moved or removed, temporarily or otherwise, until all works, including 
external works have been completed and all equipment, machinery and 
surplus materials removed from the site, unless the prior approval of the 
Local Planning Authority has been given in writing. 
 
REASON: To comply with the duties indicated in Section 197 of the Town 

and Country Planning  
Act 1990, so as to ensure that the amenity value of the most important 

trees, shrubs and hedges  
growing within or adjacent to the site is adequately protected during the 

period of construction. 

 
10. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into 
use until the access, turning area and parking spaces have been 
completed in accordance with the details shown on the approved 
plans. The areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all times 
thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway 
safety. 
 
11. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied until a 
scheme for the future maintenance of the roads and other communal 
areas has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
Reason: To ensure that satisfactory arrangements for the future 
maintenance of those areas are in place. 
 
12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re- enacting or amending those Orders with or without 
modification), no development within Part 1, Classes A-H shall take 
place on the dwellinghouses hereby permitted or within their curtilage. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or 
enlargements. 
 
13. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 

Page 288



 
 
 

 
 
 

access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The development shall not be first brought into use until surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission 
 
14. No  development  shall  commence  on  site  until  details  of  the  
works  for  the disposal of sewerage including the point of any 
connection to existing public sewer have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be 
first occupied until the approved sewerage details have been fully 
implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission 
 
15. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in strict 
accordance with the recommendations made in sections 4.4, 5, 7.3 and 
Appendix A of the approved Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, Preliminary 
Roost Assessment and Phase 2 Bat Survey Report (Kingfisher Ecology 
Ltd, updated 29th November 2017), and with liaison with a suitably 
qualified and competent ecological consultant. This must include 
precautionary working methods during site clearance as well as during 
the construction and operation of the development. 
 
REASON: To ensure adequate protection and mitigation for wildlife 
including protected species, and to ensure compliance with wildlife 
legislation and Core Policy 50 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 
16. There shall be no removal of trees or vegetation along the eastern 
margin of the application site as this habitat has been stipulated as being 
retained within the approved Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, 
Preliminary Roost Assessment and Phase 2 Bat Survey Report (Kingfisher 
Ecology Ltd, updated 29th November 2017). In the event that removal of 
trees or vegetation within this area is required, this cannot be undertaken 
without prior written approval from the local planning authority who will 
require the submission of plans accompanied by details of ecological 
mitigation measures. 
REASON: To ensure retention of habitats likely to be used by wildlife, 
potentially including protected species.  
 
17. No development shall commence on site until a detailed Ecological 
Mitigation and Enhancement Strategy has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The strategy must 
include: 
 

i) Details of habitat retention and protection and illustrated on a plan.  

Page 289



 
 
 

 
 
 

ii) Pre-construction and construction method statements including full 
details of avoidance  
and mitigation measures and any pre-commencement checks 
and surveys required to provide adequate mitigation for wildlife, 
including protected species. This must include details of the 
‘destructive search’ recommended with respect of B7 in section 
7.3 of the approved Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, 
Preliminary Roost Assessment and Phase 2 Bat Survey Report 
(Kingfisher Ecology Ltd, updated 29th November 2017). 

iii) Comprehensive details of ecological enhancement measures 
recommended in section 5 of the approved Preliminary 
Ecological Appraisal, Preliminary Roost Assessment and Phase 
2 Bat Survey Report (Kingfisher Ecology Ltd, updated 29th 
November 2017), including planting to encourage wildlife and 
bat roosting provision, with specifications and proposed 
numbers and positions to be shown on accompanying plan(s). 

Development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved 
strategy. 
 
REASON: To ensure appropriate protection and mitigation for ecological 
receptors, including species and habitats, and to provide biodiversity gain 
in line with NPPF and Core Policy 50 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 
 18. No new external lighting shall be installed at the application site 
without prior written approval from the Council. Any plans for new lighting 
must be submitted to the Council for consideration and approval and 
must include details of mitigation measures to minimise the potential for 
impacts on roosting bats at the site. Thereafter, new lighting must be 
installed and operated in strict accordance with the approved lighting 
plan. 
 
REASON: To ensure appropriate mitigation for roosting bats, and to 
ensure compliance with wildlife legislation and Core Policy 50 of the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 
19. Before development takes place, a lighting plan and design strategy 
for biodiversity shall be submitted and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The strategy shall: 

a)        Identify those areas/features on site that are particularly 
sensitive for wildlife, especially bats, and that are likely to be 
sensitive to disturbance as a result of light spill, including 
commuting/foraging/dispersal routes and; 

b)        Illustrate on associated plan(s), the position of proposed 
luminaires together with lux plot/lighting contour plans so 
that it can be clearly demonstrated that areas identified as 
likely used by protected species, notably bats, will not be 
subject to disturbance as a result of light spill. 

c)         Specify luminaires, heights and positions of fittings, 
direction and other features, e.g. cowls, louvres or baffles 

Page 290



 
 
 

 
 
 

All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the 
specifications and locations set out in the strategy, and these shall be 
maintained thereafter in accordance with the strategy. Under no 
circumstances should any other external lighting be installed without 
prior consent from the local planning authority. 
 
REASON: To minimise light spillage and to ensure no illumination of 
sensitive areas for protected species. 
 
20. Before development takes place, a Landscape and Ecology 
Management Plan shall be prepared and submitted to the local planning 
authority for approval. The development site shall be managed and 
maintained in accordance with the measures set out in the approved plan 
in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning 
authority.  
 
REASON: To ensure the appropriate management of priority habitats and 
mitigation for protected species. 
 
INFORMATIVE  
 
1. Wiltshire Council Waste Management will require an indemnity signed 
in order to operate on any roads that are not adopted and Wiltshire 
Council would need vehicle tracking to prove that Wiltshire Council’s 
Refuse Collection Vehicles can move through the development and turn at 
the ends of roads. 
 
2. The applicant should note that under the terms of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act (1981) and the Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an 
offence to disturb or harm any protected species, or to damage or 
disturb their habitat or resting place.    Please   note   that   this   
consent   does   not   override   the   statutory protection afforded to any 
such species.  In the event that your proposals could potentially affect a 
protected species you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified and 
experienced ecologist and consider the need for a licence from Natural 
England prior to commencing works.  Please see Natural England’s 
website for further information on protected species. 
 
3. The applicant should note that the works hereby approved involve the 
removal and disposal of asbestos cement roofing. Should only be 
removed by a licenced contractor Asbestos waste is classified as 
'special waste' and as such, can only be disposed of at a site licensed 
by the Environment Agency. Any contractor used must also be 
licensed to carry 'special waste'. 
 
4. The applicant should note that under the terms of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2010 (as amended) it is an offence to disturb or harm 
any protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting 
place.  Please note that this consent does not override the statutory 

Page 291

http://www.naturalengland.org.uk/Images/ProtectedSpeciesLists_tcm6-25123.pdf
http://www.ieem.net/members-directory
http://www.naturalengland.org.uk/ourwork/planningdevelopment/spatialplanning/standingadvice/default.aspx
http://www.naturalengland.org.uk/ourwork/planningdevelopment/spatialplanning/standingadvice/default.aspx


 
 
 

 
 
 

protection afforded to any such species.  In the event that your proposals 
could potentially affect a protected species you should seek the advice of 
a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist and consider the need for a 
licence from Natural England prior to commencing works.  Please visit the 
following websites for more information:  

 http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/biodiversityanddevelop
ment.htm   

https://www.gov.uk/protected-species-and-sites-how-to-review-planning-
proposals  
 

241 17/04001/OUT - Land off Firs Road, Alderbury 
 
Public Participation 
E Harris spoke in objection to the application 
B Sloane spoke in objection to the application 
N Miles spoke in objection to the application 
A Whalley (Agent) spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Elaine Hartford spoke on behalf of Alderbury Parish Council 
 
It was noted that the senior planning officer left the room for transparency, due 
to him residing within the community area for this application. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Warren Simmonds introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for Outline application for residential 
development of up to 50 dwellings, associated parking and access (off of Firs 
Road) , open space and infrastructure; relocated guide hut, new pre-school 
building and land to extend existing primary school playing fields be approved 
subject to the land owner entering into a S.106 agreement with the Council 
addressing the heads of terms as detailed in the report. 
 
Attention was drawn to late correspondence circulated at the meeting. 
 
It was noted that there would be pedestrian only access off the junction road.  
An already approved development of new sports pitches and a pavilion on the 
field beyond, had already commenced. 
 
The site was outside of the housing boundary for Aldrebury, and did not meet 
any of the exceptional circumstances, however it did meet some of the 
community benefits. 
 
The proposal included 9 Affordable Housing units, the relocation of the existing 
guide hut to a more suitable location with parking. The gifting of land to the 
school, and a source of new pupils for the school as it was currently 
undersubscribed. The roadway to the football pitches and club would double as 
an additional Drop off facility, at school times. 
 
Member then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer. It 
was clarified that there was not a turning circle at the end of the drop off track 
for vehicles to turn and exit. The application site was quite boggy, but it was 
used for football. 

Page 292

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/biodiversityanddevelopment.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/biodiversityanddevelopment.htm
https://www.gov.uk/protected-species-and-sites-how-to-review-planning-proposals
https://www.gov.uk/protected-species-and-sites-how-to-review-planning-proposals


 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member Cllr Richard Britton then spoke in objection to the 
application, noting that the Policy reasons for refusal, don’t just revolve around 
HPB but also CP1, which states that development will be restricted to infilling 
and small developments (10 houses or less). 
 
Alderbury had several more sites for development in the pipeline and with the 
development at Matrons College of 28 dwellings, Alderbury would continue to 
develop. 
He felt that there was no policy justification for this. 
There were Highways considerations associated with the problems on the A36. 
Highways England said the road was operating at capacity and they would 
oppose significant development if put forward. This proposal was for 50 
dwellings, which was a significant proposal. 
  
There was already a rat run through Whaddon to bypass the traffic build up. A 
real and significant increase of traffic through the village was inevitable. 
 
The recommendation for approval depended solely on the community benefits.  
A new guide hut and a preschool, would both be welcomed but not a benefit to 
the wider community. 
 
More parking spaces were proposed, whether they would be used was another 
matter. 
 
The lease on the new football fields was already signed and going ahead so not 
linked to this application. 
 
The majority of the members of the football club did not come from the village 
but drive in on match days. It was recognised that the club did play an important 
role in the village. 
 
A real benefit would have been the provision of 40% affordable homes, which 
would be 20. 
 
Cllr Britton then moved the motion of refusal, this was seconded by Cllr 
Westmoreland.  
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included that the community had 
refused the gains offered and the proposal was not supported by the parish 
council.  
 
The applicant needed to talk to the community to see what they need and want. 
A 40% of affordable homes was the requirement everywhere else, the 
community wants that. It was not acceptable that the proposal for 18% had 
been signed off. 
 

Page 293



 
 
 

 
 
 

The site was wet and could get even worse. Ideal place near the school for 
affordable homes. 
 
The Committee then voted on the motion of refusal. 
 
Resolved: 
That application 17/04001/OUT be refused, against Officer’s recommendation 
for the following reasons: 
 
The site of the proposed development is outside of the defined limits of 
development of the settlement of Alderbury - a Large Village as defined within 
the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy (WCS). Within the WCS, Core Policy CP1 
(The Settlement Strategy) envisages a limited level of development at Large 
Villages, predominantly in the form of small housing and employment sites 
within the settlement boundaries. Small housing sites are defined as "sites 
involving less than 10 dwellings (i.e. not a major application)". Development 
outside the settlement boundary will be strictly controlled. 
 
The proposal to erect up to 50 new dwellings outside of the settlement 
boundary is considered contrary to Core Policies CP1 & CP2 of the adopted 
WCS and the aims and objectives of the NPPF & NPPG insofar as it would 
constitute an unsustainable form of development outside of the settlement 
boundary that would place undue strain on the limited existing services and 
facilities within the settlement.  
 
The harm that would be caused by the unsustainable nature of the proposed 
development would not be outweighed by the community facilities and benefits 
put forward as part of the proposed development. 
 

242 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 7.30 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Lisa Moore of Democratic Services, 

direct line (01722) 434560, e-mail lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 294



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 10 JANUARY 2018 AT ALAMEIN SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE LANE, 
SALISBURY, SP2 7TU. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman), Cllr Richard Britton (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Brian Dalton, Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Christopher Devine, Cllr Jose Green, 
Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Sven Hocking, Cllr Ian McLennan and Cllr John Smale 
 
Also  Present: 
 
 
  

 
243 Apologies 

 

 Cllr George Jeans 
 

244 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 14 December 2017 were 
presented. 
 
Resolved 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

245 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were none. 
 

246 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman explained the meeting procedure to the members of the public. 
 

247 Public Participation 
 
The committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

248 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The committee received details of the appeal decisions as detailed in the 
agenda. 

Page 295

Agenda Item 26



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Resolved 
To note the update for the period 01/12/2017 to 21/12/2017. 
 
 

249 Planning Applications 
 

250 17/10079/FUL: Nightwood Farm, Lucewood Lane, West Grimstead, SP5 
3RN 
 
Public Participation 
Peter Claydon (CPRE) spoke in objection of the application. 
David Hogan spoke in objection to the application. 
Geoff Lownds spoke in objection to the application. 
Tony Allen (Agent) spoke in support of the application. 
Cllr Elaine Hartford spoke in objection, on behalf of Alderbury Parish Council 
Cllr Gill Sowerby spoke in objection, on behalf of Grimstead Parish Council 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Matthew Legge, introduced the report which 
recommended that the retrospective application for a grass planted bunds in the 
south-western corner of the site at Nightwood Farm, West Grimstead be 
approved subject to conditions. 
 
It was noted that at the rear of the site was an ancient woodland. The reason for 
the creation of the bund given by the applicant had been due to the placement 
of waste materials arising from restoration work on the existing agricultural 
buildings on the site. These materials included asbestos from the roof panel and 
soil from the ground in-between the buildings. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer, it 
was clarified that whilst the Environmental Health Officer had provided a written 
response, it was not known whether they had actually attended the site. The soil 
report had indicated that the asbestos was a fibre kind from the roofing 
materials.  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The red boundary shown on the report was questioned as incorrect and 
misleading.  
 
The resident in the adjacent site ran a holiday let and had concerns surrounding 
the health and safety of the asbestos in the bund and the associated 
contamination of the watercourse and the impact of the development on the 
ancient woodland, with substantial harm already caused by the removal of 
some trees.  
 
The Forestry Commission had previously written to the Officer to state there 
had been trees felled on the site. 
 

Page 296



 
 
 

 
 
 

It was felt that the asbestos had been illegally dumped on the site in a criminal 
manner and remained a health hazard to residents for years to come, and the 
approval of this application would encourage further hazardous waste disposal 
by others. 
 
Soil and Air tests had been carried out, the associated report stated there was 
no risk, if the bund had a capping of fresh soil across the top. 
 
The applicant had agreed to replant some trees to replace those that had been 
felled.   
Representatives from Alderbury and Grimstead Parish Councils, which were 
both affected by this development, spoke in objection to the application.  
 
The Unitary Division Member Cllr Britton moved the motion of refusal, this was 
seconded by Cllr Devine. 
 
Cllr Richard Britton then spoke in objection to the application, noting the 
resentment and anger of the residents and parishes.  
 
To access the site with a HGV, you either had to violate the 7.5t limit in 
Alderbury or navigate winding roads. 
 
For months, the Enforcement Officers sought a retrospective application for a 
turning circle, eventually it was felt that no application was required as it 
followed the original piggery. In addition, a retrospective application was sought 
to cover the building works, eventually they were persuaded by the agent that 
one was not required. 
 
It appeared that in this case, the two statutory bodies were each doing their best 
to slope their shoulders and responsibility at Nightwood farm. The Environment 
Agency had said this was a matter for the Local Authority and the Local 
Authority were passing it back to the Environment Agency.  
 
These bunds serve no purpose other than a repository for getting rid of 
asbestos. This amounted to fly tipping asbestos waste in ancient woodland.  
 
The Environment Agency did talk about the leeching of possible fibres into the 
air if removal of the materials in the bund were to take place, however no one 
had looked at the possible leaking down in to the ancient watercourse.  
 
The applicants reason for not removing the asbestos from the site was to 
minimise vehicle movements for residents.  
 
He feared for the harm that would be caused, if fly tipping in ancient woodland 
was allowed. 
 
A debate followed where they key issues raised included, that the cost of using 
a contractor to remove the asbestos from the site correctly would be quite high, 
despite this, landowners should be responsible for taking appropriate action 
when carrying out building works on their land.  

Page 297



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The support of the statutory bodies in place to make judgements on cases such 
as these was questioned. The Committee felt that it had been let down in this 
instance and proposed that the dumping of asbestos in a manner outside of that 
which was prescribed may be illegal. 
 
Land owners had the responsibility to manage their land properly, in this case 
the land owner had not done this. This was a retrospective application, because 
the land owner had already moved the asbestos from between the buildings to 
the bund site. If the application had been applied for prior to the creation of the 
bund, the Committee felt that it would not have granted permission to bury 
asbestos on site, as it would be expected that the appropriate channels were 
adhered to in the disposal of asbestos by an approved contractor. 
 
The loss of trees in the ancient woodland was not acceptable, this was a loss of 
amenity if historic woodland was removed, as planting new trees was not a 
substitute.  
 
The Committee then voted on the motion of refusal, against Officer’s 
recommendation. 
 
Resolved 
That application 17/10079/FUL be refused for the following reasons: 
 
The application site is located outside of an established mixed used site 
(Agricultural & B8 storage) and is sited on the edge of a County Wildlife 
Site and ancient woodland known as Nightwood Copse. The proposal, 
involving the dumping and retention of contaminated soil and general 
rubble identified in the form of a bund is considered, by reason of the 
associated removal of the ancient woodland and its position, to constitute 
unnecessary development in the countryside which has had unjustified 
and a detrimental impact on the ecological value of the area.  The 
proposals are therefore considered to be contrary to the provisions of the 
National Planning Policy Framework paragraphs 118 and 120; and 
Wiltshire Core Strategy policies CP50 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity), 
CP51 (Landscape) and criteria  ii, iv and vi of CP57 (Design and Place 
Shaping). 
 
Members further resolved that enforcement action be taken to remove the 
existing bund and restore the land to it’s previous use as ancient 
woodland. 

 
251 17/09192/FUL: Land at Manor Farm House, Newton Toney, SP4 0HA 

 
Public Participation 
Michael Fowler (Architect) spoke in support of the application. 
Simon Hunt (applicant) spoke in support of the application. 
Bob Edwards (Heritage consultant) spoke in support of the application. 
 

Page 298



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Senior Planning Officer, Georgina Wright, introduced the report which 
recommended that the application for the erection of one two storey dwelling; 
associated access, turning, parking, landscaping and private amenity space be 
refused. 
 
A site visit had taken place earlier in the day. 
 
It was noted that the revised report contained the following amendments: 
 

 A Heritage Statement has been received since the earlier committee 
report was written (Section 5 of the attached report) 

 The Conservation Officer provided additional comments as a result of 
this heritage statement (Section 7 of the attached report) 

 The Highway Authority provided additional comments as a result of the 
revised access arrangements/amended plans (Section 7 of the attached 
report) 

 The Drainage officer had provided additional comments as a result of the 
amended plans (Section 7 of the attached report) 

 The Environment Agency provided comments (Section 7 of the attached 
report) 

 An additional appeal reference was added to the housing land supply 
commentary in Section 9.1 of the attached report 

 Additional commentary has been added to section 9.2 of the attached 
report to reflect the Conservation Officer’s comments and submitted 
Heritage Statement 

 The commentary in section 9.4 of the attached report has changed to 
reflect the Highway Authority comments  

 The second reason for refusal has been altered to reflect the 
Conservation Officer’s comments 

 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer. 
There were none. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
Enormous effort to discuss the proposals with the local residents and the parish 
council had taken place, and no objections had been received. The parish 
council was behind the proposed development 100%. 
 
The Unitary Division Member Cllr John Smale moved the motion of approval 
against Officer’s recommendation, this was seconded by Cllr Hewitt. 
 
Cllr Smale then spoke in support of the application, noting that he was also a 
member of the parish council. 
 
The definition of infill was a building between two existing buildings. This was 
the case with this application. 
 

Page 299



 
 
 

 
 
 

There had formerly been a cottage stood here in the garden where the 
greenhouse was. The problem in using the same space to build the new 
dwelling was that now, this area was a flood zone. This was why the 
development has been moved back to avoid the flooding. 
 
Highways, the Environment Agency and Wessex Water had not objected and 
the Parish council was 100% behind this project. 
 
There would always be sustainability issues in small villages, in a rural location, 
people were able to overcome this with the use of a vehicle. 
 
A debate followed where they key issues raised included, that Highways had 
objected on sustainability. In planning terms, this location was unsustainable. 
 
The ground beyond the walled garden rose sharply, so the proposed house 
would be higher compared to the road level, even though it was set back which 
could detract from the listed building.  
 
The benefits of having another unit in the village outweighed any negative 
impacts. 
 
There was a drainage objection relating to foul drainage. This would need to be 
included as a condition should the application be approved. 
  
There were good replicas of fencing available to replace like for like. 
 
The design was sympathetic to the streetscene. 
 
LBC was required for some of the works and would be obtained before those 
works could go ahead.  
 
CP2 was clear about the nature of development in villages, housing need for 
low cost housing or affordable housing. The proposed development was for a 4-
bedroom dwelling, which did not meet the terms of housing need. However, 
villages needed to be allowed to grow. If the village is happy to accept a small 
dev then so be it. 
 
The Committee considered that the proposals represented an infill form of 
development within the existing parameters of the village and therefore was 
compliant with the provisions of Wiltshire Core Strategy policy CP2 (Delivery 
Strategy).  In addition, the evidence of historic development of the walled 
garden confirmed that the introduction of a new dwelling in the position 
proposed would be a natural continuation of the existing development in this 
street scene and would not cause any harm to the significance of the listed 
building or conservation area.  The opportunity to enable a new dwelling to be 
built in the village that was well designed, attractive and supported locally was 
welcomed to ensure the long-term future/health of the village and it was 
considered that any harm that may be caused could either be controlled by 
condition or would be outweighed by the benefits of the scheme.   
 

Page 300



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Committee then voted on the motion of approval with conditions. 
 
Resolved 
That application 17/10079/FUL be approved with the following conditions: 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with 
the following approved plans:  
 
Ref: 170414 - 01 Location Plan.  Received - 21.09.2017 
Ref: 170414 - 03 Rev C.  Design Scheme.  Received - 16.11.2017 
Ref: 170414 - 04 Rev B.  Site Plan.  Received - 16.11.2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3 No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area. 
 

4 No flint work shall be constructed to any buildings or walls on site until a 
sample panel of flint work, not less than 1 metre square, constructed 
using flints hand laid in a random pattern (with no preformed panels  to 
be used), has been erected on site, inspected and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.   The panel shall then be left in position for 
comparison whilst the development is carried out. Development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved sample panel, using flints 
hand laid in a random pattern with no preformed panels. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 

Page 301



 
 
 

 
 
 

5 No development shall commence on site until details of all eaves, 
verges, windows (including head, sill and window reveal details), doors, 
rainwater goods, chimneys, dormers and canopies have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area. 
 

6 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft 
landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:- 
 
o location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 

hedgerows on the land; 
o full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 

protection in the course of development; 
o a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply 

and planting sizes and planting densities; 
o    finished levels and contours; 
o    details of all means of enclosure, including full details of the 

reuse/reposition of the frontage boundary railings; 
o    car park layouts; 
o   other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 
o   all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 

7 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by 
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five 
years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall 
be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 

Page 302



 
 
 

 
 
 

with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape 
features. 
 

8 The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the 
first five metres of the access, measured from the edge of the 
carriageway, has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or 
gravel). The access shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

9 Any gates shall be set back 4.5 metres from the edge of the carriageway, 
such gates to open inwards only, in perpetuity. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

10 No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the 
access, turning area and parking spaces have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The areas 
shall be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

11 No part of the development shall be first occupied until the visibility 
splays shown on the approved plans have been provided with no 
obstruction to visibility at or above a height of 1m above the nearside 
carriageway level. The visibility splays shall be maintained free of 
obstruction at all times thereafter. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety 
 

12 The finished floor levels of the dwelling hereby approved shall be set no 
lower than 81.04 metres above Ordnance Datum (AOD) as stated in the 
Flood Risk Assessment (AAH Planning Consultants, August 2017, Job 
Reference 81854). 
 
REASON: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development 
and future occupants. 
 

13 No spoil, or any other material, arising from any ground lowering shall 
be deposited within the floodplain (flood zones 3 and 2) of the River 
Bourne as shown in Figure 1 on page 7 of the Flood Risk Assessment 
(AAH Planning Consultants, August 2017, Job Reference 81854). There 
shall be no raising of ground levels within the floodplain of the River 
Bourne. 
 
REASON: To ensure that there will be no increased risk of flooding to 

Page 303



 
 
 

 
 
 

other land/properties due to impedance of flood flows and/or reduction 
of flood storage capacity of the floodplain. 
 

14 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from 
the access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall not be first occupied until surface 
water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can 
be adequately drained. 
 

15 No  development  shall  commence  on  site  until  details  of  the  works  
for  the disposal of sewerage including the point of connection to the 
existing public sewer have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be first occupied until 
the approved sewerage details have been fully implemented in 
accordance with the approved plans. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that the proposal is 
provided with a satisfactory means of drainage and does not increase 
the risk of flooding or pose a risk to public health or the environment. 
 

16 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015  (or any Order 
revoking or re- enacting or amending those Orders with or without 
modification), no development within Part 1, Classes A-E shall take place 
on the dwellinghouse(s) hereby permitted or within their curtilage. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 

 
 
17 

 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re- enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no windows, doors or other form of openings other than 
those shown on the approved plans, shall be inserted in the north 

Page 304



 
 
 

 
 
 

western or south eastern of the development hereby permitted. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 

18 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015  (or any Order 
revoking or re- enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no gates, fences, walls or other means of enclosure, other 
than those shown on the approved plans, shall be erected or placed 
anywhere on the site. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of the heritage and visual amenities of the 
area. 
 

19 No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted 
to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  The 
statement shall include the following: 
  
a)  the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
b)  loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
c)  storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
d)  a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition 

and construction works; and 
e)  hours of construction, including deliveries; 
 
The   approved   Statement   shall be   complied   with   in   full 
throughout   the construction period. The development shall not be 
carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved construction 
method statement. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

INFORMATIVES: 
 
1) The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved 

may represent chargeable development under the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire 
Council's CIL Charging Schedule. If the development is determined 
to be liable for CIL, a Liability Notice will be issued notifying you of 
the amount of CIL payment due. If an Additional Information Form 
has not already been submitted, please submit it now so that we 
can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you may be able to claim 

Page 305



 
 
 

 
 
 

exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the relevant form 
so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL Commencement 
Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to Wiltshire 
Council prior to commencement of development.  Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being 
issued by the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief 
will not apply and full payment will be required in full and with 
immediate effect. Should you require further information or to 
download the CIL forms please refer to the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/com
munityinfrastructurelevy   

 
2) The applicant is reminded of the need to obtain separate listed 

building consent for certain works in addition to this planning 
permission 

 
3) The applicant's attention is drawn to the comments made by the 

Environment Agency about the application and in particular the 
recommendations and informatives made that you are advised to 
note 

 
4) The applicant's attention is drawn to the comments made by the 

Wessex Water about the application and in particular the 
recommendations and informatives made that you are advised to 
note 

 
5) The applicant's attention is drawn to the comments made by 

Wiltshire Council's Drainage Officer about the application 
regarding the requirements of any building regulation application 
and in order to satisfy conditions 14 & 15 

 
 

252 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 5.00 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Lisa Moore of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01722) 434560, e-mail lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 306

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy


 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 18 OCTOBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Jonathon Seed (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair), Cllr Phil Alford, Cllr Trevor Carbin, 
Cllr Peter Fuller, Cllr Sarah Gibson, Cllr Edward Kirk, Cllr Stewart Palmen, 
Cllr Pip Ridout, Cllr Roy While (Substitute) and Cllr Jerry Wickham (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr David Halik and Cllr Tony Jackson 
  

 
79 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ernie Clark, Andrew 
Davis and Christopher Newbury. 
 
Councillor Davis was substituted by Councillor Roy While. 
 
Councillor Newbury was substituted by Councillor Jerry Wickham.  
 

80 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes of the 
meeting held on 20 September 2017. 
 

81 Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Andrew Davis, attending as the local member and not a member of 
the committee, declared that he was a part of the Feoffees (Trustees) of St 
Lawrence Chapel who were objectors in relation to applications 17/03839/FUL 
and 17/04445/LBC. 
 
Councillor Pip Ridout declared a non-pecuniary interest in relation to 
applications 17/03839/FUL and 17/04445/LBC by virtue of being a member of 
St Lawrence Chapel. 

Page 307

Agenda Item 27



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Councillor Peter Fuller declared a non-pecuniary interest in application 
17/06492/FUL. As he considered the applicant a close friend, he would leave 
the meeting when the item was considered. 
 

82 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman gave details of the exits to be used in the event of an 
emergency. 
 

83 Public Participation 
 
No questions had been received from councillors or members of the public. 
 
The Chairman welcomed all present. He then explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 

84 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Planning Appeals Update Report was received. Attention was drawn to a 
correction to the last appeals update relating to a costs application that was 
lodged by Wiltshire Council in relation to refused application 17/00644/FUL, 
which was dismissed by the planning inspector.  A short statement was also 
received from Mr Francis Morland. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Planning Appeals Update Report for 8 September 2017 to 6 
October 2017. 
 

85 Codford Path No. 15 Right of Way Modification Order 2016 
 
Public Participation 
Jonathon Cheal spoke in objection to the order. 
Josh Stratton, landowner, spoke in objection to the order. 
Bob Richardson-Aitken spoke in support of the order. 
Helen Belchamber spoke in support of the order. 
David Shaw spoke in support of the order. 
Cllr Tom Thornton from Codford Parish Council spoke regarding the application. 
 
The Chairman introduced the item, noting that the Committee had previously 
considered the modification order on 2 November 2016. As objections had been 
received the order was required to be sent to the Secretary of State for 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for determination, and the Committee had 
resolved that the Council should take a neutral stance as to whether the order 
should be confirmed, considering the balance of evidence not sufficient to 
support a recommendation of confirmation as made, confirmation subject to 
modification or withdrawal. 
 

Page 308



 
 
 

 
 
 

Following that meeting officers became aware that advice provided to the 
Committee in relation to evidence under Section 31(6) of the Highways Act 
1980, in relation to landowner’s deposits made under that section and the effect 
upon the relevant 20 year period of purported use of the order route, was 
incorrect. Having been given legal advice by a solicitor and legal counsel  that 
interpretation of the law had changed which had impacted on the information 
originally given to Committee.  The matter had therefore been referred back to 
the Committee to consider the effect of the new information on the evidence 
relating to the order, and therefore their previous decision. The Committee was 
informed that if Members decided to stick to their original decision the new 
information would in any event be presented to the Inspector,  
 
The Committee were advised that whatever stance they may have taken when 
the matter was previously considered, they would need to consider with an 
open mind the additional information and whether its effect upon the evidence 
was such that they wished to reach a new decision, or uphold their previous 
decision. 
 
Sally Madgwick, Team Leader Definitive Map and Highway Records, presented 
the report, which recommended that order be forwarded to the Secretary 
ofState with the recommendation the order be confirmed as made. The history 
of the order and details of the route were provided, along with the extent of 
evidence.  The Committee’s attention was drawn to an error in paragraph 16 of 
the report which incorrectly stated that ‘Mr Josh Stratton never made a 
declaration to accompany either of his deposits’ whereas Mr Josh Stratton did 
make a statutory declaration to accompany the 2011 deposit. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officers. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the Committee, as 
detailed above. 
 
A debate followed, where the nature of the legal advice was explained by Sarah 
Marshall, Senior Solicitor, along with its impact on the relevant period to be 
considered, with some members arguing that the impact of the new advice on 
the evidence meant, on the balance of probabilities, that the route had been so 
used and that the order should be supported, with others considering that the 
impact was not sufficient to alter the reasoning behind taking a neutral stance. 
 
A motion to forward the order to the Secretary of State with the Council taking a 
neutral stance was moved by Councillor Ridout and seconded by Councillor 
Kirk, and at the conclusion of debate, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Committee confirms its resolution of 2 November 2016 and that 
the Council take a neutral stance with regard to the confirmation of the 
Order. 
 

Page 309



 
 
 

 
 
 

86 Planning Applications 
 
The Committee considered the following applications: 
 

87 17/03839/FUL and 17/04445/LBC - 3 High Street, Warminster BA12 9AG 
 
Public Participation 
Ian Frostick on behalf of the Feoffees of St Lawrence Chapel spoke in objection 
to the application. 
Duncan Lawrence, agent, spoke in support of the application. 
Cllr Sue Fraser on behalf of Warminster Town Council spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
The senior planning officer, Matthew Perks, introduced a report which 
recommended planning permission be granted for the refurbishment of the 
existing frontage building at No. 3 High Street to provide 2 shops with 3 flats 
above plus new residential development of 5 dwellings and landscaping to the 
rear. Officers also recommended that listed building consent also be granted for 
alterations and extensions to the listed building.  
 
A site visit had been undertaken by Committee members ahead of the meeting 
in accordance with the deferment resolution made at the previous meeting 
dated 20 September 2017. 
 
Officers referenced additional reported details contained within the published 
reports as well highlighting corrections and identifying amendments made to the 
recommended planning conditions.  
 
Key issues highlighted included the impacts on the heritage assets of the host 
property itself as well as the neighbouring chapel and the wider conservation 
area.  The public benefits of refurbishing a property and bringing it back into a 
viable use were also highlighted as well as the access arrangements and 
limitations and the fact that the proposed development would not have any 
dedicated car parking provision.  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, seeking clarification regarding the use and ownership of 
neighbouring properties, bin storage provision and the access arrangements. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the committee, as 
detailed above. 
 
The local member, Councillor Andrew Davis, then spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
A debate followed whereby the effects and impacts on the host building, 
conservation area and the chapel were discussed, and whether the proposals 
would deliver benefits to the listed building and wider conservation area through 
the proposed renovation work to what is a significant and prominent listed 
building which had rapidly deteriorated over many years. There was also 

Page 310



 
 
 

 
 
 

recognition by members that the proposals offered opportunity to save the 
building and return it into a viable use. There was also a discussion about 
whether the less than substantial harm to the listed building was offset by the 
reported public benefits. 
 
A motion to approve the planning and listed building applications was moved by 
Councillor Trevor Carbin, and seconded by Councillor Jerry Wickham. Following 
a vote, resolved as below, a motion to grant Listed Building Consent was 
moved by Councillor Sarah Gibson, seconded by Councillor Jerry Wickham. At 
the conclusion of debate, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That authority be delegated to the Head of Development Management to 
GRANT planning permission, subject to conditions listed below and 
following the completion of a S106 legal agreement which would bind the 
developer and this permission to firstly secure and complete all the 
necessary repair works to bring the Grade II Listed building at No. 3 High 
Street back into a functional use prior to the first occupation of any of the 
approved dwellings. 
 
Conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the  
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 
1364/P/LOC received on 25 July 2017; 1364/P/01 P3 received on 25 July 
2017; 1364/P/02 P2 received on 18 April 2017; 1364/P/03 P2 received on 18 
April 2017; 1364/P/04 P2 received on 18 April 2017; 1364/P/05 P2 received 
on 18 April 2017; 1364/P/06 P3 received on 25 July 2017; 1364/P/07 P2 
received on 18 April 2017; 1364/P/08 P2 received on 18 April 2017; 
1364/P/09 P3 received on 25 July 2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. No development shall commence on site until the following details 
have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority: 

 
In respect of the 3 residential units located to the rear of the site and 
behind the Chapel:- 
 

Page 311



 
 
 

 
 
 

Eaves and chimney details to include a section at a scale of 1:10, full 
detail of doors, lintels, cills and windows and brochure details for 
rainwater goods and roof lights (conservation style): 
A sample panel of the proposed brickwork and mortar colour (brickwork 
should be Flemish bond) and the proposed specification for the repair of 
the wall; and, 
 
In respect of alterations and conversion of 3 High Street:- 
 
Detailed drawings of the ground floor shop front at a scale of no less than 
1:50; 
A repair schedule for all the existing windows with sash windows to be 
repaired or be replaced on a like-for-like basis; 
Details of conservation style roof lights, timber French doors and other 
new external doors and any canopies, natural slate roofing materials and 
new stone copings; 
Details of the design of the new stairs at ground to the first floor level; and 
A room by room survey of all surviving historic features (i.e. doors, 
skirtings, cornices etc.) and that such features identified are suitably 
reinstated; and, 
 
In respect of the 2 residential units to be provided by the extension to the 
rear of No 3 High Street:- 
 
A sample panel of the proposed Flemish bond brickwork and mortar 
colour; 
New window details at a scale of 1:5 including horizontal and vertical 
sections, and detailing windows with rubbed brick arches and Bath stone 
cills. 
 
REASON:   In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
4. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include: 
 
- all hard and soft surfacing materials including proposed planting; 
- wildlife friendly proposals for the planting scheme 
- finished levels 
- the type and form of any protective fencing to safeguard boundary walls 
and retained trees 
- any means of site/plot enclosure. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 

Page 312



 
 
 

 
 
 

5. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part 
of the development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
6. No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Management Plan (CMP) has been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, 
which shall include the following:   
 
a) the access and parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;  
b) the loading and unloading of plant and materials;  
c) the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 
development;  
d) the measures to control the emission of noise, dust and dirt during 
construction; the hours of construction, including deliveries;  
e) No construction or demolition work taking place on Sundays or Public 
Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday and 
08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays. 
 
The approved CMP shall be complied with in full throughout the 
construction period.  
REASON: To minimise detrimental effects to the neighbouring amenities, 
the amenities of the area in general, detriment to the natural environment 
through the risks of pollution and dangers to highway safety, during the 
construction phase. 
 
7. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of foul water from the site has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development hereby 
approved shall not be first occupied unless and until the foul water 
drainage scheme has been implemented in accordance with the approved 
details. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
8. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access / driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details together 
with permeability test results to BRE365, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development 
hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until the surface 
water drainage scheme has been implemented in accordance with the 
approved details. 

Page 313



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
9. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for protecting 
the future residents against noise from road traffic and noise from other 
sources such as plant for air conditioning units etc. has been submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme 
shall be implemented in full before the use commences and shall be 
maintained at all times thereafter.  
 
Note: In discharging this condition the applicant should engage an 
Acoustic Consultant. The consultant should carry out a background noise 
survey and noise assessment according to BS8233: 2014 (or subsequent 
version) and demonstrate that internal and external noise levels will not 
exceed the guideline noise levels contained in Section 7.7 of 
BS8233:2014. The report should also demonstrate that internal maximum 
noise levels in bedrooms will not normally exceed 45dB LAmax between 
the hours of 23:00 and 07:00. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of future occupants. 
 
10. No burning of waste or other materials shall take place on the 
development site during the demolition/construction phase of the 
development. 
 
REASON: In the interests of neighbour amenity. 
11. The A1 use hereby permitted shall only take place between the hours 
of 08:00 and 1800 Mondays to Saturdays and between 10:00 and 16:00 on 
Sundays and Bank or Public Holidays. 

 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of future occupants and of 
neighbouring properties. 
 
12. No deliveries shall be made to or collections made from the retail 
development hereby approved except between the hours of 08:00 and 
18:00 Monday to Saturday, with no deliveries or collections on Sundays or 
Public and Bank Holidays. 

 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of future occupants and of 
neighbouring properties. 
 
13. No loud speakers or amplification equipment shall be attached to 
ceilings or external walls in the A1 use premises. 

 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of future occupants and of 
neighbouring properties. 
 
14. The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes.  The dwellings shall not be occupied until evidence has been 

Page 314



 
 
 

 
 
 

issued and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning 
authority certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved. 
 
15. Prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved wildlife 
friendly measures in the form of house sparrow nest box under the 
eaves/soffits of  new buildings on site and  bat enhancements with crevice 
spaces to new buildings shall have been installed in accordance with 
details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
REASON: In the interests of enhanced biodiversity. 

16. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re- enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), there shall be no additions to, or extensions or 
enlargements of any building forming part of the development hereby 
permitted. 

 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
 
INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development.  Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to 
the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructurelevy.  
 
The applicant is advised that it is an offence to disturb nesting birds. Site 
clearance of vegetation should be undertaken outside the bird nesting 

Page 315



 
 
 

 
 
 

season (March to the end of August) or immediately after an ecologist has 
confirmed the absence of active nests. 
 
This decision should be read in conjunction with the listed building 
consent decision issued for application 17/04445/LBC and the conditions 
attached thereto. 
 
The applicant is advised to contact Wessex Water with regard to new 
connections and in respect of any agreement that may be required with 
regard to the protection of existing infrastructure. 
 
17/04445/LBC 
Following the resolution to endorse the approval of application 
17/03839/FUL, it was furthermore resolved to grant listed building 
consent, subject to the following conditions. 
 
1. The works for which Listed Building Consent is hereby granted 
shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this 
consent. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 18 of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended by the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 
 
1364/P/LOC received on 25 July 2017; 1364/P/01 P3 received on 25 July 
2017; 1364/P/02 P2 received on 18 April 2017; 1364/P/03 P2 received on 18 
April 2017; 1364/P/04 P2 received on 18 April 2017; 1364/P/05 P2 received 
on 18 April 2017; 1364/P/06 P3 received on 25 July 2017; 1364/P/07 P2 
received on 18 April 2017; 1364/P/08 P2 received on 18 April 2017; 
1364/P/09 P3 received on 25 July 2017  
 
[insofar as they relate to the Listed Building No.3 High Street Warminster]. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. No development shall commence on site until the following details 
have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority: 
 
In respect of alterations and conversion of 3 High Street:- 
 
Detailed drawings of the ground floor shop front at a scale of no less than 
1:50; 
A repair schedule for all the existing windows with sash windows to be 
repaired or be replaced on a like-for-like basis; 

Page 316



 
 
 

 
 
 

Details of conservation style roof lights, timber French doors and other 
new external doors and any canopies, natural slate roofing materials and 
new stone copings; 
Details of the design of the new stairs at ground to the first floor level; and 
A room by room survey of all surviving historic features (i.e. doors, 
skirtings, cornices etc.) and that such features identified are suitably 
reinstated; and, 
 
In respect of the 2 residential units to be provided by the extension to the 
rear of No 3 High Street:- 
 
A sample panel of the proposed Flemish bond brickwork and mortar 
colour; 
New window details at a scale of 1:5 including horizontal and vertical 
sections, and detailing windows with rubbed brick arches and Bath stone 
cills. 
 
REASON:   In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
Planning informative:  
 
1. This decision should be read in conjunction with the planning 
application decision issued for application 17/03839/FUL and the 
conditions attached thereto. 
 

88 17/06331/FUL - Rothermere, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge BA14 8JQ 
 
Public Participation 
Eileen Smith spoke in objection to the application on behalf of the residents of 
Regal Court. 
 
The senior planning officer, Matthew Perks, presented a report which 
recommended approval be granted for change of use from office (B1) to Drug 
and Alcohol Misuse Advice and Treatment Centre (D1), and conversion of first 
floor to cluster housing unit of 5 bedrooms and communal facilities. The 
application was to be determined by Committee as it was a Wiltshire Council 
application which had received objections. Key issues were stated to include 
the principle of development and impact upon neighbouring amenity. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. It was confirmed that it was not proposed that the facility would be 
manned 24 hours per day, but officers did recommend that a facility 
management plan should be prepared in advance of any works commencing on 
the site and that the housing unit as part of the treatment centre was for use by 
those who had already received treatment and had detoxed. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the Committee, as 
detailed above. 

Page 317



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The local member, Councillor Stewart Palmen, then spoke in support of the 
application. 
 
A debate followed, where members discussed the concerns that had been 
raised by local residents, but noted that similar facilities had not led to any 
increase in crime, disorder or anti-social behaviour, and noted that the site had 
previously been used as a Probation office. It was stressed that the Council had 
a duty to support vulnerable persons and the site was considered a suitable and 
sustainable location for such a facility which would be close to other social 
services. Following a discussion about how best to liaise with the local residents 
at Regal Court is was agreed that a planning informative would be applied to 
the decision requiring the Council’s public protection anti-social behaviour 
officer to make contact with and offer to meet with the residents of Regal Court 
to help allay any concerns. 
 
A motion to approve the application with the addition of an informative as 
detailed below was moved by Councillor Palmen and seconded by Councillor 
Philip Alford and at the conclusion of the debate, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:  Site Plan registered on 04 
August 2017; Floor Plan as Exiting registered on 04 August 2017; and 
Floor Plan as Proposed registered on 04 August 2017 
 

            REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 
3. The development hereby approved shall not be brought into use 
until a Facility Management Plan (FMP) has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The FMP shall include, 
but not necessarily be limited to, the following: 
a) The hours of operation for the D1 use; 
b) The staffing levels;  
c) The responsible persons and lines of communication; and  
d) Further details in respect of the out of hours contact details and 
procedures. 
 

Page 318



 
 
 

 
 
 

The approved FMP shall be adhered to and implemented in accordance 
with the approved details. 
 
REASON: In the interests of neighbouring amenity. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
The Council’s own public protection anti-social behaviour officer is 
encouraged by the elected members of the area planning committee to 
make contact with and arrange a meeting with the residents of Regal 
Court to allay any lingering concerns and/or fears about the consented 
development proposals. 
 

89 17/06492/FUL - 19/19A The Old Bakehouse, Stallard Street Trowbridge 
BA14 9AJ 
 
Public Participation 
John Knight, applicant, spoke in support of the application. 
 
The senior planning officer, Matthew Perks, presented a report which 
recommended that permission be granted for existing shop and residential 
accommodation to be converted to 7 self-contained flats. Key issues were 
stated to include the principle of the proposed conversion, parking issues and 
impact on neighbouring amenity. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. Details were sought on the layout of the site, bin storage 
provision, whether the site was inside or outside the town centre, the ownership 
of the entrance yard and parking provision. In response to queries it was 
confirmed that the site was outside the town centre, but close to amenities, the 
railway station and good public transport opportunities.  It was confirmed that 
the site was considered a highly sustainable location for this proposed 
development and the slight shortfall in terms of on-site car parking was not 
considered robust enough reason to refuse the application. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the Committee, as 
detailed above. 
 
The local member, Councillor Stewart Palmen, then spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
A debate followed, where members discussed the parking arrangements and 
ease of access to the site, the number of units applied for and whether this 
constituted overdevelopment. 
 
A motion was moved by Councillor Palmen, seconded by Councillor Sarah 
Gibson, to refuse the application. Following a vote the motion was lost. 
 
A motion was then moved by Councillor Jerry Wickham, seconded by Councillor 
Trevor Carbin, to approve the application. At the conclusion of debate, it was, 
 

Page 319



 
 
 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions. 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 
JK01a Location and Site Plan Registered on 28 July 2017; JK02a Existing 
Floor Plans Registered on 28 July 2017; JK03a Existing Plans/Sections 
Registered on 28 July 2017; JK04b Existing Elevations Received on 6 
October 2017; JK05a Proposed Plans/Sections Registered on 28 July 
2017; JK06a Proposed Elevations Registered on 28 July 2017; JK07 
Existing Elevations Registered on 28 July 2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. No development shall commence on site until details of the 
proposed dormers, including materials, at a minimum scale of 1:20 have 
been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 

 
REASON:   In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area. 
 
4. The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until 
secure covered cycle parking for at least 7 no. bicycles have been 
provided in accordance with the hereby approved plans and  shall be 
retained for use at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: To ensure that satisfactory facilities for the parking of cycles 
are provided and to encourage travel by means other than the private car. 
 
5. No part of the development hereby approved shall be first brought into 
use until three car parking spaces have been provided within the site, with 
no obstruction thereto and with sufficient access thereto. These spaces 
shall be maintained and remain available for this use at all times 
thereafter. 
 
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking 
within the site in the interests of highway safety. 
 

INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT: 
1. The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 

Page 320



 
 
 

 
 
 

Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development.  Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to 
the Council's Website  
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructurelevy 
 

90 Urgent Items 
 
There were no Urgent Items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 5.15 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Jessica Croman of Democratic 

Services, direct line 01225 718262, e-mail jessica.croman@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 321

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 322



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 15 NOVEMBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury (Chairman), Cllr Jonathon Seed (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Peter Fuller, 
Cllr Sarah Gibson, Cllr Edward Kirk, Cllr Pip Ridout, Cllr David Jenkins (Substitute) 
and Cllr Jerry Wickham (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Jackson, Cllr Ben Anderson and Cllr Johnny Kidney 
  

 
91 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Phil Alford and Stewart 
Palmen. 
 
Councillor Alford was substituted by Councillor Jerry Wickham. 
 
Councillor Palmen was substituted by Councillor David Jenkins.  
 

92 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Public participation 
 
David Shaw spoke in objection to the minutes. 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 18 October 2017  were presented. 
 
The Chairman referred to agenda supplement 2 which included  a letter  from 
the Codford Residence Group which proposed some amendments to the 
minutes.   
 
The Chairman and Councillors Andrew Davis, Ernie Clark and David Jenkins 
would abstain from voting due to not being present at the meeting. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the 18 October 2017 as a true and 

Page 323

Agenda Item 28



 
 
 

 
 
 

correct record, subject to the following amendments: 
 
Under Public Participation of Minute 85 replace the words ‘on behalf of 
Codford Parish Council’ with ‘from Codford Parish Council’ 
 
In Paragraph 7 of Minute 85, insert ‘the nature of the legal advice was 
explained by Sarah Marshall, Senior Solicitor’ in place of ‘the nature of the 
legal advice was discussed’ 
 
In Paragraph 7 of Minute 85 remove ‘the weight of evidence submitted by 
all parties’. 
 

93 Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Jerry Wickham declared a non-pecuniary interest for item 7 noting  
that he had been approached in the early stages and gave advice on the 
appropriate route for the footpath to follow. 
 

94 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s Announcements. 
 
The Chairman gave details of the exits to be used in the event of an 
emergency. 
 

95 Public Participation 
 
No questions had been received from councillors or members of the public. 
 
The Chairman welcomed all present. He then explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 

96 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Planning Appeals Update Report for 06/10/17 to 03/11/17 was received. 
 
As a supplemental to the above report, Cllr Ernie Clark enquired about the 
reasons and implications of the recent quashing of an appeal dismissal 
pursuant to refused application 16/01633/OUT at land south of Devizes Road in 
Hilperton. In response, the Committee was informed that the appellant had 
successfully challenged the appeal decision issued on 7 August 2017 on the 
grounds that the heritage impacts reasons for dismissing the appeal had not 
been fully considered during the hearing dated 6 June. The appeal would now 
need to be re-opened in front of another inspector. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Planning Appeals Update Report for 06/10/17 to 03/11/17. 
 

97 Bratton Path No. 42 and Parish of Edington Path No 36 

Page 324



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Public Participation 
Frank Compton spoke in support of the order. 
Ian Humphrey spoke in support of the order. 
Michael Pierce spoke in support of the order. 
Cllr Jeff Ligo on behalf of Bratton Parish Council spoke in support of the 
application. 
 
Craig Harlow, Assistant Rights of Way Warden, presented the report, which 
recommended that order be forwarded to the Secretary of State with the 
recommendation the order be confirmed without modification. The history of the 
order and details of the route were provided, along with the extent of evidence. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officers which focused on if the person who deposited the section 31, was 
the land owner at the time.  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the Committee, as 
detailed above. 
 
As local Member , Councillor Jerry Wickham spoke on the item noting that; 
Bratton had won the best kept village award in Wiltshire; it was a village where 
everyone knew what was happening in their village; the path was well known 
and established and that the evidence was compelling.  
 
A motion to forward the order to the Secretary of State with a recommendation 
from Wiltshire Council that the order be confirmed without modification was 
moved by Councillor Jerry Wickham and seconded by Councillor Trevor Carbin, 
and at the conclusion of debate, it was, 
 
Approved  
 
To forward the order to the Secretary of State with a recommendation from 
Wiltshire Council that the order be confirmed without modification. 
 

98 Planning Applications 
 
The Committee considered the following applications: 
 
98a 17/06276/FUL-Trowle House, Wingfield 
 
Public Participation 
Helen Bennion spoke in objection to the application. 
Gillian Williams  spoke in objection to the application. 
Mathew Williams, agent, spoke in support of the application. 
Claire Braunbarth spoke in support of the application. 
Cllr Simon Taylor on behalf of Wingfield Parish Council spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 

Page 325



 
 
 

 
 
 

The senior planning officer, Steven Sims, introduced a report which 
recommended planning permission be granted for the change of use of Trowle 
House from a private dwelling (Class C3) and chiropractic and physiotherapy 
clinic (Use D1) to a mixed use comprising a private dwelling, a bed and 
breakfast establishment and a venue for small business, social and community 
events – with the events to take place within Trowle House itself and that no 
physical alterations were proposed and there was no requirement for listed 
building consent. 
 
Key issues highlighted included the principle of development; the impact on the 
setting of the listed building; the impact on the Green Belt; the impact on the 
living conditions of neighbouring residents; the impact on the character of the 
area and highway safety and parking issues. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer which focused on: whether listed building consent was required; if 
WCS Core Policy 40 was the most appropriate policy to test this application 
against; and, how would the Council monitor and enforce against noise related 
nuisance. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the Committee, as 
detailed above. 
 
The Chairman sought further clarification on the following issues raised during 
the public speaking: whether there is sufficient sewage capacity available to 
serve the development; how best to secure improvements to the site 
boundaries; and, whether there was a need for a traffic assessment. In 
response, the committee was advised that planning informatives could 
adequately address the sewage capacity and boundary treatment queries and it 
was confirmed that there was no requirement for a transport assessment to be 
undertaken for this proposed development.   
 
At the start of the debate a proposal was moved by Councillor Peter Fuller and 
seconded by Councillor Trevor Carbin to move the officer recommendation but 
to amend condition 5 so as to exclude Christmas and Good Friday for events 
taking place on site and to add two additional informatives for sewage and for a 
boundary treatments.  
 
During the debate it was noted that access to the site was confusing and that 
the applicants should add signage. 
 
At the end of the debate it was; 
 
Resolved 
 
To unanimously approve subject to conditions. 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 

Page 326



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: Site Location Plan scale 
1:1250 (dwg no. 17023-01) and Proposed Site Plan scale 1:1250 (dwg no. 
17023-02 rev A) 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into 
use until the 2.4m x 120m (measured to the nearest carriageway edge) 
sight lines for vehicles exiting the subject property at the A366 access 
point have been improved insofar as the land is within the control of the 
applicant. The approved visibility splays shall thereafter be permanently 
maintained and maintained free from obstruction. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
4. No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into 
use until the parking areas shown on the approved plans (dwg no. 17023-
02 rev A) have been laid out in accordance with the approved details. This 
area shall be maintained and remain available for this use at all times 
thereafter. 
 
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking within 
the site in the interests of highway safety. 
 
5. The number of events shall be limited to no more than 25 in any 
calendar year and there shall be no more than one event held at a time 
and no more than 25 attendees per event. No events shall takes place 
outside the hours of 08:00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Saturday (or 
Christmas Day and Easter Friday) and there shall be no amplified noise or 
music entertainment associated with these events. 
 
REASON: To ensure the creation/retention of an environment free from 
intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the 
area. 
 
6. No loudspeaker or public address system shall be operated within 
the premises hereby approved or its curtilage. 
 
REASON: To ensure the creation/retention of an environment free from 
intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the 
area. 
 
7. The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use 
until details of the storage of refuse, including the exact details 

Page 327



 
 
 

 
 
 

confirming the location, size, as well as the means of enclosure, have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Thereafter, the approved refuse storage shall be complete and 
made available for use in accordance with the approved details prior to 
the use being brought into use. 
 
REASON: In the interests of public health and safety. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
1. The applicant is advised that this permission authorises a change 
of use only and does not authorise any works or alterations that may 
require planning permission/internal or external alterations, additions, or 
works, which may require a separate grant of Listed Building Consent. 
2. The applicant is advised to contact Wessex Water on 01225 526333 
(Waste Water) in relation to the provision of foul water on site. 
3. The applicant should provide a plan detailing how missing sections 
of the boundary treatment would be repaired and improved. 
 

99 Urgent Items 
 
There were no Urgent Items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 4.55 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Jessica Croman of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718262, e-mail jessica.croman@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 328



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 13 DECEMBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury (Chairman), Cllr Jonathon Seed (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Phil Alford, Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, 
Cllr Peter Fuller, Cllr Sarah Gibson, Cllr Stewart Palmen, Cllr Pip Ridout and 
Cllr Roy While (Substitute) 
  

 
100 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Edward Kirk. 
 
Councillor Kirk was substituted by Councillor Roy While. 
 

101 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2017 were presented. 
 
In relation to a query raised at that meeting from the Codford Residence Group 
it was stated that subsequently it had been confirmed that an email sent by the 
parish council clerk to a council inbox had unfortunately not been forwarded to 
the Democratic Services Officer. Nevertheless, the committee had amended the 
minutes of its October meeting to further clarify that the parish council had taken 
a neutral position in relation to the Codford Path No. 15 Right of Way 
Modification Order 2016.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes of the 
meeting held on 17 November 2017. 
 

102 Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Ernie Clark referred to his register of interest. 
 
Councillor Jonathon Seed noted that he had been in contact with the applicants 
of item 10 during a public engagement, although he did not have an interest in 
the item. 
 

Page 329

Agenda Item 29



 
 
 

 
 
 

103 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s Announcements. 
 
The Chairman gave details of the exits to be used in the event of an 
emergency. 
 

104 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Planning Appeals Update Report was received for the period 03/11/2017 
and 01/12/2017 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Planning Appeals Update Report for 03/11/2017 and 
01/12/2017. 
 

105 Public Participation 
 
The Chairman welcomed all present. He then explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 
A question was received from Councillor Ernie Clark and a written response had 
been provided as detailed in agenda supplement 2. 
 
A supplementary question from Councillor Ernie Clark was asked: Why is it 
taking so long to publish the information? 
 
It was agreed that the Head of Spatial Planning would be asked to provide a 
response, to be circulated to all Members of the committee. 
 

106 Commons Act 2006 - Sections 15(1) And (3) - Application to Register Land 
as a Town or Village Green - Great Lees Field, Semington 
 
Public Participation 
Susanna Isaac spoke in objection to the application. 
William Stuart-Bruges spoke in objection to the application. 
Dr William Scott, Friends of Great Lees Field, spoke in support of the 
application. 
Brian Smyth on behalf of Semington Parish Council spoke in support of the 
application. 
 
Janice Green, Rights of Way Officer, presented the report, which recommended 
that the committee appoint an independent Inspector to preside over a non-
statutory public inquiry.  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officers, where no questions were asked. 
 

Page 330



 
 
 

 
 
 

Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the Committee, as 
detailed above. 
 
In response to points raised during the public forum the Rights of Way Officer 
informed the committee that the planning application had been submitted to 
Wiltshire Council as the Planning Authority on 14 June 2016, prior to the Village 
Green application which was received by Wiltshire Council as the Registration 
Authority on 24 June 2016. However, in order for the planning application to be 
a valid trigger event over the land, which would extinguish the right to apply to 
register the land as a town or village green, the planning application must be 
first published under s.65(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. In this 
case the planning application was not published until 29 June 2016, therefore at 
the time the application was received no trigger events were in place over the 
land.  
 
Upon receipt of the Town/Village Green application, the Registration Authority 
consulted with the Planning Authorities who confirmed that there were no 
planning trigger events in place over the land at the time  the Town/Village 
Green application was received by the Council. The Rights of Way Officer 
confirmed that where there is a dispute in the evidence provided to the 
Registration Authority, the holding of a non-statutory public inquiry would assist 
the Registration Authority in its determination of the application. 
 
A debate followed, where the following key points were raised: the complex 
nature of the application and the publishing dates of the planning application on 
the parish list. 
 
A motion was moved by Councillor Johnathon Seed to move the officers 
recommendation, which was seconded by Councillor Ernie Clark.  
 
At the end of the debate it was; 
 
Resolved: 
 
That Wiltshire Council, as the Commons Registration Authority, appoints 
an independent Inspector to preside over a non-statutory public inquiry, 
in order that a recommendation can be made to the Council as the 
Registration Authority, to assist in its determination of the application to 
register land off Pound Lane, Semington, known as Great Lees Field, as a 
Town or Village Green, as soon as is reasonably practicable. 
 

107 Planning Applications 
 
The Committee considered the following applications: 
 

108 17/01158/FUL - St Pauls Church, Staverton 
 
Public Participation 
Nicola Trumper spoke in objection to the application. 
Malcolm Archer, Applicant, spoke in support of the application. 

Page 331



 
 
 

 
 
 

Adrian Browning, Church Commissioners (vendor), spoke in support of the 
application. 
Simon Ferris, Diocese of Salisbury, spoke in support of the application 
 
Steve Sims, Planning Officer, introduced a report which recommended planning 
permission be granted subject to conditions for the change of use of a church to 
a 2 bedroom dwelling, with the external and internal alterations and the formal 
provision of two car parking spaces on land to the rear of No. 95 Staverton. 
 
Key issues highlighted included the Principle of the development; Impact on the 
The key issues highlighted included the principle of the development; the impact 
on the setting of listed buildings (including the church itself); the impact on the 
character of the area; the impact on the living conditions and amenities of 
neighbouring residents; the impact on highway safety interests; ecology and 
drainage issues were also highlighted. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer which focused on the modified red line site plan during the 
planning process and the location and use of the access track. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the committee, as 
detailed above. 
 
A debate followed, where the following key points were raised: acknowledging 
the subject property’s former use as a church and its lack of dedicated car 
parking and the recognition of finding a viable and suitable use for what is a 
listed building and appraising the consequential impacts of the development on 
neighbouring residents and highway safety. 
 
A motion to approve the officer’s recommendation was moved by Councillor 
Ernie Clark and was seconded by Councillor Sarah Gibson. 
 
At the end of the debate is was; 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve planning permission subject to conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission.  
 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 

accordance with the following approved plans: 
 

Amended Site Location Plan scale 1:1250 (dwg no. 0504 01 rev B) 
Existing Floor Plans scale 1:100 (dwg no 0504 02A) 

Page 332



 
 
 

 
 
 

Proposed Floor Plans and Section B scale 1L100 (dwg no. 0504 
03A) 
Existing Elevations scale 1:100 (dwg no. 0504 04) 
Proposed Elevations scale 1:100 (dwg no. 0504 05) 
Amended Block Plan scale 1:500 (dwg no. 0504 07 rev G) 
Proposed Section A-A scale 1:50 (dwg no. 0504 09 rev A) 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 
3. No development hereby approved shall commence within the area 

indicated as the proposed development site until:  
• A written programme of archaeological investigation, which 

should include on-site work and off-site work such as the 
analysis, publishing and archiving of the results, has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority; 
and 

• The approved programme of archaeological work has been 
carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

 
REASON:  To enable the recording of any matters of archaeological 
interest. 

 
4. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in strict 

accordance with Section 7 of the Ecological Assessment report 
(Greena Ecological Consultancy, 27th August 2017 V1A) and the 
mitigation measures proposed therein with respect to roosting, 
commuting and foraging bats and nesting birds. 

 
REASON: To ensure the implementation of appropriate mitigation 
and protection for protected species, notably bats and birds.  

 
5. No development shall commence on site until the trees on the site 

which are protected by a Tree Preservation Order have been 
enclosed by protective fencing, in accordance with British Standard 
5837 (2012): “Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and 
Construction -Recommendations”. Before any fence is erected its 
type and position shall be approved with the Local Planning 
Authority and after it has been erected, it shall be maintained for the 
duration of the works and no vehicle, plant, temporary building or 
materials, including raising and or, lowering of ground levels, shall 
be allowed within the protected areas.  

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order that 
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to enable 
the Local Planning Authority to ensure the protection of trees on 
the site in the interests of visual amenity. 

Page 333



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
6. No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until 

the turning area and parking spaces have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The 
areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter.  

 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 

 
INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT: 
 
1. New water supply and waste water connections will be required 

from Wessex water to serve this proposed development. 
Application forms and guidance information is available from the 
Developer Services web-pages at our website 
www.wessexwater.co.uk  Further information can be obtained from 
our New Connections Team by telephoning 01225 526222 for Water 
Supply and 01225 526333 for Waste Water. Separate systems of 
drainage will be required to serve the proposed development. No 
surface water connections will be permitted to the foul sewer 
system. 

 
2.  The work should be conducted by a professional archaeological 

contractor and there will be a financial implication for the applicant. 
 

109 17/04707/FUL - Land at Whaddon Lane, Hilperton 
 
Public Participation 
Steve Yalland, applicant, spoke in support of the application. 
Ian Cradock spoke in support of the application 
 
Steve Sims, as the senior planning case officer, presented the report which had 
recommended that the proposed agricultural workers dwelling be granted 
temporary planning permission for a period of three years subject to conditions. 
 
Steve Sims, as the senior planning case officer, presented the report which 
recommended that the proposed agricultural workers dwelling be granted 
temporary planning permission for a period of three years subject to conditions. 
 
Key issues highlighted included: the principle of the development; the visual 
impact upon the surrounding area; the design, bulk, height, general appearance 
and the environmental/highway impacts. The Committee was informed that 
Hilperton Parish Council objected to the application proposal. The committee 
was informed that the applicant had already moved onto the site with a different 
mobile home to that being proposed under the application after leaving their 
previous residency. Members were informed that the on-site occupation was 
unauthorised and that in the event permission was granted for the development 
being proposed, a condition could remedy the breach. The financial and 
functional agricultural justification was also summarised and members were 
informed that the Council’s appointed agricultural adviser had provided a report 
that was summarised in the committee papers.   

Page 334



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The committee presentation identified land that was owned and rented by the 
applicant to which the Council’s agricultural adviser duly referenced in his 
report. The committee were informed of the parcels of rented land the applicant 
asserted to have agreements in place with the requisite land owners, however 
on the day of the committee meeting a late representation had been shared with 
officers  questioning the accuracy of the submission which led officers to make 
direct contact with the applicant and agent in an attempt to seek clarification 
before the meeting to ascertain whether the extent of rented land available to 
the applicant had changed since the application was submitted and what land 
parcels could be evidenced to have formal rental agreements in place to 
support the claim that the farm enterprise could fully justify on-site residency for 
an agricultural worker. 
 
The committee was informed that officers had not received the evidence or 
clarity being sought on the day of the meeting and out of fairness to the 
applicant, the committee was asked to consider a deferral until the information 
was shared and have the case reported back to committee for consideration. 
Members were furthermore advised that in the event that the land available for 
the use of the applicant had materially changed, it would be necessary to re-
engage the services of the Council’s agricultural consultant to review any fresh 
submission and justification. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officers which focused on: The confidential nature of the representation 
received; the nature of when proof of landownership is normally requested and 
the enforcement history. 
 
It was also noted that there had been previous enforcement investigations 
relating to the site whereby an unauthorised mobile home had previously been 
stationed on the site that was subsequently removed. The current unauthorised 
mobile home is not yet subject to formal enforcement proceedings and officers 
advised that this will remain the case until the outcome of the planning 
application is known.   
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the Committee, as 
detailed above. 
 
The local member, Councillor Ernie Clark, moved to defer the application, which 
was seconded by the Chairman, to enable officers to obtain more information to 
be supplied. 
 
A debate followed, where the following key points were raised which related to 
the need for the agricultural consultant to review the information again and to 
submit a clear recommendation. 
 
The original motion was amended to include the need for the agricultural 
consultant to review the information and to provide a fresh recommendation. 
 
At the end of the debate it was; 

Page 335



 
 
 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
 
To defer the application to enable officers to request more information 
from the applicant in terms of land available for his agricultural use and 
for the council’s agricultural consultant to review the information and 
evidence and provide a revised report and recommendation.  
 

110 17/08557/FUL - Princecroft School, Warminster 
 
Public Participation 
Mr Healy, local resident, spoke in objection to the application. 
Michael Park, Headteacher, spoke in support of the application. 
Anthony Dixon, applicant, spoke in support of the application. 
 
The planning officer, Katie Yeoman, presented a report which recommended 
planning permission be granted for proposed extensions and alterations to 
Princecroft School including the construction of a new school hall. Key issues 
were stated to include the principle of the development, impact upon the host 
building, neighbouring amenity and highways safety, all of which were 
considered acceptable. 
 
Members of the Committee were given the opportunity to ask technical 
questions of the officer. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the committee with 
their views, as detailed above. 
 
The local Unitary Member, Councillor Pip Ridout, then spoke in support of the 
application. 
 
A debate followed, where the impact upon local highways was raised, along 
with conditioning use of a school travel plan, construction statement, as well as 
details of the catchment areas and level of traffic in the area. 
 
A motion to approve the officer’s recommendation was moved by Councillor 
Ridout, seconded by Councillor Andrew Davis, and at the conclusion of 
discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 

accordance with the following approved plans:  

Page 336



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Site location plan – drawing no. 005 Rev A – received 15/09/2017; 
Existing location plan – drawing no. 010 Rev A  - dated 15/09/2017; 
Proposed location plan – drawing no. 011 – received 15/09/2017; 
Existing site plan – drawing no. 050 Rev A – dated 06/07/2017; 
Proposed site plan – drawing no. 051 Rev C – dated 15/09/2017; 
Existing ground floor plan – drawing no. 060 Rev A – 06/07/2017; 
Proposed ground floor plan new hall – drawing no. 061 Rev C – 
dated 15/09/2017; Proposed ground floor plan – drawing no. 062 
Rev C – dated 15/09/2017; Existing elevations – drawing no. 2001 
Rev A – dated 31/08/2017; Proposed elevations – drawing no. 2002 
Rev C – dated 08/11/2017; Existing roof plan – drawing no. 0208 – 
dated 23/11/2017; Proposed roof plan – drawing no. 0209 Rev B – 
dated 08/11/2017; Proposed 3D views 01 birds eye – drawing no. 
9401 Rev A – dated 29/08/2017; Proposed 3D views 02 birds eye – 
drawing no. 9402 Rev A – dated 30/08/2017; Proposed 3D views 03 
street level – drawing no. 9403 Rev A – dated 29/08/2017; Detailed 
drainage layout – drawing no. 500C – dated 30/10/2017; Manhole 
schedule – drawing no. 510C – dated 30/10/2017; Construction 
details – drawing no. 520 sheet 1 – dated 30/10/2017; Construction 
details – drawing no. 521 sheet 2 – dated 30/10/2017; Construction 
details – drawing no. 522 sheet 3 – dated 30/10/2017; Infiltration 
crate details – drawing no. 523 – 30/10/2017; Soakaway crate detail 
– sheet 1-5 – dated 27/10/2017 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 
3. The development shall not be first occupied until the surface water 

drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme.   

 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 

 
4. No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or 

Public Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to 
Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays. 

 
REASON: To ensure the creation/retention of an environment free 
from intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the 
amenity of the area during the construction phase of the 
development. 

 
5. No burning of waste or other materials shall take place on the 

development site during the demolition/construction phase of the 
development. 

 
REASON: To minimise any detrimental effects to the neighbouring 
amenities, the amenities of the area in general, detriment to the 

Page 337



 
 
 

 
 
 

natural environment through the risks of pollution and dangers to 
highway safety. 

 
6. No development shall commence on site until a dust management 

plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The plan shall include details of the measures 
that will be taken to reduce and manage the emission of dust during 
the demolition and/or construction phase of the development.  The 
construction/demolition phase of the development will be carried 
out fully in accordance with the dust management plan at all times. 

  
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order that 
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to 
minimise detrimental effects to the neighbouring amenities, the 
amenities of the area in general, detriment to the natural 
environment through the risks of pollution and dangers to highway 
safety, during the construction phase. 

 
7. No development shall commence on site (including any works of 

demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall 
include the following:   
- The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;  
- Loading and unloading of plant and materials;  
- Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development;  
- The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including 

decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where 
appropriate;  

- Wheel and road cleaning when necessary;  
- Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 

construction; 
- A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from 

demolition and construction works; 
- Measures for the protection of the natural environment; 
- The hours of construction, including deliveries 

 
Has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The development shall not be 
carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved 
construction method statement without the prior written permission 
of the Local Planning Authority.  

 
REASON: To minimise detrimental effects to the neighbouring 
amenities, the amenities of the area in general, detriment to the 
natural environment through the risks of pollution and dangers to 
highway safety, during the construction phase. 

Page 338



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
8. No development shall commence on site until a photographic pre-

condition highway survey of the following roads; Westleigh, 
Princecroft Lane and Pound Street, has been carried out and issued 
to the Highway Authority.  Within 3 months of the completed 
development, a post condition survey should be made available to 
the development management team. 

 
REASON: To ensure Westleigh, Princecroft Lane and Pound Street 
are maintained to an acceptable standard and any defects attributed 
to the construction traffic are rectified in the interests of highway 
safety.   

 
9. No part of the development shall be brought into use until a fully 

updated School Travel Plan, reflecting the increase in pupil 
numbers, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The travel plan shall include details of 
implementation and monitoring and shall be implemented in 
accordance with these agreed details and with guidance from the 
school travel plan adviser who can be contacted on 01225 713483. 

 
REASON: In the interests of road safety and reducing vehicular 
traffic to the development. 

 
10.   The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 

submitted Arboricultural survey, impact assessment and protection 
plan (prepared by Barton Hyett) in relation to the protection of trees.  
 
REASON: In the interests of tree protection and the amenities of the 
area. 

 
11.  No development shall commence on site until details of on-site 

compensatory tree planting, as referred to in the Arboricultural 
survey, impact assessment and protection plan (prepared by Barton 
Hyett) has been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.    

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order that 
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure 
a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the 
protection of existing important landscape features. 

 
12.  All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 

landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building(s) or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, 
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 

Page 339



 
 
 

 
 
 

shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority 

 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape 
features. 

 
13.  The hereby approved new hall and additional classroom 

accommodation shall not be brought into use until the 5 additional 
car parking spaces identified on the approved site plan (drawing no. 
3345_L_051) have been provided and are available for use.  
Thereafter, the parking spaces shall be retained for such purposes. 

 
REASON: To ensure the school has a satisfactory on-site car 
parking provision. 

 
INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT:   
 
1. The developer is requested to note that Wales and West Utilities 

have pipes in this area which may be affected and at risk during 
construction works.  The promotor of these works, hereby 
permitted, should contact Wales and West Utilities directly to 
discuss their requirements in detail before any works commence on 
site.  Should diversion works be required these will be fully 
chargeable. 

 
2. The applicant should be informed that the Highway Authority will 

pursue rectification of any defects identified by the highway 
conditions survey which can be attributed to the site construction 
traffic under the provision of Section 59 of the Highways Act 1980. 

 
3. Pursuant to conditions 2 and 3, Wessex Water advises that the 

surface water discharge treatment needs to satisfy the Environment 
Agency guidelines. Non domestic supplies required for firefighting 
or commercial use would require a separate assessment with 
network modelling subject to design requirements. Wessex Water 
recommends the use of storage tanks where network capacity is 
not available or where off site reinforcement is necessary to provide 
the stated demand. 

 
111 17/04730/VAR - Land West of 198 Norrington Lane, Broughton Gifford 

 
Public Participation 
Clive Taylor spoke in objection to the application. 
Angela Andrews spoke in objection to the application. 
Daniel Gerber spoke in objection to the application. 
Peter Maclaren, agent, spoke in support of the application. 

Page 340



 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr Martin Freeman, Broughton Gifford Parish Council, spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
James Taylor, senior planning officer, introduced the report which 
recommended approval be granted for minor material amendment to planning 
permission W/12/02072/FUL (varying conditions 4 and 10) to facilitate the "as 
built" plans of the solar park. Key issues included the scale and visual impact of 
the as built development on the open countryside, conservation area and 
heritage assets such as the listed Gifford Hall, over and above the consented 
scheme. The report concluded the proposals addressed previous reasons for 
refusal on the variation application from 2014, including replacement of metal 
fencing and omission of CCTV proposals. Furthermore, that the as built scheme 
did not cause any substantial harm over the consented scheme. 
 
Members of the Committee had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
officer. Details were sought on the differences between the as built site and the 
extant permission, and it was confirmed that there had been an increase in the 
number of rows, but that the solar arrays were lower and narrower. It was 
confirmed that the number of solar panels and the surface area of the panels on 
the as built scheme was less than the consented scheme and were contained 
within the same site area. 
 
The local unitary member, Councillor Philip Alford, then spoke in objection to 
the application. 
 
A debate followed, where the visual impact of the present site was discussed, 
and whether the density of panels was significantly above that of the consented 
plans of fewer rows of greater height and width on the same site. The potential 
impact on the designated conservation area, heritage assets and landscape of 
the as built vs consented scheme were raised, but a site visit was proposed in 
order for the committee to consider the level of impact of the site in its present 
form before making any decision. 
 
Upon the proposal of Councillor Alford, seconded by Councillor Ernie Clark, at 
the conclusion of debate, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
To undertake a site visit at approximately 1pm on 10th January 2018. 
 

112 Urgent Items 
 
There were no Urgent Items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 6.25 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Jessica Croman of Democratic 

Services, direct line 01225 718262, e-mail jessica.croman@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 341



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 342



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 11 JANUARY 2018 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury (Chairman), Cllr Jonathon Seed (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Phil Alford, Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, 
Cllr Peter Fuller, Cllr Sarah Gibson, Cllr Edward Kirk, Cllr Pip Ridout and 
Cllr Gordon King (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr David Halik and Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe 
  

 
113 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Stewart Palmen who was 
substituted by Cllr Gordon King. 
 

114 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2017  were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 13 December 2017   
 

115 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

116 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman gave details of the exits to be used in the event of an 
emergency. 
 

117 Public Participation 
 
There were no questions received from councillors or members of the public. 
 

Page 343

Agenda Item 30



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Chairman welcomed all present. He then explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 

118 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Planning Appeals Update Report was received. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the Planning Appeals Update Report for 1 December to the 21 
December 2017. 
 

119 Planning Applications 
 
The Committee considered the following applications: 
 

120 17/04730/VAR: Land West of Norrington Lane, Broughton G|ifford, 
Norrington Common, SN12 8LR 
 
Public Participation 
Clive Taylor spoke in objection to the application.  
William Monk spoke in objection to the application.  
Dorothy Treasure spoke in objection to the application. 
Peter Maclaren, agent, spoke in support of the application. 
Cllr Martin Freeman, Broughton Gifford Parish Council, spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
James Taylor, senior planning officer, introduced the report which 
recommended approval be granted for minor material amendment to planning 
permission W/12/02072/FUL (varying conditions 4 and 10) to facilitate the "as 
built" plans of the solar park.  
 
Matters highlighted included: the scale and visual impact of the as built 
development on the open countryside, conservation area, including the 
common, and heritage assets such as the grade II listed Gifford Hall, over and 
above the consented scheme; how the as built plans compared to the permitted 
scheme; the information gathered from the site visit including the views of the 
site in the context of other features in the area including the heritage asset; how 
planting and fencing had been implemented; the comparison with nearby 
permitted schemes; the views submitted by the public, including Mr Gerber; that 
the officer’s report concluded that the proposals addressed previous reasons for 
refusal on the variation application from 2014, including replacement of metal 
fencing and omission of CCTV proposals; and that furthermore, that the as built 
scheme did not cause any substantial harm over the consented scheme. 
 
Mr Wilmott, Head of Development Management, summarised additional issues 
for note including: how the difference in the scheme impacted, or otherwise, on 
the ability to appreciate the listed building in its setting; that whilst there was a 
recognition that whilst retrospective applications are not often welcome, that the 
application had be assessed as to whether the changes result in additional 

Page 344



 
 
 

 
 
 

harm to that permitted, and that the officers view was that it did not and that 
approval should be sought. 
 
Members of the Committee had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
officer.  
 
The local division member, Councillor Philip Alford, then spoke in objection to 
the application. 
 
The meeting adjourned to consider the written objections submitted by Mr 
Gerber during the site visit. There were no additional questions from the 
committee arising from the additional information. 
 
Councillor Philip Alford proposed, subsequently seconded by Councillor Ernie 
Clark, that the application be refused on the basis that the application had a 
detrimental impact on the setting of the grade ii listed building, did not preserve 
or enhance the setting of the heritage asset, did not protect the landscape, and 
due to the cumulative negative affect on the landscape. 
 
Councillor Jonathon Seed spoke in the debate and stated that having read the 
officers report, and having visited the site, he was satisfied that the 
amendments to the previously permitted plans did not demonstrated significant 
additional harm and therefore he could not support refusal. Councillor Peter 
Fuller similarly spoke against the refusal. 
 
Councillor Ernie Clark spoke in support of refusal citing the impact on the 
heritage asset. 
 
Councillor Alford was given an opportunity to respond to the issues raised in the 
debate. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate, the motion was lost. 
 
Admin note: As requested, the votes of Councillors Philip Alford and Ernie Clark 
were recorded for refusal. 
 
Councillor Jonathon Seed proposed, subsequently seconded by Councillor 
Andrew Davies, that permission be granted subject to the conditions outlined in 
the officer’s report. 
 
At the conclusion of debate, it was; 
 
Resolved: 
 

To approve planning permissions subject to the following conditions.  
 

1. The development hereby approved shall be discontinued and the 
land restored to its former condition on or before 31 December 
2039 in accordance with the hereby approved Decommissioning 
Plan approved under W/12/02072/FUL; unless before that date 

Page 345



 
 
 

 
 
 

planning permission has been sought and granted for the 
retention of these structures for an extended period of time. 

 
REASON: In the interests of amenity and the circumstances of the use; 
and in the interests of consistency with W/12/02072/FUL. 
 

2. In the event that the development ceases to be operational for 
the generation of energy before the end of the period defined in 
condition 2 then all associated development on, under or above 
the application site shall be removed from the site and the land 
returned to its former condition in accordance with the hereby 
approved Decommissioning Plan approved under 
W/12/02072/FUL, within six months of the cessation of the 
generation of energy from the site. 

 
REASON: In the interests of  amenity and the circumstances of the 
use; and in the interests of consistency with W/12/02072/FUL. 

 
3. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except 

in complete accordance with the details shown on the hereby 
approved plans: 

 

 1295/2575 (Revision V5) - Location Plan by aardvark, dated 20 
Feb 14; 

 001-9-5575 SHT 1 of 1 - Substation general arrangement by 
Ormazabal, dated 23/01/14;  

 B2281200-L-14 Rev 3 - Landscape Mitigation Plan by Jacobs, 
dated 03/11/2017; 

 HESR FRAME 3 Version 1 by Power Electronics, dated  
3/06/2013;  

 Sheet 1 - Track detail 1 by prosolia, dated 04/14; 

 150641- Detail Doors Locks by prosolia, dated 10/12;  

 DXX70 - Detail Fibergate GRP by prosolia, dated 02/14; 

 JG16-350/XSEC2D/01 Rev 0 - Cross Section by Jacobs, dated 
Nov 16; JG16-350/Topo3D/01 Rev D - As built Plan by Jacobs, 
dated Nov 17; Proposed fence design V1 by Lightsource, dated 
25.07.17; 

 B2281200-JAC-SKT-D-00001   Rev   1.0   by   Jacobs,   dated   
Aug   17   (within   Jacobs Memorandum dated 28 November 
2017); 

 Drawing: 1295/2576 (Revision V2) - Existing Site Plan;  

 Drawing: 1285/2580 (Revision V1) – Topographic Survey; 
Drawing: 1295/2559 (Revision V3) – Footpath Site Plan; and 

 Drawing: 1295/2585 (Revision V1) – Indicative interpretation 
board specification details. 

 
REASON: To define the terms of this permission. 
 

Page 346



 
 
 

 
 
 

4. The development shall be maintained in accordance with the 
hereby approved Landscape and Ecological Enhancement Plan – 
Addendum dated 29 August 2017; and the Landscape and 
Ecological Enhancement Plan dated October 2013 approved 
under the discharge of conditions against W/12/02072/FUL. 

 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development, the protection of existing important landscape features; 
the protection and enhancement of biodiversity interests and in the 
interests of consistency with W/12/02072/FUL. 

 
5. Within 4 months of the grant of this approval the drainage works 

identified at paragraph 3.6 of the “As Built Surface Water Drainage 
System” Memorandum by Jacobs, dated 28 November 2017 and 
detailed on drawing reference B2281200-JAC-SKT-D-00001 Rev 1.0 
by Jacobs, dated Aug 17 at Appendix C shall have been carried 
out as hereby approved. The surface water drainage system shall 
be maintained through the lifetime of the development as per the 
provisions of this document. 

 
REASON: To minimise flood risk by ensuring the satisfactory 
management of surface water from the site through its lifetime; and in 
the interests of consistency with W/12/02072/FUL. 

 
Admin note: As requested, the votes of Councillors Philip Alford and Ernie Clark 
were recorded against permission. 
 

121 17/06733/FUL: The Meadow, Crockerton, BA12 7DU 
 
Public Participation 
Barry Pirie, applicant, spoke in support of the application. 
Cllr Richard Baxter, Longbridge Deverill  Parish Council, spoke in objection to 
the application. 
 
Steven Vellance, planning officer, introduced the report which recommended 
approval be granted for the change of use of existing buildings and part of site to 
a nursery school, to include proposed works to existing buildings.  
 
Matters highlighted included: that the application had been called in by the local 
member on grounds including car parking; the location of the site and the 
existing uses on the land; the support for the proposals from officers responsible 
for child care provision; the proposed elevations of the proposals and the site 
entrance for the new access; the existing boundary treatments and vegetation 
on the site; and the views of the highways officers. 
 
Members of the Committee had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
officer, including clarification of the existing planning permissions on adjacent 
land. 
 

Page 347



 
 
 

 
 
 

The local division member, Councillor Fleur De Rhe-Philipe, then spoke in 
relation to the application stating that whilst she understood the objections of 
the parish council, she considered that the matters raised had been mitigated 
against successfully. 
 
Upon the proposal of Councillor Jonathon Seed, seconded by Councillor Ernie 
Clark, at the conclusion of debate, it was unanimously;  
 
Resolved 
 
To Approve the planning application subject to the following  conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: Drawing 10203-P01 Rev B - Existing 
Location Plan received on 03.11.2017; Drawing 10203-P02 Existing 
Elevations received on 03.08.2017; Drawing 10203-P03 Existing floor 
Plans received on 03.08.2017; Drawing 10203-P04 Rev B Proposed Block 
Plan received on 03.11.2017; Drawing 10203-P05 Proposed elevations 
received on 03.08.2017; Drawing 10203-P06 Proposed floor Plan received 
on 03.08.2017; Drawing 10203-P07 Existing site plan received on 
03.08.2017; Drawing 10203-P08 Proposed Site (Land Identification) Plan 
received on 26.09.2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. The development hereby approved shall not be brought into use (in 
relation to the conversion and extension to the stable building) until a 
scheme for the discharge of foul water has been submitted to, approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and completed. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
NOTE: If the applicant proposes to use an existing system, the applicant 
is hereby required to confirm that it is adequate and has the necessary 
capacity to accommodate the proposed increased use. 
 
4. The development hereby approved shall not be brought into use (in 
relation to the conversion and extension to the stable building) until a 
scheme for the discharge of surface water from the site (including surface 
water from the access / driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage 
details together with permeability test results to BRE365 and location of 
top ground water level to ensure that the base of any soakaway is at least 

Page 348



 
 
 

 
 
 

1m of unsaturated soil above the agreed top water level of ground water 
taking into account seasonal variations, has been submitted to, approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and completed. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
5. No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into use 
until the access, drop off area and parking spaces have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. Thereafter, the 
areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all times for the lifetime of 
the development. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
6. No part of the development hereby approved (in relation to the 
conversion and extension to the stable building) shall commence until the 
exact details and samples of the materials to be used for the external 
walls and roofs have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
7. No part of the development hereby approved (in relation to the 
conversion and extension to the stable building) shall be brought into use 
until the access has been widened, the existing gates have been 
permanently removed and the visibility improvement works along the 
western site boundary (as illustrated on plan drawing 10203-PO4 Rev B) 
have been completed to achieve improved visibility from a point 
measured 2.4m back into the access measured from the carriageway 
edge, to a point measured 210m to the nearside carriageway edge in a 
northerly direction. The visibility splay thus provided shall thereafter be 
maintained. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
8. The maximum number of children at the nursery shall be 24, as stated 
within the accompanying Design and Access Statement. 
 
REASON: To define the terms of the permission and the interests of 
highway safety and because this permission is granted having regard to 
the particular circumstances advanced in support of the application. 
 
9. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
measures stipulated in the Discussion and Conclusions section of the 
approved Extended Phase 1 Ecological Survey Report (produced by Stark 
Ecology Ltd and dated November, 2017) with respect of the need to time 
the works during the winter and outside of the nesting birds season 
(which is March to August inclusive). 

Page 349



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: To ensure appropriate mitigation for nesting birds, and to 
ensure compliance with wildlife legislation, Core Policy 50 of the Wiltshire 
Core Strategy and the NPPF. 
 
10. No part of the development hereby approved (in relation to the 
conversion and extension to the stable building) shall commence until the 
exact details of the ecological enhancement and mitigation measures for 
bats and birds as recommended in the Discussion and Conclusions 
section of the approved Extended Phase 1 Ecological Survey Report have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Details must include the number, specification and location of 
the features to be incorporated within the development and this shall also 
be shown on a site plan. Thereafter, the ecological enhancement 
measures for roosting bats and nesting birds shall be installed in 
accordance with the approved details and plan. 
 
REASON: To ensure appropriate compensation for nesting birds and 
enhancement for bats in accordance with Core Policy 50 of the Wiltshire 
Core Strategy and the NPPF. 
 
11. No new external lighting shall be installed at the application site 
without prior written approval from the local planning authority. Any plans 
for new lighting must be submitted to the local planning authority for 
consideration and approval and must include details of mitigation 
measures to minimise the potential for impacts on foraging and 
commuting bats at the site. Thereafter, new lighting must be installed and 
operated in strict accordance with the approved lighting plan. 
 
REASON: To ensure appropriate mitigation for bats, and to ensure 
compliance with wildlife legislation and Core Policy 50 of the Wiltshire 
Core Strategy. 
 
12. Notwithstanding the provisions enshrined within The Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 
(or any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending those Orders with or 
without modification) the development hereby approved shall be used as 
a nursery school falling within use class D1 and for no other purpose 
(including any other purpose in Class D1 of the Schedule to the Town and 
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) (or in any 
provisions equivalent to that class in any statutory instrument revoking or 
re-enacting that Order with or without modification). 
 
REASON: The proposed use is acceptable but the Local Planning 
Authority wish to consider any future proposal for a change of use having 
regard to the circumstances of the case and site location. 
 
Informatives: 
 

Page 350



 
 
 

 
 
 

Pursuant to conditions 3 and 4, the surface water and foul water 
discharge treatment needs to satisfy Environment Agency guidelines. Non 
domestic supplies required for firefighting or commercial use would 
require a separate assessment with network modelling subject to design 
requirements. The applicant should make contact with Wessex Water to 
agree new water connections.  
 

122 Urgent Items 
 
There were no Urgent Items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 4.46 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Jessica Croman of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718262, e-mail jessica.croman@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 351



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 352



 
 
 

 
 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING HELD 
ON 19 SEPTEMBER 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chair), Dr Peter Jenkins (Vice Chairman), Cara 
Charles-Barks, Dr Andrew Girdher, Dr Toby Davies, Christine Graves, Angus Macpherson, 
Cllr Laura Mayes, Linda Prosser, Dr Richard Sandford-Hill, James Scott, Cllr Ian Thorn, 
Cllr Jerry Wickham, Carolyn Godfrey and Cllr Ben Anderson 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Christine Crisp and Cllr Tony Jackson 
  

 
127 Chairman's Welcome, Introduction and Announcements 

 
The Chair drew the meeting’s attention to the announcements in the agenda 
pack as follows: 
 

 CQC Inspection of Children’s Community Services 

 Signing of the Carers Memorandum of Understanding 

As it was the Vice-Chair Dr Jenkins’ last meeting, the Chair took the opportunity 
to thank him for his hard work on the Board and for his efforts in cementing the 
relationship between the CCG and Wiltshire Council. 
 
It was noted that Dr Richard Sandford-Hill would be he chair of CCG and would 
then become vice-chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 

128 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from: 
 

 Nerissa Vaughan 

 Dr Tony Sutcliffe from AWP who will no longer be attending and will be 

replaced by Dr Bill-Bruce Jones for future meetings; and 

 Dr Andy Smith - SWAST 

 
129 Minutes 

 
The minutes of the previous meeting were considered. 
 

Page 353

Agenda Item 31



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved 
 
To approve for signing the minutes of the previous meeting held on 13 
July 2017 
 

130 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

131 Public Participation 
 
There were no questions or submissions. 
 

132 Better Care Plan 
 
Sue Shelbourn-Barrow, the newly appointed Integration Manager, gave an 
update on the delivery of the Better Care Plan for Wiltshire. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the matters previously reported to the project board; the future challenges to be 
faced in the winter; how resources are allocated efficiently; what flexibility there 
is in the programme; that all projects in programme will be evaluated to enable 
decisions to be made to stop some programmes and reinvest in others. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
To note the progress and the next steps 
 

133 Adult Social Care Transformation Programme 
 
Alison Elliot, Wiltshire Council, give an update on the Adult Social Care 
programme and reported progress to date. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the focus on delayed transfers of care; the partnership working that had allowed 
for the development of the programmes; how the programme interacts and is 
part of the Better Care Fund; that measuring of outcomes is crucial, and how 
the  performance framework is being developed; how to ensure sustainable 
funding; the concerns over the impact of the winter flu season; that further 
reports could be made to the board. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the progress to date 
 

134 Adult End of Life Care Strategy Implementation Plan 
 

Page 354



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Ted Wilson, Wiltshire CCG, and Kate Blackburn, Wiltshire Council, presented 
the outline of the implementation plan for the end of life care strategy, with input 
and discussion from local hospices representatives, Wayne de Leeuw, 
Executive Clinical Lead of Dorothy House Hospice and Angela Jordon, Chief 
Executive of Prospect Hospice. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included:  
how information is shared to improved services; how the users and families are 
involved; how the hospice users have been involved in the development of the 
strategy; how efforts are made to allow people to die at home in accordance 
with their wishes; how getting people out of acute settings and into the home 
has approved; how do stop end of life patients from entering hospitals and the 
recognition that further work is needed; the need to make carers more aware 
that treatment escalation plans (TEP) are in place and that the wishes of 
patients not to transfer to acute providers; that some evidence shows that care 
homes are still ringing 999 even though there is a (TEP); using ICT and 
communications better allowing Ambulance better access; the work undertaken 
by Health Watch Wiltshire; and an update on the implementation plan for 
children would be provided at a future meeting. 
 
Resolved  
 
To approve the Implementation Plan 
 

135 School Health and Lifestyle Survey 
 
Sarah Heathcote, Wiltshire Council presented an update on the five year 
programme. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included:  
how data can help schools plan their interventions; that the survey had a high 
response rate; how the data can be explored for different groups such as looked 
after children; how older children (+16) are making bad food choices and are 
doing less exercise – and that inactivity with children is more acute; that peer 
influencing can be more effective; the importance of sleep and the impact of 
worry and anxiety; the importance of emotional wellbeing; the training that can 
be done to improve skills for teachers; that vulnerable children are more at risk 
to bullying; the areas that children would like more support including – 
improving fitness, and managing money; how thematic reports will be 
developed and that further work will be done with colleagues to look at data in 
depth; how area boards can be used to promote the programme amongst 
schools in their communities; and the links to the work undertaken by Health 
Watch Wiltshire. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To note the work of the Wiltshire Healthy Schools programme; and 

Page 355



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
2. To agree to support the work of the Wilshire Healthy Schools 

programme. 

 
136 Workforce Strategy 

 
Jenny Hair, Workforce Lead for the Better Care Plan, gave a summary of the 
workforce challenges within the adult health and social care system and the 
transformation required in order to achieve delivery of operational plans; and an 
update on the actions that have been taken in the last year to help address the 
challenges and plans for the future. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included:  
that locally and nationally the pool of talent is small; how Wiltshire is marketing 
itself better; the changes to education and training; that long-term strategies are 
required; that some work is focused on the Sustainable Transformation Plan 
area and some on just Wiltshire; the liaison with the Council’s economic 
development departments; how to encourage students to undertake placements 
and then stay longer; the opportunities to improve the skills of carers; how staff 
can be trained to encourage users to take greater responsibility of their care; 
how to better engage partners including voluntary sector; some concern that not 
enough progress was being made; what help could be sought from the Local 
Enterprise Partnership and the colleges;  and the work to improve career and 
training pathways for carers. 
 
Following the conclusion of the discussion, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To note the update;  

 

2. To request that officers draft a letter to the Local Enterprise 

Partnership highlighting the need for a discussion workforce issues 

in the health and social care sector, and emphasising that the 

sector is one of the biggest employers and crucial to economic 

wellbeing of the County. 

 
137 Domestic Abuse and Substance Misuse 

 
Tracy Daszkiewicz, Wiltshire Council,  presented: an updated overview of the 
domestic abuse reduction agenda in Wiltshire; and an overview of the 
substance misuse agenda in Wiltshire, in particular updating on the pan 
Wiltshire tendering process. 
 

Page 356



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the local priorities for action; how housing and safeguarding of children are 
included in the procurement service specification; how the needs assessment 
and information has refocused, with regard to substance misuse, work on 
prevention and support services; the work with mental health colleagues to do 
joint diagnosis;   
 
Resolved 
 

1. To note the reports 

 

2. To request further update 6-9 months after the contracts are 

operational. 

 
138 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 

 
Steve Maddern, Wiltshire Counci, presented the draft Wiltshire Pharmaceutical 
Needs Assessment (PNA). 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the timeline for developing and agreeing the PNA; that the PNA steering group 
includes a range of partners including Healthwatch Wiltshire; that the purpose of 
the document is to support NHS England to plan pharmaceutical services; that 
the coverage is adequate compared to national standards; how carers and the 
general population had been engaged with; how the impact of the army 
rebasing is taken into account; how availability of deliveries and use of the 
internet has expanded. 
 
The Chairman commended the officer for the quality of the report, and noted 
that it would return to the Board in the new year for final agreement.  
 
Resolved 
 

1. To approve the Wiltshire Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2018 

for 60 days public consultation in line with the regulations; and 

 
2. To delegate responsibility for responding to cross-border 

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment consultations to the public 

health led responsible for the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 

on behalf of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 
139 Wiltshire Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report 

 

Page 357



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Mark Gurrey presented the annual report of the Wiltshire Safeguarding Children 
Board. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that this was the end of the first full year as chair; the changes in the board 
structure and the cooperation from partners on the work of the board; that the 
membership and work of the meeting had been streamlined to ensure that the 
focus of the board is better; how the voice off young people and practitioners 
are brought to the board; the ongoing work addressing issues around child 
sexual abuse; that Wiltshire was part of a joint targeted area assessment, and 
how this information was pulled together in a national report on the impact of 
domestic abuse on children; the areas for future work of the board, including 
issues of neglect;  and how meeting the needs of families can improve 
outcomes for children. 
 
In response from a question from the Chairman Baroness Scott. Mr Gurrey 
stated that there was some more work to be done to raise the awareness 
amongst partner agencies of the signs of Child Sexual Abuse so that they are 
better able to identify children at risk. 
  
In response from a question from the Dr Richard Sandford-Hill, Mr Gurrey 
stated that there was good communication between strategic partners no the 
board, but that there were still improvements to be made regarding 
communication and information sharing amongst the frontline staff. 
 
In response from a question from the Dr Peter Jenkins, Mr Gurrey stated that 
engagement with GPs had improved. 
 
Following the conclusion of the discussion, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
i) To note the publication of the Wiltshire Safeguarding Children Board 

Annual Report; and 
 
ii) To agree to continue to support the work of the Wiltshire Safeguarding 

Children Board and to effectively co-ordinate the work we are doing 
across partnership arrangements. 

 
140 Strategic Outline Case (SOC) for Chippenham, Melksham and Trowbridge 

- Update 
 
Linda Prosser, Wiltshire CCG, presented an update on the Strategic Outline 
Case (SOC) for Chippenham, Melksham and Trowbridge. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that the process signals the intention of the CCG to address the capital and 
estate requirements for those areas; that a paper will be taken to the CCG 

Page 358



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

board to look at whole county; that there will be 30% growth in population in 
those areas; that there had been some additional capital money available from 
central government for Trowbridge; that the outline business case will say what 
the hub and what the spoke will be; the links to the one public estate; and the 
importance of keeping the public well informed so that concerns can be 
addressed. 
 
The Chair thanked the officers for the presentation. 
 

141 Date of Next Meeting 
 
It was noted that the date of the next meeting had changed and would now take 
place at 10am on Thursday 9 November 2017. 
 

142 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  2.00  - 3.59 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 359



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 360



 
 
 

 
 
 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING HELD 
ON 9 NOVEMBER 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chair), Dr Richard Sandford-Hill (Vice-
Chairman), Dr Toby Davies, Dr Andrew Girdher, Dr Lindsay Kinlin, Christine Graves, 
Cllr Laura Mayes, Cllr Ian Thorn, Cllr Jerry Wickham, Dr Gareth Bryant, James Scott, 
Terence Herbert and Linda Prosser 
 
  

 
143 Chairman's Welcome and Introduction 

 
The Chair, Baroness Jane Scott, welcomed all to the meeting. 
 

144 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Ben Anderson, Nerissa  Vaughan, 
Cara Charles-Barks, Dr Bill Bruce-Jones, and Chief Inspector Mike Veale. 
 

145 Minutes 
 
The meeting considered the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 
Resolved 
 

To approve for signing the minutes of the meeting held on 19 September 

2017. 

 
146 Declarations of Interest 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

147 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 

148 Public Participation 
 
There were no public questions. 
 

149 Winter Pressures 

Page 361

Agenda Item 32



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

The meeting received an update on preparations for winter pressures. 

 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that an STP area-wide plan had been developed; that series of engagement 
events had been delivered to spread best practice; how national communication 
material had been tailored for local circumstances to make them more relevant; 
the links to the national plans; the targets and changes in relation to integrated 
urgent care; how lessons on demand management over bank holiday periods 
had been used in planning for similar periods in the Christmas and New Year 
period; that SWAST had been a national pilot for the new Response 
Programme; how risk is assessed and plans developed; the links to public health 
activities such as flu vaccination; how elective care planning is maintained 
through-out the period; the structure of local delivery boards; how scenarios are 
tested with a range of health and social care partners; how data on capacity 
across the system is shared; the acknowledgement that there were some 
workforce issues that needed addressing; that officers were confident that the 
system was prepared as best it could. 
 
In answer to a question from Cllr Brian Matthew regarding mixed sex wards, 
James Scott from the Bath RUH said he would seek to respond outside the 
meeting to the issues raised. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the update be noted. 
 

150 Better Care Plan 
 
The meeting received an update on the trajectory and plans for reducing 
delayed discharges ahead of winter and an update on the wider delivery of the 
Better Care Plan for Wiltshire. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that the plan submitted in October and had been approved; the plan was being 
delivered, but that more action was required to improve performance regarding 
delayed transfers of care; the work with partners to accelerate delivery in this 
area; the progress that had been made against other key areas; the better use 
of technologies; how best practice has been shared from successful projects; 
the analysis of the causes of DTOCs and the opportunities to address this; how 
additional beds would be used to support transition back to community care; 
how spot purchasing is using to meet extra-demand; how process 
improvements have resolved community equipment; the additional demand 
placed on the plan due to winter; and that an additional bed spaces purchased 
should not be to the detriment of the vision to treat more people in their own 
home. 
 

Page 362



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved 
 

1. To note the update; 
 

2. That the Health and Wellbeing Board, as system leaders, take 
collective responsibility for delayed transfers of care and regularly 
review progress in reducing numbers at future meetings 

 
 

151 Procurement of Integrated Urgent Care 
 

The meeting received an update on the procurement of integrated urgent care  

Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 

the model being delivered in Wiltshire and the different services provided 

depending on the needs of the patient; the added complexity due to the 

diverse geography of the area, and the challenges of moving to location based 

commissioning; how intelligent mapping tools are used to analyse data to 

locate services appropriately; the focus on delivering care at the appropriate 

level; how commissioning strategies are aligned to deliver better outcomes; 

how best practice has been shared across different areas; how patient self-

care is a continuing focus; how demographic data is used to plan services; the 

transition arrangements in relation to the mobilisation of service included in the 

package of procurement, especially given to the risk of winter pressures;  how 

links are made through to emergency care through the urgent care hub; and 

the efforts to expand access to pharmacy based services. 

 

Resolved  
 
To note the update. 
 

152 Health and Wellbeing JSNA 
 

The meeting considered the report which sought the agreement for the JSNA 

overarching documentation.  

Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 

that since last iteration, the data had been presented in a more user-friendly 

way; how the structure of the document has changed into five areas and how 

more detailed data packs were available for each area; how data is 

benchmarked and analysed by different demographic groups; how presenting 

key information as infographics is used to disseminate the information 

consistently and effectively; how the information is made available to download 

for use; the implications of deprivation and gender on life expectancy; the 

implications of population change to 2030 and the increase particularly in the 

Page 363



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

older population;  the concerns on what action needed to take in response to 

the information on premature mortality slide. 

 

The Chair, Baroness Scott, thanked the officer for the presentation and 

recorded her thanks for team’s efforts. 

 

Resolved 

1. To approve the publication of the Health and Wellbeing JSNA. 

2. To note that the 2018 JSNA product will focus on the CCG JSNA’s 

and that work to develop this will commence early in 2018 with key 

partners. 

3. To request that officers attend to present a briefing prior to a future 

meeting. 

 
153 Mental Health Crisis Care 

 

The meeting received an update on the work undertaken by the Alexander 
Group reviewing s136 pathways across the Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health 
Partnership footprint and the work going forward. 

 

Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the continuing work on the project; the locations of the place of safety; the 
consultation undertaken and the preference to centralise facilities into one suite 
in Devizes; the ongoing concerns from Swindon regarding the centralisation in 
Devizes and the ongoing engagement to address these concerns; that there 
was due to be further round table discussions, with NHS England planning to 
undertake further consultation. 

 

Councillor Jerry Wickham expressed concern that Swindon Borough Council 
were not, apparently, adequately helping to facilitate the transition to one site 
which may place further resource burdens on Wiltshire Council. 

The Chair, Baroness Jane Scott, stated that whilst she understood the concerns 
raised from Swindon, she believed the new model would result in a better 
service overall, and hoped that the Leader of the Borough Council may be 
encouraged to visit the new facility. 

 

Resolved 

To note the progress update 
 

154 Strategic Outline Programme 

Page 364



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
An update was received on the development of a whole county Strategic Outline 
Programme for investment in out of hospital care. 
 
Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that some drivers for the project included having access to capital funding to 
build some new facilities in North West Wiltshire and the opportunity to review 
the remaining areas in the rest of Wiltshire; that the timetable was 6 months to 
identify the requirements and then the asset strategy; and how the housing 
needs are being taken into account. 
 
The Chair, Baroness Scott, thanked the officers for the update. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the approach taken by Wiltshire CCG 
 

155 Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub For Adults 
 
The meeting received an update on the development of a Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub (MASH) for adults. 
 

Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 

that the MASH was part of an overarching transformation project; the 

development of closer working relationships with partner organisations, and the 

focus of improving communication through co-location; that increases in 

reporting was largely due to heightened awareness of reporting mechanisms; 

that 17% of referrals resulted a formal enquiry; how triage arrangements can be 

reviewed to sign-post people to the relevant support; how the MASH was 

building on the existing links with police, and the developing links with health 

partners; how the partnership was taking a comprehensive approach to 

safeguarding, and ensuring consistency across different teams; the structure of 

the MASH and links to those providing initial contact; the changes to processes 

for dealing with reports, and how best practice lessons will be learnt; the 

importance of the early sharing of information; how the better management of 

cases through the MASH will take some pressure of other teams thereby 

improving retention of staff; and the opportunities for efficiencies and saving; 

the potential for widening the role of the MASH to include input from other 

emergency services; and how the experience of the public contacting the 

service is measured to assess the appropriate level of triage undertaken. 

The Chair, Baroness Scott, thanked the officers for the update and stated that 

she would welcome a further briefing on the matter. 

 

Resolved 

Page 365



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
To note the progress on the development of the Adults Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub  
 

156 Public Health Annual Report 
 

The meeting received the Public Health Annual Report and feedback on the 
recent roadshows. 

Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the statutory duty to present the report to the meeting; the desire to get more 
interaction from partners in the future; the innovative use of graphics and the 
interest in the areas of achievement and challenges; and the progress in taking 
a preventative approach to issues such as suicide. 

Resolved 

 
To note the publication of the Director of Public Health’s Annual Report 
2016-17 
 

157 Date of Next Meeting 
 
It was noted that the next meeting would be on 25 January 2018. 
 

158 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.00 am - 12.11 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 366



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD 
 
 
 

 
PART 1 MINUTES OF THE LOCAL PENSION BOARD MEETING HELD ON 18 
OCTOBER 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 
8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
David Bowater, Lynda Croft, Sarah Holbrook, Mike Pankiewicz (Vice-Chairman) and 
Howard Pearce (Chairman) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Peter Riedel and Michael Hudson (Treasurer) 
 
  

 
55 Membership 

 
There were no changes to the membership of the Board.  
 

56 Attendance of non-members of the Board 
 
Peter Riedel (Hymans Robertson) was in attendance.  
 

57 Apologies 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Barry Reed and Cllr Richard Britton.  
 

58 Minutes 
 
Members reviewed the minutes of the previous meeting and the Board’s action 
log. The Chairman requested the deadline for action 4.7 be changed to January 
2018 as the Governance Compliance Statement would be reviewed at this 
point. It was also requested action 7.20 requiring a benchmarking exercise 
against training completed by other funds to be put against a deadline of July 
2018. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2017.  
 
To amend deadlines on the Action Log as follows: 

Page 367

Agenda Item 33



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 3.5 deadline changed to June 2018 

 4.7 deadline changed to January 2018 

 7.20 deadline changed to July 2018 
 

59 Declarations of Interest 
 
David Anthony, Head of Pensions, declared for transparency purposes in 
respect of agenda item 22 he was to leave the Wiltshire Pension Fund at the 
end of November to take up a position at Brunel Pension Partnership.  
 
The Chairman reminded members to review their Register of Interest and 
professional bio on the Fund’s website. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That members review their Register of Interest and professional bio.   
 

60 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman reminded members the Fund’s Investment Away Day was to be 
held on 1 November, and also a Brunel Pension Partnership Engagement Day 
had been organised for 15 November. Members were also encouraged to 
inform officers of attendance at training events so this could be included in their 
training record. 
 
A question was raised as to whether it was appropriate for school and/or college 
governors to attend training events provided to those employers, in response to 
which the Head of Pensions advised he would explore individual training 
requirements with the specific employers concerned.  
 

61 Public Participation and Councillors Questions 
 
There were no members of the public present.  
 

62 Minutes, Key Decisions, and Annual Report of the Wiltshire Pension Fund 
Committee 
 
The minutes of the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee meeting held on 27 
September were circulated to members, alongside the Fund’s Annual Report. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the minutes and key decisions of the Wiltshire Pension Fund 
Committee meeting held on 27 September and the Fund’s Annual Report 
2016-17.   
 
 
 

Page 368



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
63 Training Item: Fraud Prevention and Mitigation 

 
Pete Riedel provided an overview of fraud prevention within the LGPS and 
Wiltshire Pension Fund. It was explained that whilst there could be genuine 
mistakes from both members and the Fund in respect of data provided, 
measures were in place to try and prevent fraud. Key focus of fraud prevention 
was on: cyber-fraud, fraud by scheme members, and fraud committed by 
employees working for the Fund. On a national level, the National Fraud 
Initiative encouraged members to submit accurate information to the Fund, 
particularly in relation to the death of a member or dependant. Within the Fund 
itself the Governance Compliance Statement, Scheme of Delegation, Breaches 
of the law policy, Mortality screening, internal controls, Overpayments policy, 
Contribution Framework, Risk Register, Administration Strategy and both 
internal and external audit worked to mitigate fraud. The impact of the 
forthcoming General Data Protection Regulations in May 2018 was discussed, 
and it was understood the Fund was working with the Council’s Information 
Governance team to establish measures the Fund should take to prepare for 
the new regulations. 
 
Following questions, it was confirmed the Fund safeguarded against fraudulent 
investments by employing an external auditor and custodian to check on 
investments held. Similar arrangements would also be in place for Brunel 
Pension Partnership. It was noted scheme members were at risk of being 
tricked into transferring out of the Fund and making poor investments by rogue 
companies, the Fund warned members against transferring out of the Fund, 
however was not able to stop them. In respect of employer members in the 
Fund, it was noted they had a requirement to ensure accurate employee 
records were submitted to the Fund. 
 
The Board thanked Pete Riedel and David Anthony for the presentation and 
noted that robust procedures were in place to mitigate fraud. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the training on Fraud prevention and mitigation. 
 
To note the fraud detection and prevention safeguards currently utilised 
by the Fund and highlighted within the report 
 

64 Scheme Legal, Regulatory and Fund update 
 
A report provided an update on the latest Scheme, Legal, Regulatory and Fund 
developments for the Board. Two items which were categorised as high risk 
were the implementation of the General Data Protection Regulations in May 
2018 and the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive II. In preparation for the 
GDPR the Fund was developing a project plan to ensure its data controller and 
data processor practices were compliant with the new regulations and was 

Page 369



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

sharing best practice with other funds to ensure its practice was pension- 
specific.  In response to MiFid II the Fund was in the process of opting up to 
‘professional’ investor status and had sent letters to its investment managers. 
 
The Chairman advised the Scheme Advisory Board survey on the operation of 
Local Pension Boards  had received a low response, therefore the deadline had 
been extended. The survey results were now expected in December.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Scheme, Legal, Regulatory and Fund update and changes 
highlighted within the report. 
 

65 Risk Register Update 
 
A report presented the Risk Register of the Wiltshire Pension Fund and 
members noted two risks had increased since the last report: PEN009 Failure to 
Hold Personal Data Securely and PEN023 Resources of Officers and Members 
to Meet the Expansion of Business Items. PEN009 had risen from green to 
amber to reflect the increasing importance of prioritising resources to ensure the 
required changes to processes and documentation were implemented ahead of 
the new General Data Protection Regulations. PEN023 had risen from amber to 
red to reflect the risk posed by the resignation of the Head of Pensions following 
the departure of the Strategic Pension Manager. 
 
In addition to these two changes, current staffing levels meant PEN011 Lack of 
Expertise of Pension Fund Officers, PEN012 Over-reliance on Key Officers and 
PEN020: Pooling of LGPS assets all remained red risk. The Head of Pensions 
addressed risks arising from staffing, explaining that job adverts for the Head of 
Pensions Administration and Head of Pensions Investments were soon to be 
posted and there was to be restructure in the wider team, with a net increase in 
two posts. The Head of Investments would then oversee the Fund’s transfer of 
assets into Brunel Pension Partnership.  
 
The Board noted the processes in place to prepare for the implementation of 
GDPR and understood the Fund was undertaking self-assessment to identify 
whether it would be compliant with the new regulations. The reporting currently 
indicated 95% of Fund data was compliant. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Risk Register and measures being taken to mitigate risks, and 
report on WPF compliance with GDPR to be presented to its April 2018 
meeting.  
 
 
 
 

Page 370



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
66 Administration Key Performance Indicators 

 
A reported presented the Fund’s administration Key Performance Indicators 
which had been developed following a commitment in the Business Plan to 
assist performance reporting, and also in line with the Pensions Regulator’s 
increased focus on the governance of public service pension schemes. The 
KPIs identified that Active to Retirement cases had seen a fall each quarter in 
meeting the target timeframe due to resourcing issues. Refund of contributions 
had also seen a fall in terms of meeting targets, the main reason for this was 
that Pension Assistants had primarily focused on processing leavers to 
Deferred status ahead of the Annual Benefit Statement (ABS) exercise. 
 
Officers would consider these matters as part of the review of pension team 
staffing to ensure a better balance of resources at the correct levels to address 
the targets in the KPIs. Comments from the Board included it could be useful to 
compare performance and costs with other funds. It was confirmed the costs 
were compared in the CIPFA benchmarking report, however performance 
comparisons were difficult to make as they were not like for like. The Chairman 
mentioned that inter-fund transfers were low relative to the target and this was 
perhaps an area to monitor in the future. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Fund’s performance against its Key Performance Indicators 
and that future reports would include performance against legally defined 
deadlines.  
 

67 External and Internal Audit Update 
 
A report outlined the outcome of the 2016-17 external audit, the developments 
in the appointment of the new external auditors, along with an update on the 
proposed 2017 internal audit plan. The Board understood that no issues had 
been identified from the KPMG external audit and the Fund’s external auditor 
for 2017-18 was to be appointed via a national contract, although the outcome 
of the tender process had yet to be announced.  
 
The Board suggested the Fund’s internal audit plan include a check against the 
Pensions Regulator Code of Practice 14 checklist. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To: 
 
a) note the attached Final Audit Report;  
 
b) note the verbal update on the appointment of the Fund’s external 
auditor; and 

Page 371



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
c) recommend to officers the Fund be audited against the Pensions 
Regulator Code of Practice 14 as part of the 2018 internal audit plan. 
 

68 Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) Project update 
 
A report provided an update on the progress of the Fund’s GMP Project 
reconciling members’ records with those of HMRC. The process needed to be 
completed by December 2018 and two Data Quality Analysts had been 
appointed for this project. Some records were on HMRC’s list but not on 
Wiltshire Pension Fund records and the various reasons for this were outlined in 
the report, for instance due to National Insurance number mismatches. Until 
December 2018 the Fund would be able to challenge the GMP values where it 
believed discrepancies were the result of HMRC errors, after this date, no 
further challenges would be accepted.  
 
The Head of Pensions updated the Fund was progressing well with the project, 
however the reciliation would take time due to the period needed for HMRC to 
respond. The Board commented it was pleased with the progress of the project. 
In response to questions, it was highlighted that once the December 2018 
deadline had passed the Fund would be left with any mismatches of 
information, and therefore liabilities, it had not reconciled. Following the 
reconciliation project, HMRC would write to members of the LGPS to advise 
them of the GMP exercise, the Board members noted this could cause an 
increase in queries to the Fund. 
 
The Chairman recommended that risks to the Fund as a result of the GMP 
reconciliations be reviewed in December 2018. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the progress of the GMP reconciliations project and request any 
risks arising for the Fund be reviewed in December 2018.  
 

69 Annual Benefit Statement Publication Review 
 
A report presented the outcome of the Annual Benefit Statement Exercise for 
2017 and identified the statements had been issued ahead of the statutory 
deadline. The design of the statement had been simplified this year, which 
made it easier to circulate on time, however the new format had received a 
negative response from some members. The Head of Pensions however 
highlighted that in previous years a more glossy design of the statement had 
been criticised by some members as unnecessary. In the future the Fund hoped 
to publish the statement online, giving officers longer to prepare it and more 
ability to improve the design with lesser cost. 
 
Feedback from the employer member representatives included that when the 
Fund had been contacted about members’ ABS, the staff had been very 

Page 372



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

responsive to queries. The Chairman noted the amount of incomplete data 
received from employers was less than in other funds, however recommended 
the following year that data be reviewed and employers be contacted if they had 
not submitted the correct data within three years. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the report on the publication of the Annual Benefit Statement. 
 
To request that in 2018 if employers have not submitted complete and 
correct data to the Fund over a three year period, they be contacted to 
investigate the route cause, and if there is no resolution, consideration be 
given to reporting them to the Pension Regulator.  
 

70 Employers Contributions Review 
 
A report updated the Board on the employer contributions monitoring process 
and proposed changes currently being implemented. The legal requirements of 
the Pensions Regulator Code of Practice No.14 in respect of contributions were 
outlined, and the current rates of late contributions for the Wiltshire Pension 
Fund were detailed. Late contributions were reducing for the Fund, and of 
those, most were received within the month. Officers explained the Fund 
required a robust internal control system in place to monitor contributions now 
an increasing number of employers were within the Fund. The Fund was 
investing more into monitoring late contributions and providing a clear process 
of initial warning to employers, with this escalating to a fine and reporting a 
breach to the Board if the matter was not resolved.  
 
The Board was satisfied with the process the Fund had in place and 
encouraged the use of fines to deter late contributions.  
 
 
Resolved:  
 
To note the Fund’s current employer contribution monitoring position and 
the revised framework being implemented. 
 
To encourage the Fund to charge employers for late contributions in 
accordance with the current WPF policy.   
 

71 Local Pension Board Feedback on the Wiltshire Pension Fund Website 
 
The Head of Pensions summarised the comments received from Board 
members in respect of the Fund’s website. Members agreed the level of 
information on the website was good however it was not presented in an 
attractive way, and a self-service portal for members would be a good 
development. The officer advised a self-service facility was in the Fund’s 
Business Plan and a priority for future development. It was noted that 

Page 373



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

information on the website about the staffing structure in the Fund was now out 
of date. 
 
The Board was advised that Hymans Robertson would provide and manage an 
off-the-shelf website which would be more attractive to members, the Fund 
intended to progress this as a short-term solution until a bespoke site could be 
developed.  Members were invited to visit other Fund websites managed by 
Hymans and to feedback on this to inform the design of the Wiltshire site. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the comments received on the content and style of the Fund’s 
website.  
 
To request members visit other Fund websites managed by Hymans to 
feedback and inform the design of the Wiltshire site.  
 

72 How did the Board do? 
 
There were no matters to raise under this item.  
 

73 Urgent items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

74 Date of next meeting and Forward Plan 
 
The Chairman advised the January meeting date was likely to be rescheduled 
for February 2017.  
 

75 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in 
Minute Numbers 76 – 78 because it is likely that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public 
 

76 Brunel Pension Partnership Update 
 
The Head of Pensions provided an update on the progress of Brunel Pension 
Partnership. 
 
 

Page 374



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
 
To note the progress of Brunel Pension Partnership. 
 
To request officers provide a flow chart to outline the delegated and 
reserved decision-making process within Brunel Pension Partnership to 
improve transparency. 
 

77 Minutes and Key Decisions of the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee and 
Investment Sub Committee 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Part 2 minutes and key decisions of the recent meetings of the 
Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee and Investment Sub Committee. 
 

78 Minutes 
 
 
The Chairman thanked David Anthony, Head of Pensions, for his service to the 
Board and wished him luck in his new role at Brunel Pension Partnership.  
 
 
Resolved: 
 
To thank the Head of Pensions for his service to the Wiltshire Pension 
Fund and the Wiltshire Local Pension Board.  
 
To confirm the Part 2 minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2017.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.30 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Johnstone, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718214, e-mail libby.johnstone@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 375



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 376



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

WILTSHIRE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
PART 1 MINUTES OF THE WILTSHIRE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 27 SEPTEMBER 2017 AT THE WEST WILTSHIRE ROOM - COUNTY 
HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Steve Allsopp, Cllr Tony Deane (Chairman), Diane Hall, Cllr Simon Jacobs, 
Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Christopher Newbury, Linda Stuart and Cllr Roy While (Vice Chairman) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Mr Jim Edney, Howard Pearce, Barry Reed and Cllr Philip Whitehead 
 
  

 
48 Membership 

 
The Chairman welcomed Diane Hall, Employer Body Representative, back to 
the Committee after a sabbatical year.   
 

49 Attendance of non-members of the Committee 
 
Howard Pearce and Barry Reed, Local Pension Board, were in attendance. 
 
Philip Whitehead, Cabinet Member for Finance, was also in attendance.   
 

50 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Mike Pankiewicz and Cllr Steve 
Weisinger.  
 

51 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the Part 1 minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2017.  
 

52 Declarations of Interest 
 
David Anthony, Head of Pensions, made a declaration in respect of the agenda 
item on Brunel Pension Partnership as he had been appointed to a role within 

Page 377

Agenda Item 34



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

the company and was to leave his role at the Wiltshire Pension Fund at the end 
of November.  
 

53 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman reminded members to make every effort to attend the Fund’s 
Investment Away Day on 1 November, when there would be further opportunity 
to discuss Liability Driven Investments.  
 

54 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public present.  
 

55 Scheme Regulatory and Legal Update 
 
The Head of Pensions provided an update on the latest regulatory and legal 
updates for the LGPS. A key update from HM Treasury was that Government 
intended to bring forward legislation banning cold calling in relation to pensions. 
Additionally, a further consultation was planned on the implications of reform to 
public sector exit payments, such changes would have implications on the Fund 
and its members. 
 
Attention was drawn to two updates which carried high risk for the Fund. The 
first was the implementation of the General Data Protection Regulations 
(GDPR) from May 2018 as this would have significant impact on the Fund’s 
data management processes, the Fund was already preparing for the new 
regulations, however this required significant resource. In response to 
questions, it was confirmed the Fund was investigating whether it required an 
individual DPO or could share one with Wiltshire Council. It was noted that, if 
needed, the Fund could bring in external advice on GDPR to assist the team 
and also collaborate with other Funds within Brunel Pension Partnership (BPP) 
to share best practice. A second key risk was the requirement on the Fund to 
opt up to Professional investor status under MiFid II to allow it retain its current 
holdings from January 2018. 
 
Finally, members heard from August the Fund had launched ill-health liability 
insurance for most scheme employers, it was mostly only large employers 
which had opted out.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the regulatory and legal update and the changes highlighted in 
the report. 
 

56 Local Pension Board Annual Report and Update 
 
A report presented the LPB Annual Report for Committee consideration. The 
Chairman of the Board summarised the role of the Board and advised there had 

Page 378



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

been no reportable regulatory breaches over the last 12 months. The Fund was 
compliant with the Pensions Regulator (tPR) Code of Practice, although some 
actions for improvement had been identified, and it was noted the Pensions 
Regulator recently had more resource to monitor compliance. The Chairman 
also highlighted that the role of the LPB was being reviewed and the Fund 
awaited the responses from the Scheme Advisory Board as to how the Boards 
were functioning nationally since they had now been in place for two years. 
 
Members of the Committee commended officers on the quality of the report and 
were keen to hear the results of the LPB survey to explore where the Board 
could add value to the work of the Fund. 
 
Resolved:  
 
To note the minutes and key decisions of the Local Pension Board 
meeting held on 13 July 2017. 
 
To note the LPB Annual Report and approve its publication. 
 

57 External Audit Report 
 
The Head of Pensions presented KPMG’s final audit report, for which a 
certificate of assurance had now been provided and would be included in the 
Fund’s Annual Report. There were no significant issues arising from the 
external audit. Following a question from the Committee, it was confirmed the 
internal audit report addressed the issue of GMP reconciliations between Altair 
and SAP. 
 
The Committee discussed the appointment of the external auditor and their fee 
basis. The Treasurer advised that external auditors were now appointed on a 
national basis and therefore KMPG would not be the auditor for the next year, 
this process should also see a reduction in fee basis. 
 
Resolved: 
 

To note KPMG’s final audit report on the 2016-17 Annual Report 
 

58 Annual Report 2016-17 
 
The Fund’s Annual Report was presented for the Committee’s consideration 
and it was highlighted this would include the external audit certificate. 
 
The Committee and LPB representatives were pleased with the quality and 
accessibility of the report; it was noted the report was available in hard copy to 
stakeholders upon request.  
 
A question was raised over the employer contribution rates identified in the 
Annual Report and officers advised these had increased following each triennial 

Page 379



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Valuation and future rates would increase in line with the 2016 Actuarial 
Valuation.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the draft Annual Report for 2016-17. 
 

59 Budget Monitoring 2017-18 Report 
 
A report on the latest budget monitoring position for the Fund was circulated for 
members’ information. The report separated the investment manager fees and 
operational costs of the Fund and identified the Fund was currently £111k 
underspent. The Fund had an underspend on custodian costs of £89k as a 
result of increased income from the security lending programme and had saved 
money on the administration side by pushing back progress of the employer 
self-service system. It was stressed the self-service system was a priority for 
the next 12 months. 
 
Members noted a significant performance fee paid to Baillie Gifford, this was 
because the manager had performed well beyond their benchmark and the rest 
of the market. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the latest budget monitoring position for the Wiltshire Pension 
Fund. 
 

60 Key Performance Indicators 
 
The Head of Pensions provided an update on performance against the Fund’s 
Administration Key Performance Indicators which had previously been agreed 
by Committee and would be reported on bi-annually. In future, KPIs would also 
be developed to monitor the performance of employer members, both in terms 
of their payment of contribution rates and providing quality to the Fund by 
employer bodies. 
 
Members considered the report contained useful information, however 
highlighted the capacity issues for the Pensions team which was operating on 
reduced resource. In response to a question on the uneven distribution of 
pension leavers to deferred status, it was confirmed this was likely due to 
delays in getting information in from employers.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Fund’s performance against its key performance indicators. 
 
 
 

Page 380



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

61 Pension Fund Risk Register 
 
The Head of Pensions introduced the Fund’s latest Risk Register for the 
Committee to consider. Two risks had risen since the last report: PEN009 
‘Failure to Hold Personal Data Securely’ and ‘PEN023 Resources of Officers 
and Members to Meet the Expansion of Business Items’. Current staffing levels 
mean ‘PEN011: Lack of expertise of Pension Fund Officers’, ‘PEN012: Over-
reliance on key officers’ and ‘PEN020 Pooling of LGPS assets’ remained red 
risk.  
 
The Treasurer highlighted the key issue behind all of these risks was limited 
resource due to recent staff departures and the imminent departure of the Head 
of Pensions. It was however considered the mobility of staff into new private 
sector jobs reflected well on the Fund. The Treasurer advised the demands of 
the role of Head of Pensions had increased significantly in recent years and 
proposed the team be restructured to be led by a Head of Administration to 
manage the Fund’s increasing administration requirements and a Head of 
Investments to performance manage Brunel. The Committee heard there would 
also be some changes to increase capacity to lower level staffing with a total 
cost of a further £195k to the Fund. 
 
Following questions from the Committee it was clarified the new roles would be 
out to advertise shortly with a view to holding interviews at the start of 
November to allow a handover period before the current Head of Pensions left 
his role. Committee meeting dates had also been altered to allow the 
Committee to meet before the end of November supported by the Head of 
Pensions, and the Treasurer confirmed an interim arrangement could be made 
if necessary should suitable candidates not apply for the new roles. Members 
agreed it was important to advertise roles at the market rate to attract the right 
candidates to these specialist roles, and were supportive of the need for two 
roles at the top tier of the structure to allow the Fund to focus more on 
administration as this matter had tended to be a lower priority whilst the Fund 
was focusing on asset pooling.  
 
It was commented that with the number of employers in the Fund growing and 
LGPS regulations increasing the Fund needed to allow more resource to 
managing administration. Members also agreed both the Head of Administration 
and Head of Investment should have experience in both areas of business so 
as to allow a strategic overview and resilience in the team. The Chairman 
highlighted it was important at this time that members support officers and keep 
abreast of latest updates to ensure they could steer the Fund through this 
transition. It was considered that Committee members should play a role in the 
interview process and they were invited to submit their availability for interview 
dates. 
 
Both the Treasurer and the Committee expressed their thanks to the Head of 
Pensions for his excellent work and dedication to improve the performance of 
the Fund during his time in the role. 

Page 381



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Risk Register and measures being taken to mitigate risks. 
 
To support the proposed structural changes and additional budget to 
address resource issues. 
 
To thank the Head of Pensions for his excellent work supporting the Fund 
and improving performance during his time in the role. 
 

62 MiFid 2 Election to Professional Status 
 
A report from the Head of Pensions recommended the Committee resolve to 
seek professional investor status for its investments ahead of the 
implementation of MiFiD 2 in January 2018. Templates were available for LGPS 
funds to apply for professional status and the Fund also had to demonstrate it 
could meet certain requirements.  
 
Resolved: 
 
a) Note the potential impact on investment strategy of becoming a retail 
client with effect from 3 January 2018. 
 
b) Agree to the immediate commencement of applications for elected 
professional client status with all relevant institutions in order to ensure it 
can continue to implement an effective investment strategy. 
 
c) In electing for professional client status, the committee acknowledges 
and agrees to forgo the protections available to retail clients as detailed in 
APPENDIX 1 on attached link http://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/opting-
up-process 
 
d) Agree to approve delegated retrospective responsibility to Head of 
Pensions for the purposes of completing the applications and determining 
the basis of the application as either full or single service. 
 

63 Date of Next Meeting 
 
It was noted the next regular meeting of the Committee was to be held on 23 
November 2017, brought forward from 7 December 2017. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the change to the next meeting date.  
 
 
 

Page 382

http://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/opting-up-process
http://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/opting-up-process


 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

64 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items.  
 

65 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Minute Numbers 66-70 because it is likely that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraphs 1 & 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the 
public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information to the public. 
 

66 Brunel Pension Partnership Update 
 
A verbal update was provided by the Head of Pensions on the progress of the 
Brunel Pension Partnership for the pooling of Local Government Pension 
Scheme assets. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on the progress of Brunel Pension Partnership. 
 

67 Investment Strategy Update 
 
Confidential papers outlined the high-level asset allocation review undertaken 
by Mercers and outline the proposed focus for the next 12 months as proposed 
by the Investment Sub Committee. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree proposals from the Investment Sub Committee as to the Fund’s 
investment strategy for the next 12 months. 
 

68 Investments Quarterly Progress Report 
 
Three confidential reports were circulated updating the Committee on the 
performance of the Fund’s investments as to the end of June 2017. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the reports on the performance of the Fund’s investments as to 
the end of June 2017. 
 
 

Page 383



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

69 Minutes and Key Decisions of the Investment Sub-Committee 
 
Committee was asked to consider the minutes and key decisions of the 
Investment Sub Committee meeting held on 13 September 2017. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the key decisions of the Investment Sub Committee held on 13 
September 2017. 
 

70 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the Part 2 minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2017.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.30 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Johnstone, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718214, e-mail libby.johnstone@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 384



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

WILTSHIRE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
PART 1 MINUTES OF THE WILTSHIRE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 23 NOVEMBER 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Deane (Chairman), Diane Hall, Cllr Simon Jacobs, Cllr Gordon King, 
Cllr Christopher Newbury, Mike Pankiewicz, Linda Stuart and Cllr Roy While (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Mr Jim Edney, Joanne Holden and Barry Reed 
 
  

 
71 Membership 

 
There were no changes to the membership of the Committee.  
 

72 Attendance of non-members of the Committee 
 
Catherine McFadyen (Hymans Robertson) and Barry Reed (Local Pension 
Board member) were in attendance.  
 

73 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Whitehead and Cllr Weisinger.  
 

74 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2017.  
 

75 Declarations of Interest 
 
The Head of Pensions declared for transparency purposes in respect of items 
15 and 16 that he was soon to leave the Fund and become employed by Brunel 
Pension Partnership.  
 
 
 

Page 385

Agenda Item 35



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

76 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Committee thanked the Head of Pensions for his hard work supporting the 
Fund and driving its strong performance over the last 8 years.  
 
 

77 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public present.  
 

78 Minutes and Key Decisions of the Local Pensions Board 
 
The Head of Pensions updated the Committee on matters considered at the last 
meeting of the Local Pension Board including: fraud prevention and mitigation 
measures, the impact of the General Data Protection Regulations (May 2018) 
on the Risk Register, Key Performance Indicators, the final Audit Report, GMP 
reconciliations, Annual Benefit Statement exercise and late employer 
contributions.  
 
The Committee discussed the comments the LPB had made on the Fund’s 
website and agreed it could be more attractive and a self-service portal for 
members would be a welcome improvement. A discussion on the ability of 
retired members to use online services was had and it was felt a telephone 
service should also be available. Members agreed that emails should be used 
to contact active members as much as possible to reduce printing costs, it was 
noted that pensioner members were less likely to be computer literate.  The 
Head of Pensions advised that Hymans were to provide and operate a template 
website in the interim until a bespoke site could be created. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the minutes and recommendations of the Local Pension Board 
meeting held on 18 October 2017. 
 
To support future plans to develop a self-service portal for members on 
the Fund’s website and to recommend a telephone service continues to 
be offered for customers who are unable to make contact with the Fund 
online. 
 
To recommend a system be developed requiring new active members of 
the scheme to opt in to hard copy letters from the Fund, with electronic 
communication to be the default position.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 386



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

79 Scheme, Legal, Regulatory and Fund Update 
 
The Committee was presented with the latest Scheme, Legal and Regulatory 
update for the Fund. A key update included the Government Actuaries 
Department had confirmed a final report, using the 2016 valuation results, was 
to be published in summer 2018.  In general news the Committee heard that 
auto-enrolment for pension schemes had been updated to an age limit of 16, 
down from 22 years of age.  
 
Members questioned the impact on the fund of a CPI increase above the 
assumption made at the Valuation, it was explained this would increase 
liabilities but shouldn’t have a significant impact on cashflow. The Committee 
was advised the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive II was now a lesser 
risk for the Fund which was already in the process of achieving ‘professional’ 
investor status.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update and changes highlighted within the report.  
 
 

80 Pension Fund Risk Register 
 
A report on the latest risks facing the Fund was presented. Four risks had been 
downgraded since the last report: PEN026 Impact of MiFiD II Regulations, 
PEN020 Failure to collect and account for Contributions from Employers on 
time, PEN010 Failure to keep pension records up-to-date and accurate, 
PEN011 Lack of Expertise of Pension Fund Officers and Service Director. The 
Committee was advised a new monitoring process was in placee to track and 
address late contributions and that resource had been provided to manage 
pension records. Members were updated recruitment was underway to appoint 
to new Investments Manager and Head of Pensions Administration and 
Relations roles, and an interim Head of Pensions was in place in advance of the 
departure of the current Head of Service.  
 
Attention was drawn to three high risks that remained: PEN023 Resources of 
Officers and Members to Meet the Expansion of Business Items. PEN012 Over-
reliance on key officers and PEN020 Pooling of LGPS assets. The officers 
advised the team had now gone through a restructure to build in future capacity 
and had recruited to a Systems and Data Manager role. The Chairman 
reminded the Committee of the importance that members continue to undertake 
training to keep their LGPS knowledge up-to-date. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the attached Risk Register and measures being taken to mitigate 
risks. 
 

Page 387



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

81 Date of Next Meeting 
 
It was noted the next meeting was to be held on 15 March 2018.  
 

82 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items.  
 

83 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in 
Minute Numbers 84-90 because it is likely that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraphs 1 & 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the 
public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information to the public. 
 

84 Individual Employer Investment Strategy and Club Vita Update 
 
Hymans Robertson updated on the development of bespoke investment 
strategies for different classes of employer and the outcome of the latest Club 
Vita longevity review for the Fund. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update from Hymans Robertson on the development of 
bespoke investment strategies for different classes of employer and the 
outcome of the latest Club Vita longevity review for the Fund. 
 

85 Brunel Pension Partnership Update 
 
A verbal update was provided by the Head of pensions on the progress of the 
implementation of the Brunel Pension Partnership. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the verbal update provided by the Head of Pensions on the 
progress of Brunel Pension Partnership.  
 

86 Brunel Pension Partnership Exercising of Shareholder Reserve Matters 
 
A report outlined two Specific Reserve Matter requests by the Brunel Company 
which required the approval of the Shareholders. The Treasurer advised he was 
to present the report and would ask the Head of Pensions to leave the room in 
the event the Committee felt it was not appropriate he stay due to his imminent 

Page 388



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

employment within Brunel. The Committee confirmed it was comfortable the 
Head of Pensions remain in the room in an observer capacity.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree the arrangements outlined in paragraph 5 of the report in respect 
of a Shareholder vote on Special Reserve Matters, namely: 
a) When possible decisions will be made at the next full Committee 
meeting; 
b) If this is not possible, a Special Meeting will be called, or the Chairman 
may exercise delegated authority to cast the Shareholder vote, following 
consultation with other members. 
 
To agree the Reserve Matter Notice for the amendment to the Business 
Plan or Operating Model to authorise expenditure (paragraphs 7 to 12 of 
the report) and to request that, if this funding is used, a report be 
presented as to why this could not be sourced from savings elsewhere 
within the budget.  
 
To agree the Reserve Matter Notice to amend the Remuneration Policy or 
adopting any new or replacement policy, as outlined in the report in 
respect of recognition awards and reward benefits (paragraphs 16 &17). 
 
To agree the Reserve Matter Notice to amend the Remuneration Policy or 
adopting any new or replacement policy, as outlined in the report in 
respect of maximum Chair and NED Payments per annum (paragraph 15). 
To request when this matter is reviewed in 1 year this is done with a view 
to reducing the maximum figure, as part of this process evidence from the 
Remuneration Committee to justify recommendations is expected. 
 

87 Investment Strategy Away Day Review: Structured Equity, Liability Driven 
Investment & Carbon Footprinting Update 
 
Confidential papers outlined a recommendation from the Investment Sub-
Committee which proposed an approach for the further development of 
Structured Equity Strategy, revised Flight Path and options to utilise Liability 
Driven Investments, along with a review of the approach to carbon footprinting. 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. 
 
a) To note the proposed approach to Equity Protection and to delegate 
authority to officers, in consultation with the Chairman and Vice Chairman 
of the Committee, to progress discussions with advisors and agree all 
matters in respect of an equity protection strategy, including procurement 
of this product.  
 

Page 389



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

b) That authority be delegated to the Treasurer to allocate funding from 
the budget to support the provision of Equity Protection. 
 
c) That updates on this approach are regularly provided to the Committee. 
 
2.  
 
a) To note the proposed approach to the Flight Path and LDI and to 
delegate authority to officers, in consultation with the Chairman and Vice 
Chairman of the Committee, and advisors to explore Flight Path and LDI 
options, and associated governance arrangements, to bring a final 
proposal to a future meeting.  
 
b) To delegate authority to the Treasurer to allocate funding from the 
budget to support this.   
 
c) That an update on this approach is provided for the next meeting of the 
Investment Sub Committee.  
 
 
3. To note the advice on ESG and carbon footprinting and request further 
communication on these issues be available on the Fund’s website. 
 
4. To note the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement will be reviewed in 
March 2018, including in respect of ESG matters.  
 
 

88 Investment Quarterly Progress Report 
 
Confidential reports were circulated updating on the performance of the Fund’s 
investments. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the performance of the Fund’s investments and update provided 
by Mercers.  
 

89 Minutes and Key Decisions of the Investment Sub Committee 
 
The key recommendations arising from the recent Investment Sub Committee 
meeting were noted. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the minutes and key decisions of the Investment Sub Committee 
held on 8 November 2017.  
 
 

Page 390



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

90 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the Part 2 Minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2017.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 1.30 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Johnstone, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718214, e-mail libby.johnstone@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 391



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 392



                              
 

 
 
 

 

WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
HELD ON 14 SEPTEMBER 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Abdul Amin, Cllr Junab Ali, Cllr Alan Bishop, Cllr Richard Britton, Cindy Creasy, 
Cllr Anna Cuthbert, Cllr Ross Henning, Chris Henwood, Cllr Peter Hutton, 
Cllr Brian Mathew, Cllr Jonathon Seed and Cllr John Smale 
 
Also Present: 
 
Angus Macpherson – Police & Crime Commissioner 
Mike Veale – Chief Constable, Wiltshire Police 
Kieran Kilgallen – OPPC 
Chris McMullin – OPPC 
Matt Thomson – OPCC 
Carolyn Filmore – OPCC 
 
Emily Higson – Wiltshire Council 
Kevin Fielding – Wiltshire Council 
 
 
  

 
29 Welcome 

 
The Chairman welcomed Mike Veale – Chief Constable – Wiltshire Police and 
members of the public to the meeting. 
 
Cllr Jonathon Seed raised the question of webcasting future PCP meetings, 
Kevin Fielding – Democratic Services Officer advised that he would feed this 
request back to Democratic Services. 
 
 

30 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from Cllr Dale Heenan – Swindon Borough Council. It 
was noted that Cllr Caryl Sydney-Smith would replace Cllr Heenan for future 
meetings as a Swindon Borough Council representative. 
 

Page 393

Agenda Item 36



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

31 Minutes and matters arising 
 
Decision: 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 29 June 2017 were 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
             It was noted that Cllr Richard Britton and Cllr Peter Hutton were in  

attendance at this meeting. 
 
 

32 Declarations of interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

33 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman advised that a “Blue Light Services” guide had now been 
produced, the link below gives full details. 
 
https://www.local.gov.uk/fire-and-rescue-services-england-guide-police-and-
crime-panel-members 
 

 
34 Public Participation 

 
Mr Paul Sunners, a Swindon resident raised the following question with the 
Commissioner: 
 
“The Police and Crime Commissioner’s summary performance report for 
Quarter 1 – 2017/18 reports reductions in levels of public confidence, victim 
satisfaction with police visibility. 
 
Does the Police and Crime Commissioner attribute the reported perception to 
the significant increase in reported crimes, which include a 16.3% increase in 
dwelling burglaries and a 26.2% increase in vehicle crimes? 
 
Will one outcome of the public survey of Community Policing recommend a 
strategic response to the public need for increased police visibility within our 
communities?” 
 
The Police and Crime Commissioner advised that he would provide Mr Sunners 
with a full written response to his question. 
 
The Chairman made the point that good work was being carried out by 
Neighbourhood Watch Groups across the county. 
 

Page 394

https://www.local.gov.uk/fire-and-rescue-services-england-guide-police-and-crime-panel-members
https://www.local.gov.uk/fire-and-rescue-services-england-guide-police-and-crime-panel-members


 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

35 Review of Community Policing 
 
Chris McMullin – OPCC outlined the Wiltshire Police review of Community 
Policing. 
 
(The power point presentation is attached to these minutes) 
 
Questions raised included: 
 
Was there more flexibility of deployment using the new model? 
a. Flexibility had improved under the new model, but was still a challenge with 

managing staffing levels across the force. 
 
Why a five shift system? 

a. It gives the best balance between work, resources and staffing. 
 
Where do PCSOs fit in to the new system? 

a. PCSOs were very much part of the model, playing an important role in 
community policing. 

 
Why bring in the new model and not properly resource it? 

a. Policing budgets were falling year on year, new emerging crimes mean 
that Wiltshire had to think outside of the box. 

 
Were Wiltshire Police lobbying Central Government for more resources? 

a. The Commissioner had met with all local MPs to try and highlight 
Wiltshire’s lack of funding. 

 
Does the new model mean that intel was fed to partner agencies quicker? 

a. Yes, Wiltshire Police was now more aligned with our partner agencies 
than ever. 

 
Was the training budget big enough? 

a. Wiltshire Police was increasing its training of staff, with less resources it 
needed its staff to be as best trained as possible. 

 
The Chairman thanked Chris McMullin for his presentation. 
 
 
CPT Evaluation PRESENTATION FOR PCPv2 

 
36 999 television programme 

 
Mike Veale - Chief Constable, Wiltshire Police gave an update on Wiltshire 
Police and the 999 television programme after several Wiltshire Councillors had 
indicated that they felt that the programme had not portrayed the county, 
Wiltshire Police, Local Authorities and partners in a good light. 
 

Page 395



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

It was felt that the relationship between Wiltshire Police and Wiltshire Council 
was now challenging and needed to be repaired. 
 
(A full transcript of Mike Veale’s statement is attached to the minutes) 
 
Mike Veale also added that Wiltshire Police had always had a fantastic 
relationship with its partners, and would continue to build relationships with 
these partners. 
 
In hindsight Wiltshire Police should have perhaps discussed its plans with the 
Local Authorities before agreeing their involvement in the programmes. 

 
The Chairman thanked Mike Veale for attending the meeting and speaking to 
the panel. 
 
999 whats your emergency 
 

 
37 Quarterly data (Q1)- Performance / Risk / Finance / Complaints 

 
It was agreed that due to time constraints the panel would take a brief look at 
the Quarterly data (Q1) 1 April – 30 June 2017 contained in the agenda pack. 
 
Performance Report (Q1) 1 April – 30 June 2017 
The report was noted. 
 
 
Deep Dive - Prevent Crime and keep people safe Delivery Plan 2017-21  
The report was noted. 
 
 

Risk Register – Quarter One 2017-18 
The report was noted. 
 
It was agreed that a report “Impact of the Police Pay Award” would come to the 
next meeting in December 2017. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Commissioner for his report. 
 
 

38 Staff Survey 
 
Chris McMullin outlined the Wiltshire Police Staff Survey 2017 which 
summarised the findings from the ‘Pulse’ survey. 
 
(The power point presentation is attached to these minutes) 
 
The Chairman thanked Chris McMullin for his presentation. 

Page 396



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Pulse Survey Presentation for_Policeand CrimePanel_140917 
 

 
39 Questions to the Commissioner 

 
Questions to the Commissioner, (as part of the agenda pack) were noted by the 
Panel. 
 
 

40 Forward Work Plan 
 
The Forward Work Plan was noted. 
 
 

41 Future meeting dates 
 
The next meeting of the Police and Crime Panel will be on Thursday 7 
December 2017 at Swindon Borough Council offices. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 2.00 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kevin Fielding, of Democratic 
Services, direct line01249 706612 or e-mail kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 397



This page is intentionally left blank



                              
 

 
 
 

 

WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
HELD ON 7 DECEMBER 2017 AT COMMITTEE ROOM 6, CIVIC OFFICE, EUCLID 
ST, SWINDON SN1 2JH. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Britton, Cllr Anna Cuthbert, Cllr Ross Henning, Cllr Jonathon Seed, 
Cllr Brian Mathew, Cllr Abdul Amin, Cllr Junab Ali, Alan Bishop, Sydney-Smith, Cindy Creasy 
and Chris Henwood 
 
Also  Present: 
 
 
 
  

 
42 Chairman's Welcome 

 
The Chairman welcomed everybody of the offices of Swindon Borough Council. 
 
 

43 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from Cllr Peter Hutton – Wiltshire Council. 
 
 

44 Minutes and matters arising 
 
Decision: 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 14 September 2017 
were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
             It was noted that Cllr Caryl Sydney-Smith – Swindon Borough 

Council was in attendance at this meeting. 
 

 
45 Declarations of interest 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

Page 399

Agenda Item 37



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

46 Chairman's Announcements 
 

 PCP Conference – That a National Association of PCPs was slowly 
coming together as a Special Interest Group. 

 

 Police and Fire Collaboration at the PCP Conference, LGA position on 
business cases for closer working and mergers – Thanks to Cllr 
Jonathon Seed for bringing the information to the attention of the PCP.  

 

 Member survey of CPT implementation – That a full list of Sector 
Inspectors and PCSOs would be added to the Wiltshire Council web site 
in due course. 

 
 

47 Public Participation 
 
Mr Paul Sunners, a Swindon resident raised the following question with the 
Commissioner: 
 
Following Wiltshire Police recently receiving a ‘Good’ efficiency 
inspection rating, the admission that it had ‘taken its eye off the ball’ in 
relation to the 44% increase in burglaries across the Force area over the 
past three years, served as a brave admission and one that rightly merits 
scrutiny. 
In reviewing the strategic police response to the serious crime of 
burglary, can the PCC advise what steps had now been taken by Wiltshire 
Police which will reassure public confidence in relation to the ability of 
Wiltshire Police to respond appropriately to such serious criminal 
activity? 
 
It was agreed that the OPPC would provide a written answer to Mr Sunner. 
 
 

48 Impact of 2017 Police Officer Pay Award 
 
 

49 Quarterly data (Q2)- Performance & Risk 
 
 

50 Member Questions 
 
Questions to the Commissioner, (as part of the agenda pack) were noted by the 
Panel. 
 
 

51 Forward Work Plan 
 
The Forward Work Plan was noted. 

Page 400



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
52 Future meeting dates 

 
The next meeting of the Police and Crime Panel will be on Thursday 18 January 
2018 at City Hall, Salisbury. 
 
Future meeting dates were: 
 

 1 February 2018 – Monkton Park, Chippenham 

 22 March 2018 – Corn Exchange, Devizes 

 14 June 2018 - Corn Exchange, Devizes 

 27 September – County Hall, Trowbridge 

 6 December 2018 – Civic Offices, Swindon 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.45 pm) 

 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kevin Fielding, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01249 706612, e-mail emily.higson@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 401



This page is intentionally left blank



                              
 

 
 
 

 

WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
HELD ON 18 JANUARY 2018 AT ALAMEIN SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE 
LANE, SALISBURY, SP2 7TU. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Britton, Cllr Junab Ali, Cllr Alan Bishop, Cindy Creasy, 
Cllr Ross Henning, Chris Henwood, Cllr Brian Mathew, Cllr Jonathon Seed and  
Cllr Caryl Sydney-Smith 
 
Also Present: 
 

 Angus Macpherson – Police & Crime Commissioner 
   Kieran Kilgallen – OPCC 
   Clive Barker – OPCC 
   Naji Dawish – OPCC 

 
 Emily Higson – Wiltshire Council 
 Kevin Fielding – Wiltshire Council 
 
 
1 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Abdul Amin – Swindon Borough Council, Cllr 
Anna Cuthbert – Wiltshire Council and Cllr John Smale – Wiltshire Council. 
 
 

2 Declarations of interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

3 Chairman's Announcements 
 

 That Chief Constable Mike Veale had been successful at interview as the 
preferred candidate for Chief Constable for Cleveland Police (subject to 
confirmation from their Police and Crime Panel) which he had accepted. 
 
 
 

 

Page 403

Agenda Item 38



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

4 Public Participation 
 
The following question was raised with the Commissioner: 
 
“What would the 1.1m payment from the Home Office to Wiltshire Police re the 
Edward Heath investigation be used for”? 
 
Answer: Frontline policing. 
 
 

5 PCC Budget 2018/19 and MTFS 
 
Clive Barker gave a short presentation that outlined the PCC’s Draft Budget 
Settlement for 2018/19, including the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 
 
Points made included: 
 

 That In November 2017, the initial Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) was produced and reviewed at the Commissioner’s Monitoring 
Board. The MTFS looked at the estimated financial position of the PCC 
over the next 4 years and the impact this had on the Commissioner’s 
ability to commission services. It acknowledged the fact that decisions 
the Commissioner would make today would impact his finances over the 
medium and long term. At this stage, assuming central government rules 
surrounding the capping of all parts of Council Tax would remain in place 
i.e. any planned increase above 2% would require a referendum. 
 

 On the 19 December 2017 the provisional settlement was received. This 
was significantly different from that expected. Due to the significant 
changes, a new revised MTFS was still in development.  

 

 The initial MTFS was included as an appendix in the agenda pack; 
however it was noted that these funding assumptions were based on a 
1.9% precept cap and a lower level of central government grant. It was 
important to note that the report would show the funding expected post 
the provisional settlement so would not match those reported in the initial 
MTFS. 

  
 
The Settlement  
 
The following police relevant information was announced in the December 
settlement;  
 

 A cash flat central government Police Revenue Grant funding for 2018-
19.  

 

Page 404



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 The raising of the policing element of council tax (policing precept) 
threshold for a referendum to £12 per annum. For Wiltshire this provided 
flexibility to increase the police part of the precept by 7%.  

 
 
Policing element of Council Tax Options  
 
 Currently considering three options for the policing precept;  
 

 Option A – Not to increase the precept (0% increase)  

 Option B – To increase the precept by 1.9%  

 Option C – To increase the precept by £12 per annum (7%)  
 
It agreed that the OPCC would endeavour to provide statistics of the 
consultation at the PCP at the 22 March meeting. 
 
The Chairman thanked Clive Barker for his presentation. 
 
 

6 Member Questions 
 
Questions to the Commissioner, (as part of the agenda pack) were noted by the 
Panel. 
 
It was agreed that responses to any outstanding questions would be provided at 
the 22 March 2018 meeting. 
 
 

7 Forward Work Plan 
 
The Forward Work Plan was noted. 
 
 

8 Future meeting dates 
 
The next meeting of the Police and Crime Panel will be on 1 February 2018 at 
Monkton Park, Chippenham. 
 
Future meeting dates were: 
 

 22 March 2018 – Corn Exchange, Devizes 

 14 June 2018 - Corn Exchange, Devizes 

 27 September – County Hall, Trowbridge 

 6 December 2018 – Civic Offices, Swindon 
 

 
9 Close 

Page 405



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
The Chairman thanked the Commissioner, OPPC and PCP members for 
attending the meeting. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.10 pm) 

 
 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kev Fielding, of Democratic Services, 

direct line 01249 706612, e-mail kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

 

Page 406



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 12 DECEMBER 2017 
AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Britton (Chairman), Cllr Stewart Dobson (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Mike Hewitt, 
Cllr Tony Jackson, Cllr Leo Randall, Cllr Ian Thorn, Cllr John Walsh and Cllr Philip Whitehead 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Michael Hudson, Robin Townsend, Ian Gibbons, Darren Gilbert, and Ian Withers.  
 
  

 
39 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Tony Deane and Cllr Andy 
Phillips.  
 

40 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2017.  
 

41 Declarations of Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

42 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman advised he had circulated proposals to establish a Working 
Group to explore the remit of the Audit Committee. It was considered the 
Council’s Constitution and Committee Terms of Reference should more clearly 
identify the roles and responsibilities of the Committee. The Chairman 
suggested that if such a Working Group be established, any recommendations 
formed should be taken forward to the Standards Committee and Full Council. 
The membership of a Working Group was discussed and Cllrs Jackson and 
Dobson indicated their interest to service on such a working group.  It was 
acknowledged that further work was required to develop proposals for a working 
group before formal consideration by the Committee.  
 

Page 407

Agenda Item 39



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
 
To note the Chairman of the Audit Committee and officers will meet to 
discuss the potential for a Working Group to investigate the remit of the 
Audit Committee and bring formal proposals for a Working Group Terms 
of Reference to the February meeting 
 

43 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public present.  
 

44 KPMG - Wiltshire Council  - Annual Audit Letter 2016-17 
 
Darren Gilbert, KPMG, explained the auditor had issued an unqualified opinion 
on the Authority’s financial statements on 26 July 2017 which meant the 
financial statements were considered to give a true view of the financial position 
of the Authority and of its expenditure and income for the year. The statements 
also included those of the Pension Fund.  
 
Questions were raised as to the impact of the Wiltshire Pension Fund pooling 
assets into Brunel Pension Partnership; it was understood the auditors for 
Brunel and the Fund would work together to identify which areas they should 
focus on. It was also confirmed the Fund’s liabilities were Wiltshire specific. The 
Committee discussed the undervaluing of the Council’s housing stock by the 
external valuer as identified in the report. In response to this it was explained 
the undervaluation had not resulted in a financial loss to the Council, however 
the matter had been raised with the valuer which was in the final year of its 
contract.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree the Annual Audit Letter from Wiltshire Council’s external 
auditors.  
 

45 KPMG - Wiltshire Council - Audit Fee letter 2017-18 
 
KMPG introduced their 2017-18 Audit Fee Letter which started the process for 
the 2017-18 audit and the process for fee-setting was explained. A discussion 
was had on the assumptions used to set the audit fee and it was confirmed 
KMPG had raised no issues in terms of previous process problems to be 
addressed.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree the audit fee letter from Wiltshire Council’s external auditors.  
 
 
 

Page 408



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

46 SWAP Internal Audit Activity Update 
 
The report to Committee updated on the progress of the Internal Audit in 
respect of delivering the 2017/18 Internal Audit and Counter-Fraud Plans, 
managing response to audit recommendations and the Council’s overall control 
environment.  
 
SWAP highlighted key improvements had been made since the last report to 
Committee and many outstanding issues had since been addressed. The 
Chairman commented he was pleased with the report and implementation of 
the audit recommendations. 
 
Committee members asked about the development of the Council’s 
Whistleblowing Policy against fraud and were advised this was in the process of 
being reviewed to ensure it remained effective. In respect of Housing Benefit 
Fraud, councillors heard the public could report this through the website and did 
make use of this facility. Councillors encouraged that the finance team work 
with Communications to promote the Anti-Fraud Plan. The Chief Finance Officer 
confirmed the Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy would be brought to the April 
meeting of the Committee.   
 
The process of the Healthy Schools work was discussed and it was highlighted 
12 of the 14 schools had been audited. The Chairman thanked SWAP for an 
improved and  comprehensive report.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Internal Audit Activity for 2017/18 and the outcomes of audit 
and counter fraud work completed to date.  
 
To encourage liaison with the Council’s Communications team to promote 
the Counter-Fraud Plan.  
 

47 Forward Work Programme 
 
The Committee considered its Forward Work Programme and requested it be 
used to forecast further meetings ahead. 
 
Resolved:  
 
To request the Forward Work Programme be extended to cover future 
meeting dates.  
 

48 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting was to be held on 14 February 2018.  
 
 

Page 409



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

49 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  2.00  - 3.00 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Johnstone, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718214, e-mail libby.johnstone@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 410



Annual 
Audit Letter 
2016/17

Wiltshire 
Council

kpmg.com/uk

December 2017

Page 5

Minute Item 44

Page 411



1 | 

Report sections

Summary 2

Appendices

1. Key issues and recommendations

2. Summary of reports issues

3. Audit fees

4

5

6

Contents 

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. 
We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third 
parties. Public Sector Audit Appointments issued a document entitled Statement of 
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies summarising where the responsibilities of 
auditors begin and end and what is expected from audited bodies. We draw your attention to this 
document which is available on Public Sector Audit Appointment’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in 
place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with the 
law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and 
used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are 
dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact Darren Gilbert, 
the engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are 
dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead partner for all of KPMG’s work 
under our contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers 
(andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk). After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your complaint has 
been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing 
generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by writing to Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ.

The contacts at KPMG in 
connection with this report are:

Darren Gilbert
Director
KPMG LLP

T: +44 (292) 046 8205
E: darren.gilbert@kpmg.co.uk

Adam Bunting
Manager
KPMG LLP

T: +44 (117) 905 4470
E: adam.bunting@kpmg.co.uk

Duncan Laird
Manager – Pension Fund
KPMG LLP

T: +44 (117) 905 4253
E: duncan.laird@kpmg.co.uk

Page 6Page 412



2 | 

Summary 
Section one

VFM conclusion

We issued an unqualified conclusion on the Authority’s 
arrangements to secure value for money (VFM conclusion) for 
2016/17 on 26 July 2017. This means we are satisfied that during 
the year the Authority had appropriate arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its resources. 

To arrive at our conclusion we looked at the Authority’s arrangements 
to make informed decision making, sustainable resource deployment 
and working with partners and third parties.

VFM risk areas

We undertook a risk assessment as part of our VFM audit work to 
identify the key areas impacting on our VFM conclusion and 
considered the arrangements you have put in place to mitigate these 
risks.

Our work identified a significant matter in relation to the delivery of 
savings plans. We reviewed the Medium Term Financial Plan and 
assessed its reasonableness.  Whilst it is believed that the plan is 
broadly suitable, it will be challenging to deliver the transformational 
change needed to meet future savings targets.   However, the 
Authority continued to achieve savings targets for 2016/17 and 
therefore should be well positioned to achieve future requirements.

Audit opinion

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s financial 
statements on 26 July 2017. This means that we believe the 
financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the Authority and of its expenditure and income for the year. The 
financial statements also include those of the pension fund.

This Annual Audit Letter 
summarises the outcome 
from our audit work at 
Wiltshire Council in relation 
to the 2016/17 audit year. 
Although it is addressed to 
Members of the Authority, it 
is also intended to 
communicate these key 
messages to key external 
stakeholders, including 
members of the public, and 
will be placed on the 
Authority’s website.

Page 7Page 413



3 | 

Section one

Financial statements audit

We identified a significant audit risk in respect of our audit of the Authority’s financial statements which related to the 
changes in the pension liability as a result of the triennial valuation. We reviewed the process used to submit payroll 
data to the Pension Fund and tested the year-end submission process and controls.  The assumptions used by your 
actuary were compared to industry standards, as well as being reviewed by our internal actuarial team.   We also 
substantively agreed the total figures submitted to the actuary to the ledger and engaged with our colleagues in the 
Pension Fund audit team to gain assurance over the pension figures.  No issues were identified as a result of this 
work.

Our overall audit work identified three audit adjustments with a total net value of £33.9 million. These adjustments 
related to:

— A balance of £6.9 million owed to Swindon Borough Council being show as “sundry creditors” rather than “local 
authority creditors”;

— Correcting the treatment of gains and losses on investment properties so that they are taken to the Capital 
Adjustment Account (via the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement) rather than directly to the 
Revaluation Reserve; and

— The use of an incorrect adjustment factor by the Authority’s external valuer when determining the value of social 
housing stock resulting in assets being undervalued by £33.9 million.

Other information accompanying the financial statements

Whilst not explicitly covered by our audit opinion, we review other information that accompanies the financial 
statements to consider its material consistency with the audited accounts. This year we reviewed the Annual 
Governance Statement and Narrative Report. We concluded that they were consistent with our understanding and 
did not identify any issues. 

Pension fund audit

There were no significant issues arising from our audit of the pension fund and we issued an unqualified opinion on 
the pension fund financial statements as part of our audit report. 

Whole of Government Accounts 

We reviewed the consolidation pack which the Authority prepared to support the production of Whole of Government 
Accounts by HM Treasury. We reported that, following an update to reflect the audit misstatements identified as a 
result of our financial statements audit, the Authority’s pack was consistent with the audited financial statements.

High priority recommendations

We raised one high priority recommendations as a result of our 2016/17 audit work. This is detailed in Appendix 1 
together with the action plan agreed by management. This recommendation related to the resolution concerns 
identified in relation to the Authority’s IT control environment.  A more detailed report was issued separately to 
management setting our a range of recommendations to address each specific area of concern.

We will formally follow up this recommendations as part of our 2016/17 work.

Certificate

Following completion of our work in relation to the Authority’s Whole of Government Accounts submission and the 
review of the Pension Fund Annual Report, we issued our certificate on 30 September 2017. The certificate confirms 
that we have concluded the audit for 2016/17 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit & 
Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

Audit fee

Our fee for 2016/17 was £180,562, excluding VAT.  This is higher than the planned fee of £167,420 as a result of 
additional work to address failures identified in the Authority’s IT control environment. Further detail is contained in 
Appendix 3. Page 8Page 414



4 | 

No. H/M/L Issue and recommendation Management response/responsible 
officer/due date

1 IT Control Failures

As a result of our audit work over the 
Authority’s IT systems we identified a number 
of significant weaknesses.  As a result of this, 
we were unable to place reliance upon the 
automated controls operating within these 
systems and additional work was required in 
order to gain assurance over system reports.

The control failings identified can be 
summarised as follows:

SAP IT Issues

The Authority had previously implemented a 
process to monitor the use of the extremely 
powerful SAP_ALL access profile.  Due to 
staffing changes in August 2016, these 
accounts were not appropriately monitored 
during the year after that period. 

Therefore, there was a potential during the 
year to have unlimited access to change 
system parameters and alter audit trails 
without detection.

Northgate IT Issues

There are a high number of Northgate 
accounts which have access to systems 
underlying database.  The testing performed in 
2016/17 has confirmed that this includes the 
ability to delete records and change reporting 
functionality without testing or approval.

These issues have meant that extensive 
additional testing had to be performed in the 
year, including lowering the performance 
materiality threshold and increased 
substantive testing over management 
provided reports. 

Due to the critical and sensitive nature of the 
issues identified, a separate IT report has been 
issued detailing the full range of SAP issues and 
our recommendations.

Recommendation

Ensure that the agreed recommendations set 
out in the separate IT report are actioned in a 
timely manner.

SAP IT Issues

Point agreed and actions taken. All access was 
removed from all dialog SAP accounts at various 
points during the financial year, with the last one 
removed 5 January 2017. No dialog users 
therefore now have access to SAP-ALL.   Action 
now complete, but area will be continually 
reviewed as part of normal controls procedures.

Northgate IT Issues

Point agreed and actions taken. Immediate 
action was taken to clear out all user accounts 
that have no need to access the domain at this 
level. Accounts were also removed during the 
2016/2017 financial year. Action now complete, 
but area will be continually reviewed as part of 
normal controls procedures.

Other

The other medium and low risk IT issues have 
also been discussed and appropriate actions 
taken. Most have actions have already been 
completed.

Responsible Officer

Steve Vercella (Head of ICT)

Deadline for Implementation

High risk areas Complete.

Most medium and low risk already complete, 
but final target 31/12/2017 

Key issues and recommendations
Appendix 1

Follow up of previous recommendations

As part of our audit work we followed up on the Authority’s progress against previous audit recommendations. We are 
pleased to report that there were no high priority recommendations raised in the prior year and that the sole 
recommendation raised (low priority) has been implemented in full.

H

Page 9Page 415



5 | 

Summary of reports issued
Appendix 2

Jan Feb Mar Apr2017

Certification of 
Grants and Returns 

This report 
summarised the 
outcome of our 
certification work on 
the Authority’s 
2015/16 grants and 
returns.

Audit Fee Letter

The Audit Fee Letter 
set out the proposed 
audit work and draft 
fee for the 2017/18 
financial year.

External Audit Plan

The External Audit 
Plan set out our 
approach to the audit 
of the Authority’s 
financial statements 
and to work to 
support the VFM 
conclusion

This appendix 
summarises the reports 
we issued since our last 
Annual Audit Letter.

These reports can be 
accessed via the Audit 
Committee pages on the 
Authority’s website at 
www.authorityname.gov
.uk. 

Page 10Page 416



6 | 

Annual Audit Letter

This Annual Audit Letter 
provides a summary of 
the results of our audit 
for 2016/17.

Appendix 2

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov

Report to Those Charged with 
Governance 

The Report to Those Charged with 
Governance summarised the results 
of our audit work for 2016/17 
including key issues and 
recommendations raised as a result 
of our observations. 

We also provided the mandatory 
declarations required under auditing 
standards as part of this report.

Auditor’s Report 

The Auditor’s Report included our 
audit opinion on the financial 
statements (including the pension 
fund accounts) along with our VFM 
conclusion and our certificate.

Page 11Page 417



7 | 

Audit fees

To ensure transparency about the extent of
our fee relationship with the Authority we have summarised 
below the outturn against the 2016/17 planned audit fee.

External audit

Our final fee for the 2016/17 audit [of the Authority] was 
£180,562. This compares to a planned fee of £167,420. The 
increase in fee reflects the extent of additional work that 
was required as a result of the issues identified in the 
Authority’s IT control environment. This additional fee still 
subject to final determination by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments.

Our final fee for the 2016/17 audit of the Pension Fund was 
£25,678 which compare to the planned fee of £24,246. This 
was for the work on behalf of other admitted body auditors 
and has been approved by both the Authority and PSAA.

Certification of grants and returns

Under our terms of engagement with Public Sector Audit 
Appointments we undertake prescribed work in order to 
certify the Authority’s housing benefit grant claim. This 
certification work is still ongoing. The final fee will be 
confirmed through our reporting on the outcome of that 
work in January 2018 but will be in line with planned fee of 
£21,165.

Other services

We charged £6,000 for additional audit-related services for 
the certification of the Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts 
Return and the Teachers’ Pensions Agency Return which 
are outside of Public Sector Audit Appointment’s 
certification regime.

In addition, we charged £2,500 for the completion of a 
Homes & Communities Agency compliance audit in relation 
to funding received by the Authority to support the 
development of new housing in the region.

We also charged £2,700 for further work in relation to the 
provision of a review of the Authority’s Medium Term 
Financial Planning processes. This work was commenced 
during 2015-16 and was not related to our responsibilities 
under the Code of Audit Practice.

Appendix 3

External audit fees 2016/17 
(£’000)

0 50 100 150 200

Planned Actual

Audit fee

Pension 
Fund 
audit fee

Audit-
related 
services 

Non-audit 
work

This appendix provides information 
on our final fees for the 2016/17 
audit.

Page 12Page 418



kpmg.com/uk

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. 

Designed by CREATE | CRT086038

Page 13Page 419



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 420



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 17 JANUARY 
2018 AT THE WEST WILTSHIRE ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 
8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Paul Oatway QPM (Chairman), Cllr Howard Greenman (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Derek Brown OBE, Cllr Allison Bucknell, Cllr Anna Cuthbert, Cllr Peter Evans, 
Cllr Peter Fuller, Cllr Russell Hawker and Cllr Fred Westmoreland 
  

 
1 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ruth Hopkinson and Bob 
Jones MBE 
 

2 Minutes 
 
The minutes of the Standards Committee meeting held on 7 June 2017, and the 
Standards Review Sub-Committee meetings held on 28 March, 6 June, 17 
August and 23 August 2017, were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Standards 
Committee held on 7 June 2017. 
 
To receive and note the minutes of the Standards Review Sub-Committee 
meetings held on 28 March, 6 June, 17 August and 23 August 2017. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

4 Chairman's  Announcements 
 
It was announced that Mr Paul Neale, a longstanding co-opted member of the 
Committee, had passed away since its last meeting in June 2017. On behalf of 
the Committee the Chairman formally noted their condolences. 
 

5 Public Participation 
 
No questions or statements were submitted.  

Page 421

Agenda Item 40



 
 
 

 
 
 

6 Appointment of Co-Opted Members 
 
As detailed in the agenda Full Council on 16 May 2017 delegated to the 
Standards Committee the appointment of four non-voting co-opted members to 
the Standards Committee, two of whom must be serving parish, town or city 
councillors from within the Council’s area. The arrangements for selection of 
such members were delegated to the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Standards Committee. 
 
Ian Gibbons, Monitoring Officer, informed the committee that advertisements for 
the four positions would soon be placed and detailed the proposed selection 
process to be undertaken, and that the Committee would be in a position to 
appoint to the positions in 18 April 2018.  
 
The Committee discussed the update, confirming that at least two of the four 
positions must be filled by serving town or parish councillors, but that more than 
two could be appointed. Methods to publicise the positions beyond town and 
parish councils were also discussed, such as through the area boards and ‘our 
community matters’ websites. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 
 

7 Review of the Constitution 
 
A report from the Monitoring Officer was presented detailing a proposed work 
programme for the Constitution Focus Group, including reviews of the 
councillor-officer relations protocol and to clarify the process for publication and 
scrutiny review of officer decisions. 
 
Additionally details were provided on ongoing amendments to be made under 
the Monitoring Officer’s delegated powers to correct errors, clarify ambiguities 
and give effect to decisions of Full Council. Other than minor corrections, these 
would be taken the Focus Group prior to amendment, and reported to the 
Standards Committee. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 

1) To approve the proposed work programme for the Constitution Focus 

Group, together with any further items the Committee may wish to 

include; and, 

 

2) To note the work that is underway in updating the Constitution under the 

Monitoring Officer’s delegated powers, and any changes to be reported to 

the Committee. 

 

Page 422



 
 
 

 
 
 

8 Status Report on Code of Conduct Complaints 
 
A report from the Monitoring Officer was presented detailing the status of 
complaints submitted regarding alleged breaches of Codes of Conduct of town 
and parish councils, and Wiltshire Councillors. 
 
It was detailed that the total number of complaints received for 2017 was 37 vs 
59 in 2016. Details were provided on the type of complaints received and the 
outcomes. 
 
The Committee discussed the update, requesting further details on complaints 
that had been subject to review requests, as well as the officer time input 
administering the complaints process. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 
 

9 Training for Parish Councils on the Code of Conduct 
 
Ian Gibbons, Monitoring Officer, provided a verbal update on training for parish 
councils. As part of a wider parish council networking session he had delivered 
some initial information to representatives of around 100 parishes, out of 253 in 
Wiltshire as a whole. The Wiltshire Council Monitoring Officer has an obligation 
to maintain the register of interests for parish councils, as well as promote high 
standards of conduct. 
 
The views of the Standards Committee were sought on the level of support that 
could and should be offered in the light of concerns both on the level of 
compliance of parish councils in adopting Codes of Conduct and properly 
registering their interests, as well as general understanding of their own 
obligations. 
 
The Committee discussed the situation, noting that while very few parish 
councils had adopted no Code of Conduct at all, this was a statutory obligation 
and it was vital that all do so. In particular it was noted Wiltshire Council was 
unable to properly conduct its own statutory obligation to deal with Code of 
Conduct complaints where a Code was absent. It was also raised that the level 
of understanding of parish councillor obligations and compliance with 
registration of interests was highly varied, and that the experience and 
knowledge of the clerks of a parish council was an important factor. 
 
While supporting the need to assist parish councils in meeting their obligations, 
some concerns were raised that it was not an obligation of Wiltshire Council to 
provide training and free resources for parish councils, and it was questioned 
whether such matters could most appropriately be provided through the 
Wiltshire Association of Local Councils (WALC), in concert with or without 
occasional regional training sessions from the Monitoring Officer.  
 

Page 423



 
 
 

 
 
 

At the conclusion of discussion it was proposed that the Monitoring Officer write 
to parish council clerks and chairman seeking, in the first instance, confirmation 
of whether their council had adopted a Code of Conduct, and providing 
information on the necessity to properly register councillor interests, and for 
confirmation if such registers had been completed and were up to date. It was 
also requested that WALC be contacted to inquire as to the level of support and 
guidance they were able to offer parish councils. 
 
Resolved: 
 
For the Monitoring Officer to contact all parish councils to seek details of 
their compliance with adopting Codes of Conduct and registering 
disclosable pecuniary interests; and 
 
For a report on the responses to be provided at the meeting on 18 April 
2017, along with details of support able to be provided by WALC. 
 

10 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  2.00  - 3.15 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 

direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 424



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
ELECTORAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE ELECTORAL REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 12 
DECEMBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Christopher Newbury, 
Cllr Ashley O'Neill, Cllr Jonathon Seed, Cllr Stuart Wheeler, Cllr Graham Wright and 
Cllr Jacqui Lay (Present as Substitute) 
  

 
1 Election of Chairman 

 
Nominations were sought for a Chairman of the Electoral Review Committee for the 
period of the electoral review. Following a proposal from Councillor Jonathon Seed, 
seconded by Councillor Jacqui Lay, it was, 

 
Resolved: 

 
To appoint Councillor Richard Clewer as Chairman. 

 
2 Election of Vice-Chairman 

 
Nominations were sought for a Vice-Chairman of the Electoral Review Committee for 
the period of the Electoral Review. Councillor Jonathon Seed was nominated by 
Councillor Richard Clewer, seconded by Councillor Ashley O’Neill, and Councillor 
Gavin Grant was nominated by Councillor Graham Wright, seconded by Councillor 
Clare Cape. 

 
Following a vote, it was, 

 
Resolved: 

 
To appoint Councillor Jonathon Seed as Vice-Chairman.  

 
3 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Ian Blair-Pilling and Ian McLennan. 
 
Councillor Blair-Pilling was substituted by Councillor Jacqui Lay. 

 
4 Declarations of Interest 

 
There were no declarations. 

Page 425

Agenda Item 41



 
 
 

 
 
 

5 Chairman's Announcements 
 

There were no announcements. 
 

6 Public Participation 
 

There were no public in attendance. 
 

7 Electoral Review - Council Size Submission 
 

In response to notification from the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England of the intention to undertake an electoral review of Wiltshire Council, the 
Electoral Review Committee was established to progress the review on behalf of the 
Council, and to formulate recommendations for any submissions to be made to the 
Commission. 

 
A report was received from Ian Gibbons, Director of Legal and Democratic Services, 
outlining the reason for the electoral review and the process to be followed. The 
preliminary stage of the review would run until March 2018 and would determine the 
overall size of Wiltshire Council, and the second stage would then consider the 
boundaries of the number of divisions decided upon. The report also outlined the main 
areas that would be considered by the Commission in making their judgement on 
council size, being the governance arrangements of the council, its scrutiny functions, 
and the representational role of councillors. 
 
The Committee discussed the data that would need to be collected and assessed for 
the review in order to make a recommendation on council size, including forecasts on 
electorate numbers and details on the council’s present and planned governance 
arrangements. In respect of details on the representational role of councillors, it was 
agreed to circulate a series of questions from the Commission’s guidance on council 
size submissions on the subject to all councillors to canvass their views. This and 
other data would be considered at workshop meetings for the Committee on 20 
December 2017 and 3 January 2018.  
 
Details were also sought on the process undertaken during the last review, which took 
place in the run up to the creation of the unitary council in 2009. 

 
Resolved: 

 
1) To note the actions taken to date as detailed in the report; 
2) To note the two distinct parts to the electoral review - council size 

(preliminary stage) running until March 2018 and consideration of division 
boundaries from May 2018 to March 2019; 

3) To agree the approach in developing the Council’s submission on council 
size including the collection and presentation of data, working with the 
Commission’s representatives and publicity as detailed in the report; and, 

4) To agree the timetable of activity for the Committee to direct the project as 
detailed in Minute 8. 

5) To circulate questions in relation to the representation role of councillors to 
all members of the council. 

Page 426



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
8 Work Programme 

 
The following meeting schedule was agreed by the Committee: 
 
20 December 2017 - Committee Workshop 
3 January 2018 - Committee Workshop 
11 January 2018 - Committee Meeting 
25 January 2018 - Committee Meeting 
7 February 2018 - Committee Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  1.40 - 2.05 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 

direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

Page 427



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 428



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

ELECTORAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE ELECTORAL REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 11 
JANUARY 2018 AT THE NORTH WILTSHIRE ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Richard Clewer (Chairman), Cllr Gavin Grant, 
Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr Christopher Newbury, Cllr Ashley O'Neill, Cllr Jonathon Seed 
(Vice-Chairman), Cllr Stuart Wheeler and Cllr Graham Wright 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Ruth Hopkinson 
  

 
1 Apologies 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Ian Blair-Pilling. 
 
 

2 Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 December 2017 were presented for 
consideration and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record. 
 
 

3 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 
 

4 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 
 

5 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public in attendance. 

Page 429

Agenda Item 42



 
 
 

 
 
 

6 Electoral Review Update 
 
The Chairman introduced all of the documentation that had been publicly 
published following the two workshop sessions held on 20 December 2017 and 
3 January 2018, to enable the Committee and others to make data based 
analyses of appropriate council size options. This had included details on the 
council’s governance and scrutiny arrangements, the representational role of 
council, comparative local authority data, electorate forecasts, survey data from 
councillors, and the responses from the consultation with council staff the 
Committee had requested. A member felt that any consultation response 
requested from staff should include details of which officer submitted the 
responses. 
 
The Committee considered all the data published including the submissions, 
and discussed whether the evidence as presented justified any particular 
council sizes. It was confirmed electorate to councillor ratios and cost factors 
were not relevant considerations, and it was agreed that the council needed to 
support whatever number it felt the evidence suggested, not attempt to assume 
the Local Government Boundary Commission for England had a target number 
to reduce the council to, and to react to such an assumption. 
 
The Committee considered that area board arrangements in Wiltshire, being 
formal area committees with delegated executive authority and distinct budgets 
designated for historic community areas, were a significant factor to consider. 
With only minor reductions in the overall council numbers the representational 
role of councillors was significantly impacted in several areas. The evidence as 
submitted suggested the workloads for councillors had already increased over 
time and would continue to do so, as it was not accepted that a certain level of 
delegation of assets to towns and parishes would reduce unitary councillor 
workloads, particularly in rural areas. The council’s governance and scrutiny 
arrangements operated effectively and were efficiently organised, and it was 
noted the most recent peer reviews of scrutiny indicated the arrangements were 
appropriate and working well. As a result, some members suggested an 
increase in councillor numbers would develop and improve the effectiveness of 
the present arrangements further, rather than a reduction below 93, which it 
was felt would make the governance arrangements unworkable.  
 
It was noted that Cornwall Council had recently been reviewed and had been 
reduced in size by a third, however it was also noted that Cornwall had also 
undertaken devolution arrangements with central government, whereas 
Wiltshire Council had decided pursuing such arrangements was not suitable 
and was not subject to any agreement regarding devolution arrangements. 
Additionally, its Community Network Areas lacked the significance of the 
delegated powers of the Area boards, and it had even fewer parish councils 
than Wiltshire. 
 
Other issues raised included more details on area board arrangements and the 
need for both council administrative and democratic efficiency. 
 

Page 430



 
 
 

 
 
 

At the conclusion of discussion, and upon the moving of Councillor Jonathon 
Seed, seconded by Councillor Graham Wright, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the evidence as presented supported a council size of between 93-
99, and that further work be undertaken ahead of the meeting on 25 
January 2018, where the Committee would determine the precise 
appropriate figure. 
 
 

7 Work Programme 
 
It was confirmed that it was not felt necessary to hold an additional workshop 
meeting on 16 January 2018. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the work programme. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Duration of meeting:  12.35  - 2.00 pm) 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 431



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 432



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

ELECTORAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE ELECTORAL REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 25 
JANUARY 2018 AT THE SALISBURY ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Richard Clewer (Chairman), Cllr Gavin Grant, 
Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr Christopher Newbury, Cllr Ashley O'Neill, Cllr Jonathon Seed 
(Vice-Chairman), Cllr Stuart Wheeler, Cllr Graham Wright and Cllr Ruth Hopkinson 
(Substitute - Part II) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Thorn 
  

 
8 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Clare Cape, who was substituted by 
Councillor Ruth Hopkinson. 
 
Councillor Ian McLennan gave apologies that he would arrive late to the 
meeting. 
 

9 Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2018 were presented for 
consideration and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record. 
 

10 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

11 Chairman's Announcements 
 
Through the Chair there was the following statement: 
 
At the last meeting Cllr Seed raised the question of the three staff submissions 
received to the review consultation. He questioned whether staff advising the 
committee could remain impartial if they were involved in the submissions. 

Page 433

Agenda Item 43



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Committee requested that staff be consulted. However, staff were advised 
erroneously by a member of staff, and without the prior knowledge or approval 
of the Director for Legal & Democratic Services and the Corporate Director, that 
any submissions would be anonymous. Whilst incorrect this position must now 
be supported as it was on that basis that staff have responded. 
 
The Corporate Director and Director for Legal & Democratic Services advise the 
committee that the submission will be drafted by themselves and the Head of 
Service for Democratic Services. None of these staff were involved in the staff 
submissions in any way. 
 
I hope this addresses the valid question raised by Cllr Seed at our last meeting 
 

12 Public Participation 
 
There were no questions or statements submitted. 
 

13 Electoral Review Update 
 
At its meeting on 11 January 2018 the Committee, having reviewed the 
available evidence against the valid criteria of governance arrangements, 
scrutiny arrangements and the representational role of councillors, determined 
that the most appropriate council-size for the Wiltshire Council area was 
between 93-99 councillors. In particular the Committee had determined that the 
community area structure was very significant due to its impact on council 
governance, engagement and service delivery. Other significant factors 
included the role played by executive portfolio holders and the relating impact 
upon committee membership and scrutiny engagement, and the 
representational role of councillors within a large, rural unitary council. 
 
The Chairman introduced two supplementary documents which explored the 
impacts of council sizes of 93-99 upon the community areas, average division 
size, as well as reasoning for the presence of executive portfolio holders and 
the particular challenges arising from a large, rural authority, including the 
engagement with and assistance to large numbers of parish councils. 
 
The Committee discussed the information, noting that electoral equality was the 
most significant factor, and considered which if any of the proposed range of 
council sizes met that requirement in addition to being supported by other 
factors. It was argued that the historic nature of the community areas along with 
their centrality to council governance and service delivery in localities, which 
would only increase in years to come, justified maintaining a council size which 
did not make more than minor adjustments to the external boundary of a 
community area. 
 
It was accepted that even with council sizes at the upper end of the range, 
significant changes would be made to division boundaries to achieve electoral 
equality, and the acceptable level of variance from the average division was 
debated, along with whether it was felt there was a practical level at which no 

Page 434



 
 
 

 
 
 

more area boards could be reduced to 3 members and be as effective as 
possible. 
 
Other issues discussed included the conclusions of Peer reviews regarding 
council governance arrangements, whether there had been or would be an 
overall reduction or increase in the workload of councillors in years to come, the 
particular challenges posed by rurality, electorate forecasts and updates from 
the Commission.  
 
During debate a motion for a council-size of 99 to be recommended to Full 
Council as the figure to be submitted to the Commission was moved by 
Councillor Jonathon Seed, seconded by Councillor Ian McLennan, and at the 
conclusion of discussion it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That based on the evidence presented the Committee considered 99 to be 
the appropriate council size and they therefore instructed officers to draft 
a proposed submission to the LGBCE based on that figure, to be 
considered by the Committee at its next meeting 
 

14 Work Programme 
 
The work programme was noted, with the next meeting to be the 7 February 
2018 meeting, ahead of Full Council on 20 February 2018. 
 

15 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  11.30 am - 12.20 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 

direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

Page 435



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 436



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

ELECTORAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE ELECTORAL REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 7 
FEBRUARY 2018 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Richard Clewer (Chairman), Cllr Gavin Grant, 
Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr Christopher Newbury, Cllr Ashley O'Neill, Cllr Graham Wright, 
Cllr Ruth Hopkinson (Substitute) and Cllr Jacqui Lay (Substitute) 
  

 
16 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Clare Cape, Jonathon 
Seed and Stuart Wheeler. 
 
Councillor Cape was substituted by Councillor Ruth Hopkinson. 
 
Councillor Seed was substituted by Councillor Jacqui Lay. 
 

17 Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2018 were presented for 
consideration, and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 25 January 2018. 
 

18 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

19 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 

20 Public Participation 
 
There were no statements or questions submitted.  
 
 

Page 437

Agenda Item 44



 
 
 

 
 
 

21 Electoral Review Update 
 
At its meeting on 25 January 2018 the Committee, on the basis of the evidence, 
resolved that a council size of 99 should be recommended to Full Council as the 
submission number to the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England. A draft submission was prepared by officers in accordance with 
reasoning provided by the Committee at its previous meetings. 
 
The Committee discussed the draft submission in detail, commenting on 
additional clarifications, enhancements or additional reasoning or wording that 
should be included. Issues raised included the geographic nature of the council 
area with towns mostly around the edge, and the impact on the nature of local 
communities, the direction of change for empowerment of area boards and 
communities and the role of councillors as community leaders in liaison with 
town and parish councils and other groups. 
 
Other matters discussed included examples of where community consultation 
had resulted in significant alterations to council policy or spending, how many 
councillors were required to perform all necessary roles for governance 
purposes, and the role of scrutiny. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, and on the moving of Councillor Richard 
Clewer, seconded by Councillor Ashley O’Neill, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the draft submission on council size for consideration by Full 
Council on 20 February 2018, subject to any minor drafting and 
consequential changes to be delegated to the Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services in consultation with the Chairman, taking into 
account the comments made by the Committee at this meeting.  
 
 

22 Work Programme 
 
The work programme was noted. 
 

23 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  12.05 - 1.35 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 

direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

Page 438



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
13 NOVEMBER 2017 AT PITMAN ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Jerry Wickham, Cllr Chuck Berry and Cllr Ian Thorn 
 
 
 
 
  

 
49 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

50 Declaration of Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

51 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
  

52 Public Participation 
 
No members of the public were in attendance. 
  

53 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items of business. 
 

54 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Minute No.55 because it is likely that if members of the public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 

Page 439

Agenda Item 45



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

defined in paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 

55 Appointment of Director, Economic Development and Planning 
 
The Committee conducted a competitive selection process to appoint to the role 
of Director, Economic Development and Planning prior to appointing to that 
post. 
 
After discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To not appoint to the post of Director, Economic Development and 
Planning at this time and to advertise the post externally as soon as 
possible. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.00 am - 1.30 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 440



 
 

 
 
 
 

OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
2 NOVEMBER 2017 AT CH - RUDMAN ROOM, - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Jerry Wickham and Cllr Ian Thorn 
  

 
41 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

42 Declaration of Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

43 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 

44 Public Participation 
 
No members of the public were in attendance. 
 

45 Appointments following Changes to the Senior Management Structure 
 
The Committee received a report by the Corporate Directors which presented 
candidates recommended for appointment into the following posts on the 
grounds of suitable alternative employment within the Council’s new senior 
management structure:- 
 

 Director – Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer). 

 Director - Finance and Procurement (Section 151 officer). 

 Director – HR&OD (Head of Paid Service) 

 Director – Communities and Communications 

 Director – Corporate Services and Digital 

 Director – Highways and Transport 

 Director – Waste and Environment 
 

46 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items of business. 
 
 

Page 441

Agenda Item 46



 
 

 
 
 

47 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Minute No.48 because it is likely that if members of the public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 

48 Appointments following Changes to the Senior Management Structure 
(continued) 
 
Appendix 8 of the Corporate Directors’ report was presented and after 
discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To appoint officers to   the following posts as indicated with effect from 6 
November 2017: 
 

 Director – Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) – Mr 
Ian Gibbons 

 Director - Finance and Procurement (Section 151 officer) – Mr 
Michael Hudson 

 Director – HR&OD (Head of Paid Service) – Mrs Joanne Pitt 

 Director – Communities and Communications – Mrs Laurie Bell 

 Director – Corporate Services and Digital – Mr Robin Townsend 

 Director – Highways and Transport – Mr Parvis Khansari  

 Director – Waste and Environment – Ms Tracy Carter 
 

subject to:- 
 
(1) all the above appointments being subject to a statutory trial period of 

four weeks except for Mrs Joanne Pitt whose trial period is extended to 
12 weeks as she will be new in post at tier two, and 

 
(2) after consultation with the Leader and Cabinet members in accordance 

with paragraph 5(2) of the Officer Employment Procedure Rules. 
 

(Duration of meeting:  10.30  - 10.45 am) 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 442



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 13 NOVEMBER 2017 AT PITMAN ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Laura Mayes, Cllr Jerry Wickham and Cllr Ian Thorn 
 
 
 
 
  

 
56 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
  

57 Declaration of Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

58 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements.  
 

59 Public Participation 
 
No members of the public were in attendance. 
  

60 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items of business. 
  

61 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Minute No.62 because it is likely that if members of the public were 

Page 443

Agenda Item 47



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 

62 Appointment of Director - Families and Children 
 
The Committee conducted a competitive selection process to appoint to the role 
of Director, Families and Children prior to appointing to that post. 
 
After discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To appoint Lucy Townsend to the post of Director, Families and Children 
with effect from 14 November 2017, subject to consultation with the 
Leader and Cabinet members in accordance with paragraph 5(2) of the 
Officer Employment Procedure Rules. 
 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  1.30 pm  - 3.35 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 444



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
8 DECEMBER 2017 AT THE NORTH WILTSHIRE ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice-
Chairman), Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Jerry Wickham and Cllr Gordon King 
 
Also  Present: 
 
 
  

 
63 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies. 
 

64 Minutes of Previous Meetings 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meetings held 
on 2 November and 13 November 2017. 
 

65 Declaration of Interests 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

66 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 

67 Public Participation 
 
No members of the public were in attendance. 
 

68 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

69 Exclusion of the Public 
 

Page 445

Agenda Item 48



 
 
 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Minute No.70 because it is likely that if members of the public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 
 
 

70 Appointment of Director, Public Health and Public Protection 
 
The Committee conducted an interview and selection process to appoint to the 
role of Director, Public Health and Public Protection. 
 
After discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To appoint Tracy Daszkiewicz to the post of Director, Public Health and 
Public Protection with effect from 11 December 2017, subject to 
consultation with the Leader and Cabinet Members in accordance with 
paragraph 5(2) of the Officer Employment Procedure Rules. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.10 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 446



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
10 JANUARY 2018 AT THE PITMAN ROOM, COUNTY HALL, BYTHESEA ROAD, 
TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Jerry Wickham, Cllr Richard Clewer and Cllr Bob Jones MBE 
  

 
1 Apologies 

 
Cllr Bob Jones MBE attended in place of Cllr Ian Thorn. 
 
Cllr Richard Clewer attended in place of Cllr Chuck Berry. 
 

2 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 8 December 2017 were presented, and it 
was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a correct record. 
 

3 Declaration of Interests 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

4 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 

5 Public Participation 
 
No members of the public were present. 
 

6 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 
 
 

Page 447

Agenda Item 49



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

7 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Minute No.8 because it is likely that if members of the public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 

8 Appointment of Director Housing & Commercial Development 
 
The Committee conducted an interview and selection process to appoint to the 
role of Director, Housing and Commercial Development. 
 
After discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To not appoint to the post of Director, Housing & Commercial 
Development at this time and to advertise the post externally as soon as 
possible. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.00 am - 1.35 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott, of Democratic & 

Members’ Services, direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 448



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
12 JANUARY 2018 AT THE PITMAN ROOM, COUNTY HALL, BYTHESEA ROAD, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice-
Chairman), Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Philip Whitehead and Cllr Bob Jones MBE 
  

 
9 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies. 
 

10 Declaration of Interests 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

11 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements 
 

12 Public Participation 
 
No members of the public were present. 
 

13 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

14 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Minute No.15 because it is likely that if members of the public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 
 
 

Page 449

Agenda Item 50



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

15 Appointment of Director, Economic Development & Planning 
 
The Committee conducted an interview and selection process to appoint to the 
role of Director, Economic Development and Planning 
 
After discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To appoint Tim Martienssen as Director, Economic Development and 
Planning with immediate effect, subject to consultation with the Leader 
and Cabinet Members in accordance with paragraph 5(2) of the Officer 
Employment Procedure Rules. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.30 am - 1.45 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic & 

Members’ Services, direct line 01225 7130353935, e-mail 
roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 450



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES OF THE OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
16 JANUARY 2018 AT THE PITMAN ROOM, COUNTY HALL, BYTHESEA ROAD, 
TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 

Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr Laura Mayes, 
Cllr Jerry Wickham, Cllr Bridget Wayman and Cllr Jon Hubbard 
  

 
16 Apologies 

 
Cllr Steve Oldrieve was substituted by Cllr Jon Hubbard. 
 

17 Declaration of Interests 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

18 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 

19 Public Participation 
 
There were no public present. 
 

20 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

21 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Minute No.22 because it is likely that if members of the public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 
 
 

Page 451

Agenda Item 51



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

22 Appointment of Director, Education and Skills 
 
The Committee conducted an interview and selection process to appoint to the 
role of Director, Education and Skills 
 
After discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To appoint Joanna Cassey to the post of Director, Education and Skills, 
with a start date to be confimed in due course, subject to consultation 
with the Leader and Cabinet Members in accordance with paragraph 5(2) 
of the Officer Employment Procedure Rules. 
 

 
 
 

(Duration of meeting:  9.30 am - 3.45 pm) 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 7130358504, e-mail 

roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 452



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

COMMITTEENAME 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEENAME MEETING HELD ON 
MEETINGDATE AT MEETINGLOCATION. 
 
Present: 
 
AllPresentShortRolesList 
 
Also  Present: 
 
AllInAttendanceList 
 
  

 
 

(Duration of meeting:  MeetingActualTimeRange) 
 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is MeetingContact, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line CommitteeTel, e-mail CommitteeEmail 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 453

Agenda Item 52



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
1 NOVEMBER 2017 AT SALISBURY ROOM, COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Allison Bucknell (Chairman), Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr David Jenkins, 
Cllr Ricky Rogers, Cllr Hayley Spencer, Cllr David Halik (Substitute) and Cllr Tony Trotman 
(Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
 
 
  

 
34 Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from:- 
 
Cllr Tony Jackson, who was substituted by Cllr David Halik 
Cllr Andy Phillips 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, who was substituted by Cllr Tony Trotman  
 
The Chairman introduced and welcomed Mike Osment, UNISON Branch 
Secretary and also Helen Strong, Development Officer, Strategic Delivery on 
their first attendance at a meeting of this Committee. 
 

35 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the previous 
meeting held on 5 July 2017. 
 

36 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

37 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The following announcements were made:- 

Page 455

Agenda Item 53



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 Engage Award  The Committee was delighted to hear that the EPIC 
team comprising of staff from across the Council had been shortlisted as 
a finalist in the Engage Awards 2017 in the category of Innovation in 
Staff Engagement. The team would be attending an awards ceremony in 
London shortly when the winner would be announced. 

 

 South West Challenge 2017  It was reported that two teams from 
Wiltshire Council had recently taken part in the South West Challenge 
2017 event in Taunton.  This SW Challenge offered a rare opportunity for 
aspiring managers across the South West to gain exposure to issues 
outside of their normal working lives and gave them a taste of what 
senior management was like. 

 
Working as a team of six people from any area of work, delegates spent 
the day as the management team of a fictional local authority, 
encountering many of the tasks that a real corporate team would deal 
with. They had to work as a team, with neighbouring councils and with 
partner organisations to deliver a new strategy for the council. They 
learnt how to keep calm and focussed whilst choosing which areas to 
prioritise; dealing with politically sensitive issues and still keeping their 
focus on how to give the public the best services with limited budgets.  
Although neither team from Wiltshire won, the participants thoroughly 
enjoyed the experience and learnt a fair amount about the running of a 
local authority. 

 
 

38 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public present or councillors’ questions.  
 

39 Trade Union Deduction of Contributions at Source (DOCAS) 
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Human Resources & 
Organisation Development which drew attention to the current draft Trade 
Union (Deduction of Union Subscriptions from Wages in the Public Sector) 
Regulations 2017 which was due to be implemented on 10 March 2018. 
 
It was pointed out that the new regulations would mean that the Council would 
only be able to deduct trade union subscriptions from employees where: 
 

 The employees were given the option to pay their subscription by other 
means; and 

 

 The union made reasonable payments to the Council which represented 
the total cost to public funds of making the deductions. 

 

Page 456



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

UNISON had asked the Council to sign a Service Level Agreement (SLA) once 
the regulations come into force in March 2018 and the Council was currently 
considering the implications of this request, which might result in having to 
produce a monthly reconciliation report to UNISON on actual deductions for 
union subscriptions compared with expected union subscription deductions. 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) To continue to investigate an appropriate calculation for each union 

so that the regulations were complied with. 
 
(2) To report back to this Committee once this work had been carried 

out. 
 

40 Staff Car Parking near County Hall 
 
The Committee received a report by the Head of Human Resources & 
Organisation Development which stated that staff car parking in the near vicinity 
of County Hall was likely to be reduced from 2018.  
 
The east wing site at County Hall had the potential to be developed and outline 
planning permission was being sought, the outcome of which would most likely 
be known at the end of October 2017.  Should planning permission be granted, 
work was likely to begin at the start of August 2018 with a loss of about 315 of 
the current 938 staff car parking spaces, leaving a balance of 623. 
 
It was noted that a survey was being designed in order to gather information on 
which staff currently drive to work at County Hall and whether the reduction in 
car parking spaces would cause staff to change their travel arrangements. An 
initial assessment of car parking spaces in Trowbridge town centre showed that 
there were plenty of spaces available but there would be a cost involved in 
parking in the majority of the car parks. 
 
A staff car parking group had been established from across the whole Council, 
which included union representation, to consider car parking issues. The group 
would be considering the effect of any decisions made for Trowbridge staff car 
parking on the provision of parking at the other hubs in Chippenham and 
Salisbury. 
 
After some discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the contents of the report and that information on proposals from 
the car parking group would be brought back to this Committee when it 
becomes available.  
 
   

Page 457



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
41 Apprenticeship Policy and Progress on the Recruitment of Apprentices 

 
Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Human Resources & 
Organisation Development which presented an updated apprenticeship policy, 
together with a progress report on the recruitment of apprentices and the use of 
the Council’s apprenticeship levy. 
 
Th report explained that an apprenticeship was a work-based programme which 
led to a nationally recognised qualification or set of competencies.  The new 
regulations were launched in April 2017 which now allowed apprentices to gain 
technical experience and wider skills needed for immediate job and future 
career. 
 
It was noted that an apprenticeship was required to run for at least one year, but 
depending upon the type and level of the programme could last up to five years. 
There was a government target for the Council to employ 2.3% of its workforce 
as apprentices which currently equated to approximately 266 apprentices per 
year.  
 
As part of the new regulations, apprenticeship standards had now replaced the 
old apprentice frameworks.  However, Wiltshire Council was limited to offering 
the standards that had so far been developed but there was a commitment 
nationally to develop more standards, with new ones becoming available each 
month. 
 
Currently, there were 13 apprenticeships at Wiltshire Council, which included 
business administration, accountancy and customer services up to a level 6 or 7 
apprentice which was equivalent to a degree qualification in a professional 
service area. Two further apprentices were waiting to start. However, there 
were plans to increase the range significantly as more standards became 
available in 2018. 
 
Members welcomed these developments enthusiastically but it was suggested 
that the apprenticeships should be spread evenly across the organisation. 
   
Resolved: 
 
(1) To note the apprenticeship policy, managers’ guidance document 

and frequently asked questions which were designed to support 
managers when recruiting an apprentice.    

 
(2) To receive a further report on the impact of the apprenticeship levy 

at the end of 2017/18 financial year and an overview on the number, 
type and level of apprenticeships in place across the Council. 

 
42 Quarterly Workforce Report: April - June 2017 

 

Page 458



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Committee received a workforce report, excluding fire, police and school 
staff, for the quarter ended 30 June 2017. 
 
Following the introduction of a new report format which was welcomed and 
agreed at the last meeting, the first section of the report provided key 
observations from the data which had been analysed for the quarter. This was 
followed by a themed commentary which provided a deeper analysis and insight 
into a specific topic that was current for the Council.  The topic chosen for the 
current report was the Wiltshire Council Apprenticeship Programme as 
discussed in the previous minute. 
 
Reference was made to the number of lost days due to sickness and Cllr 
Richard Clewer reported that a sickness absence UK average of 4.3 days per 
worker was significantly lower than the average for Wiltshire.  The officers were 
asked to look into sickness in a bit more detail in order to obtain a clearer 
picture across the Council of where potential problem areas arose as the figures 
regularly reported to this Committee were overview figures at a corporate level.  
The Committee was informed that Wiltshire’s sickness statistics had been fairly 
static for several years but there were certain categories of staff, such as social 
workers and depot staff, where the level of sickness was somewhat higher than 
the Wiltshire average.  Managers and also business partners were regularly 
provided with information and training was provided where appropriate, such as 
manual handling and also ways of dealing with mental stress.    
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) To note the contents of the report. 
 
(2) To request the officers to investigate the level of sickness in 

Wiltshire and report back to Members when information is available. 
 

43 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next scheduled meeting of the Committee was due to be 
held on Wednesday 10 January 2018 at County Hall, Trowbridge at 
10.30am, to be preceded by a further training session on staff engagement 
and workforce development starting at 9.00am for all Members and 
substitute Members of the Committee. 
 

44 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business.  
 

Page 459



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  11.00  - 11.50 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 460



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 10 
JANUARY 2018 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 
8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Allison Bucknell (Chairman), Cllr Tony Jackson (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Mike Hewitt, 
Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Ricky Rogers, Cllr Peter Evans (Substitute) and 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Substitute) 
  

 
1 Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Richard Clewer, Andy Phllips, 
Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE and Hayley Spencer. 
 
Councillor Phillips was substituted by Councillor Peter Evans. 
 
Baroness Scott was substituted by Councillor Tony Trotman. 
 

2 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 1 November 2017 were presented and it 
was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

4 Chairman's Announcements 
 
It was announced that since the last meeting Jo Pitt had been appointed as 
Director of Human Resources and Organisational Development (HR & OD). On 
behalf of the Committee the Chairman congratulated Jo Pitt on her 
appointment. 
 

5 Public Participation 
 
There were no public in attendance. 

Page 461

Agenda Item 54



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
6 Senior Officers Employment Sub-Committee 

 
The minutes of the Senior Officers Employment Sub-Committee from 17 
October 2017 and 1 November 2017 were received. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the minutes. 
 

7 Pay Policy Statement 
 
A report from Jo Pitt, Director of HR and OD, was received, presented by 
Amanda George, HR Strategic Delivery Manager. 
 
Under Chapter 8 of the Localism Act 2011 every local authority must prepare a 
pay policy statement for every financial year. The policy had been updated to 
include a revised introduction on forthcoming legislation that would impact on 
the council’s pay arrangements such as implications arising from the 
apprenticeship levy and increase to the national living wage. Other updates 
included information on recommencement of annual increment increases for all 
staff from April 2018, updates on number of council employees, pay ratios, and 
other clarifications as detailed in the report. 
 
The Committee discussed the updated policy, requesting detail on the reporting 
of the gender pay gap, noting that as a local authority the council had a high 
number of female, part time staff, which would affect the average pay between 
men and women. However, equal pay policies were in place to ensure those in 
the same roles received the same pay. 
 
Other issues discussed included improvements in recruitment, and the 
improved ratio between the highest and lowest paid employees 
 
Upon the moving of Councillor Allison Bucknell, seconded by Councillor Tony 
Jackson, at the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the draft policy to be presented at Full Council on 20 February 
2018 on the understanding that the budget figure will be reviewed and 
updated prior to Full Council approval.  
 

8 Time Off for Fostering Policy 
 
A report from Jo Pitt, Director of HR and OD, was received, presented by 
Amanda George, HR Strategic Delivery Manager. 
 
It was detailed that the ‘Time off for fostering policy’ was part of the recruitment 
campaign to increase the number of foster carers, and to enable the council to 
be officially designated by the Fostering Network as a ‘fostering friendly 

Page 462



 
 
 

 
 
 

authority’. This would enable the council to lead the way in encouraging other 
organisations to adopt similar policies. 
 
The proposed policy allows additional paid time off in a 12-month period for 
prospective and approved foster carers, including up to 3 days in total to attend 
assessment and initial training prior to approval; up to 1 day to attend the 
approving fostering panel; and up to five days in total to attend a child’s in care 
review, annual foster carer review and other associated meetings required 
when fostering children. 
 
The Committee discussed the proposed policy, recognising it as an important 
measure to improve recruitment of foster carers, noting that at present only 45% 
of Looked After Children within the council’s area were being fostered, against a 
target of 75%. It was noted that it was possible the policy could be challenged 
on equalities grounds as this particular group of staff were receiving more 
favourable treatment, but accepted the intention was to offer positive support in 
support of a vital service, and that 29 other local authorities had already 
adopted similar policies. 
 
Upon the moving of Councillor Allison Bucknell, seconded by Councillor Tony 
Jackson, at the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the ‘Time off for fostering’ policy and procedure to support 
current employees who are foster carers or wish to become foster carers, 
and so become a fostering friendly authority. 
 

9 Quarterly Workforce Report: July - September 2017 
 
A report was presented by Stuart Honeyball, HR Systems and Insight Manager, 
and Michael Taylor, Workforce Insight Analyst, detailing the Quarterly 
Workforce Report for July-September 2017. 
 
Details were received on the figures for long term absences, which had 
improved slightly on the previous quarter, and HR was continuing to work with 
Heads of Service to improve how they handled such situations. It was confirmed 
‘long term absence’ was defined as greater than 20 days. It was also reported 
that the number of under 25-year-olds working with the council had decreased, 
however it was noted that this was the result of the transfer of staff to casual 
contracts, people ageing out of the age bracket, and that the council was still 
recruiting more under 25s than it was losing. 
 
Other details reported including a review of the leaving process to improve the 
existing exit questionnaire, the inclusion of an apprenticeship co-ordinator within 
HR, and the long-term issue of social worker recruitment and retention, which 
had improved since the use of a market supplement.  
 
The Committee also discussed potential ways of rotating staff in stressful roles 
to reduce pressures and prevent sickness absences, as well as the future 

Page 463



 
 
 

 
 
 

presentation of data to the Committee on a regular basis, with requests for 
additional narrative and service focused detail as required. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Quarterly Workforce Report. 
 

10 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 7 March 2018. A training and 
briefing session on the People Strategy would take place prior to the meeting.  
 

11 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30  - 11.35 am) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 

direct line 01225 7130358504, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 464



52 
Initials ____ 

 

 

 

Minutes of the  

Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Authority held at 10:00 hours on  

Friday 8 September 2017 at the  

Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters, Salisbury 

 

 

Members present: Cllr Spencer Flower (Chairman); Cllr Garry Perkins (Vice 

Chairman); Cllr Steve Allsopp; Cllr Abdul Amin; Cllr Richard Biggs; Cllr Kevin 

Brookes; Cllr Steve Butler Cllr Les Burden; Cllr Ernie Clark; Cllr Andrew Davis; Cllr 

Brian Dalton; Cllr Peter Hutton; Cllr Bob Jones; Cllr Rebecca Knox; Cllr Colin Lovell; 

Cllr Christopher Newbury; Cllr Byron Quayle; Cllr Pip Ridout; Cllr Christopher 

Rochester; Cllr Ann Stribley; Cllr Robert Yuill.   

 

Officer attendance: Chief Fire Officer, Mr Ben Ansell; Clerk & Monitoring Officer, Mr 

Jonathan Mair; Director of Finance & Treasurer, Mr Phil Chow; Director of Corporate 

Services, Mr Derek James; Director of People Services, Ms Jenny Long; Director of 

Operations, ACFO Jim Mahoney; Director of Prevention and Protection, ACFO Mick 

Stead; Area Commander Bournemouth, Poole and Swindon, Craig Baker; Head of 

Information Management and Communications, Mrs Vikki Shearing; Media & 

Graphic Designer, Mr Max Furneaux; Safety Centre Project Manager, Group 

Manager Kathy Collis. 

Guest: Mr Scott Tacchi, Project Manager and Partner, Ridge. 

 

17/39  Welcome 
   
17/39.1  The Chairman opened the meeting and welcomed attendees. 

 

17/40  Apologies 
   
17/40.1  Apologies were received from Cllr Mark Anderson; Cllr Malcolm Davies; Cllr 

Matthew Dean; Cllr Beverley Dunlop; Cllr Colin Jamieson; Cllr Susan 
Jefferies; Cllr Nick Martin; Cllr Paul Oatway; Cllr Vikki Slade; Director of 
Assets, ACFO John Aldridge. 

 

Page 465

Agenda Item 55



53 
Initials ____ 

 

17/41  Code of Conduct, Declarations of Interest and Notifications of Any 
Other Business 

   
17/41.1  The Chairman asked the meeting for any disclosures of pecuniary interests 

under the localism act. There were no disclosures. 
 

17/42  Review and approve Minutes of the Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue 
Authority meeting on 27 June 2017 

   
17/42.1  The chairman asked Members to review and approve the minutes from the 

last meeting. 
   
17/42.2  The Chief Fire Officer confirmed that all outstanding actions had been 

completed. 
   
17/42.3  RESOLVED: That the Minutes be confirmed, subject to amending the  

name of the Labour Group Leader to Cllr Steve Allsopp, and be signed 
by the Chairman as a correct record. 

   
 

17/43  Receive the minutes from previous Finance, Governance and Audit 
meeting, 27 June 2017, and update on Member Development 

   
17/43.1  Members received the minutes, with no further comment. 
   

 

17/44  Pensions board nomination (Firefighter pensions) 
   
17/44.1  RESOLVED: Cllr Pip Ridout to be added to Local Government 

Pensions Board 
 

17/45  Planned changes to the membership and governance of the Fire and 
Rescue Authority 

   
17/45.1  The Chairman reminded Members that at their meeting on 9 March 2017 

the Authority received a joint report from the Chairman of the Governance 
Working Group and the Monitoring Officer on possible changes to the 
membership of the Authority.  Having considered the report, the Authority 
approved in principle and, as the basis for consultation with the five 
constituent Councils, an Authority membership of 18.  The views of the 
constituent Councils were then to be reported to this meeting. The report 
drew together the responses received to the consultation and recommends 
that the Authority make a formal request to the Home Secretary for a 
variation of the Combination Order to reduce the Authority’s membership 
from 30 to 18.     

   

Page 466



54 
Initials ____ 

 

17/45.2  The Chairman brought Members attention to the Adrian Thomas Review 
and the Policing and Crime Act 2017; he outlined the changes at other fire 
and rescue authorities.  He added that there were a number of key drivers 
for making changes to the membership.   

   
14/45.3  The Chairman had received feedback from all five constituent councils all 

with their support to reduce the membership to 18 except one which argued 
for a reduction to 24 Members. 

   
17/45.4  The Chairman moved the recommendations, seconded by Cllr Bob Jones.   
   
17/45.5  Members suggested that a ‘requirement to attend’ should be put in place 

and reinforced by constituent authorities; along with assured equality of 
representation across both the north and the south of the area served by the 
Authority. 

   
17/45.6  Recognition was made of the need to undertake a  review of Governance to 

be undertaken by Officers and overseen by Finance, Governance and Audit 
Committee. 

   
17/45.7  The Chairman was grateful for Members and their in-depth considerations 

and reminded them that the authority needs to consider its the long term 
future sustainability and that of the Service. 

   
17/45.8  Asked by the Chairman, the Chief Fire Officer, Ben Ansell, outlined the 

benefits this change would bring to the efficiency of the Service itself, but 
stated that governance arrangements were clearly a matter for Members. 

   
17/45.9  RESOLVED: That a formal request is made to the Home Secretary for a 

variation to the Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Authority 

(Combination Scheme) Order 2015 to reduce the membership of the 

Authority from 30 to 18, with each constituent Council appointing 

members to the Authority in proportion to its share of the total 

electorate of the five constituent Councils (16 in favour, 5 against). 
   
17/45.10  RESOLVED: That an internal review of governance arrangements be 

held suitable to the reduced Membership, and overseen by the 
Finance, Governance and Audit Committee. 

 

17/46  Asset Department resources update 
   
17/46.1  The Chairman introduced the Head of Corporate Services, Derek James, 

who presented this item on behalf of ACFO John Aldridge. The Chairman of 
Finance, Governance and Audit, Cllr Bob Jones, gave some background on 
his request and the discussions previously undertaken. 

   
17/46.2  Following combination, the Asset department has suffered from a large 

number of vacancies, significantly in excess of what could be predicted. The 

Page 467



55 
Initials ____ 

 

reasons for the high level of vacancies included retirements, promotion to 
other roles or movement to other organisations of key members of staff. 
However, during this period the teams have continued to ensure that they 
have undertaken all of the key elements of their work that ensures all 
premises, fleet and equipment are maintained and fit for purpose. As a 
result of recent recruitment campaigns there is now greater stability in the 
department and the capacity of the teams has been largely restored. As a 
result we are now in a strong position to work towards full implementation of 
recognised asset management plans, systems and procedures that were 
planned to be delivered. 

   
17/46.3  The Chairman of the Finance, Governance and Audit Committee added that 

they will continue to monitor the resourcing of the Assets Department. 
   
17/46.4  RESOLVED: Members noted the report. 

 

17/47  Members Podcast   
   
17/47.1  The CFO introduced the Podcast and the Media and Graphic Designer, Max 

Furneaux.  Station Manager Wayne Presley provided highlights on the 
Podcast and the CFO thanked the Members for their continued support over 
what has been a very busy summer. 

   
17/47.2  Members supported Cllr Jones when he asked that thanks be recorded for 

all the work carried out by staff and volunteers both front line and support. 
   
17/47/.3  ACTION: The CFO to convey thanks to all teams on behalf of the Fire 

and Rescue Authority. 

 

17/48  Public Health England Wellbeing Charter/Dying to work charter 
   

17/48.1  The Director of People Services, Jenny Long was welcomed to the table and 
introduced this item. 

   
17/48.2  Dying to Work is a Trade Union Congress (TUC) campaign to gain support 

and encourage employers to sign a voluntary charter that sets out how 

employees will be supported, protected and guided through their employment 

should they receive a terminal diagnosis. Ms Long added that prior to 

combination both Services had a history of providing excellent care to our 

staff who have been diagnosed with a terminal illness or acquired a life 

changing injury and, whilst this has not yet needed to be considered for 

Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service, it is a legacy we are keen to 

continue. 

 
  

17/48.3 
 Ms Long outlined a number of fire and rescue services and other 

organisations who had already signed the Charter. 

Page 468



56 
Initials ____ 

 

   
17/48.4  Members discussed the scheme of delegation and Monitoring Officer agreed 

that the CFO was entitled to sign up the Service but that delegated authority 
for the signing of future charters should be included in the governance 
review. 

   
17/48.5  RESOLVED: Members noted the content of the report and supported 

the intention of the CFO to sign the Charter. 
   
17/48.6  ACTION: The scheme of delegation to be part of the Governance 

Review discussed earlier in the meeting at item 17/45.6. 

 

17/49  Date of Next Meeting 
   
17/49.1  The chairman confirmed the date of the next DWFRA meeting as Tuesday 5 

December 2017 at Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service 
Headquarters, Five Rivers Health and Wellbeing Centre, Hulse Rd, Salisbury, 
SP1 3NR, from 10am. 

 

17/50  Consider passing the following resolution 
   
17/50.1  In accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, to 

exclude the press and public for the business specified below because it is 
likely that if members of the public were present there would be disclosure to 
them of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A to the Act.   

   
17/50.2  RESOLVED: Members passed the resolution and closed the meeting to 

the press and public.  
 

PART 2 

 

17/51  Marauding terrorist fire arms response capability 
   
17/51.1  The director of Operations, ACFO Mahoney, introduced the paper to 

Members giving some background to the paper and the changing nature of 
terrorism. 

   
17/51.2  

In 2012, the Home Office supported the establishment of fifteen Fire and 
Rescue teams to provide a joint response capability with Ambulance staff in 
the event of a Marauding Terrorist Firearms Attack (MTFA).  In light of recent 
events and following a review of the risk associated with terrorist activities, 
the Home Office has revised its thinking and is enhancing the national MTFA 
response capability through an uplift programme.  Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and 
Rescue Service (DWFRS) has received a request from the Home Office to 

Page 469



57 
Initials ____ 

 

establish an MTFA response capability as part of this uplift programme in 
order to enhance and support the national capability.  DWFRS has agreed to 
support the uplift programme subject to both the Authority’s approval and the 
resolution of a number of outstanding national issues. 

   
17/51.3  AM Craig Baker took Members through the detail of the report, our current 

response, the proposed future response and budget. 
   
17/51.4  Budget costs and additional expenditure possibilities were discussed by 

Members alongside grant funding to cover all costs.  
   
17/51.5  RESOLVED: Having considered the report, its implications and 

expectations, Members approved the two recommendations. 
 

17/52  Safety Centre 
   

17/52.1  Director of Prevention and Protection, ACFO Mick Stead was welcomed to 
the table, he introduced GM Kathy Collis who is the Project manager for the 
Safety Centre.  Mr Scott Tacchi, Partner and Project manager at Ridge was 
also welcomed to the table. 

   
17/52.2  GM Collis took Members through the presentation on the Safety Centre and 

outlined how far the project had come in recent months. 
   
17/52.3  The Safety Centre delivery is subject to a comprehensive project plan, which 

has been approved by the Safety Centre Working Group who monitors 
progress against its timeline. The key areas within the project plan are the 
lease arrangements, planning arrangements, procurement for design and 
build, partnering, sponsorship and long term sustainability. 

   
17/52.4  Members discussed the sponsorships, support and community impact for the 

Safety Centre project; project costs and long term benefits to the community 
and the wider impact this would have. 

   
17/52.5  RESOLVED: Members noted and reviewed the progress of the project 
   
17/52.6  RESOLVED: That the revised budget for the Safety Centre be approved. 
   
17/52.7  RESOLVED: Additional funding to support delivery in line with the 

recommendation of the Members Working Group (Option 1) be 
approved. 

   
 

Meeting closed at: 12:35 

 

 

Signed: ____________ 

Page 470



Initials ____ 
 

Page 58 
 

 

 

 

DRAFT Minutes of the  

Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Authority held at 10:00 hours  

on Tuesday 5 December 2017 at the  

Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters, Salisbury 

 

These are draft minutes prepared by officers to be approved by the Fire and Rescue 

Authority at their next meeting. 

 

Members present: Cllr Spencer Flower (Chairman); Cllr Garry Perkins (Vice 

Chairman); Cllr Steve Allsopp; Cllr Abdul Amin; Cllr Mark Anderson; Cllr Les Burden; 

Cllr Steve Butler; Cllr Malcolm Davies; Cllr Andrew Davis; Cllr Matthew Dean; Cllr 

Beverley Dunlop; Cllr Brian Dalton; Cllr Peter Hutton; Cllr Bob Jones; Cllr Nick 

Martin; Cllr Paul Oatway; Cllr Byron Quayle; Cllr Pip Ridout; Cllr Christopher 

Rochester; Cllr Ann Stribley; Cllr Robert Yuill.   

 

Officer attendance: Chief Fire Officer & Chief Executive, Mr Ben Ansell; Clerk & 

Monitoring Officer to DWFRA, Mr Jonathan Mair; Deputy Chief Fire Officer, Mr Derek 

James; Director of Finance & Treasurer, Mr Phil Chow; ACFO John Aldridge 

(Director, Service Support); Director of People Services, Ms Jenny Long; ACFO Jim 

Mahoney, (Director, Community Safety); ACFO Mick Stead, (Director of Service 

Improvement); Democratic Services Officer, Mrs Marianne Taylor; AM Seth Why, 

Head of Fire Safety (Prevention and Protection) 

Guest: Mr Scott Tacchi, Project Manager and Partner, Ridge and Partners LLP. 

 

17/54  Welcome 
   
17/54.1  The Chairman opened the meeting and welcomed attendees. 
   
17/54.2  The Chairman provided an update to Members on his recent meeting with 

Wendy Williams, Inspector, of Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabularies.  
   

Page 471

Agenda Item 56

TaylorMarianne
Typewriter
Item 18/04



Initials ____ 
 

Page 59 
 

17/54.3  He went on to advise of the multi-agency flood defence exercise taking 
place on field opposite Salisbury Fire Station and invited Members to 
observe, should they so wish, after the meeting.   

   
17/54.4  The Chairman also confirmed to Members of his intention to write to all local 

MPs regarding the Service’s financial position and any preferred freedoms 
concerning council tax increases. 

   
  10:10 Cllr Beverley Dunlop arrived 

 
17/55  Apologies 
   
17/55.1  The Chairman confirmed that apologies were received from Cllr Richard 

Biggs; Cllr Kevin Brookes; Cllr Ernie Clark; Cllr Colin Jamieson; Cllr Susan 
Jefferies; Cllr Rebecca Knox; Cllr Colin Lovell; Cllr Christopher Newbury; 
Cllr Vikki Slade 

 

17/56  Code of Conduct, Declarations of Interest and Notifications of Any 
Other  Business 

   
17/56.1  The Chairman asked the meeting for any disclosures of pecuniary interests 

under the localism act. There were no disclosures. 
 

17/57  Minutes of the Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Authority meeting 
on 8 September 2017 

   
17/57.1  The Chairman asked Members to review and approve the minutes from the 

last meeting. 
   
17/57.2  RESOLVED: The minutes were confirmed and approved, without 

amendment, and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 

17/58  Receive minutes from previous Policy and Resources Committee 
meeting (19/10/17) 

   
17/58.1  The Chairman reviewed the minutes of the Policy & Resources Committee 

meeting with Members and provided a verbal update. 
   
17/58.2  Members discussed and agreed that the Policy and Resources Committee 

meeting, due to take place on 11 January 2018, would be cancelled. 
   
17/58.3  RESOLVED: The cancellation of the Policy & Resources Committee 

meeting on 11 January 2018. 
   
17/58.4  ACTION: Democratic Services Officer to cancel the Policy and 

Resources Committee meeting booked for 11 January 2018. 

Page 472



Initials ____ 
 

Page 60 
 

 

17/59  Receive minutes from previous Finance, Governance and Audit 
Committee meeting (29/9/17) 

   
17/59.1  Cllr Bob Jones, Chairman of the Finance, Governance and Audit committee, 

provided Members with assurance of the draft meeting minutes. 
   
17/60  Service Performance Review (six month summary) 
   
17/60.1  Chief Fire Officer & Chief Executive (CFO), Ben Ansell, provided Members 

with a presentation on the Service’s performance from April to September 
2017. 

   
17/60.2  The CFO highlighted to Members how the performance of the Service had 

been reviewed at the beginning of 2017/18 where baseline assessments 
were established against each key line of enquiry, leading to a judgement of 
‘developing, established or advanced’ for each. 

   
17/60.3  He went on to explain, how, through a strategic assessment, the Service 

identified where it wanted to be by 2018/19, balancing aspiration with 
resources and how this work directed the delivery of the Service Delivery 
Plan, along with the Service’s strategic risks. 

   
17/60.4  The CFO took Members through each of the Service’s 5 priorities and 

explained how it monitors the progress and performance via the key 
performance indicators and corporate targets, providing assurance of and 
evidence for the baseline assessments provided.  He also highlighted 
current areas of focus for the Service. 

   
17.60.5  The CFO confirmed how the priorities are further scrutinised by Members, 

noting that Priorities 1, 2 and 3 are examined by the Local Performance and 
Scrutiny committee’s and priorities 4 and 5 by Finance, Governance and 
Audit, who also scrutinise the strategic risks. 

   
17.60.6  Members highlighted their concern regarding the rise in deliberate fire 

figures.  The CFO explained that the Service’s rising figure was in line with 
increases nationally and provided Members with assurance of the Service’s 
focus on prevention. 

   
17.60.7  Members discussed the response figures in the rural areas, where crewing 

is mainly from on-call personnel. The CFO provided Members with an 
update on the on-call review, noting its focus on the shortfall of on-call 
crewing.  

   
  11:40 Cllr Nick Martin arrived 
   
17/60.8  Members requested for performance information on attendance times to be 

included in future reports. 
   

Page 473



Initials ____ 
 

Page 61 
 

17/60.9  Members discussed the usefulness of the Local Performance & Scrutiny 
committees and how they can make comparisons between local areas and 
demographic differences.  Members requested for the minutes of these 
meetings to be appended to the Authority minutes when published. 

   
17/60.10  The CFO confirmed that progress is on track and the Service is in a good 

position with regards to fulfilling its commitments in the Service delivery 
plan. 

   
17/60.11  RESOLVED:  Members noted the Service Performance Review (Six 

Month Summary) 
   
17/60.12  ACTION: Democratic Service Officer to append the minutes from the 

Local performance and Scrutiny Committees to the minutes of the 
Authority when published. 

   
17/60.13  ACTION: CFO to include attendance times in future performance 

review reports. 

 

17/61  Treasury Management Mid-Year Report 2017-2018 
   
17/61.1  The Director of Finance & Treasurer, Mr Phil Chow, took Members through 

the Treasury Management performance for the period ending 30 September 
2017, against the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential 
Indicators for 2017-18 report that was approved at the Authority meeting on 
9 February 2017. 

   
17/61.2  Mr Chow brought lending lists and investments to Members attention and 

noted the changes that have taken place so far. He highlighted the gap 
between what the Service could have borrowed (capital financing 
requirement) and what was actually borrowed, for capital purposes, noting 
that the Service has under-borrowed by approximately £13m. Mr Chow also 
noted that one maturity loan was repaid in October, which has reduced the 
level of borrowing. 

   
17/61.3  Members discussed the loans, interests and repayment methods and noted 

the Services position. 
   
17/61.4  RESOLVED: Members considered and noted the updated Treasury 

Management position as at 30 September 2017. 

 

 

17/62  Statement of Assurance 
   
17/62.1  The Deputy Chief Fire Officer (DCFO), Derek James, took the Members 

through the Statement of Assurance which the Service, under the National 
Framework document (2012), is required to produce annually covering 
financial, service and governance matters. 

Page 474



Initials ____ 
 

Page 62 
 

   
17/62.2  Chairman of the Finance, Governance and Audit Committee, Cllr Bob Jones 

commended the Statement to Members and confirmed the 
recommendation, of the Finance, Governance and Audit Committee, of its 
approval.   

   
17/62.3  RESOLVED: Members approved the draft Statement of Assurance 

2016/17. 
   
17/62.4  ACTION: Democratic Services Officer to ensure that the Statement of 

Assurance is published on the Service’s website. 
 

17/63  Revised Capital Programme 
   
17/63.1  The Director of Finance and Treasurer, Mr Phil Chow took Members through 

the Revised Capital Programme, which is regularly monitored and reviewed 
by the Finance Governance and Audit Committee. Mr Chow highlighted how 
the paper identifies how the programme had been revised to take account of 
capital slippage and reassessment of needs and put forward a revised set of 
prudential indicators for 2017-18 regarding affordability, prudence and 
sustainability. 

   
17/63.2  RESOLVED: Members noted the changes required and reported in 

Section 2 of the report; approved the revised Capital Programme for 

2017-18 of £9.334m; and approved the revised prudential indicators – 

Appendix A, as a result of the change in the capital programme 2017-

18. 

 

17/64  Grenfell Towers, verbal update 
   
17/64.1  Chief Fire Officer & Chief Executive (CFO), Ben Ansell, gave a presentation 

on the Grenfell fire tragedy and provided an update on the public enquiry, 
recovery task force and the Hackitt Review.  

   
17/64.2  The CFO provided assurance to Members of the work undertake in relation 

to the 180 high-rise residential properties within the Service area, noting the 
Service’s appointment of a high-rise project officer, additional training, multi-
agency exercises and the Services involvement within both the Swindon & 
Wiltshire Local Resilience Forum and Dorset Local Resilience Forum. 

   
17/64.3  The CFO confirmed that investment had been approved to renew two 32m 

aerial ladders and a 42m aerial appliance.  
   
   
17/64.4  He went on to advise Members of the premises information plates, fitted to 

high rise buildings with over 10 storeys, noting the vital information for 
operational staff attending an incident and confirmed that the Service had 

Page 475



Initials ____ 
 

Page 63 
 

undertaken a project to ensure that these are fitted to all buildings with over 
six storeys, which would be delivered over the next few months.  

   
17/64.5  Members thanked the CFO for his update and requested for an update 

following the inquiry. 
   
17/64.6  ACTION: The CFO to provide Members with an update following the 

inquiry. 
 

17/65  Public DVD 
   
17/65.1  Chief Fire Officer & Chief Executive (CFO), Ben Ansell introduced the short 

DVD promoting the Service to Members and the Public, which included 
footage from the ‘have a go days’, Salamander & SPARC courses for 12 to 
18 year olds; the Memorial Service at Christchurch Fire Station for 
firefighters who had lost their lives 30 years ago; Safe Drive Stay Alive; the 
International Wildfire Conference; the incidents attended (including the 
Jurassic Skyline tower rescue in Weymouth); use of drones; support from 
the Red Cross and a complex fire on the A303 in October.  

 

17/66  Date of Next Meeting 
   
17/66.1  The Chairman confirmed the date of the next Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and 

Rescue Authority meeting as Friday 9 February 2018 at Dorset & Wiltshire 
Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters, Five Rivers Health and Wellbeing 
Centre, Hulse Rd, Salisbury SP1 3NR, from 10am. 

 

17/67 To consider passing the following resolution:  

   

17/67.1 In accordance with Section 100A (3) of the Local Government Act 1972, to 

exclude the press and public for the business specified below because it is 

likely that if members of the public were present there would be disclosure 

to them of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 

Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the 

information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the 

public. 

  

17/67.2 RESOLVED: To close the meeting to the press and public. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 476



Initials ____ 
 

Page 64 
 

Part 2 

 

17/68  Safety Centre Discussions 
   
17/68.1  Assistant Chief Fire Officer, John Aldridge, took Members through the 

paper. 
   
17/68.2  Cllr Bob Jones and Cllr Garry Perkins, as members of the Safety Centre 

working group, confirmed their support for the paper.  
   
17/68.3  Members discussed the paper and requested that an options paper be 

brought to the Authority meeting in February 2018. 
   
  12:05 – Cllr Beverley Dunlop left the meeting. 
   
17/68.4  RESOLVED: Members voted on the 3 recommendations within the and 

provided their approval, with one abstention. 
   
17/68.5  ACTION: ACFO Aldridge to provide Members with an options paper at 

the Fire Authority Meeting on 9 February 2018. 
   

 

 

17/69  Marauding Terrorist Fire Arms (MTFA) – verbal update 
   
17/69.1  Assistant Chief Fire Officer, Jim Mahoney, provided an update to Members.  
   
17/69.2  ACFO Mahoney advised of the Service’s position statement following the 

decisions made by Members in relation to the recommendations of the 
confidential report entitled Responding to new risks: Marauding terrorist 
firearms attack (MTFA) uplift programme presented at their 8 September 
2018 meeting.   

   
17/69.3  Members noted the position statement and requested for a copy to be 

provided to all Members. 
   
17/69.4  RESOLVED: Members accepted the verbal update and noted the 

position of the Service. 
   
17/69.5  ACTION: ACFO Mahoney to provide a copy of the position statement 

to Members. 
 

 

The meeting closed at 12:25hrs 

 

 

Signed: ____________ 

Page 477



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Cabinet
	Minutes

	2 Cabinet
	Minutes

	3 Cabinet
	Minutes
	175 Public participation and Questions from Councillors

	4 Cabinet
	5 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Minutes

	6 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Minutes
	7 Wiltshire Council's Financial Plan Update 2018/19
	Report of the Financial Planning TG - Financial Plan Update 2018-19


	7 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Minutes
	16 Wiltshire Council Financial Plan 2018/19: Amendments

	8 Children's Select Committee
	Minutes

	9 Children's Select Committee
	Minutes

	10 Environment Select Committee
	Minutes
	49 Public Participation
	Response to South West Wiltshire Green Party Questions


	11 Environment Select Committee
	12 Health Select Committee
	Minutes

	13 Health Select Committee
	Minutes

	14 Strategic Planning Committee
	15 Strategic Planning Committee
	16 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	17 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	18 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	19 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	20 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	21 Eastern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	22 Eastern Area Planning Committee
	23 Southern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	24 Southern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	25 Southern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	26 Southern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	27 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	28 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	29 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	30 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	31 Health and Wellbeing Board
	Minutes

	32 Health and Wellbeing Board
	Minutes

	33 Local Pension Board
	Minutes

	34 Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee
	Minutes

	35 Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee
	Minutes

	36 Wiltshire Police and Crime Panel
	37 Wiltshire Police and Crime Panel
	38 Wiltshire Police and Crime Panel
	Minutes

	39 Audit Committee
	Minutes
	44 KPMG - Wiltshire Council  - Annual Audit Letter 2016-17
	Annual Audit Letter 2016/17��Wiltshire Council
	Slide Number 2
	Summary 
	Slide Number 4
	Key issues and recommendations
	Summary of reports issued
	Slide Number 7
	Audit fees
	Slide Number 9


	40 Standards Committee
	Minutes

	41 Electoral Review Committee
	Minutes

	42 Electoral Review Committee
	Minutes

	43 Electoral Review Committee
	Minutes

	44 Electoral Review Committee
	Minutes

	45 Officer Appointment Committee
	46 Officer Appointment Committee
	47 Officer Appointment Committee
	48 Officer Appointment Committee
	49 Officer Appointment Committee
	50 Officer Appointment Committee
	51 Officer Appointment Committee
	Minutes

	52 Officer Appointment Committee
	53 Staffing Policy Committee
	54 Staffing Policy Committee
	Minutes

	55 Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority
	56 Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority



